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At MAG, our role is to connect our customers to
the world with great airport experiences and

innovative travel services.

o

To be a world-leader in the provision of airport
facilities and travel services, delivering value

for all stakeholders.

We are on a mission to make our
airports and travel services the

number one choice for travellers
and airlines,
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Our business at a glance
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Manchester Airports Group (MAG) is the UK's largest airports group, owning
and operating Manchester, London Stansted and East Midlands Airports,

and a digital travel services business, CAVU.

In FY23, the Group served 54 million passengers and 261 destinations across

its three airports. With catchments spanning the UK, around 70% of the

population live within a two-hour journey of a MAG airport.

Together with CAVU, the Group employed over 5,800 colieagues at the end of FY23.

MANCHESTER

Monchester Aupoitis the UK's globa) gateway in the North, servng 25 2m passengers in FY23.

It is the only aiiport autside of Lenden with twe tull-length runways ond is home 1o 49 ailbnes serving

196 destinations across four continerts, The airport employs aver 2,900 people direcfly and supparts
16,000 jobs across the site. Manchester Airport is currently undergoing the final phase of its £1.3bn ransformation

progromme, which s sel for completion in 2025.

Read more on
page 26
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CAVU

CAVU was founded in 2022 by
bringing together the MAG-O
and MAG-US business units,
including their network of direct-
to-consumer bronds CAVU
combines the expertise of these
entnes 1o provide services both o
MAG aitports and other cirpars
across the world, driving e provec
revenue by delivering digital
solutions and physical expenences
that moke air trave! more smooth
and enjoyoble. CAVU operates
MAG s own cor parking and
lounge products, and has also
secured deals ‘o operae 24
lounges in the UK and US,

Read more on
page 32

EAST MIDLANDS

25.2m

PASSENGERS

Eost Midlands Airport is o popular regionai hub for business and lesure
rrovel across Furope, offering passengers acrass the Midionds o seng
orray of olordable and suess-fiee rovel options. I1is bome to the UK's
largest pure height operation, ploying o vilal role in UK global rade. This
yeor. the airport served 3.3m passengers across

43 destinctions and handled 395,000 onnes of cargo

% Read more on
page 30

LONDON STANSTED

3.3m

PASSEMNGERS

Llondan Stans'ed Airport serves connections 1o more European destinations
than any otker arepen in the UK, os well as croviding access 1o the rest

of the world “brough is route 10 Dubar with Erricates. It is ihe only majar
Llondon enport with spoie runway capocity 10 support future growth. The
airpert served 25 5m passengers n FY23 1o 194 destinanons. london
Sransied employs more than 1 900 people directly ond suppornts o 10wl of
13,000 jobs on site

Read more on
poge 28

25.5m

PASSENGERS
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With a route network spanning four
continents, MAG connects passengers
and businesses to key destinations
across the globe. Through CAVU,

we are developing a global footprint
of both physical and digital

airport services.

AVIATION CAR PARKS

£3559m £325.1m

MAG has a diverse mix of carriers Through CAVU’s market-leading

from across the globe, allowing approach to enline girport services, MAG
our airports to provide choice, operates highly successful airport car
value and convenience for parking businesses. Qur car parks cater
our possengers. for all tastes and budgets ranging from

our competitively-priced JetParks brand
through to Meet & Greet and Valet services.

We forge strong commercial
partnerships with our airlines,
and work with them to deliver
growth which allow our airports
to help drive economic growth
of their regions.

Cargo operations across MAG's
airports handle more than
700,000 tonnes of air cargo to and
from gloabal hubs and the UK
every year.
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RETAIL SPACE

£234.5m

Qur girports have more than 355,000 sq ft of
retail space. We work with a diverse range

of brands, both new and established, to

help them operate successfully in an airport
environment. As part of the Manchester Airport
Transformation Programme, we have delivered
a retail offering including regional bronds

that reflect the best the North has to offer.
Partnering with MAG gives retailers potential
access to more than 50m customer journeys.

GOVERNANCE

FURTHER READING

Chief Executive's statement
page 12

Our strategic priorities
page 17

Working tegether for o brighter future
page 34

Divisional reviews
poge 26
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FINANCIAL HIGHUGHTS

REVENUE

£1,029.0m

2020: £222.3m

22 I o

21 Il s

20 IR -
19 M .«

[LOS5)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

— £(197.4)m

22 I s 2020: £75 4m
21 VPR /77 o)

20 M san

19 | EEErT

ADIUSTED EBITDA”

2 mmee . £412.0m

27 N (45 4im 2020: £382.1m
20 T ::c
19 | ETEF

“as explaned . Othier Infarmet on of ihe finanaial siatemenis on page 173,
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

— Rapid growth in passenger — Investment plans across the - Developed and implemented
demand during the year, Group resumed, including a new Group strategy and
with our airports handling the final phase of Manchester operating medel, alengside a
54.0m passengers Airport’s £1.3bn transformation refreshed set of company vaiues

— Strong recovery in the route programme, due for completion — CAVU continved to develop its
networks at all three airports, in 2025 global footprint, now
including direct long-haut — Partnerships established to operating in 13 locations across
connections at Manchester and secure supplies of Sustainable the US
London Stansted Aviation Fuel and hydrogen
technology to help our industry
reach net zero by 2050

PASSENGER INUMBERS CARBOMN REDUCTION ~ CO2 EMISSIONS

22 W0 5 27 I—
21 Moo 2020: o5em 21 I : -
20 I ;¢ 20 NN o 7

10 T 15 19 I © 7

2020: 075

HEA(TH AND SAFETY RIDDOR -~ FEMALE REPRESENTATION AT LEADERSHIP
REPORTABLE ACCIDENTS

22 I 2
21 I 1 o
20 W - o
19 1/a

2020:12 2020:32.2%
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With passenger

demand returning close
to pre-pandemic levels
across the Group, we are
now looking ahead to

a period of growth and
investment that will drive
a sustained increase in
shareholder value over

" the next decade.




WK
Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Chair's foreword

A vear of

I am delighted to report o strong performance
that demonsirates the resilience of our
business and draws a line under one of the
most urbulent periods in the history of the
aveation industry. \With o clear siategy, well-
invested assets ond our talented colleagues.

we are able to look ahead with confidence to

the next five to 10 years.

The ropid recovery of ar travel following the
temoval of Covid- 19 restrictions confirmed
how much people volue the ability o trovel,
ond MAG's choice ond value proposition
meant we were well-placed to satisfy thot
demond. This was reflecied in the industry-
leading recovery of cur aitports, with MAG
ending the period close lo pre-pandemic
passenger valomes {90.6%)

The occeleration of demand put significani
pressure on the whole industry in the months
after travel restrictions were fifted. The well-
documented operational issues experienced
across the sector impacted our airports 1o
varying extenrs ard were most pronounced
in the earlier par of the recavery penod.

As the summer progressed, service levels
improved consistently, and we are confident
the challenges faced «n the earlier por of
the financial year are behind us, Service
performance a1 our oirports has been
restored i good levels. seting us up for a
successhul year,

INVESTMENT

MAG has continued 1o invest in inhastructure,
faciliies and customer setvice, fo mee! the
needs of passengers today and in the future
We recently announced the final phase of the
£1 3bn Manchester Airport Transtarmation
Programme {MAN-TP). which will enharce
the passenger experience and suppaon! growih
over the coming decades.

This year macked the 10th anniversary of
MAG's ccquisition of London Stonsted
Airport, mok'\ng it an opporiune hme fo

reflect on the growth we've delivered fo
muake it one of the largest cirports in the

UK. Having recovered foster thon any other
major UK airport, Stansted is now deve'oping
irvesimen' plans 1o enable it 1o hondle 43m
passenger joumneys a year lup hom a cunent
cap of 35m). in line with the planning consent
It secured in 2021

Almost back 16 full strength ond with ambinous
investment plons in place. it 1s clear that our
cirponts are important engines of economic
growth for the regicns hey serve and for

the UK as o whole. We are committed o
working with the Govemmen® 10 maximise

the contribution made by cur oirpots - and
air ravel more generolly — by unfocking the
potennal of high-growth cna mnternationally
significanl industries. In this way. our airpors
will play o lecding rele in rebalancing the
national economy by stmulating growth in the
commynities Gnd legioﬂs SUHOUF‘.dmg ;hem
This includes working vith the Government on
dnving forwerd @s plans 1o deliver Norhe:n
Pawerhouse Rail, which will rarslorm
connectwity to Monchester Airport from
ccross the Mo

DECARBONISATION

Decarbonisation is an urgent prority for the
aviation sector and tor MAG. The recent
commiiment 1o achieving net zero aviction
by 2G50 by the internotional Civil Aviahon
Organisation {{CAO) member states is ¢
histeric development in aviction and its
significonce cannct be overstoted.

{ om proud of the leading mole MAG is
playing in delivenng cur secior's sustainabily
commiments, hoving been o founding
member of the Government's Jet Zero Council
in 2020 and of Susainable Aviation in 20035
MAG is working hard to make its operations
net zero by 2038 ond 1ecenlly entered
strotegic pastnerships for the delivery of both
Sustainable Aviation Fuel {SAF} and hydiogen
to Manchester Airpori. You can read more
obout these on poge 34.

GOVERMNANCE

This will be my final annual report as Chair of
MAG, having taken the decision lo refire from
my position after nine yeors

Heving overseen the business's recovery
from the pandemic it felt like ar cppropriote
moment to sfep down and | om delighed
the Board has approved the appointment
of Chastie Cornish as ‘he rew Chan, from

1 Oclober 2023.

tis leadership will be virol as MAG enters
it an excitirg phcse of nvesiment and
growth and | wish him his Executive ream -
including newly-oppointed CEC Ken O'Toole
- and all MAG celleogues ali the best for

the fulure
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The rapid recovery of air travel following the
removal of Covid-19 restrictions confirmed
how much people value the ability to travel,
and MAG’s choice and value proposition
meant we were particularly well placed

to satisfy that demand.”

QUTLOOK

I am pleased to be oble to look bock on o
successtul 12 monihs, the sector’s firsl full year
without travet restrictions. On behall of the
Board, | would like 1o express my giatiude to
all our employees ot MAG for delivering such
impressive results and for working so hard 1o
drive recovery after an exceptional peried of
Covid- 19 related distuption,

Looking aheod, the Board shares my
confidence in the Group's refreshed sirategy
and promising outlook. We understand the
current pressures on household budgets and
we will continue 1o strive to make air travel
accessible and alfordoble for our customers.
We are olso committed to investing for the
fong-term success of our business i oider
o maximise the benefits for the communities
and regions that we serve, and the value we
contribute to the UK economy more broadly

e

Sir Adrion Montague CBE
Chair
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Chief Executive’s statement
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Lost year was one of the most significant in
our sector’s history, the fust full year following
the removal of the resinchons imposed in
response to the Covid- 19 pandemic, enabling
the full resumption of imemational travel

ROBUST PERFORMANCE

Demond recovered well across all three of our
oirpons. We were defighted 1o see passenger
volumes returning close 1o pre-pandemic
levels, growing hom 83.8% of 2020 volures
ai the half year, to 90.6% at the financial year
end, Tota! passenger numbers for the financial
yeor reached 54.0m. on increase of 163.4%
compared with FY22.

Marnchester Auport saw 252m passengers
over the year, 89.4% of 2020 levels and

up 176.9% compared with £Y22 25 5m
passengers passed "hrough London Stansted
representing 94 8% of 2020 levels and

147 6% obove FY22 figures. East Midlands
ochieved 73 3% of 2020 levels, serving 3.3m
passengers. 200.0% more thon in the last
financial year.

Our recovery tanslated into o positive
financial performance. Improved passenger
numbers underpinned an increase in reverive
10 £ 1020 0m, vp 122 7% compored to the
previous yeor Adjusted EBITDA” grew by
228.0% 10 £412.0m and Adjusted Operating
Profit* was £169.8m, improved from o loss
of £113.Zm in FY22, Operating Profit was
£28 6m ircproved from a lass of £130 3 in

roundations

",

P

Y22 after deducting adjusted items including
the Deferred Debt Arrangement (DDA] in
relation 1o the exit of the Group refirement
scheme with GMPF

Demand wos particularly strong in the low
cost, shart-haul segment. with seot capacity
and possenger volumes exceeding pre-Covid
levels of vanous tmes in the last quorter, This
patlern was seen ocross the industry, chhough
itis pleosing to see that the rafe of recovery
ooross MAG typicolly outpaced thot of other
UK airports. Qur performance reflects the
srength of demand within the catchment
areas of our airporis as well as our close
relationships with citlines, based on a mutual
desite to provide the best volue ond choice 10
the customers we jointly serve

The rebound in the shor-haul market was
coupled wilh the striong retuen ol lerg-heul
trave! as interotional markets opened

up and full service orlines cdvanced their
own recoveries This was reflected in the
resumpton or additen of long-haul routes
fiom Manchester and londoen Stansted, and
we ore in discussions with a ronge of oirlines
to add further destinations.

The whole of the UK awiation sector
experienced challenges in meeing the rapyd
increase in demanao following the remaval

of travel restrictions. This causea well-
documentea operational issues that :mpacted
cur airports o varying extents.

Az esplamed in Other Information of the firgacial
soter eris or page 143
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REVENUE *

e £1,029.0m

21 R 7som 2020: £922.3m
20 I -2
1o e—— .. T 1 1.6%

ADJUSTED EBITDA

22 M s o £41 2.om

21 T (4o 4)m 2020: £382.1m

I ::: -
?2 _3222 +/.8%

MAG’s purpose is to connect our
customers to the world with great
airport experiences and innovative
travel services, As we begin a new
financial year, our strategy sets out

, clear priorities to drive long-term

; sustainable growth in shareholder value

" and an increased social and economic

contribution to the regions we serve.”

Charlie Cornish
Group Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Executive's statement continued

Manchester was one of the UK airports
more acutely impacted in the early part of the
financial year, due Io ifs scale, poce

of recovery and the challenging labour
market conditions it faced Qur teams
worked hord to improve service levels as
the summer progressed, enabling airlines
to operate *heir plarned schedules so that
passengers’ travel plons were protected
throughout Over the last year we have
recruited more than 1,600 security officers
across the Group to enable us to improve
service levels and meet rising demand.

More recentty, we delivered o highly
successful winter seasan, moinigining
slrong service levels through Christmas and
holl-term hohdays when cur arports see
significont increases in passenger demand.
After a successhul Easter period and early
par of the 2023 peak summer season, all
three of MAG s airports are coninuing 1o
provide consistently good service lavels,
and we are commatted to sustaining this
perlormance and engaging with partners to
oplimise passenger expérience.

in our intenm report we provided an update
on the formation of CAVU, through the
bringing together of our digitol and US
businesses. This has already proven to be

o successtul development and presents o
major commercial oppeoriunity for MAG. We
are making the most of CAVU's commercial
experise and extensive network ta build
products and services that help airpots

ond travel businesses interncfionally

1o unlock value from their end-1o-end
customer journeys.

CLEAR STRATEGY FOR GROWTH

As the seclor resumed operalions after the
pandemic, we ook the opporunity to review
and retresh our strategy to provide firm
loundations for the fuiure

We believe MAG s purpose is to connect
our customers 1o the world with great airport
experences and irnovative trovel services. As
we begin a new financial year, our strategy
sets out clear pricrities to drive long-term
sustainable growth in shareholder value

and an increased social and economic

contibution to the regions we serve.

By focusing on our siategic pricrifies, ouflined
on page 17 we will achieve our vision of
being a world leader in the provision of
arport fazilites and travel services, delivering
value for all cur stokeholders

Cur new stralegy 15 complemented by

o refreshed set of values see poge 40,
co-developed with colleagues, 1o serve

as guiding principles as we develop the
organisafion ond build a brifiont ond diverse
leam over the years aheod. We have also
embedded o new operoting model, which
erpowers our airports to maximise their
potential and adapt o the apportynities
presented by their particular markets, whilst
retaining the benefits of being part of the UK's
longest group of aupons.

INVESTING FOR THE FUTURE

Ahter the challenges of the lost tew yeors, it hos
been hugely positive to move forward with our
ambitious plons 1o invest in our infrasiructure in
Januvary we announced a £E440m investment
in the final phase of the £1.3bn Manchester
Airport Translormation Programme [PMAMN-TP).
By complefing the transformation of Terminal

2 - which will double the size of the departure
lounge ond odd @ second security hail — we
will enhance the passenger experience, unlock
billions ir economic activity and <reate more
than 500 |obs in the construction phase olone,
with many maore set to be generated as a result
of the economic activity shimulated by the
exponsion of *he girpart.

In 2021 we secured planning permission

lo increase passenger copacity at london
Stansted from 35 10 43 miltion passengers per
year, We are now developing the invesiment
p!oﬂs tho: will enable us 1o grow o reach that
rorget, Meanwhile, we look forward 1o setting
out plans to further enhance East Midlonds
Airpont’s cargo copobll’ny‘ cementing ifs stotus
as the UK's most important pure freight airpor:

Across ali three cirpons we are moking the
necessary mvestments o inroduce future
Secunty technology in line with agreed
Government "imescales. This will remove
the need for possengers to take hquids.
gels and large eleciical iems cur of therr
hand luggage, significantly improving their
airport experience.
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These investments will enhonce the role of
our airperts as strategic economic assets

In the regions they serve. and increase

the contubunion they make 10 rebolancing
economic growth, creating jobs and driving
prosperity, We will continue 1o work closely
with the Government on the policies and
investmenls needed 1o ensyre the economic
polential of our cirports is fully realised.

We are keen 1o see projects such os HS2,
Norhem Powerhouse Roil, rail infrastiucture
in the South tast and the Eost Midlands
Freeport next to Eosr Midlonds Airport ceme
to kuttion in o timely manner.

VALUED COLLEAGUES

Cur people have been central to our
recovery and shong ongoing perlormance b
was a pleasure fo welcome more than 3,000
new colleagues during the repaorting period,
and | went to recognise the contribution of
colleagues old and new to MAG s success.

MAG s refreshed strategic framework places
our people at its core and is underpinned

by an updated set of values that define the
culture we want to embed in the Group

going forward. As o majer employer, we

are conscious of our responsibiliies and the
important role we play n drving positive
change. We want ou aitports o represent the
communities they serve, and have ariculoted
ambiticus Equity, Diversity & Inclusion targets -
regd more on page 41

WORKING TOGETHER FOR A
BRIGHTER FUTURE

Decorbonisation is a key strategic priotity
tor MAG, ond we have seen real progress
this year in our journey 1o g net zero aviahon
indusiry

At o global level it has been encouraging
1o see the aviation industry renewing its
commitment to achieving net zero carbon
emissions by 2050. 184 coyniries also
committed to delivering net zero aviaticn
by 2050 at the International Civil Aviation
Crganisation [ICAQ) General Assembly
in October, o move that will help drive
progress with decarbonisation over the
coming decades.

GOVERNANCE

At a nalicnal fevel, the UK Government
published its Jet Zero Strategy in July 2022
To suppor the anncuncement, MAG cecled
five Jet Zero Pledges, [see page 34, which
set out how the Group will help to drive
decarbenisation through varicus ways,
including educanon research and aispoce
modernisation.

Zero Corbon Airports is one of the three themes
of MAG's CSR work, and we are developing
robust plans to enable our airports fo achieve
our targe! of net zero emissions by 2038. We
are also working in partnerships with Fulerum
BioEnergyUK and HyNet with the goal of
making Manchester Airport the first UK airport
with a direct supply of Sustainable Aviation

Fuel and hydrogen

In August, London Stansted received planning
permission to build o 14.3 megawatt {(MW)
solar larm on oirport lend, the largest of its
kind in tondon. With wark set 1o siart on the
development of the farm imminently, this will
make an impornant contribution 1o Stansted's
net zero ambitions. The other two piliars of
our CSR work are Opportunities for All and
local Voices, ond it has been a sirong year
of actvity n both these areas, a period that
also marked the 20th and 25th anniversanies
of the Community Trust Funds at Manchester
Airport and East Midlands Airport
respectively. Highlights included formation of
Youth Forums at each airport and investment
in cccessibility provision. We weie delighted
that East Midlands Airport wos vated
Europe's top-perfarming airport at The Ozien
Accessibility Awards, ond thot the quality

of our assisted travel provision in all our
airports was recognised in the Civil Aviation
Authority’s {CAA} Inferim Accessibility Report
Meanwhite. our MAG Connect Aerozones
and Airpor Academies continve 10 perform
vital work in inspiring the next generation of
aviation professionals and creating pathways
for them 1o fuifll their dreams.

OUTLOOK

Operationally, we enter our new financiol year
ina sireng posiion,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 15

Qur airpots ore resourced to the level
required for the peak summer season, and
our targeted invesiments in equipment and
infrastructure across our oirports will enhance
the passenger experience.

As we look aheed, we will continue fo work
ciosely with oui cirline partners o ensure

our airports provide the best possible choice
and volue. Combined with our invesiment in
passengel experience ond our ¢lear strategy,
MAG has firm foundations for growth and
value creation for our stakeholders in the
months and yeors aheod.

Finally, | want to use this statement to reflect
on my 13 years os CEQ of MAG, with this
being my last set of results in that role

Since joining the Company in 2010, it has
grown to become the UK's largest group of
oirports, including through the acquisition of
london Stansted in 2013, at which point we
welcomed IFM as shareholders. | am proud
to have seen all our airports increase their
global reach, with the addition of o numbes of
flagship routes to key international markets.

It hors been exciting to lounch the £1 3bn
MAPN-TE and | ook forward fo seeing what
15 the lorgest invesiment in the airport’s history
reach its conclusion. The creafion of CAVU
hos added o new ond exciting dimension

1o MAG. and it is pleasing fo see our
busiress playing such a leading tole in the
decorbonisation of our secior.

1 am thrlled 1o see the Boaid has approved
the appointment of Ken O'Toole as my
successor. and | look forward 1o supporting
him and his leadership team in delivenng the
Group’s strotegy in the years o come,

G\urZeb \/ emtgL

Charlie Cornish
Group Chief Executive Officer

4 July 2023
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At MAG, our role is to connect our customers
to the world with great travel experiences and
innovative travel services. That is our purpose.

¥

The Group's focus over the last three years
has been dominated by protecting the

business through the pandemic and then
delivering a strong recovery in performance
once travel restrictions were lifted.

Over the last yeor. as demond has recovered.
we have been looking further aheod 1o
consider the Group's shiategic outlook and
refresh our long-term corporate strateqy.

We have established o new strategic komework
that sets cut o new purpose, vision and missian for
the Group to drive our srategy

As part of the strategic flamework, we have
identfied seven strategic priorities for the Group
thot will ensyre we deliver sustainoble growth
shareholder value.

Qur strategy sets out how we will tackle the
chollenges and oppartunities we will face as
we grow our business 1o meet the needs of our
customers and stakeholders. both today and into
the future.

Qur strategy highlights what we need to do to be
successtul in connecting our customers 1o the world
ond provide the grect arport experences and
inrovatwe travet services they won:.

Qur strategy shows how we will meet cusomer
needs by developing o brifient and dwerse 'eam
ot pecple who are commited 1o service delivery,
operationgl excellence inrovatior and achieving
sustoinable growth

MAG's purpase drives our culture, and our
number one priority 1s to protect the safety
and welibeing of aur customers and everyore
working at our airports

We wart our business 1o be a greot place 1o

develop a coreer and we place o high vaive
on Equity. Dversity and Inclusion, ensuring cur
teams reflect the communities they serve.

We know we have an important job fo do
for our customers ond stakeholders ond ore
proud of the essential role aur arports play in
connecting the regions we serve fo the world.

Our peaple are at our core and they ore

focused on moking sure travellers have o great
experierce at cur airponts, providing a service
our customers trust will be relicble and fiendly

Innovation and competitveness will be key

1o givirg us o commercial edge, ensuring we
meet users needs by oftering them the products
ond services they want in @ woy tha! represents
good volue for money 1o them.

By toking a resporsible and sustainable
opproach ic maraging ond developing our
bUS\nC‘SS WE Vv’Hl create volue ]Df CUS'OMETrs

vader socety and our shareholders

See our business model and value
for aur stakeholders on pages 20
to 21
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Qur strategy sets out what we need to do to successtully deliver our purpose to connect
our customers to the world with great airport experiences and innovative travel services.

it sets out how we will meet customer needs by developing a brilliant and diverse team
of people who are committed to service delivery, operational excellence, innovation and

achieving sustainable growth.

Our strategic priorities

AIRPORTS TO SUPPORT
LONG-TERM GROWTH

GROW OUR CORE
AIRPORTS BUSINESS

BRILUANT,

AND INCLUSIVE
EAM OF PEOPLE WHO

DELIVER GREAT

SHARE OUR VALUES

CUSTOMER SERVICE 000

AND OPERATIONAL 0 N
EXCELLENCE i_U U.]

R

Underpinned by:

Health, safety

& wellbeing & culture

Values

Decarbonisation Commercial
& sustainability partnerships
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Qur sfrafegy continued

Focusing on <

L8R

DELIVER GREAT
CUSTOMER
SERVICE AND
OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

Make our airports

the place where the
excitement of a journey
really begins by
providing an experience
that customers trust will
be efficient, reliable
and friendly - using
technology and data

to drive high levels

of productivity and
predictability,

GROW OUR

CORE AIRPORTS
BUSINESS

Maximise the commercial
potential of our airports
by offering value and
choice to our customers,
making the best use of
our airports’ capacity.

RTINS

&

hi\@

INVEST IN
OUR AIRPORTS

Develop new facilities
and infrastructure to
meet long-term growth
in demand and make
optimal use of current
runway capacity.

<)

DEVELOP AND
SCALE CAVU

Use CAVU'’s single
platform, commerciol
expertise and expansive
distribution network to
help airports and other
related businesses across
the globe unlock value
from the end-to-end
passenger journey, making
airport travel seamless and
enjoyable for everybody.

R S e L

s flowing Hrough
B I T T I ) BN ST
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GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STAFEMENTS

Our strategy focuses on the delivery of seven strategic objectives
that will ensure MAG achieves its purpose, vision and mission.

3

AN

X

DECARBONISE AVIATION

Lead work with industry partners
and governments to decarbonise
air travel over the period ta 2050
so that future growth in demand is
sustainable ond achievable,

We will progress our Net Zero
Transition Plan to deliver net
zero airport operations by 2038
through the implementation of a

range of programmes to reduce
emissions by 2030.

=4

ACHIEVE SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN
SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Grow shareholder value by taking
a responsible and sustainable
approach to managing and
developing our business, balancing
the needs of aur customers,
passengers, colleagues and the
communities in which we operate.

bothe FY24 Frarcal year oo ob ectves are

LA e N

ond 1o secare eff men owvinG Cosly on

our planned nond re-financing We w. |

SR ISRRt

i

DEVELOP A BRILLIANT,
DIVERSE AND INCLUSIVE
TEAM OF PEOPLE WHO
SHARE OUR VALUES

Create a high-performing team with
the culture and capabilities that

we need to deliver our strategic
objectives and achieve cur mission.
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Qur business model

How we

. €'/"‘\
5 % 7 g
3 > 3 A e K
T e
i - e r
£
1

.
o e
AN | e

MAG's business model will support the successful delivery of the
Group’s strategy by empowering our three airport businesses and
CAVU to meet the needs of their customers in the most effective way.

We will develop o strong and growing
business by putting the needs of cur
cusiomers at the centre of everything
we do.

By taking o responsible and susiainoble
approach to managing and developing

our business, we will create value

for customers, wider socety and
our shareholders.

MAG's business model will suppart

the successtul delivery of the Group's
strafegy by empowering our thiee airport
businesses [Manchesler, Llondon Stansted
and East Midlands and travel services

«  Establishes the Group's carporare
stralegy ond strategic priorities

*  Monilors perormance of Airpons
Divisions and CAVU

business [CAVU) 1o meet the neads of
therr customers in the most effective way.
This witl be suppotted by a corporate
centre that piovides stategic direction
and governance, und Group-wide
senvices and solutions where these
generate value,

9
MAG's corporate centre

¢ Rewviews long-term business plans and
secures funding

» Defines Group-wide policies, sirolegies
and standards including CSR ond
Health and Safery)

*  Drives forward corporate priorities and
ensures QpRIopNole Qovernance across
the Group

»  Prowdes a mwed rarge of Group-wide

seraces and solutions where these
generate value

N

Airport

. B Mictands
L}

)
London Stansted

A
Aurpred i Airport

.t

e

Airport businesses

CAVU

feir respective strategies,
in ling with the Group s
overall strategy ond
strotegic prionhes
Deliver doy-to-day
performance and
accountability for results

Standclone menagemer!
idenufy and respond

1o the specific needs

of their customers

ard compefition from
other anports

term partnerships with
cirline customers and
stokeholders *o maximise
growth prospects

and value

Operate n o responsibe
ond susiginable way,
cansistent with Groun
pohcies and stondards

business thot provides
airport products and
services to frovellers

*+  Works with airpor!
clients 1o sell products
cnd services across the
passenger jaurney

s Panners with onword
distnbutors who sell aus
products thraugh their
own chonnels

* Develop ond execute = Focus on building long- + Swendclone commercial +  Creates scale via

sing'e digital plotform,
increasng the volume
and velue o' marketplace
boakings

Develops automated
business processes thot
ore powered by dato
and insight

Direct engagement cs
CAVU vith custorers

and cofleagues
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Creating value for our stakeholders

FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We create value by managing and developing our business in a
responsible and sustainable way that recognises the needs of all our
stakeholders, and maintains the highest standards of safety and security.

TRAVELLERS

NS

We provide rrovellers with
airport services that offer the
nght mix of choice, quality
and value 1o meet their
different needs.

SUPPLIERS AND
OTHER AIRPORT
PARTNERS

We werk closely with o wide
range of organisations lo
deliver a high quality airport
experience 1o Qur customers,
including Nafianat Air Traffic
Service, UK Border Force,
ground handling compaonies,
providers of services 1o
passengers with reduced
modbility, retailers and food
ond beverage providers, and
public fransport operators.

AIRLINES

Vos
A

Our airline customers include
passenger airlines, cargo
airlines and general aviation
operators. We compete with
other airparts 1o attract airlines
and look 1o develop long-
ferm agreements o support
their growth.

GOVERNMENT,
REGULATORS
AND AGENCIES

Y ﬁ
< |

The Government iokes o strong
interest in our airports because
of their role in delivering

wider policy objectives,
including ecoromic growih,
strategic connectivity and
regional developmenl.

Aviation is o highly regulated
industry and we work closely
with Government, the CAA and
other agencies to ensure we
comply with their requirements
and help shape development of
new policy.

EMPLOYEES
o QC

Atk

MAG employees olay

a vitol role in delivering services
for our customners and they are
crifical to the successful delivery
of our strategy.

VWe value positive engagement
with frade unions whe provide
collective representation far
unionised colleagues. We dlso
recognise that the Group's
performance is importont

to former colleagues who

are members of the MAG
pension scheme.

SHAREHOLDERS
AND DEBT
INVESTORS

Q-

—

Our sharehalders and debt
investors provide the privale
capital needed to operate and
develop the Group. We work
closely with them to ensure
they undersiand business unit
perormance, and the strotegic
apportunifies and risks for

the Group.

LOCAL COMMUNITIES
AND REGIONS

People who five and werk in the
communities and regions around
our dirports are key stakeholders.
We engage with local communities
to understand their concerns and
work to minimise cur impocts as far
as possible.

We also work with local schools

to support the education of young
people ond provide noining and
skills 10 people looking tor weork
QOur qirporns also support the wark
ot local charities and orgorisations
through volunteering and funding.
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Key performance indicators

i1l measures

We focus on a number of key performance measures
to ensure we build value for our shareholders on a
consistent basis over the long term.

The comparanves used to measute against the current year's performonce is 2020, management considers this 16 be the mos! appropnate benchmark
due to the mpact of Covid- 19 on 2021 and 2022,

REVEMNUE

Definition

Reverue Is on indicator of cur topline growh.
£1,029.0m > e - e wer o i e ine g

It consists of avicion income, retoil income, cor

2020: £922.3m 21 - 178.6m parking, property ond other income.
I -
+ 'l 'l 6% ?2 4994 Aim & Context
- _ am

We aim to achieve long-term sustainable growth
in revenue across all areas of our business -
aviation, car parking, retait and praperty,

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Definition

) f

return generoted before taxation.
2020: £75.4m 21 I (7 7.6)m

20 | EERS Aim & Context
n/O 19 - 185.6 We expect olf our operafions fo contribuie a
.om

postive return before taxation.

N

ADIUSTED EBITDA

2 23 SEESEMNENNG: - Defnition
£4 1 .o m 29 . s Adjusted EBITDA is an indicator of how
m

we are delivering top-line revenue growth

2020: £382.0m 2 N 5 am while remaining efficient and controlling
o 20 _ 387 1m  operating cosls.
+/.8% 19 N o

Aim & Context
We aim lo generate a level of profit that allows
re-investment in our infrastructure

" As explained i Other Information of the finenciol statements on poge 173
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NET SENIOR DERT/ ADJUSTLD
FROZEMN EBITDA*

3.6

2020: 4.7

-23.4%

CASH FROM OPERATIONS -
ADJUSTED*®

£455.0m

2020: £402.5m

+13.0%

23 I
22 I ;-
21 r/a

20 I - 7
19 I 5 -

23
22 - 166.5m

21 I (155 7)m

20 R /025
19 I ::c o

* As explained in Other Informalion of the finoncial skolements on page 173.

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Definition

Net senior debt 1s a measure of indebtedness
used by our financers and the adiusted frozen
ERITDA excludes the impact of FRS 16 in line

with covenant calculatons,

Aim & Context

The Group seeks to grow EBITDA, whilst
maintaining appropricte levels of net debt
and leverage 1o invest in the asset base.

Definition

Adjusted cash lrom operations is the cash
genercled in the: year from operations
excluding adjusted ttems.

Aim & Context

We focus on converting our operating profits
into cash to tund fusther investment and returms
to shareholders.

23
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Key performance indicators coninved

Operational measures ;

Operational measures help us understand how our

business is performing in a number of key areas including
Equity, Diversity and Inclusion and Sustainability.

The comparatives used to measure against the current year’s performance is 2020, management considers this 1o be the most appropriate benchmark

due to the impoct of Covid-19 an 2021 and 2022.

PASSENGER NUMBERS

54.0m

2020: 59.6m

-9.4%

Definition
Possengers being the totol of all ariving,
connecting and departing passengers.

Aim & Confext

Maximise passenger volumes through our
airports, which will contribute to growth 1n our
avigtion and commercial revenue streams.

HEALTH AND SAFETY RIDDOR -
REPORTABLE ACCIDENTS

13

2020: 12

+8.3%

23 s

22 I

21 W

20 P -

19 I 0

Definition
We measure the number of reportable
accidents over the 12 month period.

Aim & Context

Meintgin robust heolth and sotety standards tar
both our customers and colleagues, confributing
1o a sofe working and operating environment
for all

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SCORE '

64

2020: n/a

2 n/a
20 n/a
19 r/e

Definition

We survey all of our teams to understand their
engogement levels over the past 12 months, the
score s denominated out of 100,

Aim & Context

Achigve the highest level of employee
ergagement, through developing a brifliant,
dwerse ond inclusive teom of people who

denver austanding customer service

Ormonce TeNcs or y Laptwed iram FY27

Srmunce merics ehly capt,ed rom FYZ0
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMALE REPRESENTATION AT LEADERSHIP ¢

33.6%

2020: 32.2%

+4.3%

22 N, ;2 o

21 I G
20 I ;-2
19 n/o

Definition

We report on female leadership [Grades 4a
and obove) diversity quarterly and review
progress at the ExCo-sponsored ED&I Forum
and the CSR Committee quarterly

Aim & Context

Create on equitable and inclusive culture

that increases colleogue engogement and
productivity, allowing us to Increase gender
and ethnic representation ot leadership levels.

CARBON REDUCTION -~ COZ EMISSIONS

0.68

2020:0.75

-9.3%

23

22 I

21 I :
20 W © 75

19 M o.c5

Definition

'SECR scope 1, 2 and 3 Greenhouse gas
emmissions market based emissions per traffic
unit {tornes COLe).

Aim & Context
To minimise the environmental impoct of our
airports.

25
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Divisional reviews

[ P
I

Manchester Airport
handled 25.2m
passengers in FY23,
equivalent to 89.4% of
FY20 levels. The sustained
recovery through the
year means the airport is
once again driving wider
economic growth as the

UK’s global gateway in
the North.

B

PERFORMANCE

As the UK's global gateway in the North,
Manchester Airport saw srong demand after
the lifting of pandemic trovel restricrions. This
is reflected in passenger numbers for FY23 of
25.2m equating to 89 4% of pre-pandemic
levels in FY20, and 176.9% higher than

FY22 figures.

Alongside our airline portners, we worked

over the period ta mantain full flight schedules,
cppreciating the value people attach to their
wavel plans. However, the time required to recruil
ond clesr people to work in secure airside
emvironmen's — typically o three-month process -
resulied in operational challenges at Monchester
in the first few months of the financial year, with
senice levels in peck penods faling below those

we aim to deliver.

As new recrults ]oined the opeigtion, we were
able o dnve sustained improvements in service
levels througheut the summer period, with 85% ot
passengers passing through security in 15 minutes
of less in August We hove delivered susiained
improvements in operational performance since
the summaer. including at peck fimes For example,
during the most recent Easter period, 99.0% of
passengers passed threugh security in 15 minutes

ar less.

Qur recrurmen: effors saw us welcome neorly
2.000 rew colleagues inlo the busiress
including around 1,000 security officers. We
were pleased to have ochieved this outcome,
paricularly given labour market chaltenges
laced by o rumber of seciors. and we are
groreful for cur colleagues hard work in
testanng our service levels so switlly. This wes
achieved thiough stong portnershin working vwith
regional siokehclders, including the saging of
muliple jobs fairs ond wrilising the nenwork of our
Airport Acadermy.

During recent indusinal action by PCS Union
members working for UK Border Force {UKBF),
we worked closely with UKBF and the armed
forces fa ensure there was no disruption to flight
schedules ond queues at the border.

ROWUTES

The mojority of pre-pandemic routes were
reinstated promplly after resirictions were
removed. Demand was strongest for short-haul
destinations, alhough direct long-haul routes
hove also recovered stengly during FY23

Adding 1o the airport’s long-haul destinations,
Kuwai! Aurways ond Gulf Air begon senices
to Kuwait ond Bohroin, ond Hoinan Airlines
resumed ifs Beijing-Manchester services

in August afier o two-and-a-hall-yeor

long suspension.

In September, Emirates onnounced it wouid
re-commence its third daily service to Dubay,
returning the arling to its pre-pandeamic
capocity of Manchester. Air Canado also
resumed its direct service o Totonto, five times o
week during the summer seasor.

INVESTMENT

Having receved exremely postive feedback
from passengers and airlines since the first
phose of *he Terminal 2 extension openea i luly
2021 we recenty arrounced the go-ahead

for the final phose of the Manchester Airport
Transformation. Programme An irvestment of
£440m vl doubie the size of the deparure
lounge, provide an additional security holl fitted
with nex!-genern'iOﬂ secufity scanners, and
increase hold baggoege pracessing capocity The
arfield will also be upgraded to

cater for nex: generstion arcralt Upon

the completion of the work, B0% of the

airport’s passengers will fly through this
world-closs termiral,
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WELCOWNM
TO

MANCHESTER
AIRPORT

The scale of our investment demonstrates
our commitmenl to the region, ond we are
keen that our world-class facilities connect
with high quality infrastructure that will help
the Morth realise iis full poteniial While we
welcome the Cavernment's recently-reiterated
commitment to Northern Powerhouse Rail
{MPR) ond HS2, we are discppointed that
the opportunity is not being token to deliver
NPR in foll, to maximise the benelits of this
once-in-g-generation investment 1115 vital thot
this frensformational investment 1s delivered as
scon os possible to dive o reboloncing of the
UK economy.

WORKING TOGETHER FOR A
BRIGHTER FUTURE

As we look forward 10 celebrating Manchester
Airport’s 85th birthday, our commiment 1o
suppoerting the communities and region we
serve remains unwavering. We were delighted
ta open the new MAG Ceonnect Aerozone
education centre in february 2022, 1o expand
the free odult education services delivered
on-site, and to mark the 25th onnivessary of
the Manchester Airport Commurity Trust Fund
with contributions of more than £160,000 15
support lacal charitoble orgonisotions and
community groups.

We entered a lundmark parnnership with
HyMet in November that cauld make
Manchesler Airporl the first in the UK to
secure a direct supply of hydrogen fuel This
complemrents cur partnership vath Fulcrom
Bio Energy UK for the delivery ol Sustaincble
Aviation Fuet (SAF] These are importont
milestones in our commitment 1o achieve net

zero carbon by 2038.
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Divisioncl reviews continved

london Stansteo

Airport

London Stansted Airport demonstrated an
industry-leading recovery, with passenger
volumes reaching 94.8% of FY20 levels in
FY23. Operational performance remained
strong throughout the period, with
significant numbers of new colleagues
joining the business to support the
additional services being offered by our

airline partners,

PERFORMANCE

Thanks 1o the strength of ts route network, with more
European deslinations than ony other UK airport, londen
Stansted's tecovery outperformed other UK airports.
Passenger numbers rebounded to 94.8% of those seen
belore the pandemic, with 25.5m passengers welcomed in
FY23. up by 147.6% compared 1o the previous yeor.

Operational performance was stong throughout the

year, with 99.0% of possengers passing through secunty in
15 minutes of less thioughout the summer season. We added
377 people 1o our tcam thanks 1o our ex‘ensive recrutment
programme, which included the stoging of a series of

jobs fars and close partnership working with key regional
stakeholders. We are gratelul to colleagues for delivering
an induslry-leading customer experience last summer.

ROUTES

A morket leader for shon-haul travel with 180 European
destinations, Llondon Stansted was pleased 1o offer o rich
progromme of services alter ravel restrictions were removed

We were delighied to see the return of long-haul services
in August 2022 when Emirates reinstored its Stansted to
Dubai servce The addition of a second dally service
from Moy 2023 is indicative of the strong demand for
rravel 10 the Middle East hub ard beyond 1o other

long-haul destinations, parmicuiarly i the Asia-
Pacific region.

, Other carriers o the cirper also introduced new
4 rou'es across the year. ncluding Ryanair roves
to Newquay, Asturias. Klagenfurt, ond leipzig
a service lo Bergen with Wideroe and two
new Jet2 city break desinations io Athers

and Rome.
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In Ociober, we olso published reseaich

in pastnesship with Combridge& that

identified strong demand among repidly

scaling businesses in Cambridge ond the Eost

of England for long-haul business travel from
London Stansted Airport. This could deliver an
economic dividend for the 1egion omouniing lo
£185m in additional investment being unlocked
from the infroduction of routes to Beston and Sor
Francisco alone. Direct links to these global centres

of excellence and other strotegically importomt
destinations such as Singopore and China would boos!
the obility of Cambndge and the region 1o compete for
international investiment.

A DECADE OF MAG OWNERSHIP

February marked 10 yeors since MAG acquired london
Stansted Airporl. Under MAG's ownership the cirport has
become the UK's number one gateway fo Europe. Over the
decade, Stansted has served mare than 200m passengers
on 1.3m flights provided by 85 aitlines 1o 299 destinalions
in 52 countries.

Having invested millions of pounds in upgroding facilities
over the last decade, we look forword to the next phase
of investment in new facilites and inhastructure to increase

capacity from 35m 1o 43m passengers per annum.

WORKING TOGETHER FOR
A BRIGHTER FUTURE

We are proud of our ochievements over the lost decade,
such as Aerozone. which has welcomed more than 20,000
schoal vistors since 2015, and Stansted Airpont College,
which apened in 2012 During the year, we relaunched the
london Stansted Airport Community Trust Fund, contributing
more thar £160,000 1o lecat charitable orgarisations and
community gQroups.

As part of our ongoing sustoinability programme, in August
we received oppreval 1o constuct an on-site 14 3MW salnr
farm 1o help to power the uinpal's operalions. We were alse
pleased 1o see our largest airline partner Ryanair, commit 1o
the use of Sustairoble Aviation Fue {SAF) of London Stansted
through @ Memorandum of Understanding with Shell, which
could reduce its CO, emissions by 900,000 tonnes.

We are keen to maintein ou record os the leading airport
in the UK for public ranspor use by passengers. Whilst
we welcome the reinstatement of four trains per hout
between london Stansted and Lordon of peak fimes duiing
weekdays, we look forword ta the return of the {ull service
across the day that was n place before the pandemic.
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~Qst
Midlands
Alrport

East Midlands Airport saw passenger numbers recover to around two-thirds of what
they were before the pandemic, representing a significant increase on the prior year.

A significant recruitment drive ensured service levels were strong throughout the
year, making it the airport of choice in the region it serves.
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PERFORMANCE

In FY23, East Midlands Airport served
3.3m passengers, an increase of 2000%
compared 1o the previous year and 73.3% of
the numbers before *he pondermic in FY20,

Operational performance was stiong, with
99.0% of passengers possing through security
in 15 minutes or less. Recruitment has been
the principal driver of service levels, and we
were pletsed to welcome moie than 150
new collengues over the reporting peried.

ROUTES

Summer 2022 saw the oddition of twa new
reules, inle the Greek island of Skiathos and the
Egyptian resort city Hurghado.

This year, Ryanair, let? and TUI all increased
their number of based arcralt of East Midlands.
Ryanair is now operaling eight aircralt and let?,
seven. TU| will operate five planes out of East
Midlands *his summer compared with thiee lost
year and, coupled with this investmenl, have
brought back additionsl routes this summer

to Antalya {Turkey), Hurghada (Egypt] and
Gran Conoria Eoslern Aitways, which recently
launched Newquay and Paris Crly Rights,

also has an aireraft based ot the airpont. Other
demestic routes ore served by Aer Lingus
Regional and passengers flying to the Channel
Islands are cotered for by airlines Blue islands
and Aurigny.

CARGO

Alongside its possenger operation, Eost
tdlands Airport is the UK's leading auport for
dedicaled cargo operations, flying mare tonnes
by pure freight aircratt than any other

in the country.

In FY23, corgo locds decreased by 13.4%,
with the cirport handling more than 395 000
tonnes of freight, Alhough cargo volumes are
down on lost vear, they cre sfill ahead of pre-
pandemic levels; and the airport continues to
hove, by some morgin, the UK's largest share
of the freight-only arcraft morket. This was
demonsraied throughout the pandemic when
the arport ployed a critical role in focifiteting
the moverent of PPE and other medicai
supplies around the warld.

TRMANCE

The airport's role as a key focilitator of
international frade waos recognised inJune,
when a study by York Aviation showed that
East Midlands’ freight operation waos giving
businesses across the Midlonds o competiive
advaniuge. Research showed that the custams
value of expors per tonne at East Midlonds
waos £335.000 compored to £180.000 of
some other UK airports.

FREEPORT STATUS

In March, the East Midlands Freepon was
officially designated by the Government. This is
the UK's only Inland Freeport with three modes
of transport - road, 1ail and ar The cirportis
the internatenal ‘port’ of the Freeport as well
as forming part of ore of three desigrated fax
sites - the East Midlonds Airport and Gaoteway
Industicd Cluster [EMAGIC). The site will be o
key enobler for internatioral business within the
region and 15 expected 1o create 60,000 jobs

FINANCIAL STAIEMEINTS

WORKING TOGETHER
FOR A BRIGHTER FUTURE

We have a longstanding commitment to
supporting thase living in our surrounding

orea. In 2022, we marked 20 yeors of our
Coemmunity Trust Fund, over which time ir has
awarded over £1.3m in donations lo more than
1.500 community groups, schools and charties.
In Februory, we ofso marked 30 000 visitors

to the MAG Connect Aerczone since it first

opened n 2010.

During the yeor, we made significant
investments in our accessibility provision ond
are proud fo have hod ou: work recognised
internationally, having been voted Europe's top
performing airport at The Ozion Accessibility
Awards Soon after, the CAA's Interim Anpornt
Accessibilty Report in December found that
Eost Midlands Airport hod been consistenly
“very good” thioughout the year
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Divisional reviews coniinued

Over the last 10 years,

MAG has established a strong
track-record for developing
and expanding our offering

to customers, both directly to
passengers and through the
services we provide to partners
in the travel sector. We have
developed a commercial agility,
digital skiliset and a deep
understanding of the customer
that enables us to stimulate
demand and grow revenue.
This capability creates new
opportunities for growth

on a global scale.

Recognising the market potential in these
areas, we created a new business — CAVU
~ in March 2022, through the union of
MAG-O (MAG's digital division), MAG-US
and our direct-to-consumer distribution
brands. With o mission to be the number
one airport praduct and services
company in the world, CAVLU, is a globa!
organisation with a vision of how to make
airport travel seamless and enjoyable for
passengers and more profitable for the
businesses that serve them.

7.7m

TRANSACTIONS

24

COUNTRIES

278

AIRPCORTS

1,804

SUPPLIERS

3,294

PRODUCTS

15

INTELLIGENT PERFORMANCE
CONTRACTS (INCLUDING ALL
THREE MAG AIRPORTS)

24

LOUNGES ACROSS THE

US/UK {INCLUDING
SEVEN AT MAG
AIRPORTS)
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CAVYU helps cirports and other businesses within the sector,
inchuding MAG, create better travel experiences and
increase revenun hy helping stimulule demand for they
products and services through o global distribution network.
Encbled, by propel™, CAVU's proprietary e-commerce
platform supported by a ronge of commerciol products and
services, CAVU helps clients by unlocking value from the
end-to-end passenger jpurney.

propel™ will enable cusiomers to buy o bundle of products
lincluding porking, ransfers. hotels) by puting them into a
single basket ond checking out with o seomless fransaction
vig any one of its distribution channels, CAVU increases the
valye of ransactions through revenue management ond by
upselling and crass-selling inveniory from its marketplace

to passengers and builds custamer loyalty by incentivising
repeat purchase and customer retention. The ultimate aim for
CAVU is 10 increase the volume and valve of marketplace
bookings flowing through propel™ across its global
distribution network

Our ambinen 15 to develop CAYU into an £80m EBITDA
business over the medium term. To achieve this, CAYU will
adopt a 'buy ond buid’ skategy 1o accelerate grovih,
ochieve necessary scale, ond market shate. A recent
example has been the June 2023 aequisition of PorkVia,
a glebal anline parking reservation platform. By the early
2030s, we are confident that CAVU has the potential 1o
generate EBITDA in the region of £100m

PERFORMANCE

Performance in the financial year has been stiong. Financial
outcomes exceeded targets, with EBITDA of £36.9m,
£4.5m chead of plon. Commercial arrangements for frading
MAG s Parking, Lounges ond FostTrack were formolised

ot the start of FY 23, pulting in place an arm’s-length
contract between CAVU and MAG's airports. These were
embedded smoothly, resulting in @ strong performance for
beth CAVU ond MAG maore widely. EBITDA growth outside
of MAG is a focus for the team, evidenced in distribution
revenues in the Amencas and EMEA. There have also been
new chent wins lor Intelligent Performance and additional
|()unge openings in both these markets, inc|uding o notable
partnership ot Bristol.

l GOVERNANCE

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

o

PROPEL™, OUR
SINGLE PLATFORM

Cn the 3 April 2023 we launched
our single plofform, branded propel™
We offer clients experfise in the arecs of
revenue growth, cusiomer experience and
operational excellence, and propel™ brings
them off together in ore place. The launch
represented a crtical milestone in CAVU's
growth, and was achieved on fime and on
budge! thenks 1o the hard work and commitment
of cur people. FY24 will see us unlock the benefils
of propef™ by winning new clients, as well as
migrating existing users from a variety of channels
onto the new single plattorm,

GROWTH

Cur potential derives from two business development
focuses building channels that deliver increased wsage and
incieasing the breadth and depth of our travel inventory 1o
build scale within aur marketploce

We have acceleiated growth by winning news business on
an orgonic basis whilst forming patnership agreements
We have significantly exponded business development
opporiunites in both the the Americos and EMEA, securing
many new chents and pariners in the process, including
New Otleans, Austin, Miami, Christchurch, Adelaide

and Ryanair.

The movket tor new lounges in the Americas presen's unigue
challenges ond 15 compettve. Despile this, we opened two
new lounges in Fort lauderdole and Columbus during the
year, which hove been well received and are rading well,
and a further lsunge ot Syracuse hes opened in early FY24.
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Sustainability
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Despite the challenges of recent years, we have

remained steadfast in our commitment to delivering
our 2020-2025 Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Strategy, “Working together for a brighter
future”. October saw the publication of our
annual C5R report, which outlined our progress
against our three focus areas: Zero Carbon
Airports, Opportunity for All and Local Voices.

ZERC CARBON AIRPORTS

This pillar includes initiatives to achieve our flagship torget of transitioning 1o
ret zero carbon operations (Scope 1 & 2} by 2038, and clso 10 oddress
important environmental *epics such as energy use embodied carbon,

waste, water use and polluton prevention.

As founding members of the Jet Zers Council, we are working ciosaly
witk the Government and aviohion inaushy pariners ‘o suppori e
decarbonisation of the sectar We marked the publication of the
Jet Zero Strategy in July 2022 by issuing MAG s five Jet Zero
Pledges relating to educatior research, technology, Sustainable
Aviation Fuel {SAF} ond aispace, fo support delwery of the
Councils goals

Buillding ori the UK aviction indusiry's warld-tead ng
2020 commi'ment, we welcome the hisoric adoption
by International Cwil Avicton Organischion (ICAO)

member siotes of the objeciive 1o receh net zero by
2050 o crucia! development for our sector
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CLIMATE ,021-2023

slatista®a LEADERS :

We haove taken meaningful action towards decarborisation
with the announcement in November of a porinership with
HyNet, which could see Manchester Airport become the

first in the UK to secure a direct supply of hydrogen fuel from
the mid-20320s. This complements our existing pornership with
Fulcrum BioEnergy in selation to SAF.

Ar Eost Midlands Airport, we were pleased to see an investment of

more than €60m i SAF from DHL which could reduce CO, emissions O U R Al RPORT OPE RATI O NS

by around 70,000 tans. Furthermore, Ryanair Europe's lorgest cirline,
signed o Memarandum of Understanding with Shell 1o odvance the WILL BE NET ZERO BY 2038
supply of SAF, with the potentiol to sove aver 200,000 1onnes in CO,
emissions. We cre pleased to see Ryanair focusing on one of s largest
boses, London Stansted Airport, for this project

As we woik to reduce the emissions of our operations, we were pleased
to secure planning germission for a 14.3MW solar farm ot london Stansted
Airport, and also submitted airspace change designs for the airport.

It has been pleasing to recaive external recognition of our long standing commitment
lo avation decarbonsiation. This financial year MAG was the only airport opercior to
be named a Financigl Times "Climate leader in 2021, 2022. In 2023 we received o
S-star GRESB reting once again.
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Sustaina bll!fy continued

OPPORTUNITY FOR ALL

OCur 'Opponunity for All pillar highlights our
dedication to tostering o safe, mclusive, and
diverse work envirenment, and creating high-
quality employment opportunities for everyone.
Our MAG Connect Airport Academies played
a oritical role in scaling up recruirment following
the easing of imemational travel restrictions,
assisting job seekers from local communities 1o
apply for positions with MAG and our business
potiners. We have organised and attended
345 jobs fairs 1o make the employment
opportunities avoilable ot cur arports as
accessble as possible, with 12,525 people
aftending these even's over the past 12 months

We worked closely with the Depormeni for
Transport on the launch of "Generation Aviation’
recruitment campoign and are using our
expertise and specialised education facifities 1o
create a pipeline of fulure talent lor our sector.

During the financial year, more than 6,500
young people visited our MAG Connect
Aerozones, which offer high qudlity, free

and engoging learning experiences to local
schools and are instumertal ininspiring the
next generation of aviotion protessionals We
celebrated several milestones, including the first

anniversary of Manchester Airport’s Aerozone,
which welcomed mere than 3,000 studenis
since its launch, We welcomed cur 30,000t
visitor to our East Midlands Aerozore and

the 20.000th visitor lo our tondeon Sransted
centre since they opened in 2010 ang

2015 respeciively

By chompioning Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion
{[ED&N) in our workplace, we can laster o sense
of belonging and unleash the full potential of
out team members, ultimately driving success for
out business To odvance our work in this area
we eslablished an ED&} forum, and ciected an
initial five Colleague Resource Groups {CRGs)
focused on Men's Mental Health, the Women's
Network, Fiy with Pride LGBTGQHA+ Race &
Ethnicity, and the Carers’ Network

To ensure that businesses local to our airports
olse benefit os much os possible from our
success, we were delighted to welcome local
businesses 1o London Stansted Alrpart as

the ‘Meet the Buyers’ even! returned offer a
two-yeor hiaus. This event hes been one of

the region’s longest-running business expos
generaling more than £28m in business since
2011 More than 200 businesses, ranging

fram start-ups to large componies, atiended
the event in the hope of securing contracts

with mojor orgonisahions such as Essex County
Council, Aggreko, ond SPIE UK The event
was orgonised by London Stansted and co-run
by Marketing Kinetics ond UM In oddition

1o this, Manchester Airport held its firsl ‘Meet
the Buyers' eveni, where mote than 100 local
bysinesses had the opporiunity 10 connect with
prospective chenis in Greater Manchester. With
over 200 gitendees, this event was a great
success and helpea local busiresses 1o expand
theis reach and networks.

We are seeking occreditalion 1o become @
Real Living Woge Employer and aniicipote
certification in FY24.

MORE THAN

6,500

YOUNG PEOPLE VISITED
OUR AEROZONES

LOCAL VOICES

Our 'local Voices' pillar cutlines our
commitment 1o listening to local communities
ond responding 'o local priorities to improve the
areas closest to our airports

The lifting of Covid- 19 restnciions in Maorch
2022 meant we were physically abie fo return
1o the communimes around us and re-estabhsh
our outreach programme, including atiendance
at local events and giving 1aiks to communities.
Complemented by the confinued use of crline
chaninels, our hybrid engagement model
enobles impraved accessibility and reach in
working with our stakeholders.

Qur Airport Consuliative Committee meetings
provide a key forum for listening 1o local
voices and supporing the mansgement of our
Community Funds During the veor we held 33
meetngs with more than 370 arendees. These
proviged important input inte our updated
matericlity assessment for which we also
collected the vievss of more than 6C0 of out
lacal resdents

We understond the value of acively seeking

out diverse perspectives, and weie th-illed 1o

arnaunce the lounch of Youth Forems at each
of our airports 10 amplity the voices of young

people ord gother their perspeciives.
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The financial year also saw the relaunch of

Londan Stansted Community Fund and the 25th
anniversary of Manchester Airport Community

Trust Fund. Our Community Funds continue o be

a core element of our work, and we are proud to
have contibuted more than £245.000 duling the
year o suppart local charitable organisations and
community groups. This included £400.000 donote
through our Schools” B

encourage schools local to our airports 1o creete g
spaces that enhance bicdiversity and promote mental
well-being.

A further £164.000 wos oliocoted ro projects thot pr
sustainability through our East Midiands Airport Llow
Energy Grant.

To mark Her late Mojesty's Plotinum Jubilee i

Queen's Green Con ject, we mode o commitment to plant

more thar 4 200 trees in and around our cirports, one for each MA
e on the day cf the Platinum Jubiles.

AAPORT 104 P
P OPOAT LISE IR 50

" FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Sus’roinobility continued

r sustainabil
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Obijective 2022/2023

Carbon reduction’ Minimise the environmental "SECR Scope 1 2 and 3 068 131
impoct of cur airparts greenhause gas ennssions
morket based emissions per
traffic unit flonnes CQ,e)

Area of noise Being good neighbours Area of doynme 5708 LAeo 534 353 +51%
- fc&o!pnmz within our communifies nose contour {km?}

Number of Supporting work within Number of pecple 12,525 10757 +16%

education, shills our communifies supported by MAG Connect

and employment Aitport Academies

engagements?

Healtk and safety Maintain robust health Number of RIDDOR' 13 7 +86%

‘RIDDOR' reponable  ond safety siandards reportable ncidents

accidents?

Whilst eneigy use and amissans nereased this vear due 1o mnseased acwty iollowsy the emoval of navel e i tions asseraied with the Cevid 16 pandemi. the inrengty of o

emsions decreased Cur erergy ond emisiion performance nove heen restotes ‘ar 2021 /22 16 make se ol the most recent ond camplete dataser Ths operosch foltows bedt prachce
cuthned in the Warld Resaurces Institute Greenhouse Gas Protocol and guidance issuad by the UK Govemment 'SECK scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emissions are defined inaur

latest emissions tepant, which can bie found heser Witps: //www.magaiports com,/media/ 1809/ mag-emissions-report 2021-22 _final pdf

2 The area of our poise foutpnnts mcreased this yeor as air iraffic duting the summer retuined lo more normal levels following the removal of avel restachions n early 2022 for companson
the oren of curnose foorprst o nmer 20019 was 69 7 ¢a?

3 Edvcator, skills and employment engagements nc'udet g rarge of shilis ard education servces suck s o s kain rg erploymentinguchiors CV guidance (6b referals ass sing wath
ok cpoleations, ook mlerviews previging siaimenon ce cecrss 10 f1o- egships ond aporenticeships careerious 13 e hocls and college:, outplacemet sapport and sgapssing fe
ester g agencies and chovlyscommunity goups

4 Heobnond sofety s o key pnoe g fos MAG Tegincrease nepotlonle o odents.n 2022, 23 1o s ircreased g o

levels no sigmficant findings 1ssues or ends hove been idenified

wnng thie report oy penod. When comr paied 1o ore-parder o
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QUR ENERGY AND EMISSIONS
PERFORMANCE

We have a long history ol disclosing the
climate impacts of our airports. In complionce
with the Componies [Directars” Report] and
Limited Liability Portnerships (Energy and
Carbon Report) Regulations 2018, this repon
provides an overview of our energy usage
and emissions. If covers our responsibility for
energy consymplion ond emissions related fo
our operations.

The information presented below details
MAG's energy use and emissions, both in

absolute terms and in comparison o our

SECR Table*s

Energy corsumplion vsed to

GOVERNANCE

possenger and corge throughput, measured

in ‘Traffic Untts' {defined by the intemational
Cavil Avintion Orgunieahon uy cauvalent o
1,000 passengers or 100 tonnes of freight)
We have prepared this repon by following the
environmenial reporting guidelines published
by the Government and adopting the principles
of the World Resources Institute's Greenhouse
Gas Protocol.

To gather our energy usage and associated
inissions data, we pamarnly refied on primary
sources. In cases where primary doto was
vnavaitable, we estimated consumption by
extrapolating historic energy use.

2022/2023 2021 /2022

2020/2021

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We recognise the significance of greenhouse
gas emissions reporing to our stakeholders
and we ure commited to reporling transporert
and well-informed climate data. In addition 1o
this report, we publish our annual CSR report
every autumn which will include supplementary
information about MAG s emissions lrom

our aclivities and other emissions indirectly
associated with our business.

Further detfails on measures to increose energy
efficiency con be found in the Zeio Carbon
Airpars section of this report on page 34.

3‘-»f§;:'

calculate emissions [kWwh) 196.353.334 181984777 181,314 564 210406900 208,525,600
Emissions lrom combustion of gas [Scope 1, ICO?e] 11,446 1,524 11,005 Q80O Q752
Emissions fram combustion of fuel for transpon purposes

{Scope 1, TCO?e] 286l 2972 2322 5523 4 665
Emissicns from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned

vehicles where MAG is 1esponsible for purchasing the fuel

{Scope 3, 1COel 109 58 7 Q0 QR
Emissions from purchased elecricity

[Scope 2. location-based. TCO:,SJ 23,564 22736 25074 34,624 33,225
Emissicns from purchased electncy

{Scope 2. marke!-based 12O e)? 52 49 59 74 5
Totol grass emissions based on the above

{locanon-bosed, 1O e) 37983 37290 36,308 50043 47740
Tota! grass emissions based on the above

{Morket-based, 1CO, el 14,471 14,603 14293 15,493 14,520
Intensity measure {Traffic units]? 56.010 28.448 12.013 66,899 6% 167
Intensity ralic

{Locaton-based emissions, 1ICO,e /troffic unit) 068 1.31 327 0.75 0.69
Intensity ratio

[Market-based emissions, 1CCe /troffic uni) 026 0 5] 119 023 0.2
Caibon offsels

[purchased and retired, tCO2e] 14 471 14,603 14,288 15,432 14,520
Totel net emissions based on the above {location-based, TCOZ,G] 23,512 22.687 25015 34,551 33,225

Total net emissions based on the above (Market-based 1CO e} - -

Resownces Institute Greerhouse Gos Protoccl and guidance issued by the UK Government

Curenergy and emsuor perdonnarce hove hesn restated for 2021722 10 mabe wse of the most recent ard complete dataset This opproaen failows best prachce cuthned in the Worid

Location bused emisnions ars bused on the nverage emission mtens:y of the UK elecmcty grid MAG proactvely ctoases fo purchose ienewable siecticty whic his bucked by Renewstile

Ene-gy Guarontees of Onigir 1o demonsirate the corbon saving of our procurement decision we "dual repail’ our facalion ard market-based greenhouse gas emizuions
! We measure carbon mtensty against troffic umits, which are defined by the Internalional Civil Aviation Qrganization [ICAQ) as equivelent to 1,000 passengers or 100 lannes of freight

reporl-2021-22_final pdl This SECR data hos been independently venflied by TUV NORD CERT GebH

hbps /ey mogarports com//lespont ble business/csrepars

SECRecope 1, 2 and 3 greenhause gos emissions are deflined in ou latest cmissions report, which con be found here hitps //www magan ports com/medio/ | 80%/mag- emissions-

Addilional medsutes 1o improve energy efficiency will be discussed in our lolest CSR Report that will be published in Avtuma 2023 Previous CSR Reports can be found here.

iy



40

tAAC
Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Our people

Our people are the
keystone to MAG's
success. Across the
Group, more than 5,000
colleagues work to keep
our airports running
smoothly, deliver great
service to passengers
and partners, and help
us achieve our strategic
objectives,

As MAG emerged from the pondemic and
introduced o new operating model and an
updated Stiategic Framework, we were keen o
ensure that these changes were occompanied
by a refresh of our company values ond
coninue the evolution of cur propostion to
cunent and piospective colleagues This hos
been all the more importent over the recovery
per.od, as we welcomed a high volume of new
colleagues across the business.

OUR VALUES

We are unred by our shared purpose 1o
connect customers to the world, and MAG's
relieshed values encapsulote the culture we
air 1o cultivate across the business. shaping
behaviours and decision-moking:

1. Pecple at our core

Growing every day
Safe hands

2
3
4. Power of teamwork
5

Susiainable future for all

MAG delivered o major programme of
engogement io communicate our new values

across the Group.

Colleogues ot leadership level took part in @
series of 'Breckthiough’ education sessions,
de'ivered lo 500 people ocross MAG In these
sessions, leaders come together os © team o
lounch the new Empowered Airparts Operanng
Maodel, as well as the refreshed Values and
comfinue the evolution of our cubure. These
sessions amed 1o energise and inspre teams
ocross MAG, by learning new leodership toals
and technigues that are easily applicable ot
scole within the business

In total, out new volues were rolled cut to all
6,500 of our colleagues, at approximately 180
brfeﬂng 5580115 aCIQss Our aiports.

DEVELOPMENT AND ENGAGEMENT

We are committed to developing and inspirng
colleagues across MAG and over the tast 12
months worked hord to deliver inifiotives to
empower our people to achieve their potennal,

In December, our mest recent Your Voice
Survey — which showed a +@-point
impicvemen: in our colleague engagement
score — demonstoted the posinve mpact gur
inifictives are having across the arganisotion.

Under the sponsorstup of the Group Chiet
Information Officer Nick Woods, MAG
launched its Data Lireracy Programme, in
parinership with apprenticeship provider
Multiverse in April 2022, 53 leaders across the
Group have so for taken the fraining as par of
our wider Digital Transformanion programeme
Colleagues have now completed the first year
of their prograrrme, bringing with therm new
skills that will cortribute 1o the fuure of MAG,
A second cohort of colleogues sioted their
courses in Apnl this year.
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RECRUITMENT

We scaled np At pare following the fiffing

of pondemic-related wovel restrictions,
recruiting 3,391 people within 12 months.

This was achieved through the development

of MAG s new employer brand "We are

the Journey Makers, combined with o large
scale recruitment campaign including the
focilitalion of 3435 jobs fairs through our Airport
Academies, as outlined on page 36.

Recogrising the importonce of o compelling
employer brand to attract ond retain talent,
we worked with stokeholders 1o copture the
essence ol what mokes MAG special, and
were pleased to launch cur "We are the
Journey Makers’ volue proposition during
the year.

MAG olso recommenced its Early Talent
programme in October, welcoming new
graduates to feoms across the business,
including Strotegy. Commercial, People and
Finance. The Group is also developing a new
opergtions apprenticeship scheme to begin
later this vear initially of Manchester Aiport

ED&I

We believe our business should reflec] the
diverse communities in which we operate, and
understand our responsibility to ensure all our
colleagues feel able 1o be their outhenne selves

at work

In December, we published our new Equity,
Diversity and Inclusivity [ED&} Strotegy, which
sets out o seres of frameworks as to how we
can deliver positive change within MAG, which
s overseen by our ED&I Forum, sponsared

by current Deputy CEQ Ken O Toole ond
represeniation flom members of MAG's
Executive Commiftee

GOVERNANCE

We are commitied to ensunng diversity of talent
flows right the way through our business, and
we hove set out o sevies of embibons for aur
leadership populanon:
*  50% representation of female colleagues
by 2033

* 2% representation of ethnic minonty
colleagues by 2026

¢ 2% representation ol colleagues under

25 by 2025

Other elements of MAG's ED&I Stategy also
include recommending diverse shortlists for
leadership appointments and fociliating hiring
manager raining across the organisafion
covering the fopic of unconscious bias. MAG
has also started a women in leadership
programme in partnership with the Everywoman
organisation, which also provides online
support and resources for ofl colleagues across
the Group.

In 2021 we established Colleague Resource
Groups {CRGs) that continue 1o support and
inspnre colleagues across MAG. Gur CRGs
include the Men's Menlal Health, the Women's
Network, Fly with Pnde LGBTGHA+, Race &
Ethricity, and the Carers” Netwark. Over the
jast year, our networks have championed
lopics including supparting new parents
returning to work, international Women s
Dey, celebrating diversity in fath across

our organisation, Movember 2022, Pride
Month, Black History Manth, Waorld
Mental Health Doy and celebrating
neurodiversity.
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Financial Review

“Rapid growth in passenger demand,
M and tight management of the cost
ro I TO e bose, has delivered a strong financiol
performance, enabling the Group
.|.h to relaunch the transformation

programmes at both Manchester
and London Stansted”




OVERVIEW GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEADLINE FINANCIALS

Aller uvercoming operatonal challenges in the early part of the summer. the full year posifion sow possenger levels increasing by 163.4% 1o 54.0m (87.5%
of pre-Covid- 19 levels] Recovery in passenget numbers was the principal driver in increosing revenue by £566.9m, an increase of 122.7% compared with
FY22. MAG conlinued to monage ifs cost base, with volume-driven cost increoses amounfing 1o on B3 2% uplift an the prior year cost hose. Consequently,

this bolslered the Group’s adjusted EBITDA 1o £412.0m (FY22: £125.6m) and operating profit o £28.6m [FY22: operating loss £130.3m).

MAG's strong biought forword cash position fram FY22 and positive cash generated hom operaticns of £450.dm during FY23 enabled the Group

fo recommence paymen's of shareholder loan interest, which hod previously been deferred since March 2020. This enabled MAG to relaunch the
tronstormation programmes ot both Manchester and London Stansted 1o invest in new faciliies and enhance service levels for passengers. MAG also fully
poid back amouns drawn on its £500m revolving credit focility ond mointoined a posilive net cosh pesinon of £&7.6m (FY22, £462 9m}

Year ended

31 March Year ended

2023 31 March 2022 Change Chenge

{Em} {£m} (Em| (%)
Passenger rumbers 54.0 205 335 163 4%
Revenue 1,029.0 4621 5669 122.7%
Adusted EBITDA? 412.0 1256 286 4 228.0%
Operating profit/{loss] 28.6 (130 3) 1589 n/o
Loss before taxation {197.4) 1288 &) Q1 2 31.6%
Loss for the year {159.5) {321.3) 161 8 50.4%
Cash generated from operations-adjusied’ 455.0 166.5 288.5 173 3%
Caosh generated from operations! 450.4 1457 304.7 2091%
Capital investment 193.7 &8 7 1250 182.0%
Net Cosh and Cash Equivalents? &7.6 4629 (395.3] {65.4%)
MNet Debt - incleding iFRS 16 (2,958.7) 129561} 26 o1
et Debt — excluding IFRS 16 (2,500.5) {2,520 3] 0.8 0.8%
Equity shareholders funds 703.0 7249 (219 {3.00%

' As exploined in Other Information of the hnancial statements on page 173,

Results are lrom coninuing operations unless otherwise stated

MEASURES USED TO ASSESS PERFORMANCE

The Group uses o number of measures 1o assess financial pedformance that are not defined within IFRS and are widely referred to as ‘Alternative
Performance Measures’ (APMs] The Group's accounting palicy related to APMs 15 defailed on page 119, and the Other Inlormation section of the
financiol statements on page 173 defines the Group’s APMs, their purpose and definition, clong with a reconcilicfion to the neares! IFRS measurement.

APMs are defined by management and should not be considered as comparable with similarly named measures used by other companies. They are
not considered supenor 10 IFRS measures but are issued by management 1o provide additional informanon which may prove useful to the readers of
the accounts Many of the Group’s APMs are referied to os ‘adjusted’ meoning prior to the impact of ‘adjusted dems’. Adjusted items are separately
disclosed and relate 1o flems that are significant in size and /or infrequent in nature, and where, in the directors’ view, their separate disclosure gives
additional information on the Group's underlying financial performance.

For example, costs incurred owing 1o restucturing achvities, financiof instiument modification geins, additional expendiure owing to Group fransformation
activities and merger & acgurstion octivity are considered infrequent and ore presented within Adjusted items as adjusiments to the IFRS measures of
financial perfermance.
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ADJUSTED EBITDA

The directors use APM measuies to review the pertormance of the Group, there are @ number of measures, but the predominant one opplied is adjusted
EBITDA}, as it is the main measure of business performance, is used acioss peers and is pan of MAG s financial covenants.

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Before
adjusted Adjusted After adjusted  Before adjusted Aber adjusted
items items items items Adjusted items ifems
Confinuing operations £m £m £m &m £m £m
Adjusted EBITDA! 412.0 {125.3) 286.7 1256 [t+AH 1195
Depreciotion and amortisation (242.2) {15.9} {258.1) {238 8} (Mo {243 8)
Adjusted operating profit/{loss)! 169.8 (141.2) 28.6 (113 2) 73 {130 3)
As explained in Other Infeimaton or page 173
SUMMARY TRADING PERFORMANCE
Year ended
31 Meorch Year ended
2023 31 March 2022 Change Change
Summary of Revenue Stream £m £m £m %
Aviahon income 3559 1799 1760 Q7 B%
Retail concessions 234.5 812 153.3 188.8%
Car parking 3251 126.7 198 4 1560 6%
Property & pioperty reloted income 20.2 21.1 0% {4.3)%
Other 93.3 532 40.1 754a%
Total Revenue -~ continuing operations 1,029.0 4621 5669 22 7%
Yeor ended
3 March Year ended

2023 31 March 2022 Change Change
Summary of Revenue by Division £m £m £m %
Manchester Airport 429.0 188 5 2405 127 6%
tondon Stansted Airport 373.2 180.8 162 4 106 4%
East Midlands Airport 81.3 576 237 41.1%
CavL! 1421 32.4 1067 338 6%
Group consolidation and other 3.4 2.8 &3 2V 4%
Total Revenue — continuing operations 1,029.0 4621 5609 122 7%

' Restared she rieoi pear oy ceta €207 nole 2 or vage 131

FY23 was the first full financial year following the Ii#ting of travel restrictions imposed in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. After some operationo!
challenges experienced ocross the industry early in the summer season, resources were ropdly scoled up to meet the release of lorent cemand This
required the combined efforts of cur reoms ‘o meet the challenge and resutted in an industry-leading recovery which has seen passerger numbers nsing
to close to pre-pandemic levels.

Over the course of the year we welcomed 54 Om passengers acoss our three gitpors, 0 163.4% increase on she pror vear. The increase was primanly
driven by higher volumes with Ryanair, Jet?.com, easylet and TUI, predominantly through irternational flights and with load factors increasing from &1.4%
pumary to 83 7% MAG s desination airports sncreased towiards pre Covid- 19 leve s 1o 261 {up fom 235 in FY22) The top destinafions ocrass the
Group were Dublin, Spain [Conaries, Balearics and the maintand), Portugal and Turkey
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The Group delivered an overall revenue increase of 122 7% in companson 1o the prior period. The increases in the airport divisions were driven largely

Loy pussenger Toulldll hisugli he upons, with cvianon, car parking and relas revenues more than doubling in comparison to the prior reporting period

The percentage growth in revenue was lower than ther of possenger numbers as aviation yields sollened as volumes increased both of Manchester and
Llondon Stansted

Yields for car parking alse reduced ocross MAG's aitpedts. This is partially explained by the entry into o commercial ogreement from 1 Apnl 2022 far
Cavlo sell car parking on the cirports’ behall on a commission basis, However, there has olso been a sight reduction when viewed from a Group
perspective due to the significant increose in passenger numbers and mix of products. Retail yields remained strong, improving across all of our airports
with the largest conrributions coming from duty-free, food and beverage, and newsagents.

CAVU revenue increased by £109 7m (338.6%) 1o £142 1m {20221 £32.4m}. Included within this uphft is the commission earned under o commercial
arrangement between CAVL and MAG s airports for the sale by CAVU of the airports’ cor parking ond fast-frack products which 1ock eflect from T Aprl
2022 Excluding the impact of this uplft. the year-on-year increase would have been £35.2m (112.1%},

Propenty ncome contracted slightly during the year, with o 4.3% decrease over the prior year. Other income increased by 75.4%, with passenger-related

actwities such as retall ravel services, refuelling and check-in desk rentol providing the main year-on-year increases, afong with improved {nan-
passenge related) 1ecovery on utlity costs incurred from tenants.

Year ended

31 March Yeor ended

2023 31 March 2022 Change Change
Operaling cost £m £m £m %
Emplayment costs * (291.7) {182 %} {108 8) [59.5)%
less: Job Retention Scheme income - 182 (18.2} {100.0)%
Net employmen: costs * {291.7) (164 7} 1270) 771 %
Cher operating charges ™ {325.3) (1809 1135 4) 71 3%
Less” Apon and Ground Operations Support Scheme - 178 {17.8) {1000l
et Other Operoling Charges [325.3) 11721) 1153.2} 189 0)%
Met Overoll Operating Costs * {617.0) [334.8) (280.2) {83 2)%
Profit /lloss) on sale of property, plant and equipment - 03 (0.3} {100 0%
Depreciation and omorsation ™ {242.2) {238.8) 13.4) (1.4)%
Net Total Costs - before adjusted nems * {859.2) {575.3) {283 9) (49.3)%
Adpusted ftems - Other aperating charges - GMPF setilement 119.7) - nme.7) {100)%
Adusted ltems - Other operating charges - Other (5.6) 4.1} Q.5 8 2%
Adiusted lems - Depreciation and amormisation and impairment {15.9) 111.0) (49 (44 .5%)
AdLsted llems, - Total (141.2) {171} f1241) (725.7%)
To'a! MNet Operating Costs (1,000.4) (592 4) {408.0) (6891

* - befare ad ted e

Ay exploned = Other nformaten on page 173
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Excluding the impact of the sale of fixed assets, depreciction and amortisation, the Group's net overal! operating costs, comprising employee costs
ond non-employee costs, incressed by £280.2m 1o £6170m (2022: £336.8m) This increase is net of the £36.0m government assistance the Group
received in FY22 under the UK Government's Covid- 19 Job Retention Scheme and the Airport and Ground Operctiors Suppoit Scheme (AGOSS]

Employee costs increased by £127.0m 1o £291 7m, poriclly resuling from the romping up of headeaunt which enabled the Group to meet the ropid
increase in possenger demand, and the impact of the UK Govermment's Job Retention Scheme coniribution to the prior year {(£18 2m)

The Group's other operating costs befoie adjusted items increased by £153.2m 1 £325.3m This was due 1o ncreased energy costs, increases in cosls
of maintenance, oirfield costs and morketing, and the impact of AGQSS in the prios yeor occounts [£178m).

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 Maorch 2022
2023 restated Change Change
Adjusted EBITDA™ by Division £m (Em]) £m %
Manchesler Arport 157.3 361 121.2 3357%
London Stonsted Airport 164.5 397 124.8 314 4%
East Midlands Arporn 32.8 220 10.8 49 0%
CAvU 35.2 8.3 269 324 1%
Group, consolidation and other 22.2 19.5 27 13 8%
Total adjusted EBITDA' - continuing operations 412.0 125.6 286 4 228 0%

As explamed in Other Informat an on page 173

Adjusted EBITDA! for the Group increased by £286.4m to reach £412 Om. driven by the £566.9m [122.7%) passenger-driven revenue uplilt, whilst the
Group's operating cost base increased by only £280.2m (83.2%!.

Depreciation and amaortisotion costs before adjusied tems relating o continuing operations were 1.4% kigher than the prior year at £242 2m. This
increase reflects a full year’s charge of the Manchester Transformation Programme [MAN-TP} brought into use in FY¥22 and additional depreciation of
£8.4m arising hom an increased charge as a result of shorening airfield asset hves.

The financial statements have classified as adjusted items® o total charge of £110.9m {FY22: cherge of £2.7m), including £119.7m relating lo the exit of
the Group’s pension scheme with GMPF following the settlement of the Deferred Debt Agreement, depreciation and impairment of £159m; a finance
cost of £5.7m (reflecting o shareholder modification loss of £5.3m and a £0.4m wrile-oft of previously capitalised interest within design costs); £4.1m
relating to other opermational airport transformation schemes, profit from discontinued operations net of iax of £4.7m and £1.5m of other adjusied items.
There is o tax credit of £31.3m reloting to agjusted tters, for detaled reconciliation of the raxation refer 1o note 9. The summary of adjused items is given
in note 3 1o the accounts at page 132 and the definifion of the Group's APMs are explained in the Other Information section of the financiol stctements on
page 173

The adjusted charge of £159m relates to £11.4m of impairment upon review of Airfield assets and US contract assets, with the remaining balance of
£4 5m relating to accelerated depreciation following the decision to mothball T1 os o result of the announcement ‘o launch MAN.TP phase 2.

When accourving for the Group’s totel opera'ing costs including adjusted items and depreciatien the Group incurred £1,000 4m in FY2Z3 (this includes

the GMPF Setilement loss of £119.7m reflected in the income statement which was offset by an uphit recognised through reserves —~ see note 35, This was
an ncrease of £408.0m {68 0%) in relaton to (FY22: £592.4m)

Asexpramed in Qtrer loration o age 173
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Year ended Year ended

31 March 3] March 2022
2023 restated Change Change
Operating pedil/{loss) by divicion £m {Em}) £m %
Manchester Airporn ! (104.7} 26.7) (8.0} 8 3%
london Stonsted Airpor: 21.0 (42.0) 1330 n/a
East Midlands Airport 13.4 78 5.0 71.8%
CAvlY 2.8 115) 23.3 nso
Group, consolidation ond ofher 7.1 2.1 5.0 238.0%
Total operating proﬁi/“oss) 28.6 1130 3} 1589 n/a

' The operating iass in the Manchester Arport division includes an expense ol £119 7m on the closure of the DDA rerement bencfit scheme
BUSINESS QUTLOOK

MAG has recovered strongly from the Covid-19 pandemic, with robust financial performance indicalive of the underlying demand for air travel.

The sirength of the recovery gives us confidence in a promising outlook, based on:

+  Strong financial foundetions, reflecting the resilient and prudent strategy that MAG has adopted over the past three years. Consequently,
management’s assessment of geing concern concluded that there 15 no longer a material uncertainty. Further information regarding MAG's going
concern assessment is defaled in the Basis of Preparation on page 109;

*  The Group successfully cddressed the operationa! challenges experienced as a result ot the requirement 1o scale up activity rapidly in Surmmer
2022. The new MAG operaling mode! will enable the business 1o deliver good service levels ot all of cur airports:

= MAG's srong financial position can oct os a springboard for the Group to bolh resume investment activities to ranstorm our infrastructure and
improve our service levels. and look ot business opportunities to grow our business; and

»  Qur abitity to grow sustainably remains key 1o the business strolegy.

MAG 15 1n 6 srong position o progress with its sirotegy lor the future. Development of both our pecple ond inkrastructure remains key in delvering o
qualiry service to our customers, Our relanonships with our airlines and other parines, our strategic locotions ond catchment areas allow us 1o deliver

great customer choice ond value

TRADING UNITS

Manchester Airport
25.2m passengers ovelled through Marichester Airport in the year ended 31 March 2023, an increase of 176.9% over the prios yeor

FY23  FY22 restaled Change Change %
Passengers (midlion) 25.2 Q.1 161 176.9%
Revenue {£m) 429.0 188.5 240.5 1276%
Adiusted EBITDA [£m) 157.3 361 1212 3357%
Operatng loss (104.7) 96.7) 8.0 8 3%

£ per Passenger FY23 FY22 restated

Awiafion 6.5 79
Commercial? 10.6 128
Operating costs {before odjusted tems and depreciation} 10.8 67
Opeaing costs {including adjusted tems and depreciation| 21.0 367

As evplamea in Uthet Informokos or poge 143

All revenge streams extluding avalicn
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The 16.1 m 1ecovery in passenger numbers franslated into o £240.5m increase in revenue at Monchester 1o £429.0m, with increases seen in all the core
revenue streams of avietion, refail and cor parking that are principally volume related. Passenger growth was led by @ load tactor uplift om 62 0% o
82 5% with Ryanair, easyler, Jet2 com and TUt leading the growth and the top three destinations for the airport being Dublin, Dubai and Tenerile. The
volume increase has alse diven a softening in aviotion yields, Car parking vields olso soltened though this is partially cftributable to the impact of the
commercial arrangement with CAVU which came into effect on 1 April 2022 However, the airport's refar yields improved, diiven by duty free. food and
beverage, ond newsagents

The airport cost base [before adjusted items and depreciaion] increased by 78.3% duing £Y23 1o £271 7m as management sought to increase
operctional copacity to support the increosed volume. The largest incieases were experienced in employee costs, rent, rates & utiliies maintenance, and
airfield costs. The uplift in costs was diluted by the significant increase in passenger numbers, resulfing in o reduction in cost per passenger from £17.8

toe £11.0.

The combined impacr of improving sevenue per passenger for aviaion and commerciol coupled with the reduction in operating cost per passenger
resuited in Monchester's adjusted ERITDA! increasing by £121.2m 1o £157.3m (FY22: £36.1m)

Manchester's depreciotion increased by £12 8m o £123.4m during the year. The principal reasans tor the Increase were a kil year's depreciotion
charge for Ihe first phose of the MAN-TP assets brought into use in ihe first half of FY22

Depreciafion of £123.4m, amortisahon of £4.4m ond adjusted items of £132.4m {prncipally the GMPF sefement loss of £ 1197 m} increosed rotal
operating costs by £262.0m to £333 7m, Consequently, Manchester delivered on operating loss of £104 7m {FY22: loss of £96 7m})

London Stansted Airport
london Stansted Airport expenenced an increase of 476% in possenger numbers aver the course of the year, with a tatal of 25 5m passengers passing
thraugh the oirport

FY23 FY272 restoted Change Change %
Passengers {million} 25.5 103 152 147 &%
Reverue [£m) 373.2 1808 192 4 106.4%
Adusted EBITDA! {Em) 164.5 397 1248 314.4%
Orperating prefit [Em) 91.0 (42.0) 1320 n/a
£ per Passenger FY23 FY22 restated
Arahon 5.9 70
Cammerciai? 8.7 0s
Operatng costs (before odiusted iems ond depreciation) 8.2 137
Operatng costs bncluding adi.sted ems and deprecioion] 1.0 214

A espra ned i Othe iromiai anooe fage 1773

Al rgvem o siea s exciuding cugh on

The 15.2m increase in passengers wos driver by Ryanair ona Jet? com, wath an increcse in load tactor hom 61.0% 1o 84.6% with Dublin, Istarbul

ond Rome remaining the mos! populor destinatians The passenge- uplift renslated into a £192 4 rise in revenue across all key revenue streams, with
aviaton, re'ail ond car porking all expenencing increases Aviation yields weokened due 10 the volume increase and retal yields improved principally
in duty-free, food and beverage, newsagency and financial services. However. the commercial arrangement with CAVU reduced the car parking yield
acheved hy the airpert. resyling n an overll reduction in commercial revenue per possenger from £10.5 10 £8 7

Whilst possenger volumes more thon doubled he cost bose [befere odjusted nems and depreaiation) mereased by 167 6m [51.0%) 10 £208 7m. The
main areas of cost increases were in employee costs, rates & utilines, aifield costs, and maintenance Consequently, adjusied EBITDA increased by
£124.8m (314.4%) 1o £ 164, 5m
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Stansted resumed the STN-TP Frogramme during the year. The airport’s depreciation chorge reduced by 14.2% from £81.8m in FY22 10 £70.2m in FY23
due to odditional depreciation recognised in the prior yeor. Adding in depreciahion of £70.2m, emortisation of £0.8m and adjusted items of £2.4m
incrensed ool operating costs by £73.5m to £282 2. Cunsequently, Stansted delivered an operaling protit of £21.0m {FY22: loss of £42 Om).

East Midlands Airport
East Midtands Airport has a very imponant dual role as the biggest cirport for dedicated cargo naffic in the UK and servicing the East Midlands region.

FY23  FY22 restated Change Change %
Passengers [million) 3.3 1Y 22 200.0%
Revenue (£im.) 81.3 576 237 A1 1%
Adjusted EBITDA! (£r) 32.8 220 10.8 490%
Operating profit (m) 13.4 78 56 71.8%
£ per Possenger FY22 FY22 restated
Aviation 12.9 3727
Commercig|? .7 90
Operatng costs [before adjusted itlems and depreciation) 14.7 324
Operating cosls [incleding adjusted items and depreciation} 20.5 45t

T Aserplamed i Othen Inkmobion on page 173

2 Al revenye streams excluding avakon

Passenger numbers impraved by 2.2m compared to FY22, increasing from 11m to 3 3m and delivering o £23 7m uplf: in revenue. Cargo activity
maintained ils skong contribution to the Fast Midlands figures, softening by £2.8m (8 5%] to £30.1m in companson to the priar year's record highs which
had been driven by the pandemic impact.

The arpon olso experienced an overall reduction in commeicial yields with car parking reductions {portially driven by the impoct of the commercial
agreemen! wath CAVU) more than offseting retail improvements. However, the overall uplift in volumes resulied in an increose in revenve of
£723.7m 41 1%).

Costs (befare adpsted items ard depreciation) increased by £12 8m (35 7%) to £48.6m with the largest increases being seen in employee costs driven
by increased heodcount, ond higher energy prices. Overall. East Midlands improved ils adjusted EBITDAY position by £10.8m 10 £32.8m {2022:
£22.0m). Adding in depreciction of £179m, amertisation of £0.1m and adjusted tems of £1.4m incieosed lotol operaing coss by £19.4m 1o £679m.
Consequenlly, East Midlands delivered an operating profit of £13.4m (FY22: £7.8m).

CAVU

On 31 March 2022 MAG launched its new digital business, CAVU. CAVL compnses the legacy MAG-O ard MAG US businesses which hove been
balstered in the past five years through acquisitions in beth the UK and the US. These businesses have a track record of developing and delivering
products for airport hospitality and car parking. CAVU will continue to work with both MAG componies ond external clierts 1o develop and provide

services te aviation customers ocioss the whole cusiomer journey.

MAG has g proven tack record in this innovative area, in which the Group can provide service ta the wider trave! secfor as well as MAG s core airport
businesses, CAVU is regorded os o separate 1eporioble segment in these accounts to align with the structure of management reporting within the Group,

replocing MAG US which forms part of the CAVU segment.

CAVU performed strongly during FY23 with revenues increasing from £32.4m 1o £142.1m of which the commercial agreement with the Group's

qirparts amounted to £75.5m. Other growth was principally achieved through CAVU's EMEA business with US operations remaining flat year on year.
Operating costs increased marginally which resulted in the bulk of the revenue uplit delivering an increased profilability with adjusted EBITDA increasing
by £269m to £35.2m, and operating profit increcsing lo £21.8m (FY22- operating foss of £1.5m].
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FY23  FY22 resiated Change Change %
Revenue (£m) 142.1 32.4 1097 338 6%
Adjusted EBITDA! [Em] 35.2 8.3 269 324 1%
Operating profit [£m) 21.8 1.5} 23.3 n/a

' Asexploned m Cither Informahon o page 173

GROUP’'S PROPERTY

The MAG Property division manages the Group’s core property invesiment portfolio, comprising offices, hotels and cargo properties, and is
also responsible for manoging the Group's investment in the Airport City project, ond its results are included within the Group, conselidated and
other category.

Revenue increased over the course of the year to £3.4m (2022: £2 8m] which incledes the sale to THG of land at Airpert Ciy South, resulting in
adjusted EBITDA' ond operdting profit ncreasing to £71m [FY22: £2.1m).

The investment properties are revalued to tair value af each reporting date by independent property valuers and valuations. During the year ended 31
Morch 2023, the Group's investment properties expenenced a £26 7m downward revaluotion, largely driven by increasing yields This, coupled vath
reclassification of some assets to PPE, resulted in the porfolio’s value reducing to £155.1m [FY22: £188.9m).

MAG confinues o retain o 20% interes! in the Airport City development ond account for its investment on an equity basis as an ossociote. The carrying
value of MAG's investment reduced to £71 m following a distiibution in August of £4 Gm tollowing praciical completion of o development.

CASHFLOW

Cash generared from conlinuing operations-adjusted’ increased 1o a net inflow of £455.0m, a significant improvement in companson to £166 5min
FY22, (cash generaled from operations of £450 4m, FY22: £145.7m]_ This was driven primarily by the increase in passenger numbers. Cash genercted
from operating activites-adjusied" represented 110.4% of adjusted EBITDA! due to strang working capital mancgement and the mix of car parking
revenues which provide a cash benefit rom advanced bookings

Over the year ended 31 Maich 2023, the Group's net cash position reduced by £395.3m to £676m. £455.0m cf adjusted cash generated by
operofions was more than offset by a net outflow of £163.4m for tax and interest, investing aclivities outflow of £184.3m. financing outflow of £498 Om,
and an cuiflow of £4.6m in relction o adjusled items. During the yeor, MAG repaid all of the £500m revolving credit facility which was fully drown s of
31 March 2022

Group Cash fow [£m} FY23 FY22 % Change
Cash generated trom 7 {used by) opeations-adju sted’! 455.0 1665 173.3%
AdjLsted ttems {4.6) {70 8} S7G%
Casm generuted from operotons 450.4 1457 2091%
Netintergst {121.3) 183 7) (568)%
Tax poid (32.1) Q.4 (7925 C)%
MNet cash used in mvesting acliviies (184.3} (118 4} 155 7)%
Net cosh vsed n finanaing activities (498.0) {i0 5) 14642 9%
MNey decrease in cash and cash equivalents {395.3) {67 3) 1483.71%

Yeor end postion

Met cash anc cash eauralents’ 67.6 4429 (B85 4%

Aswvploines « Oker intormonar o suge 173
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FINANCING AND INTEREST

Mointoining MAG s sirong investment grade ratings with both Fireh and Meady's is hey 10 ou siiclegy of providing the Group with a robust long-term
financing structure that supporis growth. Shareholder support, sale of non-core property and sirang control of costs has helped MAG 1o reduce net
senior debt over the course of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic which hos beer an importont component in the maintenance of investmert grade
ratings. Together with a robust liquidity posiion MAG is in ¢ good pesition to invest in infrasiructure and business opportunities that will encble the Group
o meel the anticipeied increase in demand over the coming years

Group net debt [excluding leases) decreased to £2,500.5m (2022: £2,520 3m). The movement during the year refiects the cash inflow from operating
activities offer inlerest and ax of £287Cm offset by the outflow from investments of £184.3m, resulting in @ net £102.7m inflow before financing.
Consequenlly, alter Icking inlo account IFRS 16, Group net debt of £2.958.7m comprised long-term fixed rate bonds (£1,439.8m); shareholder loans
{£1132 Om); and lecse hobiliies {£458.2m), offset by net cash of £67.6m and £3 7m of unamortised fees of 31 March 2023; which had reduced
substantially as a resull of the Group poying back in full the £500m Revolving Credit Facility.

Group net interest charge in the financial stalements amounted o £199.8m, reflecting an increase of 10.2% in comparison to the prior year {2022:
£181.3m). Both FY23 and pricr year interest charges were impacted by modifications to the Group’s sharsholder loans {2023: toss of £5.3m, 2022:
gain of £8.8m}. The ininol deferral of shareholder foan interest os o consequence of the Covid- 12 pandemic resulted in modification gains as the
delerred interest attracted o lower intetest charge than the effective interest rate on the loans. Subsequent modifications were impacted by increases in
the timing of the estimoted deferred inferest repayments and increases in the rate ot which the deferred interest payments afiroct interest, which is linked
1o the bank deposit rate. The modification loss in FY23 was driven by later repayments, partially offsel by a higher bank deposit rate than wos assumed
in FY22 The Group recommenced the payment of shareholder loen interest on 31 March 2023, ond paid £476m regular SHL interest poyments as
well as £2.5m of deferred interest It 1s cunrently anficipaled that repayment of the previcusly deferied interest payments amounting to £2774m {2022
£221.7m} vall continue over the next 5 to 7 yeors unhl oll delerred interest has been repaid by FY30,

Excluding modification adjustments, the underlying interest charge increased by 5.8% 1o £201.1m (2022: £190.1m}. Interes! paid in the year amounted
to £138.3m (2022: £83.7m), comprising interest on senior debl lease liabiliies and the recommencement of poyments on sharehelder loon interest,
£62 8m (20221 £106.7m) of residual interest costs related primarily to accrued shareholder foan interest. FY23 saw higher capitalisation of borrowing
cos's of £4.9m (2022, £0.6m} following the relaunch of *he Group ronsformation progrommes ot Manchester Anport and london Stansted. in line with
IAS 23 and the Group's cccounting policies Interest income from the Group's long-term lsase receivoble remoined static at £0 &m, whereas |AS 19
interest on the Group's defined benelit pension schemes cmounted to an income of £0.5m (2022: expense of £0.9m).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

As the economy recovered fom the Covid- 19 pandemic in FY23, MAG increased its capilal expendituie progrommes to commence the next phoses
of the transformation progrommes, MAN TP and STMN-TP Consequently, the Group's investment of £193.7m (2022, £68 7m] in infrastruciure during the
year was lorgely driven by the recommencement of the MAN-TP and STNL.TP programmes

MAG's property, plant and equipment balance reduced 10 £31072m [2022: £3,140 9m) with depreciotion and impairment chaiges of £230.1m more
thon oftsetting the investimen! made during the year

LEASES (IFRS 16)

Dunng the yeor ended 31 March 2023, the Graup's lease hability increased 1o £458.2m (2022 £435.8m). principally os a resull of remeasurements
of the Group's leases with MCC and UK Power Networks (see note 311, The Group's right-of-use asset poshion which amaunted 1o £437.0m (2022
£417 7m} with the uplifi reflecling the impact of the remeasurement of the lease liability.
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Financial review continued

PENSIONS

The accounting pesition is calculoted by the directors and supported by independent actuaries, PwC, who incorporale data taken fiom a number of
sources fn calculaling the closing position at the year-end across the defined benefit schemes. The net surplus included in the financial state ments under
IAS 19 increased from £22.1m at 31 March 2022 to £86.6m ot 31 March 2023 |

Summary of changes in aggregate pension scheme surplus £m i
Met surplus s ol 31 March 2022 B 221 '
Administration expenses {11
Orher financial incomes / lexpenses) 05
Contributons 74

Curtaiiment gain -

Setflemeant loss (119.7)
Actuanal gam due 1o release of asset ceiting due to setlement 167
Other actuanial gain 333
Impact of change in asset ceiling 274
Net surplus os ot 31 March 2023 866

All of MAG's defined benefit pension schemes were closed 1o future accrual oftes a period of consultation in the year ended 31 March 2022, The
Stansted and Eost Midlands scheme surpluses increased from o combined £23 7m to £90.7m over the petiod. The surplus has increased over the period
due to large actuarial geins recogrised in the SOC| mainly due to the sigrificant increase in the discount rate assumption particlly offset by o small cost
recognised in the income stotement. Based on the Group’s understanding of the rules for the two schemes, itis the Group's view that MAG is provided o
right te a refund of any surplus in he schemes and consequently the surplus has been recognised in the financial statements.

During FY22 MAG olso entered into a Delerred Debt Arrangemen: [ DDA’} with the Greater Monchester Pension Fund [GMPF} as part of the Group's
exit from the scheme. This resulted in MAG continuing to fund its obligations in the GMPF without crystallising a significant exit debt ot that fime, The DDA
provided that should the GMPF develop o surplus on an ‘exit basis’ of calculation then the Group's obligations under the DDA would cease. other than
the engoing financing of any unfunded liabilities.

Al 31 March 2022 the GMPF was in an |AS 19 accounting surplus of £25m. This included on cliowance 1o reflect committed cash contributions at 31
tMaorch 2022 of £1.6m As this surplus did not comprise o surplus under the exit bosis, MAG did rot have o right to a refund. Consequently. an asset
ceiling, as required by IFRIC 4, resulted in the accounting surplus not being recognised in the accounts. During the 12 months ended 31 March 2023,
chonges in morket conditions resulted in an increase in discount rotes such that by 2 Sepiember 2022, the GMPF were able 1o confirm that there wos no
longer a deficit in the GMPF in respect of MAG's abligations on the ext basis. At that pointin ime MAG's obligations to the GMPF ceased other than
the ongoing commitment of untunded liabilines of £39m.

Whils' averall the GMPF liabllity in the accounts has increased by £2.3m 10 £3.9m at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022- £1.6m} IAS 19 requires thot
the 1oss on sefflement in the income statement is coleuloted witheu! the :mpact of the accounting basis asset ceiling. with the asset ceiling movemen!

itself being taken through reserves. Consequently, MAG has recognised a setflement loss of £118.7m in the income siatement, reflecting the difference
between the GMPF's assels and liabilities as at 2 September 2022 This has been classified as an adjusted item. The offsetfing impact of removal of the
asset ceiling has been recognised direcily 10 reserves in occoraance with 1AS 1@ This alang with oher actvanal adjustments for the GRMPF. amounts to o
£ N6 4m credit

The net surplus of £86.6m in the accounts reflects a net liability of £4.1m in the AYPS and GMPF schemes and a net surplus of £90.7m in the EMIA and
STAL schemres. The totaf of £86.6m shows the net postion across the Group, however the ne* surplus in the EMIA and STAL schemes cannet he offset
against the net liability of the AVPS and GMPF schemes, so these are presented separately in the finanaial statements.
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TAXATION

The total tax credit in the consolidated income statement is $37 Tm compared to @ $31 Omozluige in the prion year, which inuudes tax charges
atinbutable o discontinued operations of £1.1m [2022: £nil). The underlying effective current tax rate is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax
of 19% {2022 higher}, with differences exploined in note 9 1o the financial slatements. The tolal lax poid in the year of £32.1m relates to payment on
account for the profits in FY23.

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND DIVIDENDS

Equity sharehelders’ funds were £703 Om os at 31 March 2023 {2022, £724 9m). The movement comprises £159.5m loss afier tax and adjusted nems,
o gain on setlement of the DDA with GMPF and remeasuiement of pension liabilines {net of tox] of £1379m, ocquisiion of o non-controlling interest of
£1.0m, loreign exchange gain of £5.7m {net of tox) on the investment in CAVL and the effect of change in rate of corparation tax of £70m

The Group started repayments to its shareholders through the recommencement of shareholder loan interest payments at 31 Morch 2023 with an overall
payment of £50.1m. There is no proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 12 May 2023 MAG secured a bridge lo bond facility that provides the Group with assurance that it will be able to refinance its bond for £360m by
providing the facili'y 1o dravedown £360m up to ¥2 May 2024 with options 1o extend to 12 May 2025,

On 31 Moy 2023 MAG acquired 100% ol the share capial of ParkCloud Heldings Limited, tading as ParkVia, a Manchester based ecommerce
airport parking aggregator in the UK and EU market. Initial cash considerahon of £8.4m was paid, subjec to finalisation of the completion accaunts, with
further contingent consideration payable depending on financial performance in the firsl year following ccquisition. As the completion accounts are yet
to be finglised, no information has been disclosed at this time on the fair value of assets and liabilifies acquired, and goodwill arising.

Jan Bramall
Group Chief Financial Officer

4 July 2023
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Board of Directors

As at 31 March 2023, the Board

of Manchester Airports Holdings
Limited comprised the following

individuals:

SR ADRIAN
MONTAGUE CBE

Appointment
to the Board

Other current roles
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VANDA PALUL
MURRAY OBE VENABIES
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CATH
SCHEFER

Cath is the Chiet Operating Officer - Globdl lenhas o cons cector hockgicund, having
for Stantec. ovesseeing al: operonons oulside of soeship oo o Superdey plo fss

Mionh America Ther Ve, Greeugs,

Cah hos mose than 30 years’ experignce He bas brogd aternotiona una L
in design, corstuction ond plogramme i bothy D2 and D2R2C .
manggemen: of majar irhastuciure pojects
and is o chortared civit ergineer and o Feliow Ionsdncus for e post 20 yeos hes been in
ol the Insfitution of Civil Engineers Charnels, whee he hos been responsi
ag both dogret ronstoimasion cod

Jor has previously hala Mon-Executive and
board adviser roles ot digirol sion-ups and s

cussently on the boards of Sosandar ple and
Abel & Cole

Chief Operating Officer - Global at Stantec MNon-Executive Direcor of Sosandar ple

Non-[xecutive Direcror of Abel & Cole
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Chair’s statement on

corporafe governance

"Welcome 1o the corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 March 2023
which | am pleased to intfroduce on behalt

of the Board.”

CHAIR'S STATEMENT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

On beha¥ of the Board. | am plessed 1o
present our Corporate Govemnance Report for
the financial year ended 31 March 2023,

MAG considers strong corporate governance
to be a core foundation of any successiul
business and is committed to maintaining

bigh stondards ond odopting best praciice

os it emerges. in occordance with our
requirement o provide a statement of corporate
governance arrangements, | confirm that

MAG hos adopted the Wates Corporate
Governance Principles for barge Private
Companies {Wates Principles’) os its corporate
governance code for the financia!f yeor ended
3) Muorch 2023, This Corporote Governonce
Report describes how we hove applied those

principles throughout the yeas. Details of the
directors’ performance of their duties under
Section 172 of the Compantes Act 2006,
mdud{ng importanf 1ong-'erm considerations
that direct the Board's overall thinking. con also
be found on pages 74 tc 77,

A clear area of focus for the Boord this year has
been on MAG's readiness for Summer 2023
and the performance of cur aidine partners
across each of our airparts. Alongside this

the Boord hos continued its aversight of the
reguirement Jo improve cusiomer senvice ooross
our sites, which | om pleased 10 report Fas seen
a marked improvement. As recovery became
evident over the course of the fingneial year,
the Board engaged in an exercise to refresh
our corporate strategy which is set outin full on
poges 16 1o 1@

Owr Board Committees have once oga'n
played animportant part in the detaled scevtiny
of MAG's pedormonce and the insight and
challenge they have provided ta the Board hos
been very welcome. The detailed work of each
Committee is set out in the reports the' follow

on poges O to 73, in partcular, | would like to
highlight a busy vear for the CSR Commiree in
implementing cur 2020-2025 CSR Srategy,
which is set out :n full on pages 34 to 41
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MAG STRUCTURE AND GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

in ownership terms, the Group is structured as o joint venture between the ten local authorities of the Greater Manchester
region and IFM [nvestors [IFM) (as illustriated below]. Amongst those owners, The Council of the City of Manchester and
IFM enjoy, in equol shores, the voting rights in general meetings of Manchester Airports Holdings Limited {the holding
company of the Group). have ceriain matters reserved for their exclusive decision as shareholders, and make two
oppoiniments each o the Board.

9 MANCHESTER

GREATER MANCHESTER CITY COUNCIL
DISTRICY COUNCILS* (50% voting}

MANCHESTER AIRPORTS
HOLDINGS LIMITED

We undertock an externoally fociliated Board
Effectv Evalughan this year which

concluded that bath the Board and Committegs

1y positively with a strong
ingnce. The small number of
areas highlighted for turther enkancement hove
been acted on and will be embedded over the
next financial year

Finally, | would Iike 1o acknowledge the

contnbution fo MAG made by Kobert f'-J'opvfel'
tired 0s Nan-Executive Director and

Chair of the Audit Committes in June 2022

am plecsed to welcome Pou! Venables to

Board as Non-Ex ve Director ond Ch

the Audit Committee ond look forward 10 his

coninbunon over the coming year,

I hope that this report clearly shows the work

the Board has undertoken dunng the yeor and
how our governance and Board operations are
aligred vath the Group's sirategy

Sir Adrian Montague
Chair
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Corporate governance report

THE ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board is eecountable to aur shareholders
for developing, setting and delivering the
Group's stategic objectives, safeguarding its
reputation, managing its risks effectively, setting
and oveseeing s volues and standards. and
maximising its multiple stokeholder relafionships
[as set out further in the s 172 statement on
pages 74 1o 77. The direcrars satisty themselves
that the necessary resources and confrols are in
place to do this

The Board comprises of 12 directors'. The
names ol the directors who served on the Boord
during the year and their biographical detalls
are set oul an pages 38 o O

The direcios consider thot the Board is an
appropriate size for the requitements of the
business and thot there is a good balance

of Executive, independent and shareholder-
appointed Mon-Executive Directors on the
Board, with the shareholder representative
groups being equally represented. The Board is
provided with updates every month and meets
formally six times a year in addition, the Board
meefs on other occasions lo consider specific
business matters s and when thay crise

Certtain motters are reserved for decision by the
Board and other matters reserved for decision
by the voting shareholders.

CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The reles of the Chair and Group Chief
Executive are separcte and clearly defined.

The Chai 1s responsible for the leadership of
the Board. They orchastrate its work (in close
consultation wih the Group Chiel Executive)
and ploys o cimcol role in ensuring thet i
discharges its respansibiliies effectively ond
tha the diverse copobilibes ono experience of
individual Board members are used 10 the best
advantage of the Groug 1o execute s long-
rerm st-ctegy successfully

The Group Chisf Executive 1s responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group.

the developmen' and implemeniation of
stiategy, the delivery of Group financial and
opesolional objectives and ensuring that the
Group achieves its chmate change goals ond
commitments They are supported by their
Executive Commitiee which comprises: Deputy
Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
of Statt, General Counsel and Company
Secretory, Chief Informotion Officer, Chiet
Development Officer, Chief People Officer and
Chrel Executive of CAVU

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board's Non-Executive Ditectors bring
extensive knowledge. skills and experience
fiom both the private and public seciors, which
suppans the Executive teom m the developmen!
and execution of stotegy whilst ensuring tho:
plans and proposals are scrutinised effectvely
ond holds the Executive team to account in
meeting agreed goals and cbiectives

All Non-Executive Directors are appointed
subject to objective capabibiy criteria and the
oppaintment of every independent Non-
Executive Director including their remuneration)
15, in common with that of Executive Direciors,
subject to prior opprovat of the voting
shareholders. The MNon-Executive Directors
appainted by the voting sharehclders hold
office for so long as the shareholders wish them
o do so.

The remaining Mon-Executive Directors are
appointed initially for a term of shree years,
weh ony renewal thereof being a matter for the
vafirg shareholders {on the recommendanor
of the Board and *he Nemination Commitee).
Any decision on such renewal will bove regard
10 *he conribution made by the director in the
mmrediciely preceding pefiod ond relevant
corporate governance best practice af the tme
to ensure the ongoing efficacy of the Board

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Board considers there ta be four
independent Non-Executive Direciors, being
Vanda Murray, Catherine (Cath} Schefer,
Jonathan [Jon) Wragg and Paul Venables

Sir Adrian Montague also meets the
independence criferia set out in the Code, both
on his oppointment as Chair, and at all imes
since. Vanda Murray has served on the Board
for 10 years as of February 2023, and will retire
off the Board in March 2024 The shareholder
appointed Non-Executive Directars during the
yeor were Cllr Bev Croig and Cllr John Blundell
{represenialives for the District Councils of
Manchester} and Manaf Mehta and Christian
Seymour lrepresentatives for IFM GIF).

BOARD MEMBERS' BACKGROUND/
BIOGRAPHIES

further informatien on afl indwiduol Board
memrkers, including their background and
experience is available on the MAG coiporate
websile of www.magairports.com.

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

All direciors receive o comprehensive suite

of Executive reports and popers in advance

ol each Board meeting to support quality
deciswor\—mokmg vio an electronic board poper
syster which supports efficient dissemination of
information in o sofe ond secure manner, These
cover commercial. aperatonal and heaith

and sofety matters across the Group, including
updates kom the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer which appraise the
Group's key performance indicators, risks aro
opportunifies, both strategic and financial. In
the months when the Board does not meet

an abndged reporiing pack is provided. Tre
Board has established Audit, Corporate Social
Responsibility and Remuneration Commitiees
with: specific delegated authorities {more
imformation on the membership and remit of
each of these is provicded later in this report

on poges &7 1o 73} The Boord olso ensures
Through the work of the Nomination Commitiee,
that succession planning af Board, Exwcutive
and senior management levels reflects the
changing neeas of the Group s busingsses.
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DIRECTOR INDUCTIONS AND
ONGOING TRAINING

it1s important to the Board that Non-Executive
Direclors are in a position o influence and
constiuchvely challenge. The Group provides
a formal and tailared inducnon progromme
for new directors corprising @ combination
otinfraductory meetings, site visits, briefing
marerials, and the opportunity to meet the
shareholders, the extermnal ouditors and other
key stakeholders. The induction content includes
carporate strategy and structure: current and
recent Bogard topics; sectoral and compettive
context; key operations; fingncial performance
ond FUﬂd‘\ng; reputation and brard; ond
stakeholder management.

The Group seeks lo provide the necessary
resources to enable directors to remain
abreast of developments relevant 1o the
Group's business, operation and their own
responsibilities. In additon the directors
may toke independent advice in relation to
their duties at the Compony's expense,

it appropricte

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board understands the importance of
Principle Two of the Wates Principles for regulor
evoluation of the Board to help the directors

to contribute elfectively and highlight the
strengths and weaknesses of the Board 0s a
whole. As part of this evaluation, Independent
Audit imited [1AL] was asked to facllitate o
self-evaluotion of the Board and Commitees

of the Group, the first time Ihat assessments

ol this nature have been carred out since the
begnning of the pandemic. Questionnarres lor
the Board and Commitiees were prepored by
IALin discussion with the General Counsel &
Compeny Secretary, Directors did not complete
questionnaires for committees which they do rot
rautinely attend

STRATEGIC REPORY

GOVERNANCE

Overall, the Board feels positively about

how it operales on o bosis of tust, openness
and inclusivity, with paniculor stengih on the
Covid- 19 response and business plenning
and prieritisotion. The Commisees similarly feef
very positively about how they operate. Only
o few areas ore highlighted to be considered
lor improvement, all of which have been
implemenied and will be embedded over the
course of the year.

5172 COMPANIES ACT 2006

The Board takes decisions with o long-term
perspective and the annual business planning
cycle assisis in focusing on the impact of
decisions on the long-term strategy.

The Company Secretary plays an important
role in advising the Board on the 172
requirements by sefting out the substance of
those recuirements of oppropiiote times in arder
1o ensure meoningful discussion with regards to:

* considering the likely conseguences of any
decision in the leng term;

*  considering the interests of MAG
employees:

+ lostenng ond developing MAG business
relahonships with supphers, customers and
others;

* assessing the impoct of the operchon on
the community and the envirenment {os
further explored on poges 76 16 77 in the
CSR Report):

= ossisting MAG in maintaining o reputahon
tor high standards of business conduct; and

* ocling fairly os between members of MAG.

The seporate Section 172 section on pages
7410 77 llustrates how the Boord ond
management have taken account of these
matters in decision-making throughout the
year. The impact of MAG's operations on the
cammunity ond environment (including climate
change) in particular is oddressed in detall in
the Strategic Report on poges 74 o 77

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WATES PRINCIPLES

MAG seeks to adhere 1o the Woles Principles
al all fimes with regord 1o the struciure ond
effecliveness of its internal govemance
arrangements and the size and composition of
the Board.

In pariicular Principle Two of the Woaotes
Principles (Board Composition} advises
"Etective board composiion requires an
elfective chair and a balance of skills
backgrounds, experience and knowledge, with
individual directors having sufficient capacity
ta make o valuable contribution. The size of

a boord should be guided by the scale and
complexty of the company.” MAG considers
that the structure ouflined above and the
individuals appeinted 1o the Board odhere to
the guidance set oul in the Wates Principles
{and n padicular Principle Twol with regard to
the balance and diversity, size and structure,
and etlectiveness of the Board.

Furthermare, in adherence to Principle 3
{Director Responsibiliies) of the Wates
Punciples, MAG considers that, through the
arrangemei's set out above, the Board and
individual directors have a clear understanding
of their accountability and responsibiliies end
that the corporote governance orrangements
and procedures support effective decision-
making and independent challenge

' Fense note thal Fou Venables was appomted in
Febriary 2022 05 Audn Comrittes Charr designate
and asysred the role ond respanuibilres o the ALd
Comrmirtee Char when Poben NMopeer retred af the end
ol lore 2022
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Nomination Committee report

The Committee held four meetings this yeor

and spent a lorge port of its ime considering
the succession plans for the Group CEQ. The
succession plans were a regulor agendo item
over the year and the Committee was able to
revievy the status of the structured development
programme in place for Ken O'Toole 1o
vlimately assess his capability 1o succeed into
the role of Group CEQO The Committee also
considered *he suitability of Charlie Carnish
succeeding into the role of Group Chair upon
my refirement Consideration was given 1o the
scope and remit of both oles, the desire for
confinuily during an important time i1 our copital
programmes and cofporote governahce
principles. { am very pleased o report that

the Commitiee felt oble 1o recommend 1o the
shareholders that Ken O Toole succeed inlo the
role of Group CEQ ond that Charlie succeed
into fhe wle of Group Chair effective from

1 Qctober 2023

The Comminee maniamed guersioht of the
development plans of senior Executives and
suCCEssion optons on crtical posts whick hos
been rey to suppor the cornnuing recovery
and ranstormation of the business 1t is vital that
the business has the right individuals in pioce at
aur Airports and, dunng the year. the Committee
oversaw the appontment of Chris Woodroole
{MD of Manchester). Gareth Powell {MD of
Stansted) alongside Steve Griffiths {MD of
East Miclonds).

A key prierity for the Committee wos o build
bench stength and diversity of the Senior

“Sucession planning and talent were the key

leadership teams ocross the business and

ihe Commiree considered other critical
appoinments in operational and commercial
roles at the Airpons (o mix of internal
promotions and external appoiniments|,
Separately the Committee discussed the
talent and succession pipelings for CAYU and
endorsed the appoiniments of commercial
directors to support the ambttions for grovith
locking forword, the Committee’s focus

on talent and succession plonning will
continue, ensuring that effective planning and
deveiopment Is in place for Executive ond
senior management teams fo promote the
success of the Company

The Committee has begun the process o
replacing Vonda Murroy who is due 1o retire
as Non-Executive Director and Remunerarion
Chair in March 2024 In our discussions,

the Commiree agreed the relevant experise
and experierce required for this role Witk
the recrutment process in its finol stages. the
Commitiee expecis to be able 1o ecommend
an appoiniment to the sharehoiders shorly

The Commitiee closely foliows ard supperts
the efforts of *he CSR Commities and “he
fanagement ‘ecm to sfrengrhen the presence
OF wWamen oCross The Grodp Ond remans
committed to promoting equity, diversity and
inclusion in ling with the Board approved ED&I
Strategy. This will continue e form part of the
Committee review of succession and talent in
F¥23. indeed the Committee wos updated

on the seaich Yor @ permanent Chief Pecple

areas of focus for the Committee this year.”

Officer a female candidale due to siart in
September 2023

The Nomination Committee plays on important
role tn ensuring that the stiucture, size and
composiion of the Board are appropriale.
montoring the bolance of skills, knowledge,
expenence and diversity on the Boord, leading
the pracess for poiennial appointments 1o the
Boord ond overseeing succession planning in
respect of the directors (other than shareholder
appointed directors) and senior Executives 1n
dischaiging its obhgatiens. the Committee will
take soundings from the Chief Executive Officer
and seek guidance fom other Executives

and outside advisers and consulionts, as
oppropriate.

| om satisfied that the Nomination Committee
et its responsibitvies this year.

Sir Adrian Montague CBE
Chair of the Nomination Committee
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CSR Committee report

"As Chair of the CSR Committee, | am
proud of the way MAG is committed to
operating a responsible, forward-looking
business and over the last year | have
overseen another detailed programme of
work to deliver the Group's CSR Strategy —
"Working together for a brighter future.”

The CSR Committee met four fimes during the year. All members, which comprise my fellow Non-Executive
Directors, Cath Schefer and Jon Wregg, attended all of those meetings. The meeting is also attended by the
Non-Executive Chair, Managing Directors of each airporn, the Chief of Staff, Group CSR and Airspace Change
Director, plus other senior Executives and external speakers, as necessary.

The Commitiee is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the Group's CSR Sirategy, os well as offering advice
where necessary and ensuring that the Strategy is effectively implemented. In addition to receiving regular reports
on performance, this year the matters considered by the Committee included:
* The creation of five pledges as part of the let Zero Charter, 1o support the Government's Strategy for the UK
aviotion indusry to reach net zero by 2050

» The parinership between Manchester Airport and HyNet pariners - Cadent ond Progressive Energy — to become
the first in the UK 1o secure a direct supply of hydrogen fuel

* The plans tor a Solar Farm of Llondon Stansted Airport
* Pragress on the Airspace Modernisation programme which currenty makes MAG the operator of the only two
lorge airports to have passed Stage 2 of the CAA's CAP1616 process
* The publication of @ matericlity & stakeholder trust study

* The opproval of MAG's Equity, Diversity and Inclusion {ED&!} Strategy in September, after which the
Commities welcomed representatives from the Group's Colleague Resource Groups who presented their
work about improving ED&I across all areas of the business

* Marking significant milestanes at our MAG Connect Aerozones — including the first anniversary of the facility ot
Manchester Aitpont, marking 30,000 visitors to East Midlands and 20,000 1o Llondon Stansted

* Developing the Youth Form pilot scheme to ensure MAG is listening to the more diverse range of focal voices

* Celebrofing the work of our Community Trust Funds and their eco garden competitions across the Group

Maore information about the Group’s commitment fo corporate responsibility can be found on pages 34 to 41and
pages 88 to 97

Vanda Murray OBE
Chair of the CSR Committee
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WHAT ARE OUR REWARD
PRINCIPLES AND HOW DO THESE
LINK TO MAG’S STRATEGY?

The Commitiee considers the Group's key strotegic
priotiies when seffing remuneration and ensures
thot all remunerstion packages are inked to the
tong-term sustainable financiol pedormance of
the Group. The Committee ensures that incentive
suciures diive performance that will enhiance
the expenence of our customers. sharehalders
and our calleagues. The Committee's approach
is 1o ensure a significant propoertion of pay for
Executves is finked 1o the pedormance of the
Group rather than being fixed in base pay. For
the CEQ, 25% of compensation s fixed, with
75% varioble and based or she achievement of
tinoncial metrics, persenal pedormarce and the
achievemerr of key pricsines, All Executives have
not tess than 60% of their remuneration Iinked 1o
performance metrics each yeor [the proportion
vanes dependent on role).

grtion Committee report

"l am pleased to set out the
Remuneration Report for the year

ended 31 March 2023. This sets out

details of our remuneration policy and
principles alongside key activities
undertaken in the year.”

The Short-Term Incentive Plan {STIP} is balanced
between key financiol performonce meosures
[60%) and the achievemen: of persorct ohjectives
{40%). Personal objectives ore specific to eoch
Executive ano are cligned to the ochievement of
specific in year actions and the achievement of
our longer ferm priarities.

The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} is linked to the
achievement of both finoncial measures and key
priorites for MAG

Tae Commitee review and se” torgers each year
details of which are set out below.

This approach of o baske® of key measures each
year ensures an approoch which 1s locused on the
long-term heath of the Group cs wel as in year
pedormance.

Outcomes tor both the STIP and LTIP are
cetermined based on threshold, 1argets and
then stretch meoswres Full vestng con only ocewr
where all siretch torgess are ackieved across

oll measures

Borh schemes ore discrebonary, and in
determining final awards the Committee
considers the overall performonce of the Group "
determining final cutcomes for participants.

To achieve kurther alignment with the fong term
performance of the Group, a new plon has been
infroduced, the Executive nvestment Plan {EIF},
which 1s desigred 1o ensure that Executives are
focused on sustainable growth in sharehoider
value through the retertion of o proporion of their
vested TP award each year Retgined mones
attract g reruer anly based or the perdormance of
the Group, and such monies are gererally orly
avalable one yeor after cessation of employmen

As one of the lorgest employers in the region,
MAG is commited 1o being 0 good corporate
citzen ana deirg the nght thing far our colieagues
ond local commundies and therefere supparts the
Corparaie Social Responsbilty (CSR) Commitee
in arens such os faimess gender poy and diversity
ond inclusion. We cre curen'y seeking ond
should shorily receve occreditorion os o Real
Lving Wage [RIW) empioyer
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The Committee is guided by the following

principles:

ctiact and remin talent - oliow the
Group to altfract, motivate ond refain
senior Executives of high calibre who
are capable of delivering the Group's
sireiching objectives;

perlormance-driven - Iink rewards 1o both
individual and corperate perlormance.
responsibility and contrbution aver both
the short and long term;

market aligned - position the Group
compelitvely iIn the principol markets in
which it compeles for ialent (both private
and lised companies);

feit — foirly designed and epplied with
considetaton to markel positioning, internal
relotivity and individugl cantribulion,

in the context of pay within the wider
workforce: and

simple - rewords are simple and
understandable with o clear [ink between
per[ormonce expectations, outcomes
and rewards.

STRATEGIC REPORT

WHAT WERE THE COMMITTEE'S
RESPONSIBILITIES AND KEY
ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN IN FY23?

At the end of FY22, the exceptional steps taken
during the Covid- 19 pandemic in relotion to
poy ceased, and tor FY23 our pay policies and
practice returned o normal.

During the year, in addition to the regular duties
the Commitige performs year-on-year, the
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE,
REMIT AND ATTENDANCE AT
MEETINGS

The Commitiee’s members during the year were
Vanda Murray {Chatr}, Christian Seymour,
Cath Schefer ond Bev Croig {oll Non-
Executive Dirgctors, with Christian Seymeour
ond Bev Craig being shaoreholder-appginted)
The Committee met four imes dunng the
financial year.

Committee undetuok Ihe foflowing duties:

determined that, in line with both market
proctice and overall offordability
consiraints, the Executive pay award be
determined at a lower level than either
leaders or colleogues;

commissioned market reviews from

FIT Remuneration Consultants of both
Mon-Executive and Executive pay dunng
the period to ensure that the Commitiee

had independent external advice and
assurance thot the remuneration packages
offered by MAG continued to be
oppropsiote ond matket compentive;

reviewed the cutcome for the Shoit-Term
Incentive Plan for FY22 and determined
individual Executive entiflements based on
both Group and personal performance;

reviewed and agreed the construct
for the FY23 Shoert and Long-Term

Incentive awards;

reviewed the canstroct of incentive
arrangements in CAYU to ensure
these meet the guiding principles on
remunesalion sel out above; and

to ensure Executive pay 1s oligned
with MAG s long-term strotegic
goals, mplemented a new
Execufive lnvesrment Plan o
ensure executive pay is aligned
with MAG s long-term

strotegic goals.
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Remuneration Committee report continued ‘

HOW DO WE REWARD OUR EXECUTIVES AND HOW DOES THIS LINK TO THE GROUP’S STRATEGY?

Reward element and purpase in supporting the
Group's strategy

Operation of reward element for Executive Diractors and senior Execulives .

Basic Salary

Support the recruitment and retention of Executive
Directors ond other senior Executives, recognising
the size and scope of the role and the wndividual's
skills and expenence

The basic salaries of Executive Directars ond senior Executives ore reviewad onnually ond set bosed on.
+ parsonal performance,

v Group size and performarice

* respansibility lovels,

+ obiordobility, and

+ competilive morke! praciice against o comparator group of smilar sized organisations.

Indwviduats who are recruited or promeried 1o the Booid may, an accasion, have ther salanes set below the

targeted policy level until they become established in their iole In such cases subsequent increases in salary may
be higher until the targer posihomng is ochieved

In line with off employees o poy award was made dunng the vear, but ot a lowes percentage than for all
ather ernployees

sTIP

Ensures a moiket-compeirive remuneration pockoge
Links total remuneranon lo achievement of the
Group s strotegy against measurable performance
critena i the short term. both diiving indiidual
pertformance and creating shareholder volue

Short Term Incentive awards for FY23 were deployed during the year These awards vest subject o the
achievemert of key performance measures as 1o 0% [EBITDA and cosh). ond personal objectives [40%)

In addition to the pertormance targets. the Commitiee retains the discretion 1o deler or reduce STIP awards
in port o in full for this yeas, bosed on an overall assessment of both Group ond personol performonce.,

In Ine with best prachee. o clowback provision is included in the STIP This provision enables the Group 1o
reduce awards or reclaim payments made, in the event of a material missiatement or errer in the financial
results, where the Group hos made ar eror in calculating the omount of oward, or where there has been
gross misconduct on the pari of the partipant.

LTIF

Desngred 1o incentivise paricipants iowards

sustoinable long-lemn growth and shareholder value.

whilst acting as an eftectve retention mechamsm

TP awards are subject to the achieverment af a basket of targets.

Details of conditions for cuntent awards are set out below:

LTIP vesting in FY23 end FY24

Financial measutes are EBITDA, eredit rating/financing; recurring efficiencies and shareholder payments
As an exaomple, on element of the vesting of LTIP this year was determined thiough the delivery of recuring
efficiencies of over £60m clongside the achievement of in year EBITDA performance

Key priorties arg cuslomer service irdex fargets

LTIP vesting in FY25

Fimancial meascres are shareholder terurns, EBITDA operating margin, ard return on capital employed
Key priorhes are ED&I torgets on gender age and ethricity, custormer service index and markef shore

Tne Commitice reserves the discrefion to reduce awards dowm (o mil whare ¥ considers underlying
performance is not at o salisfoctory level dunng the perdarmance pericd
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Reward element and purpose in supporting the
Group's strategy

STRATEGIC REPORT
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Operation of reword element for Execulive Directors and senior Executives

EIP

Designed to ersure thot bxecutives are focused on
sustainable growth in shorebolder value through
the retention of a propottion of their [TIP awaord, the
value of which is hnked to the long-term financial
perfarmance of the Group.

The EIP was implemented during FY23 and applies to G LTIF awards that vest in respect of FYZ23 onwards.
The investment requirements for Execulives are as followes:

Executive Directors required to invest 50% of each LTIP award uniil o threshold of 300% of solary 1s metin
terms of invested menies: and
Other Execuotives requited jo invest 30% of each LTIP award untl a threshoid of 200% of salory 1s met.

Such monies cannot be accessed until, in genaral, one year alter cessation of employmert.
The Remuneration Committee has discretion to consider requests 1o both increase or decrease invesiment

umounts, and to increase the holding period for Executives greoter than ore year post cessation of
employment,

Pension

The penasion amangements comprise part of a
competiive remureraton package and fociltote
long-ferm refirement savings for Executive Directors
ond serior Executives,

The Company provides pension benefits 1o eligible employees through legacy defined benefit
arrangements or the MAG Pension Savings Plan, which s a defined contribution [DC) arrangement.
The DC arrangement is available for newly eligible employees ond provides money purchase pension
benefis.

Executive Directors and senior Execulives ore enlitled to receive a salary supplement in leu of pension
contributions,

Additional benefits

Provide a market compettive benefits package
that s consistent with Group values and supports
Executives o carry our their duties effectively.

Other benefits include a car cash dllowance, or an equivalent car, in addifion to permanent healih
insuronce, private heclth insurance, crtical illness caver and death-in-service life cover.

Directors’ remuneration is set out in note & 1o the financial sialements.

HOW DOES THE COMMITTEE GIVE
CONSIDERATION TO THE WIDER
EMPLOYEE WORKFORCE?

The Committee understands the imporiance of
gwing consideration to the wider employee
worklorce when making remoreration
decisions, in terms of fairness, gender poy,
ond diversity and inclusion. The Remuneration
Commitee works closely with the Corporete
Social Responsibility (CSR} Committee o
understand the positive work being done in
this aren ond the stakeholder engagement
undertaken os part of the CSR agenda.

More information about the Group's commitment
Io gender pay and diversity and inclusion con be
lound in the Sustainability section of the report on
poge 36 Examples of the intatives MAG has
implemenied are-

*  fuablishment and cpetation of several
Colleogue Resource Groups, including he
MAG Women's Network, Fly with Pride,
Roce & Ethnicity, the Carer's Network and
Mens's Mental Health:

« launch of the ED&I forum, chaired by
the Deputy CEC, ond lounch of diversity
training modules;

*  We conlinue to offer a flexible benefits
system that allows employees 1o choose
the benefils most appropriate for their
circumstances;

*  We have produced o Gender Poy Report as
set out in the Gender Pay Regulations: and

+  Commitment lo seek accreditation as a
Real Living Wage employer,

Vanda Murray OBE
Chair
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Audit Committee report

| assumed the tole of Audit Commitee Chair

from 1st July 2022 following the retrement of
Robert Napier. | am pleosed io present the
Audit Commitee's report lor the year ended
318t Morch 2023 on behall of all members. As
ot 31st Moreh 2023 the Cormittee comprised
of myself Vanda Murray. Jon Wiagg. Clir John
Blundell and Manoj Mehta [all Non-Executive
Directors, with Maonoj Mehta ond John Blundell
being sharehalder appointed)

The Audit Commuttee is responsible primenly

for monitoring the Group's financial statements,
the adequacy and effectveness of its internal
controk systems (including financial controls), the
operation of I's risk management framewarks and
whistleblowing procedures ond for reviewing the
appontmen. independence perfformonce ond
cost elfectiveness of the Group's external quditar

During the year the Commites,

*  reviewed the Intenm and Annual Report
ond Accounts including significant
jpdgements going concern, impairmen:
considerations and Mornagement
Representation Leter,

» reviewed and approved the Groups
Tax Strategy;

* reviewed and approved compliance with
the Group’s Treasury Policy and financiai
risk limits

“The handover from KPMG to EY as Group

Auditors in FY23 has gone very smoothly.”

monitered the Group's cyber security
activity and key controls, including
developments in the exiemal threat
envirorment ond progress required by
the Network and information System
Regulatians [N1S);

considered the impoct of changes to the
accounting and financicl reparting regimes
opplicoble 5o the Group:

considerea ond approved the results of an
independent Externcl Gualtty Assessment
of MAG s Risk and Internal Audit huncticns,

reviewed the Group's intenal control and
risk maragement lamewark, ncluding. @
bignnuat review of principal risks, regular
updates or the siaius and completeness

of MAG's carporate risk profile and
associoted conirol measures ond honzon
scanning regarding new and emerging risk
CONSIQeTaiGns;

reviewed the results of tisk-bosed ond
cychcal internal oudn werk ana challerged
management in relation 1o key findings and
implementation of recommendations
considered internal audit skil's and
resources and satished iselfl that these are
adequate 1o meet the needs of *he business
or.d will be supplemened with co-sourced
independer specialist support as and

when necessary;

* ossessed the adequacy ond bosis
of renewa! of the Gioup's insurance
provisionreviewed alerroive perlaimonce

measures and adivsied items;

*  evoluoted external audit achvity,
5pecfﬂcqﬂy in relation io the l(ey risks
{impairment of non-financial assels, going
concem ond valuahon of investment
propertyl and key judgemental oreas
{pensions and 1ax); and

«  evalucted the impact of the final phase of
the Mornchester Tionsformetion Pragromme
ond subsequent closure of Terminal 1:

* inthe course of satistying itself as 16 the
independence and objectvity of the
external auditor, onalysed the level of fees
poid to the external ouditor for audit and
ron-cudit work, ang the performance of
the external guditor

The Audr Committee met thiee tmes during FY23
os port of its reguloy cycle with meetings sakirg
ploce in June 2022, November 2022 anc
March 2023 Al members attended all meetings
vaith the exception of Vonda Murrgy who sen
cpologies for the November 2022 meetng.
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Following a robust evaluation process in FY22,
Ernst & Young LLP were appointed as statutory
auditor for o five year period commencing from
FY23. Mindset and culiure were all key factors
used in determining the appoiniment of MAG s
external auditors and these faciors, olongside
judgement, colloboration and quality control,
are all used on an ongoing basis to assess the
quality of service provided

The independence and objectivity of the
externol quditer are sefeguarded by o number
of contiol measures including:

*  limiting the noture ond extent of non-oudit

services,

+  the rotation of the lead audit partner every
five years;

* monitoring changes in legislation and
best practice guidance related to oudior
independence and objectivity:

* the exiernal cuditor's own internal
salequarding processes ond procedures,
and

* independent reporting fines from the
external auditor to the Chair of the Audit
Committee, along with regular in-person
sessions wilh the full Audit Committee.

STRATEGIC RFPORT

GOVERNANCE

The external auditor, the Chiel Executive, the
Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Audit
Officer all routinely attend the Commitiee’s
meetings. The external cuditor and the Chief
Audit Officer each have the opportunity

to meet members of the Committee and /

or the Commitee's Chair, without Executive
management present.

In the assessment of the draft FY23 Annua! Report
and Financial Stotements. there was o continued
robust focus upon the evidence supporting the
ability of the Compeny to release ils financial
staterments on a going concem bosis. the viabilty
of the Company and ensuring that the Annual
Report was fair, balanced and understandable.

The direciors consider that the Annuol Report
and Financial Statements ioker as o whole is foir,
balanced and undersiandable. and provides
the inforration necessary for shareholders 1o
assess the Comparny,/Group's position ond
pedormance, busingss model ond strategy.

The Board is satisfied that, through the range

cf skills ond business expenence possessed by
each member of the Audit Committee, throughout
this financial vear, the Audit Committee, os a
whole, had the competence relevant to the
sectors in which the Group operates.

Paul Venables
Chair - 1 July 2022 onwards

Robert Napier CBEDL FRCS {Hen)

Chair - until 30 June 2022
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S172 report

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties

in accordance with $172(1) Companies

Act 2006

Section 172{1] of the Comparies Act 2006 requires directars fo promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its stakeholders and io achieve

the Company's purpose. The Board of Directors are awore of the'r responsibiliies ond consider they have octed in occordance wih their statutory duties

This section sets out how they have discharged this obligation.

The Company's key stakeholders, and our interachion with them, aie summarised below

Shareholders Our shareholders provide the equity finance
necessary lo suppor! the operotion and future

' development of the business.

Shareholders also uppoint Non-Executive
Directors who wre crilicol to overafl governance
and moke a valuable contribuhon to the
wortking of the Board and developing the
Company's strategy.

Colleagues are our greatest asset They make

our sirateqy a reality and deliver services 1o our
' customers. Their engagement, energy and ideos
are critical 1o the confinued innovaken and

improvement of the services we offer

Colleagues

Fassengers provide much of our income and are

Qur shareholders have invested
in the long-term success of MAG
In return they seek prediciable
and sustginable retums on

their investment.

Qur shareholders require ligh
standords of governance,
responsible business practices
and transparent disclosure of
information. This aliows them to
moke informed decisions ond 1o
meet their cwn disclosure and
reporing requirements.

Que colleagues need o workplace
that is sate. inclusive ond offers
them opportunities 1o develop their
carees They expect to be realed
equitably and 1o be rewarded
appropnatefy for their corfiibufion to
the success of the Company

Calleagues want 1o be o pon of the
decisions that alect them ond 1o be
supporied by effective systems of
internal communication,

Qur passengers want our girports

to provide a sale, secure, clean

and welcoming environment, and to
experience an efficient service. Our
customers expect us fo make our
services avalable 1o all by providing
an accessible environment

Shareholders are directly represented on

the Board ond oversee the appomntment of
MNen-Executive Direciors They receive regular
repots from the management team on all
aspects of the business, Shareholders receive
regular repons from Board sub-committees,
ncluding the CSR Commities, which considers
responsible business practices, including
ervironmental and community impocts. health,
satety and wellbeing, modern slavery as well
as equity, diversity and inclusion

The Board receives regular reports on

safely as a first priority and scrutinises satety
pedomance. The CSR Cornmitiee, which is
attended by the Chief People Officer, provides
an opporiunity for workplocs issues including
fair pay equity. diversity and inclusion, to

be discussed.

Tre Board receives regular reports on
passenger feedbock including aur use of the
Net Promaler Score The Boord's consideration
of possenger expenence includes reguiar
reports on the service provided to possengers
whao require additional support 1o access

OUr services.

Passengers
the foundation for our business. It is impenan
that working with our aifine partners we
provide an appropriate ronge of services to
meet their ransport needs.

Communities Many of our calleogues and customers

and the ore drgwn o loco, coTmunies, ond the

environment economic imped of our operaions s gredtest i

the ‘egions we seive.

. Mary of the environmenta ¢ onsequences of
our operations i~cluding noise congestion
and tocal air quality hove greotest impact on
communities closest to our arpors, though
sorme of the impacts of our operatons. irciudirg
chmate change have globa' implicancns,

1t vital that e understand the onontes of
communites ond ensure our aperafions take
place withir acceptable envirormental [mirs By
do'ng sa we earr oul social licence 1o operote
ana 9(0‘.":

iocal communities wan! to share the
economic success of our arpons
They expect us to toke ait reasonable
stegs to reduce local impacts
including noise and emissions

Communities are concerned by
climate change and expect us to
prograssively reduce the emissions
of cur dirports and work with aidines
to ersure that together we ploy a full
part in delvenng the Govemnment's
economy-wide target lo reach net
zero emissions by 2050

Tre Board estobished the CSR Conmitiee
‘@ allow extersve discussion of these issues
Tre Board regularly corsiders emvronmertal
mpocts including dimate risks and considers
the vews of local eommunines through sa
‘ndependenty foclitated materiaiity survey
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Our costomers, parfners and
supphers want to work with us 1o
maximise mutual benefi

They require us to adopt high
slondards of governance,
responsible business procrices
and tansparent disclosure of
information. This olloves them 1o
maoke informed decisions and 1o
meet their own disclosure and
reperting requirements.

YWe work colloboratively, including helding
one-to-one key account management meetings
with all our business partners - including
airlires, refailers, tenants ond avidlion service
parmers Qur Arport Consuliotive Committees
biing these customer groups together

with busiress, passenger and commy nity
representatives, whilst our Airport Qperator
Committees bring airlines togethe 1o consider
operatonal practices and management
policies. Significont issues are diawn to the
attention of the Board and associated risks are
captured in our nisk register.

Our approach to procuremenl 1s accredited

1o the Corporate Cerlification Standord of the
Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply.
This incorporates practices to make responstble
procurement decisions whick freat suppliers
fairly, mitigale the risk of modern slavery, and
ensure prompl payment. The Board receswves
reqular teparts on the management of the risks
ot moderr slavery.

OVERYIEW STRATEGIC REPORT
oL " Lo
Customers, We defiver our services with the support of ous
patiners ond aicline customers. business parners and supplicis
suppliers ocross our enlire vatue chain Having effective
end respectful relotionships with them supports
the long-term success of owr businesses ard
maximises mutual benefit.
It1s impsoriant thal thase that we work with
adopt responsib!e ond sustainoble practices,
to minimise the risk 1o our operations
and reputation
Industry, Our opergtions are highly regulated. The policy
"99'f|°'°"y and regulatory famework determines how we
bodies, operate including ensuring that we operate
government safely and scourely, that competibon is far and
ond that our environmentel impac's remain within
government ) .
agencies occeptable mis,

Govemnment and industry regulators

seek to work closely wath industry
porners and e gssociations 1o

ensure that the policy and regulatory

framework is informed by, and
tokes full account of refevant

issues. Regulators rely on clear and

transposent disclosures.

The Board receives iegular vpdates on
government policy and oversees our work 1o
engoge with govemnment, government agencies
and regufcﬁo:y bodies to help formulote and
implement their pelicies Reporiing to the Board
highlights reguiatory risk ond any insiances of
non-compliance.
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S172 report confinued

HAVING REGARD TO THE LIKELY
CONSEQUENCES OF DECISIONS IN
THE LONG YERM

As set out on page 80, the Boord oversees

a nsk manogement process, including a
dedicated Audit Committee that oversees the
monogement ond implementotion of the risk
framework. The regulor review and assessrrent
of nsk that is shared with the Board protects
the fong-ierm interests of MAG. As reparied
on page 88, in recent years greater emphasis
hos been given 1o assessing the nsks posed by
climote change and MAG meets the prowsions
of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosutes. This year key risks identified
included the nsk of a safety ond/or security
incident; the mitigation of and adaptation 1o
climate change; the recruitment and retention
ot wolerted people, the security of dote ond
information ond macia-ecanamic unceriginty

Whifst it has been necessary in some insiances
ta rephase mvesiment plons as the business has
recovered from the pandemic, the Board hos
continved to suppon the measures necessary
1o secure the long-term growrh of the business,
including completing the £1.3bn tronsformation
of Manchester Airport.

The Board has also supported invesiment
in a Fulure Aispace Programme, o ensure
that auspace amangements con support the
objective 10 make best use of the airports’
physical intrastructure,

HAVING REGARD TO THE INTERESTS
OF THE COMPANY'S EMPLOYEES

This has been another demanding year for our
colleagues, os the business recovered from the
pandemic ond sought lo accommodate pent
up demand for flying, parficularly over the peak
Summer period. The lorge-scole recitment
necessary to respond 1o tncreased demand
proved challenging, but the business 1 now fuily
resourced. The Board oversaw this pracess and
recelved regulor progress reports throughout.

Through the CSR Committee, the Boaord hos
continued lo receive regular reports on a

wide range of workplace issues, including
gender pay gop. equity, diversty ond inclusion
ond maodern slavery This yeor the Boord
opproved a new Work Chorter moking clear
the commitment 1o and suppor availoble to
colleagues Satey remains a critical pronity for
the Board and safety performance is closely
and regularly scnaiinised.

HAVING REGARD TO THE NEED TO
FOSTERTHE COMPANY’S BUSINESS
RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHERS

We have mature and extensive cansubtgnon
practices. Our regular consultation forums
heve been mointoined ond sirengthensd. Our
aipart cansultotive commitees bring together
customers, arport users, government and
community gioups At an ope(owionc[ and
commercial level, haison groups and reguior
one-to-one occount management meehngs
ensure limely exchonge of information, This
enables us to understand the pricrites of these
impoiant stakeholders ond 1o ensure we take
account of their views in decision making. This
year we were oble o reinsiate our "Meet the
Buyer' programme af Stansted and to extend
the progromme to Manchester. This has ensured
that economic benefits of our operation and
growth are increasingly shored with smaller
local businesses

We continue 1o regulatly review our ossessment
of materiality ond this year we undenocok o
sutvey focusing on local stakeholders, This
teview has helped to buld our undersionding
ond inform our decision making

The Bourd recewes regulor reports on oll
aspects of the business, including o specific
repor on the findings of the materiality review.

HAVING REGARD TO THE IMPACT
OF THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONS
ONTHECOMMUNITY AND THE
ENVIRONMENT

The Company continues to meiniain certfication
to the environmenta! management systems
stondara i5O 14001 and 1o paricipate in the
GRESB bencnmark. Our five star’ rating in this
global ESG framework waos retained this yvear,
Through the CSR Committee the Boa:d receives
regular repors on environmento! performance
considering g wide range of performance
indicotars, including legisiotive complince. The
Boord continues Yo oversee the implemeniation
of the CSR Stategy end the deraled supporming
progromme of work to delver the commiiments
thot i cordains,



OVERVIEW Y i FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. i : GOVERNANCE

MAG conlinues to play a prominent role in
decarbonising aviation, through membership
ol the Government's Jet Zeto Council and the
industry coalifion Sustainable Avionon. This year
the Baard received several reparts on the issue
of climate chonge, considering the developing
paliey knmewnrk, inclnding the Government's
let Zeso Stiategy and the measures we hove
taken to support its implementation, and
our progiess towards achieving net zero
operations The enhancements 1o our reparting
of climate nsks. consistent with the Tosk Force
on Climote-Reloted Financiol Disclosures, were
also discussed by *he Board.

HAVING REGARD TO THE
DESIRABILITY OF THE COMPANY
MAINTAINING A REPUTATION
FOR HIGH STANDARPS OF
BUSINESS CONDUCT

The business confinues to meet the requirements
ot the Globat Reporting Initiative’s fully
disclosed standard, including reparting ngaing!
the relevant sector supplement. The Board
believes thor full and fronsparent disclosure 15
importanl fo build and mainiain the confidence
of stakeholders. MAG continues 1o maintain
procedures to minimise the risk of bribery and
comuption and to provide all colleagues with
an anerymous seivice 1o repor? any instances
of bullying or intrridation. This vear off senior
leaders received training on competition law, 1o
ensure they remain oware of therr ebligations.

The Boord takes on active intesest in issues that
right impact MAG's reputation

HAVING REGARD TO THE NEED TO
ACTFAIRLY AS BETWEEN MEMBERS
OF THE COMPANY

MAG is owned jointly by the ten councils
of Greater Manchester and {FM Investors,
Shareholders appoint representatives to the
Board in equal number ond oversee the
appointment of Non-Executive Directors 1o
ensure good governance. The Board meets
regularly. providing full repors on oil relevan:
aspects and the Company seeks, o all times
to ensure 1hat appropricte information is made
available 1o olf shoreholders in a timely ond

consistent way.
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The directors are responsible for the Group’s system
of internal control, which aims to safeguard assets
and shareholders’ investment, and seeks to ensure
that proper accounting records are maintained, that
statutory and regulatory requirements are met, and
that the Group’s business is operated economically,
effectively and efficiently.

Itis acknowledged that any system of intermal +  preparotion, and Board opprovat, of

contol is most likely to monoge rather revised financial forecasts during the
than eliminate risk, and can provide only year - monitoring financial performance
reasanable but not absolute assurance agoinst on o menthly basis agains' budger, ond
the benchmarking of key performonce

indicators. with remediol achon being

malerial missiatement or loss

The Group's system ol inferna! control has been token where appropriate

in place throughout the yeor and up o the date + monitaring ornus! perormence ogoinst

of this Annucl Report. The key elements of the business plans:

internol control environment, which includes L

. ) *  estoblished procedures for planning

the process for preparing the corsclidated _ }
) approving and moniaring capital

financial statements, are: ” = )

projects, together with post project

investment appraisal;
*  clearly defined organisaliona! shuclures, i

schemes of delegaton and lines of * regulor review by the Group's Finonce

responsibility, funcnon of each business unit including a

. . . reconciliotion to the manggemert accounts
* the involvemen! of qualified, professional )
on a segmental basis
employees with on appropnate ievel of

experierce (both in the Group's finance * the review by the Audit Commitiee ond

funchon relevant 2nd and dre Line the Board of the drah consolidated

assurance funchions and throughcut the finoncial statements, and receipt of and

business)’ consideration by the Audit Comminee
of reports from mancgement and the
* regulor meetings of the Board and the P _ 9 ) )
: . ) external auditor, or significant judgements
Chiet Executive s Executive Committee: ]
and oher perinent maners relanng to

*  quanetly Airport 1T and CAVU Risk ard
Audit Boords meefings chaved by the

those statements;

. ¢ the oclivites of the Group Risk Team ond
relevant MD or Executive member P )
Group Intenal Audit furctior {see below);

* Boord approval of long-term business

: ) s implementation of Gioup-wide procedures,
strategies, key business objectives ane .
policies, stondards anc processes
onnual budgets [with an onnuol review ) "
. , concerming business activities including
being underoker to update the business ) . .
‘ i ‘ financial reporting, health and safety, and

siralegies and key business objectives),
hurran resources

The Group has an established, independert
Internal Audit function, the role of which is 1o
provide mpartial, objective audt, cssurance
and consulting activity that 1s designed to
strengthen, improve ond add value to core
processes and procedures across the Group

The Internal Audit team takes a disciplined

and risk-based approach to evotuating and
impeoving the efectiveness of risk management,
irternal controls and governance processes,
aimed of prowiding assurance that MAG's key
risks ore being well managed. and contols
are adequotely designed and operating
eflectively. Their methedology is based on the
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors Internal
Audit Standards and best practice guidelines
along with the updotes as detaited in the 2020
Intesnat Audit Cade of Prachce.

An annual nsk-based Internai Audit Plan is
developed which provides appropriate and
targeted coverage of the Group's risk profile
over o roling three-year period, with an iniral
focus on areas of high inherent risk and areas
where the Group is heawly reliant on mitigating
contols to marage the nsk 1o an acceptoble
leve! The plan 1s reviewed and relreshed in line
with MAG's arnual cycle of Audit Committee
meetings and aceording "o the Group's
evolving risk profile.

Over the course of the year, the Internal Audt
team caried oul 25 reviews acress @ broac
range of areas wncludir‘g tregsury manggement
and cashfiow, fixed assets: receuitment controls
ana processes, operaioral rosterirg; business
resilience: modern slovery governance: drones
governarce arangemen's and environmental
management systers. The IT audit plan *his
year remained focused on key cyber ondg
information security risks, and deep d'ves were
conduced into areas such as MAG s Airpor
Cortent Managemer' Systems and Amazon
Web Services Secunty.
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in line with Internal Audit stondards, Internal
Audit activity has continued to focus on the
adequacy ond continuous improvement of
MAG s 2nd Line functions ond the associated
s, maturity and ossurance processes that

conlro
are in ploce across the Group. Where relevant,
Internat Audit scopes include a review of
governance arrongements and gs oppiopriate,
the relability ond quolity of key business
information which is being provided to support
strategic decision-moking processes across

the business

The Internal Audit team cornes out an annual
self-assessment exercise to establish its
effectiveness ond to identify any areas lor
improvement. based or: the Chartered Instilute
of Internal Auditors Stondards, In additon, in
FY23, a full Externol Quality Assessment of
MAG's Risk and Internal Audit funcrions was
undertcken by BDO LLP which covered the
five key areas of Purpose; Profile; Planning;
Protocols; and Performance. The Internal Audit
team was assessed as fully compliont with the
Standards and graded as effective/leading
in all six creos, with six minor improvement
opportunities identified which were addressed
of the time of the review.

In line with best practice, MAG also operates
an independently provided, confidentiol
repaorting teleghone helpline and web portal
tor employees to raise motters of concern

in relation 1o froud, dishonesty. corruption,
theft security and bribery. All claims are

tully investigated in line with MAGs

stondatd policies and procedures and o tull
whisteblowing update 1s provided ot each
Audit Committee meeting.

As standard, Intermal Audit reviews consider
the Group-wide applicotion of policies and
procedures with the aim of promoting best
practice and stondardisation across MAG.
Any areos of non-compliance with policies
and procedures are reported 1o appropricie
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governance forums including Risk & Audit
Boards, leadership team meetings and Audit
Committee. There is full transparency in
respect of MAG s strong framework of risk
management and confrols assurance, and
obtendance ot key ferums by the Head of Risk
ond Head of Internal Audit ensures that culturel
aims in respect of tone from the top and risk
appefite are nsttled acioss the business

Regular reporis on control issues are presented
to, and discussed with, the Audit Committes,
ond there is o process in ploce to ensure that
audit recommendations are fully implemented
by senior Executive management. As such,
Q9% ol recommendations made during the
penod have now been hully implemented o
are on track to be implemented in line with
initiol agreed deadlines. There are updated.
risk-bosed deadlines in ploce for the 1% of

overdue actions.

On behalt of the Board, the Audit Commitee
has received the Chief Audit Officer’s Annual
Report and Opinion and has conducted a
review of the effectiveress of the system of
internal control, Based on the Internal Audir
work delivered during the year, in the context
of mareriolity, and considering management’s
commisment to implement agreed control
improvement recommendations, the internol
Audit team concluded that MAGs internal
contral and risk octivilies wele operating
effectively for the period under review.

The Boord, having considered the Audit
Committee’s 1eview, is able to confirm that no
significant failings have been identfied in the
system of risk management and internal contiol.
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At MAG we believe that effective risk management

is critical to our success as a business - from delivering

safe, secure and efficient operations which provide

a great customer experience, to the delivery of

our strategy and business plans, all of which are

underpinned by a clear understanding of the risk

environment and robust strategies to manage and

mitigate material risks.

Risk Management Framework
MAG’s Risk Manogement Framework
covers the full spectum of our corporate
and operational actvities. The framework 1s
embedded in day-ta-day operations and
is characterised by strong management
owrership and engogement

MAG operates a 3 Lines governance

model whereby risk is owned ond manoged
by monagemren! within the business ' 1st line'},
supported and facilitoted by Risk Management
and Assurance functions (' Znd Line’) and
independerilly assured by functions including
MAG s own Internal Audit Deparment

| 3rd Line .

PAG's Risk Management Framework is
focused on providing management the

Audit Committee and the Board with a clear
ond curtent view of the organisation’s nisk
prafile and strategies in place fo manage
and mitigate rateria- risks, and to idently
emerging risks The fremework is structured

to ensure tha: all aspects of the Group's nsk
profile are subject to regular review at @
shrategic, corporate and operational level, The

fiumework also supports the promp! escaiation
and assessmen: of material or emerging

risks at the appropriore internal governance
forums as they arise or are identified. This
assessment process 15 underpinned through
the delivery of an extensive programme of nisk
review workshops. facilitated by our 2rd Line
wom of risk speciahsts. MAGs risk specialists
sspport management acrass the organisation
in identitying and evoluafing existing and
emerging risks, ong in the development of
effective mingation siroregies designed to
manage nsk exposure ‘o ar acceploble level.

The ramework also enables managerent to
dentity and evaivate potennic! business and
ope-ational opportuniies, enhancing the obiliny
of the orgonisation to moximise these af an
early stage and in @ conrolled manner.

The Risk Manogement Fromewark provides a
clear and comprehensive basis for a consister:
approach 1o risk management across fie
business. This core foundaron mecns thar
managers con respond with agilny 10 new and
errerging risks tharis 1o o cleor understanding
of how risks should be identified, measured,

monitored, and governed This was facililaled
in FY23 with the estoblishment of Risk ard
Audit Boards across the Group. These provide
o forum tor the escolobson, discussion ond
governance of local airpert and functional
risks to ensure that they can be appropriately
monaged of the right level.

Having o wel-embedded nsk management
process allows MAG to promptly identity

the key unceramhes and challenges that our
business faces O\ongﬂde the mitigohons and
actions required 16 meel passenger needs and
achieve our strategic objectives.

Risk appetite

Risk appetite is well understoad within the
business and 15 a core element of our nsk
evaluation methodology, prowding cleor
boundaries for management on the levels of
nsk the business is prepared o accept, and
prompling ochon where risks fall outside of

our defined appetite. Defined risk 1olerances
provide *he foundation for consistent evaluation
of risk across the business and the bass for
assessing risks agoinst cw stated risk appetites.

The MAG Risk Maragemern: Framework
establishes a ser of key evaluation criteria far
risk impact scoring £och of these impacts 15
associated with a 1elevart appeite In this way,
0 greater appette may be afinbuted 1o some
commercial risks compared 1o a significantly
lower appefite for regulotory/complionce
and health ond safety nsks Risks ore escolated
through the reporting process based on
whether they are inside or outside of appetite
This encbles a clear differentiation between

a higher scoring risk for which MAG has a
greoter toleronce and o lower sconng nisk for
which the appetite is low or indeed zero
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This methodology applies to all MAG risks,
from operational through 1o sirategic levet. This
consistent approach facilitates comparison

of risks which means the most signficant

are escalated to appropriale governance
forums. Risk oppetite is considered regulorly
by management and the Audit Committee os
part of its annuat plan of work to ensure that it
remains fit for purpose.

Srong emphasis is placed on the developmen:
and mplementation of rebust action plans 1o
mitigate or manage dentified risks to o level
which is inside MAG s isk appetite Timely
implementation of risk action plans is monitered
by our Risk team and progress is regularty
reported lo senior management ond, where
appropriate, 10 the Audit Committee and Board

Ownership and accountability are key

1o the success of any risk framework, and
management ot all levels is expected 1o
engage actively in the nsk management
process and take full ownership of risks within
their areas of responsibility As o minimum,
management is required 1o engage in rsk
review workshops in advance of each Audit
Cemmitiee meeting, ensuiing tha? the Executive
and Audit Commitlee has an accurate and
up-to-date view of the Group's risk profile
throughout the year. This process 15 supported
by the regular engagement of MAG s Risk team
with Risk Owners and their teams This ensures
that nisk 1s considered on a regulor basis and
remans a: the torefront of business planning
ond decision-moking.

The Audit Committee and our Executive recewe
regulor detailed manegement information on
the Group's risk profile through risk reports
which highlght key nisks, motenial changes 1o
the risk profile and risks outside of appetile.

In oddition, Airpor leadership feams receive
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regular risk reports with a focus on both the
risk profife and monogement's progress in
implementing agieed mitigating actions.
Manogement is accustomed lo regular
constructive chollenge on its strotegies to
manage key risk exposures and is held

to target deadlines 1o implement agreed
miligaling aclions.

RISK CULTURE

Risk monagement s embedded in MAG's
decision-making processes through the
requirement to provide defoiled nsk assessments
within business case submissions and decision
papers submitted to the Board and ou

various other governance forums that exist in

the busingss. In addriion, the Board receives
periodic updates on the Group's risk profile 1o
suppol! strategic decision-making. The Board

is also updated os required to inform them on
new and emerging significant risks. This includes
the outputs of biannual Strategic Risk workshops
held with the Executive team 1o ensure that
MAG's strategic and emerging risk ossessments
remain up o date and accurote

At MAG we continuously stive 1o maintain

a sirong risk management culiure which is
cpen and hansparent It is important thar
monogement teels able 1o discuss risk issues
openly ond receive the support it needs to
ensure that risks are cctively monoged or
miigated. The Risk team engages regularly veth
managemen! ocross the business 1o achieve
this, facilitating open conversations around fisk,
ensuring they have the knowledge and 1oals 1o
manoge risk effectively within their awn areas
of responsibility.

To facilitate the consistent implementation of the
Risk Management Framewaork, MAG uses o nsk
system to ensure occessibility 1o ol colleogues

ot a single repository tor all erganisational risks.

FINANCIAL STATEME

This is a dynamic took to manage ond escalate

risks. increasing the accountability and
ownership of MAG colleagues and enhancing
the vistbrliy of risk and therefore our ability

to govern them. The system also provides a
mechonism to link risks, ocknowledging the
interdependency of risks and the need o
govern them wath o clear understanding that
many rsks do not sitin silo This enhances
colleagues’ obility to moke informed decisions.

EMERGING RISKS

The established processes outlined abaove
meon that risk is considered at all fevels of

the orgonisalion, Regular hicison with semor
ranogement provides a basis on which to
consider new and emerging risks. Horizon
sconning to consider potentic! emerging risks
is the responsibility of all senior MAG officers,
supporled by the Risk team 'o ensure thot they
are recorded in o timely monner to underpin
cppropriate governance ard aftention, Any
significant or strofegic risks are supported by
the estoblishment of programmes with their own
risk registers.

Our Internal Audit team provides management
and the Audit Committee with independent
assurance over the management of MAG's

risk profile through the delivery of a risk-

based Internat Audit Plan which assesses the
odequacy ond effectiveness of MAG s interngl
contral environment. The Plen is desigred 1o
provide appropriate and torgefed assurance
over the Group's sk profile across a rolling
three-year period with a focus on priontising the
biggest nsks. Findings from Inlernal Audit reponts
are reflected in the risk register to verify scoring,
enhance the robustness of existing controls,
identity new controls and ensure that any further
octions are tacked through to completion.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The table below summarises the key nisks currently taced by MAG, with details ot the strategies for managing them.

Principal risk:
Major health
& safety
incident
affecting our
customers or
colleagues

The heolth and safety of our customers,
employees and stakeholders is a prionty
far us. The inherent nature of cur business
means that we are o thriving hub of
octivity centred around our people, third
parhes and the public. We recognise our
responsibility 1o all cur stakehclders and
have a zero-tolerarce policy to health and
safety incidents involving our stokeholders
We understand our legal, regulotory,

cnd moral obligations ond recognise the
impartance of embedding best practice to
mihgate the risk of farlure to achieve these

MAG recognises within the Corporate nsk 1egisier the potential risk araund failure to design
a strong Health & Satety management system that meets the legal fromeswvork thot MAG
operates in as well as third party accreditation 1o the 150 45001 siandard

Key lo the mitigation of this risk includes'
* The prowision of competent and sufficient rescurces within each of MAG s business arecs
to advise on health and safety

Centralised experts establish compliant, best practice guidance 1o be implemented
consistently across oll MAG airports. Processes ensure that there is appropricte cross-
Group collaboration which represents best proctice and incorporates relevant feedback
from subject maner experts

Regular Z2nd and 31d line audits take place to verity compliance ond assure managemert
of the adequacy and effectveness of controls.

The MAG Healh and Safety Policy is supported by o documented Health and Safety
Management System This 15 oligned 10 150 45001 Stondord which means thot guidance
reflects best practice

.

The CAMPMS systern, irmally rolled out acioss MAG to support risk monagement
processes, hos been embeddead 1o underpin incident management governance in o
consisient manner across the Group The key benefits of this system include: consistency
of dota input leading 1o consistency of reporling improved incident monagement
consolidotion of dote, obility to review and oct upon lessons leamed, and improved
managerment information reportable 1o key governance forums.

*

As noted above, the Health and Sofety goverrance process is supported by the
establishment of 2nd ine assurance 1oles which focus on both complionce and

operuhoncﬂ nisk. Audit F\ndings ore reflected in the risk register in lerms of both risk scorng
and action fracking. This enables the business to monitor implementation ond embedding
of recommendations and theii overall effect on the quality of MAG s contol environment

Health and safely Iraining is provided 1o all employees at all levels and briefings are
provded to contraciors and aher visitors to our sites to ensure that key health and safety
nisks are undersiood and eflectively monaged Our hedlth and safety governonce
sucture is designed 1o ensure that there is appropriate oversight of our management of
health and satety risk and enables material 1isks lo be guickly escaloted and addressed

Principal
risk: Security
breach

The UK security threat level 1s
substontiol, meaning an attock is
likely We have an obligofion to
ensure that our systems, processes
assets and operatiors are secure
at cll our sites in the context of 1he

We work closely with the police and govemment security agencics fo ensure that our
secunty facililies and processes meet the high standards required o respond 1o existing
ard emerging securty thrects,

QOur securivy faciliies ard processes are subject to extensive internal and external
rspections and audits by regulators, external specialists ond internal teams who

current threat level regulary tost the design ond elfectveness of our security processes and controls.
Seccurty governance i: embedded at all our a-rports and ¢l security assurance actvity
s overseen by mulli-agercy governance forums MAG subject matter experts haise wath
e pafties 10 review security rsks and document Ine mitigaton strategies i ploce o
ensure the continved moniornng development and discussion of key security risks.

At MAG as with Ihe aviaton sector in general we recognise that failure o respord
sffectvely to the threat of terrerism has the potential to significantly impact on safety

and security stakeholder cenfidence and reguhiory compiionce, MAG 15 able to
demonsrate ic customers ond stakehalders robust comprehensive secunty contrals Beioss
oll of our arport sies which are sub ect to frequent independent review by regulators,
extemally apponted audion Redire and other stokeholder orgarisatons, and overseen
by multi-agency goverrorce forums
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Principal
risk: Climate

Change

Climate change is o significant global risk
tha! has implications across the sector. The
principal nsk centres around the impact

ol pelicies that governments implement 1o
ensure aviation achieves net zero by 2050,
as well as consumer ond stakeholder
confidence in the ability of the sector

to decarbonise.

MAG has already token significant action 1o reduce emissions associated with its own
operations. Cur operations are carbon neutral, and our CSR Strategy sets aut how we will
transition 1o o net zero carbon business no later than 2038,

Under MAG's leadership of the Susiaincble Aviation coalinon, the UK aviation ndustiy
became the first in the world to commit 1o net zero aviation by 2050 and publish a plan

to achieve this goal. The Sustainable Aviation Decarbaonisafion Roadmap sets out how
emissions flom airciah will reduce fo net zero by 2050. The Sustainable Aviation Roadmop
represents joint working between airporl operators, oilines, cerospoce manufactuers and
air navigation service providers. It provides @ basis fo tangibly reduce CO,, emissions and
influence positive public sentiment. )

MAG cortinues 1o work with indusiry pariners 1o achieve this target, ploying ow full part in
decarbonising the industry thiough membership of the Government's let Zero Councit and
working with Government o shape poficy on relevont issues

Qur mature understanding of physical climate risks directly intorms osset standards and
infrastructure planning. Further work to consider the financicl implications of climate change
will position MAG well as economies more generolly decarborise., MAG has alse
undertcken nwo climate change adaptation assessments, considerng the physical climate
risks 1o MAG s infrastructure and airpon operations. These reports, which were suhmitted to
the Government to inform its MNational Adoption Programme will be updaled this year as
we complete our third assessment, making use of the Met CHfice’s latest climate projections

Last year we enhanced our Annual Repor reporling 1o more closely reflect
the recommendations made by the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures {TCFD).

Principal risk:
People

The liting of Covid-related ravel restrictions
resylted in ropid recavery in passenge:
demand which ploced significant demands
on operational colleagues

The compettion for talert is increasing
across many sectors as organisations
build back following the pandemic.

Jlobs in the hospitality and travel sectors
were significantly impacted, a situation
exacerbated by lower availability of

EU nafionals rescliing from Brexit This

has uitimately decieased the size of the
available talenl pool. which could impact
MAG's ability 1o attract the right people
ot the right time to meet business needs os
recovery conlinues

The same risk applics to the many third
porties thot provide essennal services thot
stpport the day-to-day rurning of MAG's
gitponts We are dependent upon cnlica:
third parties including, Berder Force and
ground handlers, Treir ability to recruit
and tefain the nght number and quality of
staff 1s @ key element of the People sk to

the business

Recruiting and retaining talent is critical to the success of our business and this has been
an area of significant focus in recent years. Our 1alent sirategy aims to oitract the best
availoble pecple in the market and retain employees thiough a variety of nitiatives,
mcluding incentive schemes, coseer development progrommes and mentoring

We are olso adapting and enhancing our recivilment approach in key areas such as
digital’ to reflect the changing external environment, where the competition for talent
is high.

MAG leadeiship recognises the importance of People and understands that our
colleagues underpin the operation ard ase cf the heart of the success the orgonisation
has enjoyed. As colleagues returmed to wotk following the pondermic, there has been o
focus on providing the necessary support and rescurces to enable them to thrive in their
cunrent roles and in their longer term careers.

Specific measures include:

* The rollowt of toigeted sessions 1o re-ergage colleogues and provide them vith
a fromework ond toolkit to promote @ positive engaging, collaborative culture at
MAG.

The creation and communicaton of refreshed MAG values. These values represent
he colloborative, pass-onate, sustairable culture tha! embodies MAG

The delivery of employee engagement suiveys 1o all stoff to gouge the senhment of
our colleagues as they returned to work ofter o time of disruption ond uncertointy,

Regular employee pedommance reviews, combined wath regular corrmunications
from maragement and the use of pulse surveys enables MAG 1o remain proactive
in developing nitiotives to deliver ary required ongoing mprovements in the overall
employee expernence

A significant focus on health and wellbeing 1o support colleague returm 1o work and
underpin the recovety procass.

Incicosed governance, liaison and stakeholder management regarding MAG's
cntcnl third parties including the mhoduction of farmalised pedormance monitoring
and resilience planning

83
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Risk detail Mitigation sirategy
Principal risk: - MAG is subject o o nember  Compliance
IT compliance, of regulations governing the prolection of MAG is pait of the UK Critical MNafional infrostuciure {CMNI] and under the Security
security and information systems (hardware, software of Network & Infarmation Systems Regulations [NIS Regulations] ts cirpors are
infrastructure and associoted infrastructure), the data considered fo be an essential service. MAG is defined as an Operator of Essential
an them and the services they provide Service {OES). This chonge in legislation now sees cyber security contols being
These nclude Generol Dala Profection regulated by the Civil Avioton Authority {CAA} and MAG has 1o comply with this
Regulation {GDPR) and Network and regulatory requiement thot sees cyber secunity associoled with oviation sofety.
Information Systems (IN1S). The financial
and reputational penclties that relate 1o MAG is committed o providing a world-class cyber security service and will continue
these are severe. 1o loke its cyber security responsibilities with the uimost seriousness. MAG hos adopted

an in-depth approach 1o cyber secunty profechon and has developed ar embedded
security culture ?hmugh awareness, educalion and empovrerment lo ensure that

we keep MAG s operations, customers employees and stakeholders safe from
cyber threats,

MAG has a wel-established approach to the governance of IT comrpliance This is
developed and designed by a team of speciclisss wha ensure that ways of working are
founded on best practice pinciples. The following outlines some of the ways in which
compliance is embedded across the business:

All colleagues undertake an annual mandatory DPA/GDPR iraining fo increase therr
knowledge of GDPR risk ond reporting requirements.

MAG has developed a readily accessible Prvacy Strategy The Privacy Strategy s
reviewed ond updated annually and will take into account changes in legislation case
taw and new guidance published by the 1IC O

MAG takes data breaches sericusly ond iaining sessions are made ovallable te all
stalf in bitesize lessons which provide o succinct and focused summary of key points
tor colleagues lo be aware of.. Where breaches do aceur, the relevant legal and
governance processes are followed

Privacy impac! ossessments are undericken as port of business-as-usual activity in line
writh the Date Prolection Impact Assessment Standard, All DPIA's are reviewed and
approved by the Dota Profection Team. This means any projects processing personal
dota wili meet GDPR requirements. This is reviewed oy MAG's DPO as and when new
guidance 15 released by the HCO 1o ersure compliance

MAG has a suite of DPA polices and proceduras in place. This includes a Tier one
policy [signed off by MAG's CEQ) whick gives an averview of GDPR pracesses ond
comphance This is reviewed Gnnun”y and is supporfed by 11 standards which define
more detail s to how indiv.duals should comply with GDPR. The guidance is access ble
to oll MAG colieogues.
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Key risk Risk detail Mitigation strategy
Principal risk: - MAG 15 part of the Critical Security
IT compliance, National infiastrucivre and holds valuable MAG has an Information Security Management System [I5MS] in place whickh is
security and customer, employee. finorcial and supported by u suite of polices ond standards that define the security contrals required
infrastructure intellectual propenty, making t o valuable lo miligale cyber nsks The 15MS is governed by the Gioup's Cyber Securty Steering
continued targel to cyber cnminals. Furthermare, the Committee [CSSC).
cyber-attack threat level has increased
due 1o the conflict in Ukraine. We are MAG's Information Security Risk and Audit Compliance regime audits agaimst the
conscious al MAG that she nalure of ISMS standards 1o ensure compliance with ISC 27001, This is part of MAG's annual
our operations means that there is G risk certification to 1SQ27001. Audits are performed annually and cover all aspects of
that MAG s subject 1o gither o direct or MAG's Statement of Applicabulity.
indirect cyber-atiock 7 lass that results
in a lass of confidentiality, integrity and A pohcy and robust procedure for minimising the angaing risk from 11 vulnerabiliies is in
availability of eriicel MAG data. place at MAG. This Standard is part of MAG s 1SMS and is reviewed annually os part

of MAG's ISO27001 certfication / internal policy governance.
- MAG is increasingly

dependent upon technolegy for improved Volnerability scanning and penetration testing lakes place at appropriate frequencies
operdional efficiency, passenger and to identity potential vulngrabilives and enable risk-based decision making The Patch
colleague experience, solety and Vulnerability Group {PYG) governs the activifies 1o ensure they are complioni and, where
secunty Increosed digiahisonon and non-compliance is ientified, action is taken 1o remedy this where required.

connectivly bring with them greater scope

for vulnerobility ond assaciated business The ISMS is aligned 10 150 27001 and is avdited both internally by the Cyber Risk and
impact in the event of failure. Compliance Team, and externclly on an onrucl bosis. Additonal high-level audils are

conducted as required.

Infrastructure

MAG has o Group Technology Stiategy which sets cur priorities and plons to addiess
identified technology needs across the business. The Technology Operating Madel
has evalved to align with MAG s Empowered Airports model This has bean designed
1o ensute o business-partnet-fed appreach to technology sirotegy development

and prioritisation.

The Technology department have adopted the {TIL framework for service management.
aligning to industry best practice. This includes detailed processes far change. problem
and incident management, as well as o 1obust delivery fromework which includes
rigorous teshing and where necessary, third-panty assurance of crifcal projects.

In addition, o comprehensive Technolegy Governance Model is in ploce encompassing
a Business Design Authority {responsible for ensuning delivery is aligned to strategy). o
Technical Design Authenty {iesponsible for ensuring designs meel necessary sierdards]
ard on everarching Technology Governance Board which fracks Technology risk.
assurance and cudif findings, reporting outputs to the Audit Committee as required.

As MAG s girports are part of UK Crncol Natioral Infrastructsie, entical systems

are covered under the Network and Information Systerns Regulations 2018 and are
subjected 1o annual audit and assurance, with 1esulls and action items repored 1o the
Crvit Aviglion Authority (CAA].
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Internal controls and risk management continuec

Principal risk: The nature of our operotions and size of the As noted above whilst the factors impacting on PMAG are inherently outside of our
Macroeconomic, orgaenisation mean that we are impacted contral, we take o proactive approach fo assessing the market und the implications
political and by externol foctors that are inherently of uncertainties on cur business. By taking early and decisive action, we are able to
geopolitical outside of our control to directly monage. navigate these uncerainties and continue to flourish We clso incorporale appropriate
uncertainty Urderstanding these faciors allows us flexibility inio our long term plans ond skategies to enable us 1o respend to changes

to consider the possible impact to the in circumstances

business and iake the required sleps to

minimise the impact and ensure that MAG Exampies of this include

can successfully respond to national and

global uncertainties. * We maintain ¢ manageable tevel of external debt, # 15 primarily long term and as

evidenced in the pandemic, we hove supportive shareholders
Maocioeconomic poliical and gecpoliticol .
factors have the potentol 1o reduce
demand for air ravel and thereby restict
growth throughout the industty There could
be multiple consequences arising from
this, including the risk of airtkne foilure and
reduction in consumer spending. The mpact
of this could prevent MAG cirports from
delivering forecast fraffic volumes

Duting the pandenmic, we were able 1o pause the Manchester Aiport ransformation
pragramme because of the phasing we had incorporated inta the planning and
delivery of the project With the recovery now estoblished, we are pressing chead
with secand phase of the programme.

We have developed ond maintoined close relationships with our airline partners This
15 further enhanced by strong route development, particuienly among the low-Cost
Carriers who have seen the fastest recovery in operations. This diversity of offering,
alongside robust key account management, enables MAG airports 1o remain
conpefiive and ensures that routes remain otfrachve and exciling 1o customers, even

A weak economic outlook and/or dunng times of ecenemic unce rainty

recession, olongside cost of living pressures * We hove also focused on ensuning that we have the nght skills, resouices and
could impact on consumer demand and organisational design in place 1o grow back better foliowing the disruption
abiliity to travel in the woy the public weuld caused by the pandermic. We undertoke o robust process of modelling resource
wish to due 10 personal cost pressures and requirements to align 1o forecast demand levels

the lack of disposabie funds. A naturol
consequence of this is o reduchion in airline
capaaty and growth which, os we hove
sean in the recent post, can lead to oirline
failure, particularly when combired with an
increased cosl base

MAG 15 @ diverse business and we conuder aur product and geogrophical
diversification when moking business decisions. We undertake regular reviews of
econom:c growth prospects for the UK and the world economy, and impiications

for demand forecasts for MAG airports We support this approach 1o sound
sconomic planning by ensernng that our coporate and airport strelegies incorporate
sensitivinies for econamic shocks ard broader world events such as the current
conflict in Ukraine In this way, we have the information to be able to make business
decisions that incorporate the information ol our disposal to ensure s considered,
appropnate and ensures the best shor, medium and long term autlook for the Greup.

Furthermore, macroeconomic political
and gecpolitical factors currently ot

play increase the costs associated vah
operating and developing MAG arrports
This includes, byt is not hmited 1o, an
increase in operating ond capital costs
ot a result of supply chain issues labour
shorages cont nued weakness in sterfing
and high energy costs.
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Risk detail Mitigation strategy

Principal risk: Government pohcy support is an essentio! We work c!oﬁe\y with Government to shope pOhCies and decisions that affect our
Government part of the continved growth of the airports 1o ensute they toke full account of the impacis on cur girports, theit customers
aviation aviation industiy as we recover from the and our stakeholders, and recogrise the contribution the growih of MAG airparts can
strategy pondemic. Governmenl policy changes make 1o the delivery of policy objectives.

could limit MAG s ability to make best

use of its airperts, Impose additional costs We invest fime ocross the business to work with partners, stakeholders and advocates

on the business ond impoel shareholder to ensure that the sirategic significance of MAG airports is communicaled to decision

value, and adversely affect colleagues. maokers, We also work to build relationships with o range of political stakeholders to

stokeholders and passengers who use ensure that emerging policies toke into account MAG issues.

our airpom,‘
We take an active role in Sustcinable Aviction and the Jet Zero Coundii to ensure
that the Government montains an appropnate poticy framewark 1o deliver net zero
for aviclion,

We take o groactive approach to engaging with Government, the CAA and
stakeholders to suppart the delivery of airspace modemisation at aur airports and
across the UK more gererally, highlighting the ronge of benefits the programme

will deliver.
Principal risk: Maijor capital programmes will play a key Works already deiivered in connection with the Manchester Airport Transformation
Delivery of iole in anabling future growth in passenger Programme provide new faciliies and infrastructure 1o enhance customer experience.
major capital volumes, gs well improvements in customer Phase 2 of the programme which is underway will franstorm the ariginal port of Terminal
programmes service and operational efficiency. 2, significantly increasing capocily and further erhancing customer experience.
Failure to daliver transformational bensfits We are working closely with arrline poriners to ensure that ransformanton progrommes
trom major capital programmes may underway and in plon at both Manchester and Stansted deliver benefits for users and
mpoct MAG's ability to grow ond sustain meet customer needs We engoge with cirines and crilical third parties 1o ensure thot
Invesiment acsoss our girports they are on board with the warks we propose to undertake and have visibility of the

lotest design proposals
15 will be critical for MAG o have

appropriate furding in place 1o enable We have established siong Group-wide progremme management controls and these
major capitel programmes te be are subject to regular 2nd and 3rd line assurance reviews These is ongoing cross-
deliverad in line with customer needs and tunctional irvelvement in alf programmes 1o ensure thot capex projects mes MAGs
market demornd. operatonal and commercial requitements, as well as contiauing 10 enhance the

passenger experience info the future.
High levels of inflation may also impact
the DFFOrdobi“Iy and fundabulity of major
transtormation progiammes and MAG's
ability t deliver the benefits assaciated
with these investments.

Principal founded by MAG, CAVU gims to The CAVU busiress has been formed with an appropnate leadership structure fo
Risk: Failure revolulionise aiiport havet, driving volue for oversee the implementation of robust governance arrangements. This 1s an important
to grow the passengers and growing non-aercnautical foundation for the future success of the business. Specific ongoing activities to embed
CAVU business  revenue for clients and partners around best practice include:
the world. *» The estoblishment of appropnate Business Development ond eCommesce leams within
the CAVU structure to maximise giowth opportunites (adding chanrels and inventory)
As  newly formed business, there is an These are adapted to morket conditions as required.

inkerent risk O'OU'”d the tc\|_ure fo grovs Putting in place appropriote Cusiomer teams within the CAVU siructure to maximise
at pace and achieve sufficient scale. This commercial epportunities [lifetme value, advocacy, loyelty and membership], which

would result in dilufion of compehtve con be adapted lo market conditions as tequired
advantage and shortalls against the

CAVU hasness plon, impacting MAG s
wider financial performonce and
diversification shrategy.

.

Significant work since the establishment of CAVU to deliver o single platiorm that
will provide competifive advantage in the market 1o feverage capabiliies ond gain
market share,

Monthly review of the business developmer! pipeline and progress with the senior
CAVU team

Regular review (weekly] of kading performance, financial outcomes and lorecasts
across all revenue streoms ot EXCO level

.
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Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

We recognise climate change as a global societol and envitenmento! challenge that poses both risks and opportunities to our business. After becoming
the UK's first carbon neutral airport group in 2016, in 2020 we announced a flagship environmental commitment to address our residual emissions by
fronsitioning to net zero carbon operations {for our Scope 1 & 2 emissions) no later than 2038, 12 years ahead of the Government's national torget.
Through cur Corporate Social Responsibifity (CSR] Strategy, working together or a brighter future. we position climate change at the forefront of cur
approach to ensure we deliver as a sustainable business

This year, we were pleased to welcome the UK Governmen:'s Jet Zero Strategy and - af the United Nations International Civit Aviation Crganisation
- internationat ogreement to & ong-term aspirananal goaol 1o make global oviotion net zero by 2050. MAG recognises the importance of our 1ole 1n
suppotfing and enabling the industry to achieve these goals.

We support the UK Government's decision to implement mandatary climate sk reporfing in accordance with the recommendations of the Task force
on Climaote-Related Financial Disclosures [TCFD). Recognising the imporance of climate change and the need Io understond and mitigate climale nsk.
we began reporting against the TCFD recommendations in 2021 This year, we hove enhanced our reporting by developing our cpproach to assessing
climate-reloted risks and opporunities with a particular focus on fransition risks and the financial impac? of key climate-related risks.

An overview of our disclosures against the TCFD recommendations is provided below. Our reporting is in ne with the TCFD recommendations and
disclosyres. This includes the four TCFD recommendations and the 11 recommended disclosures outlined in Figure 4 of Section C of the TCFD's published
report tiled "Recommendotions ol the Task Force on Climate-Reloted Financiol Disclosures” published by the TCFD in 2017 We divide our nsks and
opporiunities into those related to the Transition to a low -carbon economy and those related to the physical impacts of climate change

Disclosure recommendation Section reference
Governance
o) Describe the Board's oversight of climate-related risks and opporumties 2022/23 Annual Report « leadership ond Governonce {Page 671

2022/23 Annual Report - TCFD section [this secion)

b) Describe management's role in assessing and managing ciimate-reloted nisks 2022 /23 Annual Report - TCFD section [this secion)
and opporiunites

Strategy

a) Describe the climote-related nsks ond opportunites the organisation has 2022723 Arnual Report - TCFD section {this section}
identified over the shost, medium and long term

b} Descrbe the irpact of climate -reloted risks ond opportunities on the 2022 /23 Annual Report - TCFD section {ihis section)
organisation’s businesses, skategy ond financial planning

c) Describe the resilience of the organisation’s strategy, taking into consideration 2022 /23 Anruai Repart - TCFD seclion {this section)
different future climate scenarios, including o 2°°C or lower sceraric

Risk management

o] Describe the orgarisation’s processes for identifying and ossessing climate- 202223 Annual Report - Internal Contrels and Risk Management (Page 83)

related risks
b} Describe the argonischons processes for managing <lir ate-related risks 2022723 Annual Report - Intemal Contrels ond Risk Monogement [Fage 83)
¢} Descnbe how processes foridertfying, assessing. and managirg chrate- 202223 Annual Report - dntermol Controls and Risk Management [Page 83)

reloted nsks are integrated intc the organisanon s owerall r sk management

Metrics ond targets

o] Disclose the metncs used by the orgonisation 1o assess chmate-refared nsks 2022723 Annua’ Report - Internal Controls ond Risk Management [Page 83)
and ocpportunines

b] Disclose Scope 1 Scope 2 ond if aporopriate Scope 37 greenrouse gos Scope | & 2. 2022722 Annuol keport - Corporate Sucial Responsibility (Page 38]
emissions ard the related risks
Scope 1 2 and 3 Arnual CSR Report 1o be published later in 2023, 24

¢} Describe the targe's used by the organisalion 1o manage climate-related risks 2022 /23 Anrual Report - Internal Controls ord Risk Management {Poge 83}
and eppoeriunities and perlormance ogans taigets

¥ SECR stope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gos emissons ore cefined in our latest emissions report. which can be found hee

SEs v e Taga ipo sy Com s rediny 1737, mag-e ssorseport 2020-21 pd’
g6 P a - F
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GOVERNANCE

Governance Board

Chmate change is regarded as o principal risk for MAG and lorms par:
of our Strategic Risk Register which means it is considered as a significant
risk ic the achievement of our objectives and strotegic goals. The register
is considered by the Board thiough the Audit Committee twice yearly
with ehmate issues also discussed at the CSR Committee meelings every
quarter. Where relevant, climare-related motters are presented direcily
at Board meetings. With climate change presenting a financial risk 1o

the business, our Non-Executive Director Vande Murray CBE. in her

role as Chair of the Corporate Soaal Responsibility (CSR) Commitee

|a sub-committee of the MAG Board), has been assigned specific
accountability for chimate change. The Corperate Sacial Responsibility
(CSR) Commitree provides regular updates to the Group Beard regarding
our CSR Strategy, ensuring that the Group Boaid s well-informed

about the CSR Committee’s activities and performance against ogreed
targets. Moreover, cimate and CSR-relaled matters that hold significant
impoitance are duly considered within the siandord Group Boord
agenda cycles and specifically during business planning processes.

Climate chonge is also embedded within our C3R Strategy with
performance largets across a number of topics, including energy,
emissions, chmate chonge communications. sustainable surface

access, ond airspoce modernisation. MAG s Environmental, Socia!

and Gevemance [ESG) team provides quarnerly updates to the CSR
Committee which include perfermonce updates, policy developments and
strategic updates.

Management

Charlie Cormish, sur Chiet Executive Officer, is responsible for ensuring
that MAG achieves 1s climate change goals end commitments. Tim
Hawkins, MAG Chief of Staff. reports 1o Charlie Cornish and 15 atso the
Chair of the CSR Coordination, Programme Maonogement ang Strategy
Board which comprises of senior leaders from acioss the business. This
Board is responsible for execunng our CSR Sirategy ond programmes,
and Tim holds accauntability lor the progress of our C5R initiatives

Meil Robinson, the Group CSR & Future Arrspace Director, who reports
into Tim Howkins, leads our response 1o climate change and is supporned
by business leaders and experts across the organisation

MAG has a cenfralised team of experts o manoge, review and montor
the delvery of our climote strategy across our airports and wider
business. The 'eom provides climate change and emission reports to
senior leadership which are reviewed and updated regulorly 10 provide
adequate coverage of performance and ensure progress towords our
CSR Srrategy

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Strategy
As a business, we recogrise that climate change poses o significant

sef of strategic risks lor us and the aviation sector as a whole. As an
operator of ertical national infrastructure, our climate change physicel
adaplaticn assessments need 1o align with the assessments conducted
by other operators. By harmonising our reporting with olher operators,
we contribute fo the development of the UK Government's national

infrastruciure adaptation plen. We assess our climate related risks over the

short, medium, and fong term: short lerm, covering the time period up until
203C: medium-term, covenng the fime period 2031-2050: and, long-
term, covering the time period 2051-2070. The risks identified feed into
how we set the business siralegy and associaied plons. IF a physical risk
wos 1o materialise, we make use of emergency and business continuity
plans fo oddress and adopt to t Our analysis shows that transiticning to
a low-corbon economy poses a higher risk in the short ond medium term,
as MAG strives to achieve net zero operations by no later than 2038.
Whereas climate-related physicat risks pose significant business impacts
to MAG over the medium to longer term as this is when the physical
inpacts of climote change become mare frequent and severe

Scenario analysis has been used 1o assess the climate-related physical
and transtion risks ond opportunities under the climate scenarios
outlined below.

for physical nsks and opportunities, we have considered the
foliowing scenarios:

* A medium-emission scenario: assocted with Representative
Concentration Pathway (RCP) 6.0, this scenario opproximates an
outcome in line with o 3-4°C warming by 2100, In this scenario,
greenhouse gas emissions peak around 2080 ond then sort
to declire.

= A high-emission scenano: associoled with RCP 8.5, this scenane

approximotes an outcome in line with a 4% C warming by 2100 In this

scenario. greenhcuse gas emissions continue o grow vnmitigated.

For transition risks and opportenities, we have considered the following

SCENATos:

* A high-ambition emission scenario: associoted with RCP 26, this
scenario approximoles on outcome in line with a 1 5°C warming

by 2100,

= An ambitious-emission scenario: associated witk RCP 4.5, this
scenaric approximotes an oufcome in kne with a 2 10 3°C warming
by 2100. In this scenario, greenhouse gas emissions peak around

2040 ond reach ioughly hall the levels of 2050 by 2100.

*  Ahigh-emission scenario: associated with RCP 8.5, this scenario
approximates an oulcome in line with 4°C warming by 2100 In this
scenavio, greenhouse gas emissions continue to grow unmiigated.

8¢
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continved

Strategy .- roiroen)
Cur CSR Snategy' sets aut our strategic approach 1o climate change

In addition to reducing the climate impoct of our own operations, o
tundamental part of cur climate siralegy is to proaciively contribute
towards the decarbonisation of the wider aviarion industry. We recognise
that the chollenges posted by climate chenge cannot be tackled alone.
and we continue to engage directly with stakeholders and the wider
industry. MAG was a founding member of the UK aviation indusiry
cealition, Sustainable Aviation, and remains ¢ member of the managing
council Qur CEO, Charlie Cormish, is one of two dirport members of

the Government's le: Zero Council with MAG also an active member

of the environmenital committees of the regionol ond global enviranment
committees of our frade association Airports Council International (ACH

We recogrise the ciitcal imporiance of climote-related topics ond issues
in shaping the future of our business. We proactively imcorporate climate
considerations into our business stategy reviews and when making other
business decisians,

Our strategy also considers climate change odapiation and resiience.
tn accardance with the TCFD recommendations we hove considered the
impact of o 1.5 degree scenario (i.e. 2 degrees or lower) in this seciion
and have forecast the business remains resilient rom both @ fiqudity

and a regulatory perspeciive. for more then o decade, MAG has
comprehensively considered chmate chonge odaptation in December
2021, we submitted our third Climare Chonge Adaptation Report? 1o the
Government, including the results of our third adoplation risk assessment.

Freps S ves mogarpo: com Cesparshle-bius 1658 0 esanns bty g et

Risk management

We recognise climate change as o key risk to our business and it forms
part of our oigonisotional strotegic (principal] risk register which is
reported 1o the Audil Commitiee twice a year. The CSR Committee further
engages in the identification, assessment, and management of climate-
reloted risks

Owver the post ten years, MAG has issued three repoits on Climate
Change Adaptation Our adoptation reporis contribute to the
Govemment's notional adoptation risk ossessments and MNational
Adaplotion Progromme  This report represents a comprehensive evalugtion
thet aligns our climate change odapiation risk ossessment approach
with MAG's overarching Risk Management Fromework methodology
This year, we further refined our epproach to ideniitying climate-related
transition risks (see ‘transition risks’ below). The findings from bolh climate
chonge risk assessments cantribute to our corporate assessment of risk
one ensuie thar chmote chonge 15 discussed regularly of the highest level
wathin the organisation.

Qur climate change nsk methodology considers the potential impoct of
the nsk {on o scale of 1 'minimal to 5 “entical’) and likelthood {on a scale
of 1 'improbable” 1o 5 "highly probable '} of a potential nsk materialising.
The impact and lkelihood scores lor each risk are multplied 1o calculoie
nisk expasure, hence the maximum exposure rating for any nsk is 25

Risk exposure ratings are considered ogoinst our appetite to risk The
risks with the highest score and which exceed our risk appette are.
therefore, considered the most significant and are prioritised for miigation
and management.

For each climate-related ransition rsk identified, we assess the risk

score against three chmale change scenarios. For each climate change
scenario, we assess the risk score aver shon, medium, and tong-term time
honzons [see the “strategy’ section of this TCFD reportl, To best idennfy
areos where further control is necessary, our climote change nsk registers
boseline future nsk agoinst current net risk
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Ve have published cimaie chonge odaptaton nsk regsters considening the physical nisks for each of our anports. In line with the TCFD

recommendations, physical risks are defined as follows

*  Acute physicol risks: event-driven risks, including increased severity of extreme weather events, such os cyclones, hurricanes, and floods; and

»  Chronic physicol risks: longer term shifts in climate patterns [e.g. sustained higher temperatures) that moy cause sea level rise and chronic heat woves,

Qur climate change adaptation risk registers identily a range of risks relating fo infrasiructure, network operations and human health and wellbeing. The

mast significant climaie-related physical risks and associcted business impacts across our airporls are outlined below.

Climate-related physical risk

Business impoct to MAG

Current and future achions

Increased frequency ond severity of storm evenls
including high winds, intense rainfall and icy
cordifions

* Expected o malenatise: short term,

» Operational disruption resubing from physical
impacts o infrashucture at MAG's airports.

Busiress disruption and reduced revenue due
to lost fime.

Increased likelihood of airfield safety accidents
ond incidents as a result of hozardous
conditions posing health risks Ic MAG's staft
and possengers,

* Emergency and business continuity plans for the
Ioss of services.

» Safety measures for ramp workers in the event of
ncreased storms and lightning events

Maintenance of climate-change warching briefs
using the latest climate change projechons.

Increosed frequency and intensity of winter rainfall
events resulting in the release of contaminaled
sufoce water.

* Expected to materialse: short term,

Increased likelihood of contominated suface
walter due 1o more intense precipitation,
may lead fo the overspil ol balanding ponds
contoining de-icing chemicals

Negative impacls on the natural envuonment
around the airports,

passengers, employees and third panty stalf

Potential health risks to MAG s airpart operalors,

Full review of the existing drainage networks 1o
improve dota capture ond inform decisions on
future improvements o the system.

Maoritonng of balancing pond performance
angoirg Extreme weather conditons can
overwhelm pord capacity In o short period

of time All site developments now required to
include onsite attenuation 1o alleviate impocis
on balancing ponds Asset slandards have been
updmed to reflect these additonal requirements

Disruption 1o flight schedules os o result of adverse
weather ovents, se¢a level nse end storm surges ot
and enroute to destination airports

* Expected to matenalise, shorl term.

Atmospheric disruptior may affect the routing of
arcraft between arnval and deporture.

Deleys o landing nmes ond enhanced luel
burning. 1esulting in business disruption and
enhanced opereting costs for airlines

Sea level rise ond storm suiges at destination
girporis moy reduce the vicbility of future
destinations being avoitoble to possengers,
thereby reducing passenger demand.
profitability and revenue for MAG s airporis.

Perdormonce-based novigation {PBIN) 10
address the risk of extremitics of wet and

dry condifions alfecting ground reflection or
ravigational aids

* Engaging with emerging research through
perinerships with EURQCONTROL and Airports
Councit intermationgl i e. being o member cf the
Ewopean Aviation Climate Chonge Adoplotion
Working Grovp).

A watching brief on seo level rise and storm-
surge risks that will cause loss of low-lying
arport destinations.

Restrictions to airport water supplies due 1o
prolonged drought conditions and lowering of the
water table

Potertial for water supplies drought orders 1o bt
the availability or use of moins wate,

» Expected to motenalise. medium temi.

Piohibihor of cenain non-criticol activities such
as waoshing of infrastiucture and assets

Finarcial impact arising from the need fo obigin
alternative sowrces of water.

Reputcional impac) - osset renewal may be
required to infreduce water-efficient equipment.

leak detection and repair programme -
disitbution system maintenance,/upgrade.

Carnformance to asset slandards and building
requiotions — assel renewal stategy - ongoing
dialogue with water componies.

Planned development of a formal aipait water
dicught management plan to respord o the
four levels of drought rigger

The following opportunities were idenfified by MAG in relation to the physical impacis of climate change:
* Improved stolf and passenger comfor as well as wellbeing protections detivered through the desiga of 'ow-carbon buildings with climate-resifient

heoting and cooling systems.

* Improved ability to plan end adapl to the physicol impoes of climate chonge and limit disruption to empioyees and possengers thiough the provision
of regulorly mointaned and updated climote change wa:ching briefs.

*  Enhonced marketing postioning within the avichion sector through the healthy design of cirport buildings which mitigete ogoinst the negotive heclth

and wellbeing impacts of chimate change such as thermal discomfert ond heot stroke.

»  Cosl savings as o resub of reduced and adjusted de-icing requirements {e.g. through increasing s'ock and improving product performance where

necesscryl delivered s o result of regular reviews of wealher conditions, including snow events,
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CLIMATE-RELATED TRANSITION RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

In 2023, we conducted deailed analysis of frends in the aviation secior including policy signals, production and technological drivers and changes to
the price of assets and services within the market to futher advance our approach to climate-related tfransiton risks and opportunities.

In accordance with recommendations kom the TCFD, we categorise transition risks in four distinet categornes'

Gdop!cﬂion to climote r_hcmge.

econamic system.

*  Market - shilts in supply ond demand for certain commodifies, preducts and services.

low-carbon economy

The key climote-related transition risks and associated business impacts 1o MAG are ouilined below.

POLICY AND LEGAL

Climate -reloted transition risk

Business impact to MAG

Policy and legal - policy measures thar seek 1o mitigate against the adverse effecis of chmate change. ond those measures which promote

Technology — technological improvements or innovations {or lack thereof) that impact upon the transition to a lower carbon, energy-efficient

Repuiation - changing customer, community and wider stakeholder perceptions of an erganisation’s conribution or detraction from the transiion 1o a

Current and future actions

Policy misclignment including between climate
policy developed by national and regional
stakekolders, requiring o greater level of
decarbenisation than sational policy

+ Expected 1o materialise: short term

* Frotracted planning applications awing
1o stingent policy ond regulations posing
potennaly complex legal challenges relating 1o
expansion and development.

Cifficulty in accessing compelitively prced
finance may limit invesiment opportunities

A lack of investment may reduce opportunites
to further 1ockle cimate chonge, thereby leadirg
t local reputational damage.

* Regular engagement on policy ard legisiative
chanyes through paricipation in regional
collaborotions (such as the Manchester Climate
Change Parresship)

Direct engagement with policy officers and
elected memrhers

Policy changes regarding nan-CO | climote
impacts of aviation, This may rescltin the
realignment of carbon budgets for aviotion
emissions

= Expected to motenahse short term.

Increased demand and urgency for the rapid
decarbonisaton of the aviation industry which
may lead 1o eccelerated investment in airport
infrastructure.

Increased climate-relaled operating costs for
arfines which could reduce the overall demand
for aviahon due 1o increased ticket prices

Inifintives to support sustoincble aviation fueis
and aliernatively fuelled aircraft which would
reduce botk the chmare impact of CO, ond
ron-CO, emissions

Mom?or\ﬂg, engogemenl and suppoeft with
academic reseorch which aims to lead o the
consensus on how 1o best migate non-CO,
impacts and incorporate the findings inta policy.

Following global agreement to a Long-Term Aspirational Goal o moke international aviation net zero by 2050 of the 415t General Assembly of the
intemationol Civit Aviation Organisation {ICAC) we have closed the previously reported risk of filure to reach on inerratonal agreement on aviation
decarbonisation, leading to the difterartiation between UK, £U ond internoticral policy
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TECHNOLOGY

Climate-reloted transition risk

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERMNANCE

Business Impact 1o MAG

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current and Fulure actions

The intoduction of aifernatively fuelied.
zere-carbon gircraft will reguire new airport

inhasiructure and could reduce arport capocity.

* Expected to matenalise: long term

The need to invest in new infrasiructure to suppor
the 1urnaround of aliernatively fuelled aireraft

Reduced passenger thraughput due to
business diswptior resuliing hom lower arrciah
capacity owing, in turn, to longer refuelling
turnaround fimes.

Participation in UK and international
trode associations, with @ focus on the
development of national and international
decarbenisation roadmaps

Engagement with UK policymakers thiough, for
example, the Government's Jet Zero Council
11Z2C) and the JZC s Zero Emission Flight
Intrastructure subgroup.

Planned engogement with oirlines and
manufacturers on alternative fuel aircrah
infrastructurc and invesiment as lechneologies
develop to become commercially viable.

targe-scale, permanent carbon copture ond
storoge fechnologies may not mature quickly
enough or af sufficient scale to support aviation
decarbonisation

* Expected 1o matenalise medium term.

Increased expenditure associated with the
cost of increasing carbun emissions and
therefore enhanced corbon toxes faced by the
avialion sector.

Limited passenger demand and revenue
potentol owing to Increased regulaion ond
compliance costs from heightened caibon
pricing [resulting, in turn, from imited carbon
capture and storage technologies)

-

Participatian in UK and international
trade associations, with @ focus on the
development of national ond international
decarbonisation roadmaps

The Sustainable Aviation Coalition and the Jet
Zere Counal are working with industry and
government on the development of negative
emissions lechnologies. We are working
collabaratively to further the understanding

of scaling-up cerbon capture and siorage
lechnologies. In line with the 2023 Sustainable
Aviation Decarbonisation Roadmop, we will
continue our focus on improving market-based
meosures ko support the hansiton 1o net zero,

MARKET

Climate -refated transition risk

Business impoct to MAG

Current and fulyre actions

Fadure of LK and internationcl policy fo
deliver effective colbon makers which could
lead to higher ticket prices and reduced
passenger demand

» Expected to matenalise: short term

Increased arrline operating costs may resultin
heightened costs of flying for passengers
Difficulty accessing competitively priced
finance as a result of reduced athractivenass to
prospective investors ond shareholders
Reduced avoilatilty and increased cost of
carbon credits.

Participatien in UK and intemationat rade
associations, including those focused vpon
the development of national and intemnational
decarbenisaton roadmaps

Engagement valh UK policymakers thiough, for
example, the Governments Jet Zero Councll.
Delivery of MAG's decarbaonisaion

programmes. including o focus on enabling
avioton decarbonisation.

Changes in socieral behaviours and attitudes
towards chmate change may reduce pussenger

demand due to increased flight shame’ and wider

behavioural changes

* Expecied to malenabse medium lerm,

Reduction in possenger demand {and therefore,
revenye) may reduce the affractiveness of
MAG to investors ond shareholders, thereby
pasing challenges o ac cessing compelitively
priced finance.

Challenges lor employee retention

and reciuiiment owing 1o reduced

markel Giracliveness.

MAG's CSR Siotegy ploces nel zews carbon
airports af the forefront of s opproach towards
delivering a sustoinoble business (with o target lor
net zero carbon by 2038)

MAG airports are already cerlified carbon neutral
{through Arrpon Carbon Accreditation) wath
pragrammes to deliver furher decarbonisation and
net zero

Continued ergagement with the Government's let
Zero Council to understend and influence pelicy.
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REPUTATION

Ciimate -reloted transition risk

Business impact to MAG

Current ond future actions

Investors shifting caprial allocation and
finance in favour of low-carbon and
climate-resilient businesses. increased
scrutiny from inveslors {o1 businesses not
having and /o1 meetng o science-bosed
net zero target,

* Expected i materialise” short reim.

MAG s failure to align with chenged investor priorities

may result in a lock of capital end investment

Reduced revenye and associated repuiahonal risks for
the business may impact upon investment ppportuniies.
Reduced market atractiveness 1o the current and future
workforce, as well as prospecive passengers,

* MAG s CSR Swategy focuses on the delivery of
net zero corbon oirports and oullines initiatives and
commitments to the decarborisation of its operahicns
and the wider avioton sector

MAG will continye o repor! progress against this
commiment to s key stakeholders ond investars.

Risk of not meeting MAG's nel zero
commitment for 2038 through o lack of
investment in measures to reduce Scope

1 and 2 emissions associoted with fuef
and energy consumption. Passengers and
girlines may move to other girports that
are taking foster proactive climole action.

* Expected to matenakse shorlierm,

Higher expenditure assooaled with the cost of
increasing carbon emissions from the orgarnisation
Reduced capital and financing from current and future
nvestors due to negotve stakehalder perceptions.

Reduced passenger demard, leading to o reduction in
wihne networks

MAG s CSR Stiategy focuses on the delbvery of

net zero carbon airports and oullines iniatives and
commitments 1o the decarbonisarion of its aperations
and the wider aviation sector.

* Engagement with the UK Government and indusiry
pariners on the Sustainable Aviation Decarbonisation
Roodmap and Jet Zera Courcil.

The ttansition 10 o low-carben economy poses a number of climate-related opportunities. We confinue to reviews and realise opportuniiies for our business
and its stakeholders whilst ensuning a just transition to o socially inclusive, low-carbon future. Key climate-related tansiion opponunities as welt s MAG's

current low-carbon actons and initiarives include:

»  Positioning the business as o thaughi-leader in the aviation sector for decarbenisation through continued engagement in poficy dialogue, UK ond

infernational frade associations and industry working groups

«  Promote green skills ransformation and developmen® through employes pasticipation i green fraining, educotion, and skills decision-moking which

may result in improved innovotion and business performance.

* Increosed supply chain reliabiliy through ongoing engagement with MAG's supply chain partrers to understand the ability of the supply chain 1o

operate under various condihons and its resilience to odverse shocks (1o the market and supply trends).

FINANCIAL QUANTIFICATION OF CLIMATE RISK

To advance our reporling of climate risk, we have outlined the finoncial impacts of the key risks identified through our risk assessment processes. To

streamline the report and provide a dlearer understanding of therr implications we have grouped similor nsks together. In this section. we tocus or the risks

we consider most material, assessing the highest impac! scenario for each risk idenlified below.

By quantifying these risks, we gain insights into the possible financial conseguences of climate change and can make more informed decisions about

how we address climale-related risks. We are committed 1o continually improving our understanding of climate-related nisks and their financial

dimensions, We beheve that by quantifying these risks we enhance our abilty *o make informed decisions. allocate resources eltectively, and seize

opporunities n o ropidly changmg business landscape. . In December 2021, we submited our thid Climate Change Adapration Report ' 1o the

Government, which fiither exploins how the cutpuls of this exercise intorm our inanciol olarning process

In assessing the financial meteriality of the identified risks, we have employed a scale ranging from 1 1o 5. This method of sconng 1s derived from our

corporare risk assessment methodology ord is consisient with the \way we assess ather business risks This impoc scale allows us ‘o quontiianely evaluate

the magnitude of the risks and their potential financial conseguences. The table below ilustates the scoring scale we have used. providing a framework

for categorising the risks based on their financial significance:



OVERVIEW

STRATEGIC REFORT

FINANCIAL MATERIALITY

Impact Score

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Impact

1 £

2 €8

3 £ee

4 TEEL

5 %%
We sfiive to provide accuraie and informative assessments of the risks we identity. It is important to note that the tollowing tables, which provide an
overview of the risks identified, their potential impact on MAG, and the corresponding financial matericlity scores, reflect our initial assessments. Our
analysis considered the impoc! each risk hod on oreas such as operating costs, revenues and copital expenditures, They represent the informetion
available 1o us or this time, and inciude a number of ossumptions As we develop cur knowledge and understanding of climate-related nsks, these
assessmenls wilt be refined and updated accordingly. We remain commitied to regularly reviewing our assessments os our knowledge increases,
ensuring that our risk management strategies ore robust and aligred with the evelving londscape.

Financial

Risk descriplion Business impoct to MAG Current and future actions matericlity score

Building Domage * Finencial mplications of repair or replacement of + implemenlanon of stuciural nspection programme £

- Potential domnge aftected infrostruciure DEveﬂopment and execution of assel mantenance

:: budcl{mgs dueto * Operational distuptions and airport closure schemes

ermal expansion or + Ensuring conformity with asset standards and
; - » Reputational damage uring Y

subsidence tousgd a g building regulations,

by extreme weather = Additonal construchion costs incurred during the

events and changes in developmeni of nev buildings including factors

ground condiions such os the BREEAM premium and compliance with

e'{c‘\l\ng buljdlﬂg regu!o’ioﬂs
- Expecled 1o motenalise
rredium term.
Increased heat nisk for * Decling in revesue and posseager numbers ¢ Management ond mointenance of heatng, £ee
i'JUH onE‘i CU&!?mcr‘s . + Repulational damage ventifation, and air-condihoning [(HYAC) systems
pgracing o1 coaling + Capital plorning for the coguisiion of new assets
n o + Possible ncrease in stoft obsence rotes priat pracning & OLQUIshor

systems in our airports due and replacement of exsting ones

to ncreased temperatures + Polenfial tise in passenges health issues

ond heal waves Use of

precorditioned air {PCA]

tor aircraft cooling whilst

on stand

= Expected to matenalise:

medium term,
Water Supp|y - + Fingncicl \mp\icoﬂons asseciated with eguipment - \mplemen!ohon ota Compfehensivc monitanng and &

increosed probatilty of
periodic dhaught orders
necessitating infrastruclure
repass (0.9, leakages|
and investment in water-
efficient systems

* Expected to materalise.

medium byrm

repair of 1eplocement
* Operational disruptions

* Reputational damage

mainienance regme lor criical assets

* Incorporation of desigr requitemenits that address
and consider potential impacts of fooding
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Financial
Risk description Business impoct to MAG Current and future actions materiality score
p p
Reduced Passenger ¢ Reduced competitive positioning compared to other + Nel zero sperational target LLEfte
Demand - Reduced rno‘cies of travel and ways of working [e g increase & ¢ qiban Neuhality atross the Gioup £Ee
demand for business in virtbol conferences, meetings etc | E ol N on | " L
: * Eacouaging low-carbon action (e rou
havel the rse of * Reduced reverue offerin Eeeglcmdm fees for fi 905 [ the First
sustainable tavel 9 S ' 1ve years o !
oliematives. and the * loss of customers ond less revenue affecting zero-emission commercial plane based ot one of
urprediciable oceurence investment opportuniies. our anports)
of geopeltical events * Working wik Government ond industry partners
on the decarbormsation of eviation e g. Jet Zero
Councll, Sustainable Aviation and FlyZero
s Expected to matericlise,
long term
Toxation - The impact of + Additonal expenditures due to higher cost of * Alignment to 15014001 Environmental £
the emergence of new capial Manogement Syslems
c\lr‘ncle feglélohogs such * Reduced ccpiiu| ond chmcing from investors * Working with Government ond industry partners
as increased cabon . ;
o » Reduced revenue due fo passengers choosing other on the lopics re\cmng to taxation and aviation
pricing and toxation lor the decarboni
arbonisanon
aviation secior modes of fransport
+ Engagement with industial research such as
* Expected to matenalise: FlyZero and partnerships with HyNet on hydrogren
short term fuel
Fossil tuel replocement ¢ Reduced passenger throughput due to business * Working with Government and industry pariners £
p passeng ghp ) ¥ P
- Provision of low disiuption resulting from lower oircialt capacity on the decarbonisalion of ovialion e.g. Jet Zero
carbon energy and owing, In tere, {o longer refuelling turnaround tmes Council Sustainable Aviation and FlyZero
oss;)cwofed infrosrlucn‘ne% » Potential operationcl disruptions as a result of * Lipdotng Sustamable Development Plans {SDP) for
31 fhe airpart fo en?b € '? potential market-inabikity to scale up, therefore each of out airparts
CCG'POWSO“O" et arcroll affecting the ovoilability and increasing the price of
ond girport operctions aliamative fuels.
= Expecied 1o materialise » Negative sickeholder perceptions cf airlines may
medium term also anse if the airport is iess able to postion itself
favourably
Reduced financing ~ * Reduced capital and financin * Working with Government and industry parners on [
el P 2] G y P

Investor mavement towards
de-carbonisation options
moy teoad to higher
barrowing costs and
chollenges with tefinancing

* Expecied lo materialise,
short term,

Increased expenditure due to potential higher rates
on lending

Reduced revenue le.g. from deloyed plonring
approvals os ¢ result of new or stiicter policies)

the decarbomsation of aviation e g. Jet Zero Courcil.
Sustainable Aviation and FlyZero

Active member of the Evropean and World Trade
Association Arports Council International

Engaging with investors ard lenders & ensoring
transparent carbon reporfing

In conclusion, our analysis of climate-related financial risks has been a crucial step in our commitment to sustainability and we are proud to report on our
progress so tar. By assessing these risks, we hove goined valuable insights *hat enable us to 1ake proactve measures to mitigate them eftectively.

We undersiand that our journey towards sustainability is ongoing ond we remain dedicated ta refining our understanding of climote risks and their
impact. Moving forward, we will cortinue our analysis and research, working clasely with industry partners to deepen our knowledge and build
confidence in quantifying more complex risks. This includes assessing the infrastructure changes required to support future hydrogen and electric airaraft,
as we believe these lechnologies will ploy a vital role ir shaping the sustainable future of aviation

Furthermore, we aim to evaluate and quantity climate-related opportunities identified through the TCFD process. We understand that tackiing climate
change not only presents risks but also opens doors to innovotive solutions ond business prospects. By harmessing these opportunit.es. we can drive

positve change ond contiibute to @ greener ond more sustaineble cviaton sector.
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METRICS AND TARGETS

Since 2007 we bave reperted our approach o reducing direct cartbon emissions. Qur airports wers e fisl i lhe UK 10 achleve carbon reutral sialus which is
cerified through partcipation at Level 3+ {Neutality] of the Airpert Carbon Accreditation pragramme. Within our CSR Strategy we have o stralegic pricrity fo achieve
net zero carbon emissions from our ciport operations by 2038 of the lates!. To achieve tis commitment, our progress agomst our CSR Strategy is regularly reviewed
and reported on o relevant siakeholders,

We measure, monitor and disclose our emissions from sources that we own or cantiol (Scope 1), emissions from the energy we purchase (Scope 2} and emissions
from our velue chain {Scope 3} annually in fine with the UK Govemnment's Sreamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting [SECR) and foliowing the guidance of
Greenhouse Gas Profocol Corporate Standard. We disclose absolute greenhouse gas emissions and an industry-specific carbon intensity measure, which is
emissions per traffic unil (whete traffic units are equivalent to 1,000 passengers or 100 tonnes of freight and mail).

We ensure that the: reporting of our greenhouse gas emissions is insightfiul and fransparent. We hove been publicly disclosing our greenhouse gas emissions for
over o decade, with reports regularly enhanced through methodology improvements and the calculation and disclosure of a wider range of ingirect emissions. Qur
greenhouse gos foofprin is audited by independent thid party TUV Nord I addition 1o this, we furher discuss our progress cganst ous CSR Srategy " Working
togeter for o brightes bture’ and its chmalereloted largets in our dedicated CSR Report and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Report'. Futher details of our SECR
emissions can be found on poge 38.

Wie are commined 1o achieving net zero carbon aperations by 2038, To bridge the gap towards our ret zero targel, we have sel cmbitious commitments that form
part of our CSR Strategy Working together for a brighter future. By 2030 all our gitport mfrastucture will un on renewable energy. reducing our carben toorprint and
conibuting to a greener future. Addiionally, we are transtioning our vehicle fleet o ultra-low emission vehicles. A process with a target completion date of 2030. Ve
are alsc implementing o comprehensve charging infrastrucrure for eleciric vehicles across our airports.

Furhermore, we recognise the impariance of otemaive healing solufions We are actively exploring innovative technalogies 1o reduce and ultimately efminote
our reliance on traditicnal gas-fired systems for healing and hat water. This commiment underscores our dedication to sustainable practices ond reducing carbon
CTISSIONS Ihroug hout our operations.

When ossessing business coses, our consideraions include chmate-related costs such as those associoted with uhifies. carben offsets and emission trading
scheme compliance.

TRANSITIONING TO A LOW-CARBON AND CLIMATE-RESILIENT FUTURE

As we move forward, we remain committed o our ongoing efforts 1o address chmate change. We are closely moniloring emerging interdependencies
reloted to both physical and transitional climate 1sks and opportunities. Werking closely with local authonties, the Envirenment Agency, water supply
companies, and tansportation providers, we are stiving fo better understond and address these complex issues. Qur engagement with local forums is
ongoing, ond we remain commitied o exploring opponunities for partnership and colioboration both within and beyond the aviation sector,

At the some time, we are locused on assessing the financial risks associated with climate change and the transition lo o low-carbon economy. We

are determined 1o toke proactive steps 1o miligate these nsks, ond progress in this areo will be closely monilored and reperted to our Audit and CSR
Committees. We are also working to measure our financial risk against the transition and physical chmate-related nisks to our business. Progress against
these actions will be reporied to the Audit Cammittee and CSR Committee ond included in our next Annuat Repert

Acapy ulthe Pepor cen be foand e the fallow ing 3o ghor on e MAG website hitpa 2/ wwew mogonn pe ts eomgiesponsibie-business,con-reporls
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Directors’ report

The directors present therr Annual Report on

the affairs of Manchester Airports Holdings
Limited {'the Compuony’}, together with the
avdited financial statements, for the year ended
31 Morch 2023,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal acivities of the Company and its
subsidianes [the 'Group’) dunng the year were
the ownership, operotion ond development of
airpor faciliies in the UK and the operation of
oirport reloted octivities in the UK and North
Americo. The Group's revenues were derived
from aircraft and possenger hondling charges,
airpon-based commercial ond relal octivisies,
and property

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE
DEVELOPMENTS

The consolidated results for the year under
review commence on page 123. The Company
imends to confinue its development of the
Group as an opersator of high-quality airports
ond girpert faciies both within the UK and
overseas. The Group has successfully rovigated
the Cowd- 1@ pandemic and the operctional
challenges of the recovery phase starting in
early 2022, With firm financial toundations
due to pruden! stewardship and the Group's
operating mode!, MAG will look af new
investment opporiunities, and delivering new
taciliies and enhanced service levels. A mare
detailed review of the Group's principol
activities tesulls and tuture deveiopments is
pravided in the Chair's and CEQ's reviews, the
overview of the period and finance statements
sections of *he Strateac report

DIVIDENDS AND TRANSFERS TO
RESERVES

The refained ioss for the year of £159.5m
[2022" loss of £321 3m) alter dividends paid

of £nil 12022 £nil) will be transferred to
reserves. In addition, the retained loss reserves
olso included a gain of £1379m relofing to
revision of acteorial assumptions on the Group's
defined benefit pension schemes net of fax,
£70m loss reloting to effect of change in rate of
carporation tax and a foreign exchange gain of
£57m on MAG's US investments, net of tax.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company directors during the yeor are
detailed on pages 56 to &l

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

This Annual Report ond Fincnaal Statements
hove been prepared in odherence with The
Woates Governance Principles for Large
Prvate Companies which can be found ot
hitps-/ /v fre.org.uk.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has procedures in ploce for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a
drector become aware that they, or therr
connected parties, have an interest in an
existing or ploposed rcnsaction with the
Group, they should notity the Board in writing
as soon as reasonobly practicable internal
controls ase in place 1o ensure thar any related
porty transactions nvolving directors, or *heir
connected partes. are conducted onan arm’s
length bosis. Direciors have a continuing duty to
update any changes to these conflicts,

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

The Company's Articles of Association provide
that, to the extent permitted by the Campanies
Act 20006, the Company may indemnity any
director, or former director, of the Company
or of any ossocicted companies, against any
liabifity. Directors’ and officers’ insurance

has been established to provide cover for all
Directors against their reasonoble actons on
behalf of the Compony.

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

In accordance with section 418 of the
Compaonies Act 2006, the directors who held
office at the date of approval of this directars’
report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware. there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's cuditor is unaware;
and ecch director has token oll the steps

that they cught 1o have 1aken os o director 1o
make themselves aware of any elevant cudit
information and to establish thot the Company’s
guditor is aware of that information

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Details of contracts of significance with
Manchester City Counail ore set out in noie 37
jo these finonciol stoterments.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Boord as a whole, including the Audit
Committee members, consider the noture and
extent of the risk manogement fromewaork, and
the risk profile that is acceptoble in order 1o
achieve the Group's stralegic objectives. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the work done
by internal audit, monogement, the Committee
itself and the Board, on the assessment of the
Group's principol risks, including theit impaet
on the prospects of the Company The moast
significant srategic, corporate and operational
risks ond uncenainties, and the prevailing
approach 1o their management, are detaled on
pages 82 to 87

Horzon scanning regarding new and emeiging
risks rokes place at 1elevant goveinance torums,
Risk and Audit Boards and Boord and Audit
Committee meatings; where relevant, the nisk
detail ond mitigation strategies have been
included in the narrotive below.

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND
CARBON REPORTING (SECR)

As detailed on poge 38.

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOING CONCERN

The directars hewe prepared the Group ond
Company financial statements on a going
concem basis. In assessing the going concern
positior: of the Group, the directors have
considered the cash low and ligudity of

the Group, tor the peried to 30 September
2024, and the coresponding impact of cash
headroom and financial covenants associated
with the Group’s financing arrangements.

In assessing going concem the directors hove

considered:

s the Group’s business plan forecast where
passenger numbers increase to 5% of
pre-Covid- 19 levels in FY24 and include
p\onned mitlganng actions that are within
mancgement's control,

* the successful refinancing of o £360m
bond due to mature on 2 Apiil 2024, and

* g downside scenario where possenger
numbers in FY24 are 88% of pre-
Covid-19 levels.

The Group is expecled o maintoin positive cash
headroom in excess of £315m for the period

to 30 September 2024 in the business plen
case which reduces to £198m inthe downside
scenario. In all cases, the Group complies

with its covenant testing throughout the going
concern period.
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The directors hove concluded that the Group
can maintain sufficient liquidity over the period
lu 30 Seplember 2024 and will comply with
the covenant financial lesting at each reporting
date This, coupled with the successful securing
of o commitment of g biidge to bend facility for
the refinancing of the bond maturing in 2024,
has resulted in the directors concluding thot #

is appropricte to continue to account for the
Croup as a going concern

furither detal of the direciors” assessment

ol going concerm is defailed in the Basis of
Preparation note in the accounting policies on
poge 109
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Directors’ report continued

THE GROUP’S PROSPECTS

The direclors have included the following
statement with regards 1o the Group's prospects
to comply with the Wates Principle Six 1o
provide o fair, bolance and understandable
stotement of the Group's posinon and prospects.

The directors have assessed the prospects of
the Group over a three-year period, taking
into account the Group's current position and
the potential impact of the principal risks and
uncertainfies se! out on pages 82 1o 87. These
tisks include macroeconomic, polincal and
geopoltical uncerainty {and their impact on
the pasi-Covid- I recovery|, chmate change
ond the delivery ol its the major capral projects.
Based on this assessmeni, the directors confirm
that they hove o reasonoble expectation that
the Group wilt be able 1o continue in operation
and meet iis liobiies as they fall due over the
period 1o 31 March 2026

The directors have determined that o three-
year period 1o 31 March 2028 constitutes an
appropriate period cver which it is to provide its
prospects statement. This is the period focused
on by the Beard during the strategic planning
process, is aligned to detailed passenger
projections and contains the major refinancing
actions required by the Group i the near

term. The directors have ne reason to beheve
the Group will not be viable over o longer
period, however given the inherent uncertainty
involved. itis believed that this presenis users of
the Annucl Report with o recsonable degree
of confidence while sill providing ¢ longer-
term perspective.

In making this assessment the directors confirm
hat they have o reasonable expectation thar
the Group can contnue In operaton and

mee? s labilifies throughout the period. The
directers have considered the potential impact
of the current macraeconomic clmote on the
cashflow and tiquidity of the Group aver the
period, together with the conrespanding impact
on the covenonts ossocictes with the Group's
financing arrangements, and the requirement of
the Group fo refinance a £36G 0m bond which
matuies in April 2024

The Group is subject to financial covenants

on s secured funding anangements, being
leveroge {Net Debt/adjusied EBITDA'} and
interest cover (odjusted EBITDA! less tax/net
finance charges] The covenants are fested half
yearly on 31 March and 30 September.

The Group’s committed focilities a1 31 March
2023 comprised: £1 460 Om of bonds.
£002.0m of shoreholder loans, and a
£500.0m Secured Revolving Credi Facility
{'RCF). of which £ail was drawn at the year-
end. In addition, the Group also has access

to o committed £90.0m Liquidity Facilty, In
May 2022 the Group renegofiated the RCF
and tiquidity Facitiies with their maturity dates
extending to May 2028. and subsequently
exercised an option for a further 12 monh
malurity extension taking these faciliies 1o May
2028 Additicnally, a committed bridge 1o
bond facility secured by the Group provides
assurance around the refinancing of the
£360.0m bond which matures in Apnl 2024
The remaining £ 1,100 Om of Group bonds

witl moture between 2034 and 2044 These
lacilifies provide a Group liquidity position with
headivom us ot 31 March 2023 omounting 10
£56).6m, compnsing £67.6m net cosh in band.
urdrawn RCF of £484 Om and g £100m
undrawn avarlable overdrab facily,

The recovery from Covid- 19 during FY23 sove
passenger numbers increase overall from

33 0% of pre-Covid- 19 levels experienced in
£Y22 to 86% in FY23. The impact of this bounce
back in activity levels has been reflected in
business performance. which. when measured
at the adjusted EBITDA! level. increased by
2298% from g £125.6m profitin FY22 to a
profit of £412 Om in FY23. As a result of this
recovery MAG has been able 1o refaunch

the Group s Transtormanon Progrommes ond
recommencemert payment of shareho'der loan
n‘erest. Management wilk continue 1o monitor
the impoct of the ecoromic environment on
cgemard tevels in arder that mitigaring cash

and cost measures can be odapted to reflect
cerivity levels

Based upon this strong trading position from
FY23, the assessment of the Group's prospects
undertaken by the direciors considered
industry expeciations of demand levels in
F¥24 and beyond Current expeciations are
that passenger levels will return to 95% of
pre-Covid-19 levels in FY24 with pre-Covid- 19
activiry levels being onrcired in FY25. The
torecasts estimate covenant complance
during the three yeor penod ond o fiquidity
headroom in excess of £100m throughaout.
The Basis of Preparation on poge 109 sets out
the Gioup's going concern conclusion. The
assessment has also considered the impact of
chmate change in a sepatale scenano which
aligns with the Group’s TCFD reporting on
poge 88, The impact hos been considered

in the Group's going concern, viability and

impairment assessments,

in addition, the Group also recognised the risk
that the rote of infrostruciure spending to support
the re-launched Transformation Programmes ot
Manchester ond Stansted is partly funded by
the raising of two addtional ¢, £300m bonds
within the three year perod. Management's
cunent expectation 15 that the Group will be
oble 1o obtein ooditional funding as required
and the continued oppetite to provide funding
10 the sector % supported by both MAG's
recent raising of o committed bridge 16 bond
focility, #s RCE and Liquidity Facilines as well
as other debt issuonce by comparable UK and
European peer anparts.

The Group con, where necessary, also
undericke potential mitigoting oclions wirhin
its contral. This can include cuting of hurther
discretionary expenditure and delaying of
capital expendiure Hoving considered all
the relevari requirements inclucing MAG s
financia! position, forecast and reasonable
downsides 1ogether with acions avaloble
to miigote impaocrs he directors deem it
sppropriate that the Group remaen viable over
the hree year period 1o 31 March 2026
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Employment policies

The Group's employment policies are legally
comphant, and o progranne hus comneenced
to review, modemise and simplify all our
employment policies. The Group is commitied
to trecting cll employees and job applicants
foirly ond on mert, regordless of age. disability,
gender and gendes reassignment, marital

and civi partnership status, pregnoncy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, and sexual
orientation. The Group does nol tolerate
harassment, discnminghon or victimisation

of any kind, As part of MAG's commitment

to crecting on inclusive environment for oll
colleagues, several Colleague Resource
Groups [Women's Network, Fly with Pride,
Carers’ MNetwork, LGBTQIA+, Race & Ethnicity
and Men's Mental Heolth} have been
established 1o form communities of interest, help
inferm the business and support positive change
in the orgonisation If an employee becomes
disabled, every eftort is made 1o make
appropriale ressonable adjusiments to retain
them in their cutrent role or provide retraining ot
redeployment within the Group.

Apprentices and the

National Living Wage

MAG remains lully supportive of
apprenticeships. The impac' of Covid- 19 meant
that recruitment into apprentice programmes
was paused but we have now recommenced
recruimen: of opprentices, with the design o
new programmes, and driven by o dedicated
Early Talent Manager. with the view to building
diverse talent pipelines as part of srategic
worklorce planning. MAG fully comphes

with all of its obligations under the Natona!
tiving Woge.

1 Asexplamed in Other Infarmanan ol the financial
slatements on poge 173

Consultation and cemmunication
Consultation with employees or their rade
vtiivt/eleded representatives has been crntical
through this period of uncertainty due to the
business impacts of the pondemic and there
has been o continuous dialogue at all levels,
with the aim of ensuning thot therr views are
token into account when decisions are being
made thot moy aftect their interests. As part

of the trade union recognition agreements
vatious employee forums exist for eoch business
area, and more information on consultotion is
provided in the annual CSR report.

It has been cntical 1o ensure colleagues and
leaders are kept updated through this period of
change and there have been regular briefings
in relation to key business and operational
developmenis. These are cascaded thioughout
the organisation via mulliple communication
channels such as weekly newsletters and

onfine forums.

FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
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POLICY AND PRACTICE ON PAYMENT
OF CREDITORS

The Group's current policy concerning the

payment of the majornity of its rade creditors

is to follow the CBI's Prompt Payment Code,

copies of which are ovailable trom the CBI,

Cannon Ploce, 178 Cannon Steet, London

ECAN 6HN. For other suppliers the Group's

policy is to:

» settle the terms of payment with those
suppliers when agreeing the terms of eoch
fransaction;

s ensure that thase supphers are made
aware of the terms of payment by inclusion
of the relevant terms in conttacts; and

* pay in accordance with 1is contractual and
other legal obligations.

These payment practices opply to all poyments
‘o creditors tor revenue and copital supplies

of goods and services, without exception

The period of credit ioken by the Group at

21 Morch 2023 was 27 days (2022: 21
days), reflecting the average number of

days between receipt of the invoice and us
subsequent poyment

Modern Slavery Act 2015

Our principal reference point for slavery and
human trafficking is the definitions se! out in

the Modern Slavery Act 2015, We recognise
that stavery and human trafficking can occur

in many forms such as forced labour, child
labour, domestic servitude, sex trafficking and
wortkplace abuse. We aie also aware that
torced labour as a form of slavery includes
debt bordage and the restriction ol a person’s
freedom of movemert, whether that be physical
or non-physical. for exomple. by the withholding
of o worker's identity popers We use the terms
‘slavery’ and "human trafficking’ to encompass
all of these various farms of coerced labour

We understond the imporiant role that MAG
has to play ond as a socally respansible
organisation, sa we adop! the highest
professional standards and comply with ail
laves, reguiations and codes epplicable jo

our business. No form of modern slavery 1s
acceptable In aur gperations. of i those
companies who work with us ar on our behalf.

We confinue to ‘oke steps 1o improve our
practices o dentity ond eliminate modern
slavery which may occur within our business,
supply chains and across our citpor
operations As our cirports are a goteway

for both entry into and ext friom the Urired
Kingdom, this presents addinonal challenges

in our approoch o preventing modern slavery
Consequently, we take our respansibilives very
senously and partner with Slave-Free Allionce,
border and police forces who suppon us in
our approach to fackling mode:n slovery,

and out progress is reviewed wih cur CSR
Commitee to ensure Board aversight. Keeping
everyone safe, regling everyone with respect
ond doing the right things are core o our
values, which underpin everything we do

All senior leaders have receved ennonced
ypes
of Madem Slavery and Human Trafficking,

raning and owareness on the various

hows 1 spot e signs ond the varnous routes

1o 1eport concerns, Al colleogues continue 1o
receve annual education and training which
cominues o evolve ond are expected ‘o réport
concerns, and manogement are expected 15
act upon them.

Further detailed infermation con be found using
the iink balow:

htips/ /wanw.mogairpornts.com /media /1803 /
maodern-slavery-tfransparency -statement-2022-
final.pdf

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL
DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group
during the yecs totalled £1.3m (2022 £0.3m).
The donations were ofl made o recognised
local and national charities for o variety of
purposes. lt is the Group's policy not 1o moke
contribufions to political parties.

AUDITOR

The Group assesses the effectiveness of the
oudit process and the independence of the
ouditor on an annual basis. The evaluation of
audit efectiveness takes ino account the views
of both manogement and the Non-Executive
Directors across o numbet of a'nbues. The
independence of the external auditor considers
both the guantum and the nature of non-oudit
services provided by the auditor during the year
ond ensures compliance with both the Group s
pohey ond the FRC s ethical guidonce.

The stafutary cuditor, Ernst & Young LLP, was
oppointed in the year and has expressed

their wilingness to continue in office. A written
resclution relating to the re-appoiment for the
year ending 31 March 2024 was put before
the Compony’s Boord on 27 June 2023 and
was duly opproved.

The repest waos approved and auherised by the
Board and wos issyed on beha'l of the Boord

Charlie Cornish
Chief Executive MAG

For and on behalf of *he Board of Directeors of
the Company
4 July 2023
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the

Annual Report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and the Group and Parent
Curapony Nnundiul sluleinenls in decordence
with opplicable low and regulations.

Compony law requires the directors to
prepare Group and Parent Company financicl
statements for each financial year. Under that
taw they have elected to prepare the Graup
financial statements in accordance with UK-
adopted international accounting standards
and opplicable law and have elected 1o
prepare the Parenl Company financial
statements in accordance with UK accounting
stondards and applicable faw (UK Generally
Accepted Accounling Practice), including

FRS 102 the Financial Reporting Stondard
applicable in the UK and Republic ot Irefond.

Under company law the directors must nat
approve the financial staiements uniess they
are salsiied Ihal they give a true and tair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Porent
Company and of the Group's profit of loss for
that period. In preparing ecch of the Group
and Parent Company financial statements, the
direciors are requited to:

* select suiloble accounting policies and then
opply them consistently:

* make judgements ond estimates that are
reascnable, relevant, 1eliable and prudent:

» forthe Group financial statements, state
whether they have been prepored in
occordance with UK adopted intermational
accounting standords;

* for the Porenl Compoany financial
stalemerts, state whether applicable UK
accounfing stondards have beer followed,
subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial

stotements;

*  assess the Group ond Perert Compony's
ability to continue as a going cancern,
disclesing, os applicable, matters relored to
going concern; and

= use the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend 1o liquidate the
Group or the Parent Company or fo cease
operations, of hove no realistic alternative
but o do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping
odequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the Parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Parent Company ong enable them to ensure
that its financicl statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

They are re5p0n5|b|e for such internal controt
as they determine 1s necessary to enable the
preparation of finoncial statements that are
free from matenial misstatement, whether due to
froud or ermor, and have general responsibility
for taking such steps os are reasonably

open to them o sefeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect kaud and
ather irregularities.

The ditectors are responsible for the
mamtenance ond ntegrity of the corporate

and finoncial information included on the
Company’s webste. legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report

OPINION

We have audited the financial siatements of Manchester Airports Holdings Limited {'the parent company'} and its subsidiaries tthe ‘group’) for the year
ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Stotement of Firancial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consofidated Statement of Cash Flows ond the related notes 1 1o 39, including o
summary of significant accounting policies and the Company Statement of Financial Position, Compeny Statement of Changes in Equity and the related
nofes 1 1o 9, including @ summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporiing framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
group financial siatements is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102
“The financial Reporiing Stondard applicable in the UK and Republic of refand” (United Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting Fractice}

in our opinion:
* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and of the parent company’s offairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the group's loss for
the year then ended:

= the group financial statemenls have been properly prepared in occordance with UK adopted infernational accaunting standards;
* the porent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice: and

* the financiol stalements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted aur audit in accordance with International Standords on Auditing [UK] {15As [UK]) and applicable low Qur responsibiliies under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilifies for the audit of the financial siatements section of our repon. We are independent of the
group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are refevant fo our audil of the financial stafements in the UK. including the FRC's Ethical Standard
s applied 1o other eniifies of public interesl, and we have fulfilied our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient ond appropriate 1o provide a basis for cur opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial

siolements is appropriate Our eveluation of the directors assessment of the group and parent company's ability 1o continue 1o adopt the going cancern

basis of accounting included the following procedures

*  We ohiained monagement's Going Concern assessmant including the cash ferecas: and forecasi covenant caleulation which covers the period 10
30 September 2024. The Group hos modelled a base scenario and downside scenano in their cash forecasts in order lo incorporate unexpecicd
changes 1o the forecasted liquidity of the Group A reverse siress test was also medelled to demonstrate what factors would fead o the Group
utilising alt liquidity or breaching the financial covenant during the going concern period;

+  We challenged the appropriateness of the methods used 1o calculate the cash forecosts and covenant calculations “o determing they were
appropriately sophisticaied 1o be able to make an assessment on going concern,

*  We ossessed the approproteness of the going concern assessment penod ond considered whether any events or conditions toreseeable atter the
penod indicote a longer review period is required,

+  We performed procedures over the integrity of the modelling, verifying the orthmefical accuracy of the cash flow forecast models and vouching the
calculation of heodroom in respect of the financial covenant test ratios;

*  We onalysed the Group's historical torecasting aceurazy 1o evcluate porentiol optimism 'n future forecasts and compared the forecass 1o post year-
end acal resuits

*  We tested the assumptions inciuded in ecch modelied scenario for the cash forecas and covenant calculation by camparing to historical octual
results ang third party mdustry forecas's;

*  Weinspecied the inancing agreements in place and understood the terms and conditions including those related to covenant test rotio

requirements;

*  We involved EY Debt Advisory specialists o read and eveluore the Barclays bridge ‘o bond commitmen lener ard focilties ogreement in place o
ensure that the £3460m bona due to mature 1n April 2024 can be repaid.

*  We cansidered the mitigating factars identified by management, in particular, regarding the deferral of capitol expenditure, 1o ensure that they are
vathin cantrol of the Group;

¢ We compared the forecass used I the guing cunuens assessment o these used for other purposes (i e, imprirmeant);

= We reviewed the company's going concern disclosures incluced in the annuct repori in erder 1o assess that te disclosures were appropnate ord in
contamity with the reparting stendards



OVERVIEW STRATEGIC REPORT GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONCLUSIONS KELATING TO GOING CONCERMN . 1!~ T

Management have modelled a base case ond downside scenario, neither of which indicote o liquidity or covenant breach They have: also modelled
& reverse siress test which 1s considered remole based on current passenger levels and industry predictions. A bridge to bond feciliy is ovailable and
sufficient 1o ensure the £360m bond maturing in Apnl 2024 can be repaid if o new bond ssue should not loke ploce in odvance of that date

Based on the work we have performed, we hove not identified any moterial uncenainties relating to events or conditions thar, indwidually ar collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the group and parent compony's chility to continue as a going concern tor the period 1o 30 September 2024,

Our responsibliies and the responsibiliies of the directors with respect to going concern are desciibed in the relevant sections of this repoit. However,
because not all future events or conditions can be predicred, this statement is not o guaraniee as to the group’s ability to confinue as a going concen

OTHER INFORMATION

The other infermution comgrises the information included in the annual report set aul on pages 1 1o 188, other thon the financicl siatements and our
auditor's report thereon. The direciors are responsible for the other information contained within the onnual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otharwise explicily stated in this report, we do noy

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Our responsibility is to read the other informalion and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtaned in the course of the oudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies of apparent matenal misstalements, we are required o defermine whether this gives nse 1o o material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s o moterial missialement of the other information we are

required to report that fact.
We have nothing to repart in this regard.
OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinien, bosed on the wosk undertaken in the course of the audit.
»  the information gven in the stiategic repor and the directors’ ieport for the financiel year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent

with the finoncial statements; and

+  the shrategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accardance with applicable legol requirements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED 1O REPORTBY EXCEPTION

tn the light of the knowledge and undersianding of the group and the parent company and iis environment obiained in the course of the audit. we have
not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or direciors’ report,

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the lofiowing matters in relation 1o which the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o reporl 1o you i, in our opinion:
* adequate accounting records hove not been kept by the parent company, o1 refurns adequate for our audit have not been received hrom branches
not visied by us; or

= the parent company financicl stolements ore not in agresment with the accounting recards and returns; ar
+  cettan disclosures of direclors’ remunerotion specified by law are not made; or

* we have nol received all the informotion and explanations we require for cur audit

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained maors fully in the direciors responsibilities statemant sef out on page 103 the direciors ore responsible lor the preparction of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and lain view, and for such intemal control as the directors determine is necessary lo enuble the
preparchon of financial statements that are free from materiol misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error

In prepaiing the financial statements, the directors are 1esponsible for assessing the group’s and the porent company's ohility to continue s o going
cancem, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounling unless the diectors either intend 1o
liguidate the group o the parent company ot lo Lease operations, or have no realisic allernative butto do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O obiectives ore 1o obton reasonable ossurance about whether the financial stalements os a whole are free fram materiol misstatement, whether due
to houd or enor, and to issue an auditor's repart thal includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s @ high level of assuronce but is not a guarantes that
an audit conducted in accordance with 15As {UK] will ahways detect @ matenal misstalement when 1t exisls. Misstatements can arise Fom hiaud or error
ond are considered mateial i, indinduslly or in the aggregute, they could reasonably be expecied 10 influence the economic decisions of users 1aken

on the basis of these finoncial statements

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lows ond regulations. We design procedures in line with ous responsibiliiies, outlined
abave, to detect requiaiities, including fraud. The: risk of not detecting @ material missigtement due to fraud is higher than the nsk of not delecting one
resuiing hiom enor, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for exomple, forgery o1 intenticonal misiepresentations, or through collusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecing irregularities. including fraud 1s detaled below. However, the primary responsibility for the
prevention and delection of froud rests with boih those charged with governance of the entity and management

Cur approach was cs follows:

*  We oblained an understanding of the legal and regulatory ramewaorks that are applicable to the group ond determined that the mast significont are
Comparies Act 2006, Financial Conduct Authority listing Rules, 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, Eurapean Securities and Markets Authority
regulations, UK taxahon legislation, Civil Aviaton Act 202 and Air Novigation Grder 2016

s We understood how Manchester Airports Ho\dmgs Limited 15 compiy\ng with those frameworks by making enquines with management, those
chorged with goveinance, intemal audit and those responsible for legal and complionce marters and alse reviewing the enlity code of condurt and
whistle-blower hotline,

* We assessed the susceptibility of the Company's financial skatements 1o moterial missiotement, including how fraud might accur by assessing the nsk
of traud absent of centrols, and then identifying the connhols which are in place at the entity level and whether the design of these controls is sufficient
for the prevention and detecion of fraud. We alsc consider the nsk of management oveiride and consider the design and implementation of contiols
ot the financial statement level 1o prevent this.

*  Bosed on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identity noncompiiance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures mcluded
involving our forensics team 1o assess any potentiol areas of higher nesk. We lollowed up on these areas 1o perform further procedures 1o assess F
there was ony nsk of flaud. We also 1ead minutes of key boaids and commiviees, read communications with regulators and legal advisors, inguired
of mansgement and those chaiged with goveimance. and performed targeled journal entry testing for journals with fraudulent characterisiics

A further descripiion of our responsibiliiies for the audir of the financial siatements is located on the Financial Reporting Counal's websie af
hitps / /wwaw lrc.oig.uk /auditorsiesponsibilifies. This description forms part of our cuditar's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the company’s members. as o body 1n occordance with Chapter 3 of Pant 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work
hos been undertoken so that we might stote to the compuny’s members those moters we o1 required 1o siale 1o them in an oudiar's repon and for ne
other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by low. we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other thar the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report o1 for the opinions we have formed.

By € Waune, W

Victorio Venning -+ oo e
tor and on behalf of Einst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor

Manchester

4July 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting policies

GENERAL INFORMATION

Manchester Airports Holdings Limited {the ‘Company'] is o private limiled liability compony incorporoted and domiciled m England and Wales in
the UK. The Company is the Parent Company and the ultimate holding comparny of the Group. The address of the regustered office is Olympic House,
Manchester Airport, Manchester, M@Q 13X

The principal activities of the Group are set out within the Directors’ Report. These consolidated financicl statements were approved for 1ssue by the Board
of Directors on 4 July 2023,

MAG s principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated linanciol statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied 1o the current year and previous year unless otherwise sioted. These accounting policies apply the historical cost convention modified
to include certan tems at tair value.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred 1o as the 'Group'] and equity account the
Group's interest in associates and Joint Ventures. The parent company financial stalemenls present information about the Company as a separate entity
and not about its graup. The Group ond Company financial stalements are presented in sterling and are shown as millions rounded to the nearest one
decimal place, except where otherwise siated.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and opproved by the directors in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
("UK-adopted IFRS'}. The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with FRS 102; these are presented on
poges 18] to 186G

The group has changed the format of the income statement presentation 1o include the operating expenses line and dlso present separalely finance
income and finance cost. The comporative information has been restated. There is no impact on the operating profil, profit after laxes, equity, cash flows
and earnings per shore

GOING CONCERN

The directors have prepared the Group and Company financial statements on a going concern basis. In ossessing the going concern position of the
Group, the ditectors have considered macro-economic faciors such as the impact of the present high inflaticnary economic envirenment [e.g increased
energy costs orising from the Ukraine conflict, wage inflation) and rising interest rates. The resuliant impact on the Group's cash flow and liquidity, for the
period 1o 30 September 2024 {being the going concern assessment penod) has been assessed, as has the corresponding mpact of cosh headroom
and financial covenants associated with the Group’s financing arrangements.

The Group is subject to financial covenants on ils secured funding criangements, being leverage {Net Senior Debt/ad|usted EBITDA on o frozen GAAP
bosis) and interest cover {adjusted EBITDA on a frozen GAAP basis less tax paid /net finance charges on net senior debi]. The terms used in the covenant
caleulations, including frozen GAAP basis, have been defined and reconciled to GAAP measures in the Allernative Performance Measures note on
poge 173, The covenants are tested half yearly on 31 March and 30 September,

Al 31 March 2023, the Group hod available £676m of net cash and commited faciities comprised of. £1.460.0m of bonds, £202.0m of shoreholder
loans, and a £500.0m Secured Revalving Credit Facility [RCF), of which £nil was drown ot the year-end. In addition, the Group also has accessto @
committed £90 Om Liquidity Facility. In May 2022, the Group renegotiated *he RCF and Liquidity Faciliies with their marurity dates extending to May
2027 and subsequently exercised an option for a further 12 month maturity extension. toking these faciliies to May 2028. The Group'’s borrowing
fociimes, contain @ £360.0m bond which matures in Apnl 2024, The direciors’ current expectation is thot the Group will be able 1o successtully issue o
replacement bond in Q3 FY24 and the conlinued appetite of the market Io provide funding to the seclor is supported by both MAG s re-financing in the
prict year as well as other debt issuance by comparable UK and European peer airports. Howaver, since the bond has not yet been issued af the date
ol signing of these linancial statements the direciars have secured a binding bridge 1o bond commilment which provides assurance that the Group will be
able 1o repay the £360.0m bond when it folls due. The remaining £1,100.0m of Group bonds will mature between 2034 and 2044

Whilst the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2022 was prepared on a going concern basts it contained o moterial uncertointy as the Group,
under a severe bul plausible scenario, forecasled o potential breach of a financial covenant at 31 March 2023 The strong recovery in passenger
numbers experienced by the Group over the post 12 months ond the farecasis produced 1o cover the going concern ossessment period hove provided
confidence that @ matenal uncertainty no longer exisls. The directors will continue to closely monitor the macre-econemic factors 1o assess the impact

upon demand levels and flex the business response accordingly.
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GOING CONCERN < 1D
The directors’ going concern assessment considers the Group forecasts for the period to 30 September 2024, The recovery hom Covid- 19 during FY 23
sow passenger numbers increase averall from 33% of pre-Cowd- 19 levels experienced in FY22 1o 86% in FY23 and 92% lor the month of Maich 2023

The impact of this bounce back in activity levels has been reflecied in business petformance, which, when meosured at the adjusted EBITDA! level,
increased by 22@.8% trom @ £125.6m profit in FY22 to a profit of £412.0m in FY23. As o resull of this recovery MAG has been able fo relaunch the
Group's Transtormation Programmes and recommencement of payment of shareholder ioar interest. The Group's base case forecast of possenger
number projections include a business plan of @5% of pre-Covid- 19 {defined as FY20) levels for FY24 and returning to pre-Covid- 19 levels in FY25. The
levels of passenger demand in the torecast reflects the directors’ anlicipated rate of recovery and is aligned with indusiry expeclations

The forecasts include the successful refinancing of the Group's £360.0m bond and result in a mimmum liquidity headroom of £315.0m during the going
concern assessment period and complionce with MAG s financial covenants when lested at Seplember 2023: March 2024; and September 2024 The
torecasts also include the raising of additional finance for discrerionary expansionary capital expenditure. The directors expect o be able 1o access this
finance, as described above. However, should the finance nol be available, the expansionary copital expenditure would be deferred.

In oddition to the Group's business plan forecast of 95% of pre-Covid passenger levels the directors have also considered o downside scenario:

Downside scenario

In this scenornio passenger numbers are restricted 1o 88% of pre-Covid-19 levels in Y24 fin line with the lower tevel of cutrent industry forecasts], with
partial recovery to 92% of pre-Covid- 19 levels in FY25 In such a cose the Group is expected to maintain positive liquidity headroom in excess of £ 198m
tor the geing concern assessment period.

The forecast contans certan cash and cost mitigahon megsures 1o remaove areas of discretionary spend but keeps key regulatery or infrastructure spend
n p\oce‘ The Group can, where necessary, also underiake po!enhc\ mitigating acfions within its control, incfuémg cutting of odditional spend and
delaying of further copital expenditure

Under the downside scenario all testing throughout the going coneern assessment period is forecast 10 be compliont with the Group's covenonts when
tested at each reporting date.

In addifion, o reverse sress test has been prepared by management which demonstates the level of passenger numbers that would result in o covenant
breach, this equates 1o o reduction In passenger numbers of 77% of pre-pandemic levels, A fall to this level is considered to be mplousible, bosed on
current passenger tevels and industry predichons.

Based upon their assessments of the business plon case and the downside scenario detoiled obove, together with the bridge o bond commiment they
hove obtoined to ensure that the £360.0m matunng in the going concer period con be repaid, the directors hove concluded that the Group can meet
its covenant requirements and maintain sufficient liquidity throughout the going concern period and as such, it is appropriote for the Group fo continue fo
adopt the going concern basis for the oreporation of these accounts,

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There ore no new adopled IFRSs, interpretations issued by the nternohiorol Accoun'ing Stondords Board [IASB] ar by the IFRS Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC} that are applicoble for the period that have had a material impact on the Group's financial statements. During the year, the Infernational
Aceounting Storndards Board issued he follawing omendments to UK adopred international accounting stondords:

*  Onerous Contracts [amendments fo 1AS 37| - clarfication that the costs included in caleulating an orerous contract should inciude the allocation of
any costs diectly ottnbutable to completing the contract and not res'nicted ‘o incrementa’ expenditure;

s Clarification on definiton of assets and fiabilities when used in business combinatons;

*  Proceeds before ntended Use (Amendments to 1AS 16) clarified that any income eormed prior to Plort, Property & Equipment being brought into use
should be recognised in the income statement as opposed to nettea off agoing' the cost of *he asset and

*  Minor amendmenis to IFRS 1; IFRS 16; IFRS @ {clanifying which fees con be included in the assessment of a financial instrument modification) and 1AS 41

None of the omendments had a material impact upor the Group’s results,

As explaned m Ciher inlarmanion of the financal siotements 01 poge 173
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NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ 00 ] "W LIED)

New accounting standords, interpretations and amendments that are not yet olfective, and have not been adopted by the Group which are lo be
adopted on occounting periods commencing on or after 1 lanuory 2023:

* |[FRS 17 - Insurance controcts;
+ Disclosure of accounting policies ~ changes requirement from disclosing significant lo material policies;
» Clarificahon on the distnguishing changes of accounting policy 1o change of accounting estimates; and

+ Tieotmen! of defened fox assets and liabilities arising from a single fransaction.

The Group's financiol reporting will be presented in compliance with the new standards, amendments and interpretations above, which are nol expected
to have a material impact on the financial statements, in the FY 24 Annual Report. The Group has consistently applied its accounling policies for the current
ond prior year.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consclidaled financial statements include the income stalement, siatement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, siatement of
financial posifion, and statement of cosh lows of the Company and all of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled directly or indirectly by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power (directly or indirectly] 1o direct
relevant activities of an entity so as to impact variable returns to which they have nghts or are exposed. Subsidiaries hove been consolidoted from the
date that control commences uniil the date thot control ceases. At such time, any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the profit and lass.

Where o Cormpany’s inferest in o subsidiory is not 100% attributable to the shareholders of the Group then in occordance wilh the requirements of IFRS
10, 100% of the income, expenses, assets and liabillies are reflecied in the primary financial siatements. The split of the profit and net assets aliributable
to the Group's shareholders and the non-controlling interest are detaed in the siatement of comprehensive income ond the Gioup's equity ond reserves.

Interests in associate
Entities, other than subsidiaries, over which the Company {directly or indirectly) exerts significant influence, but not contrel or joint control, cre associales.
The Group's Invesiments in i1s assaciotes are accounted for using the equily method

Under the equity method, the imvestment in on ossocicte is initiclly recognised at cost. the carrying omount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate since the acquisinon dote.

Ajoint venture is an arrangement in which the Group haos oint control, whereby the Group has nights to the net assets of the crrangement, rather than
nghts 1o 1ts assets and obligations for its liobilines. The Group's invesiments in its assaciates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and hansactions, income and expenses and all profits and losses arising from intra-group tansactions, are elimincted in preparing
the Group financicl stafements.

FOREIGN TRANSACTIONS

The results and financial posifion of foreign aperations {nane of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a funcfional currency
different from the presentation curency are franslated nlo the presentation currency as foltows:

»  Assels and habilines for each bolonce sheet presented are tronsloted at the closing rate a the dote of that balaace sheet:

* income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive Income are transioted ot average exchange rates [unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rotes prevailing on the fronsaction dates, In which case income and expenses
are translated at the dotes of the ransactions); ond

*  The resulting excharge differences are recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income; and

*  Any exchange diferences arising from other than the Iranstation of the results and financial pesitian of foreign cperations are recognised through the
mcome stotement,
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REVENUE

The Group operates a number of revenue streams and accordingly applies methads for revenue recognition, based on the principles set aut in [FRS 15
The revenue recognised in any period is based on the satisfaction of perffarmance obligotions and on assessment of when control 1s fransterred to the
customer. Revenue is recognised either when the performance obligation in the contract has been satisfied {so ‘point in fime’ recognition) or ‘over time’ as
control of the goods of services is franslerred to the customer.

The following revenue recogniion criteria apply o the Group's main income streams.

Avigtion income:
= Vorious passenger charges for handling ond security, based upon the number of departing passengers, are recognised at point of departure,

+ Aircrafi depasture and arrival charges levied according to weight and time of departure/arrival, are recognised of peint of departure £ orrival,

*  Aurcraft parking charges based upen a combination of weight and time parked, ore recognised ot point of departure. The contracts entered into
are complex in nature ncluding the breadth of discounts and rebates that the Group olters Judgement is applied to assess the impact any contract
amendments hove when determining the appropricte contract term

Retail and commercial concession income:

» Concession income ham rerail and commercial concessions is recognised in the period to which it relates on an accruals basis. The contracts
entered into are long-term income-sharing concession agreements, with the concession fee based on wmover The Group has considered whether
IFRS 15 o1 16 applies to refail income but hove determined that MAG controls the retail unit space and as a result opples IFRS 15

* Income from airport lounges 1s recogmsed at the point of usage.

Car park income;
*  Conttact parking, pre-book porking and turn-up parking 1s recognised over the period to which it relates on a straight-line basis. The Group
considers the performance obligation is satished through the provision of a car park space for each day the car is parked
*  Where cor parking is booked through a third party and MAG own airport parking, income and related commissions are accounted for on o gross
basis as the Group is octing as a principal. rather than an agent. os MAG maintain conrrol over how the performance obligation to the customer is
satishied.

* Income cnd related commissions from the CAVU businesses

= Where soles are made on behalf of o third pony. they are accounted for on a net basis, as the Group does not obtain control over how the
performance obligation is satisfied to the customer. Revenue is recognised at the point of booking as CAVU's performance obligation has been
completed in hull ot that point in time; and

¢ Where CAVU is selling on behalf of the Group's cor parks the revenue 15 recognised or a gross basis, straight-line aver the baoking period

Property income (IFRS 16}:
* Rental income arising on investment properties 15 accounted for on a stroight-line basis over the lease term. The contracts being entered into cre long-
term lease orrongements, Inter-company revenue arising from rental berween the Group’s apercting segments has been eliminated.

Other income:
+ Passenger-related activities, such as travel services, check-in desks and in-flight catering.

+  Ultilifies recovery (electricty, gas, water) from tenonts recognised on an incurred basis under the terms of rechorge agreements with custormers, and
* Income from reFueHing activiry

Revenue is disaggregated at the ncame stream level, the three cirpernt segmrents generote revenue from all of the Croup's income sireams, CAVU
generaies only car parking, re'all and other income, ond the Group, consolidation and other segment gererates property ond other income. For the

purposes of the Group financial statements, ail inter-company wrnover is eliminated upon consolidation, whereas inter-company turnover is recognised
in the revenue of individual company financial statements.

All revenue from the Group's income strearrs is generoled in the UK other than some founge and cor park income which is generared in Nonb Amenca
and Austrolio by the CAVU segment.
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REVENUE ¢ i cED

At conract inception the 1olal ransaction price is estimated, being the amount to which the Group expecis 10 be entitled. This includes an assessment
of any vanable considerolion where the Group's performance may result in additional revenues based on the achievemens ol certain perormance
meosures or discounts/ rebates upon achieving certain pre-determined volumes. Reverue is only recognised ta the extent it is not highly probable

to reverse.

The Group's customer confracts include o diverse ronge of payment schedules dependent on the noture ond type of services being prowded. The Group
agrees payment schedules ot the beginning of contracts under which it receives payments threughout the term of the contracts. These payment schedules
may include peformance-based payments ot progress payments as well as regulor monthly or querterly paymenis tor ongeing service delivery.
Payments for transactional goods and services may be ot delivery date, in arrears or port poyment in advance, Where payments made are greater than
the revenue recognised at the period end date, the Group recognises o deferred income liability for this difference. Where payments made are less
than the revenue recognised of the penod end date, the Group recognises an accrued income asset for this ditference. All performance obligations are
largely satisfied within the financiol year with most contracts being coterminous with the Group's year end. This reduces the amount of judgements or
assumptions required fo estmate transaction phice of allocate revenue 1o performance obligotons

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accoonted for using the acquisiion method as ot the acquisition date, i.e when the Group assumes contfrol. Control exists
when the Group has the power to direct relevant activities of an enlity so as to obtain benefits from its actwilies. For acquisiions completed before 1 April
2010, aitnbutable cos's of the acquisition formed port of goodwill. For ccquisiions completed on or after 1 April 2010, atiributable costs of acquisition
are expensed in the income statement in the period incurred

For business combinations with ocquisiion dotes on or after 1 Apnl 2020, the Company has determined whether o particuler set of activities and assets
is o business by assessing whether the set of assets ond aclivities acquired includes, ot @ mirimum, an input and substantive process and whether the
acquired set hos the abllity to produce outputs.

Goodwill orising on ocquisitons represents the difterence between the fair value of the consideration given over *he fair volue of the assets, hobilities and
contingent liabiliies of an acquired entity. Positive goodwill is capiialised as an asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and is stated at
cost less any accumulated impaitment losses and is alloc ated 1o cash-generating units and is not omortised. It is tested annually tor imparment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumsiances indicote ¢ potential impairment Any impaoirment is recognised immediately in the Group’s consolidated
income statement and is not subsequently reversed

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

The Group evaluates ony contingent consideration payable and applies the applicaton guidance set out in IFRS 3 to the parhicular circumstances

of the transaction The contingent consideration will accordingly be cotegorised os part of the consideration of the acquisition or as past-acquisition
remuneration In all mstances where the confingent consideration is dependent upon the continuing employment of the recipients, the Group will treat the
amount Qs post-acquisition remuneration.

Contingent consideration is intially recognised at fair value ot the acquisition date. if the contingent consideration 1s cdlassified os equity. it is not re-
meosured ond sefflement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent charges to the foir value of the contingent consideration are recognised
in profit or loss

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
internally generated intangible assets

Development expenditure incurred in respect of individual projects is capitalised where the asset is identfiable and only when the fulure economic benefil
ot the project 1s probable. It is recognised only if all of *he following conditions are met

+ the Group con demonstiate the technical feasibility of completing the intang ble asset so thot it will be evailable for use or sale;
* the Group con demonstrate how the intangible asset created will generate future economic benefits;

*  the Group hos avoilable the resources to complete the asser;

¢+ the Group intends to complete that asset and has the future ability 1o sell or use the ossel; and

»  the development cast of the intangible asset can be measured reliably.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS /7 UL

Alter recognition, the cost model is applied requinng the asset to be held of cost less accumulaled amorlisalion and impairmens. Amortisation begins when the
asset is ready for use, This type of expenditure primanly relates to internally developed software, booking systems and website projecs for the Group.

Purchased intangible assers {software costs)

The capitalised computer soltware costs principally relote fo operating and financial software. There are no software as a service related ossets
included. Whete the sottware 15 integral ta the hordware the software will be recognised within property. plant and equipment. Customisation/
configuration costs of software are recognised as an intangible asset only where the Group ean demonstrate conirol of the asset.

Uselul economic lives

The useful economic lives of the Group's inlangible assets are finite and are detailed below:

Years
hetrobnk 30
Customes and opetalor relotionships 5-10
Brands 4 -10
Software & inteltectual property 5-10

Intongible assets are omortised on @ straight-line basis over the asset's useful economic life. If there are indications of impairment in the carrying volue of
the asset, then the recoveroble omount is estmated and compared 16 the canrying amourn

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment constiutes the Group's operational assel base, and includes terminol, airfield, car parking, land, plant, and cwner-occupied
property ossels. invesment praperties held to eam rentals or for capital growth are occounted for separately under IAS 40 Investment Properiies’

The Group hos elected to use the cost maded under 1AS 16 “Property. plant and equipment, os modified by the transitional exemption to account for
assets ol deemed cost that were revalued previously under UK GAAP Deemed costis the cost or vaiuaton of ossets as at T April 2005, Consequently.
property, plont and equipment is slated ot cost o deemed cour less occumulated depreciation. Cost includes ditectly attibutable own lobour.
Subsequent expenditure is copitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expendilure will flow to the Group. The
Group copitalises borrowing costs into the cost of property, plant and equipment, if the criteria under 1AS 23 are met Depreciaiion is provided to write
oft the cost of on asset on a straighr-line basis over the expected usetul economic lite of the relevant asset.

Expected uselul lives are set out below.

Yeors
Other land and buildings* 10-50
Airport infrastructure
Funway bose couse 0
Steelwork, civls and earthworks 30.50
Main apron and faxiway gssets 25-50
Unlity lighting and pipework 520
Runway, laxiway and apron surfacing 5-15
Aifield Iighting and equipment 515
Plant, fixtures and equipment
Escolators, elevators ond substations i5-30
Baggage systems, IT equipment and X-ray scanners 5-15
fixtures, fitings, tools and equipment 5-10
Motor vehicles 3-10

T o sepreLcienos emiged ur SCrehoid fana
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT .

Uselut economic lives are reviewed on an annual basis, 1o ensure the carrying amount remains relevant ond oppropriale Uepreciahon s chorged on o
sionght-line basis over the asser's useful economic fite. No depreciation is provided on freehold lond. Repairs and maintenance costs are wiitien off os
incured Assels under constiuction, which principally relote to cirport infrastruciure, are not depreciated untl such lime as they are available lor use and
any relevant regulatory approvals relanng to their bringing into use have been obtained. If there are indications of impairment in the carrying value. then
the recoverable amounl is eslimoted and compared to the carrying ameunt in accordance with the requirements of IAS 36, Carrying emounts are also
assessed for imparrment as part of the carrying value of the assets al each cash generating unit 'CGU’ by comparison with the value in use generoted by
the CGU hom its nel cashflows.

When ibe use of a property changes from owner-occupied to invesiment property, the property is remeasured fo fair value and reclassified accerdingly.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group accounts for invesiment properties in accordance with IAS 40 ‘Investment Properties. An investment property 15 one held 1o erher eomn rental
income o1 for copitol growth. The Group hes elected 1o use the fair value model, and therefore investment properties are initiolly recognised at cost and
then revaived to fair volue of the reporting date by en independent property valuer.

Investment properies ore nol deprecioted. Gains or losses in the fair value of investment properties are recagnised in the income stalement for the period
in which they anse. Gains or losses on the disposal of an investment property are recognised in the iIncome statement on completion.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant ond equipment and ifs fair value of the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for subsequent accounting purposes. If an invesiment property is parally owner-occupied ond the non-owner-occupied component
can be separately sold or leased cut under a finance lease then the relevant proportions will be classified as investment propesty and property, plant

and equipment. If the non-owner-occupied porfion cannot be sold separately then the property will only continue to be classified as an investment

property if the owner-occupled portion is immatenial

IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounis of the Group's assets ore reviewed ot each reporling dote 1o determine whether *here is any indicofian of impairmem. f eny such
indication exisls, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment toss is recognised i the carrying amount of an asser, or cash-generating

urd, exceeds is recoverable amount

The recoverable omount of an asset or cash-generating unitis the greater of its value in use ard its fair value less costs 1o sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimaled future cash flows are discounted fo their preseni value using o pre-tax discount rate that reflects cunent marker assessments of the fime value
of money and the risks specific 1o the assel. Management are sahsfied that this methodology results in a materially similar value in use quantification as
would have been arived ot il calculaled under a pre-tax discount rote basis os required by IAS 38, For the purpose of impoirment testing, tssets thot
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from conlinuing use that are lorgely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or graups of assets (the “cash-generating unit'). The goodwill acquired in @ business combiration, for the

purpese of impairment tesling, is dllocared 1o cash-generating onits. or 'CGU"

An impairment loss in respect of goodwillis not reversed. In respect of other assets. impairment losses recognised n prior periods are assessed af
eoch reporling date for any indications that the loss hos decreased or no fonger exists. An impairment loss is ieversed f there has been o chonge in the
estmates used 1o defermine the recoverable armount, An impaiment loss is reversed only to the extert thot the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount thot would have been determined, net of depreciation or amorhsation, ¥ no impairrent loss had been recognised

LEASES
Review of contracts for leases

At the inception ofa contiact, the Gloup assessas whether o contract s, of contains, a lease. A conractis, or contains, @ lease f the contract conveys the
right to direct the use of an identified asset for a period of time, in exchange for consideration.

At the point of transition to IFRS 16 the Group opted to apply the practical expedient not 1o reassass whether contracts contain o leose
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LEASES M1 p D

Initiel measurement
MAG initially recognise lease liabilites measured of the present volue of lease payments, discounting by opplying the Group's incremental borrowing
rate wherever the interest rate implicit in the lease cornot be determined. Llease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include

* Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments

*  Varicble lease payments that depend en an index or rate, inially measured using the prevailing ndex of rate as af the adoption date
*  Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guaraniee

*  The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably cerfain to exercise

¢ leose payments in on optionol renewal period if the Group s reasonably ceriain 1o exercise on extension opfion, and

*  Penaliies for eosly terminahion of o lease, unless the Group 1s reasonably certomn not 1o terminale eory

The right-of-use asset is measured of the amount of the lease liability. adjusted for any prepayments mode, plus any diect costs incurred to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset of resiore the underlying oiset on the site on which 1t is locoted, less ony leose ncenves 1ecaved.

Subsequent measurement
The lease liobility is subsequently measured of amortised cost. using the effective interest method, whilst the right-of-use asset is deprecioted straight line
over the 1emaining lease term as at the date of adopion.

The liability is remeosured when

* there 1s o change in future lease payments ansing rom a change in index or rate,

* there is 0 change in the Group's estimote of the amount expected to be poyoble urder a residual value guarantee
* ifthe Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise o purchase, extension or termination option, or

» ifthere s a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

VWhen such a remeasurement occurs, o conesponding adjustment is made to the camying amount of the nght-of-use asset, wath any turther adjustment
required rom remeasurement being recorded in the income statement.

Low value ond short lease exemption
MAG has elected to not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liobiliies under leases of o duration of under one yeer: and low-valve leases. The
expense recognised in the income statement relating to such leases is below the £100,000 used for rounding in these financial statements, ond therefore

is not disclosed

Covid-19 related rent toncessions
MAG hos elecied to not apply the pradiical expedient 1o recognise Covid- 19 retoled rent concessions os a vaiioble lease payment, instead opting 1o
account for these as a lease modification in the year. Refer to nofe 31 1o the financial statements where this is discussed in further detail,

Lease as lessor
When the Group acls as a lessor. It determines at iease inceplion whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To clossify each lease, the Gioup mokes on overall assessment of whether the lease transters substantiaily oll of the risks and rewards incidental 1o
ownership of the underlying asset. I this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; i not, then if is an operating lease. As part of 1his assessment, the
Gtoup censiders cetain indicotors such as whether the lease 15 for the mojor part of the ecanomic life of the asse!

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for s interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It ossesses the lease classification of
a sub-lease with reference to the nghi-of-use asset orisng from the head lease. nat wrh reference to the underying asset. o head lease is a shon-tens
lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it clossifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. if an arrangement contains lease
and nor-lease components, ‘hen *he Group applies IFRS 15 1o ollocate the consideration in the contract

The Group recognises lease payments received under operahng lecses as income on o straight-ine basis over the lease 1erm as nart of property and
property -related income,

For finance leases, the Group acciues finance income over the fease term based on the interest rate implicit in the lease, with payments received
reducing he lease receivab e
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INVENTORIES

Inveniories are measured at the lower of cosl and net realisable value with cost being purchase cost on a first in/first out basis.

GRANTS

Gianls received and recevable relating to property, plont and equipment are shown os o deferred credit in current and non-current habilines on the
statement of financial position. An annual transfer 1o the income statement is made on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the asset for
which the grant was received.

Government grants relofed to income ore recognised when there is 1easonable assurance thar the grant will be received, ond alf the grant conditions
hove been complied with. Grant income related 1o expense items are recognised on a systemoatic basis over the period matching the recognition of the
expense in the financio! siatements. The Group has chosen fo preseni grants related to an expense item as net deductions against the refoled expense.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments are classified at: inttially at fair value, and then subsequently measured at amertised cost; Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL); or
Fair Value thiough Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

The Group's treatment of financial assets and liabilties:

* trade receivables are recognised inifially ot their fransaction price with a toss allowance provided based upon the estimated credit loss. Subsequent
measurement reflects any revisions to the estimated credit loss allowance with any gains or lasses being recognised in the income stotement; and

+ allfinancial liabilties (corporate bonds, bank loans and overdrafts and trade and other payables} within the scope of IFRS © are inilially measured
at fair volue and then subsequently measured of amortised cost. Any gains or losses arising ore 1ecognised in the income statement.

Expected credit loss

The Group applies IFRS 9 o measuring expected credit losses which uses o hetime expected loss allowance for all rade recevables. To measure the
expected credit losses, the Gioup has grouped trode receivobles based on shared credi risk charactenstics, including the customer's industry and the
days past due. The Group's historical loss rotes are considered alongside current and forward-locking information on mocreeconomic fociors offecting
the ability of the customers to seifle the receivables and reasonable forecas's

The Group's definition of default is based on the ageing of the debits and will also consider the financial status of the cusiomer.

FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Financing expenses include: interest payable, finance charges celeulated under IAS 19 ond finance chorges on lease liabilities recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method, and unwinding ol the discount on provisions, ond net foreign exchange losses thot are recognised in the income
stalement {see foreign fronsoctions policy). Borrowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the cequisinon, construction or production of an asset that
takes o substontial fme to be prepared for use, are capitalised as por of the cost of that asset

Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds invested dividend income interest income on lease receivables and net foreign exchonge
gains that are recognised in the income statement {see foreign transactions policy|. Interest income and inierest payable 1s recognised in profit or loss as
it acciues, using the eflective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the income siatement on the date the entity's right to receive payments is
established Foreign currency gans and tosses ore reported on @ net basis

CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent assets are primanly insurance reloted, and mingate losses caused by claims against the Company. Contingent assets ore only recognised
when they are virtually certan and ore presented in other debtors, separate hom the associated provision omount, However, they are presented net in the
profit and foss account.

17
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group accounts for assets held for sale it their carying amount will be recovered thiough o sale ransaction rather than through continuving use ond
a sole is considered highly probable. They are meosuied at the lower of their carrying amount and fair volue less costs 1o sefl, except far assets such as
deferred tax and invesiment property that are carried a* fair valve

Non-current assels {including those that are part of o disposal group) are not depreciated or amorised whilst they are classified os held for sale
and equily-acccunted investes 1s no longer equity aecounted. The assets and liabilifies of o disposal group classfied as held for sale are presented
separotely from the other assets in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is @ component of the Group that has been disposed of or is classified os held for sole and that represenis a separate major
line of business, is part of a single coordinated plan to disposal of such a fine of business. When an operation 1s classified as a disconiinued operation,
the comparative statement is profit or loss and OCl is presented os if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank depesits and short-term deposits, which have an
Orig\'ﬂcﬂ maturity of three months or less.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised intially af tair volue, net of ransoction costs. Borrowings ore subsequently siated at amortised cost. Any difference between
the omount mitally recagnised [ret of ransaction costst and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the panod of the
borrowings using the effective mterest method.

Transaclion costs are considered as incurred, far the unit of occount lo which they relate, on new borrawings or a re-financing. If the costs relate to the
bormowing/ loon then they are recognised in accordance with tFRS @ as par: of the net effective interest rote. However, il they relate 1o the facility itself
then it 1s regorded as an executory contract and s such, outside the scope of IFRS @ and are capilalised and amortised over the faciliry term.

BORROWING COSTS

The Gioup does not copitalise borrowing cos's directly aftributable 1o the acguisiion, constuchion or production of quolifying assets into the cost of
property, plont ond equipment, unless the criterio under IAS 23 are met. Where the criteno 1s met, borrowing costs are calculoted by applying on
average intetest rate in the period to the expenditure ncurred on quahtying assets

All other borrowing costs are recogmised in the income statement over the penod of the borrawings using the effective inferest method.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised in the statement of financicl position when the Group has a legal or constuctive obligation os a resull of a past event, and itis
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the abligation It the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows al a pre-tox rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money, and where oppropriate, the risks
specific to the liability

Where the Group has entered a cantract where the unavoidable aftributable costs of fulfilling the contract exceed the econamic benefit derived rom it

then the Group will book an onerous contiact provision. The calculation of the provision will reflect the leasl cost approach of exiting the contract.
TAXATION

The tax chorge for the year compnses cunent and deferred rax

The charge for "axanan is bosed on the loss for the yeor and rakes into account deferred tax due 1o temparary differences berween the 1ox bases of
assels and habikities, and the accounting carrying value of osses ard habitities in 1he financial satemens. The principal constivents of the defered
iax ligbility in the Group financial slatlements are temporary differences on property, plant and eguipmert, where the carrying value in the financial
statements is in excess of the tax bose due to accelerated copital allowonces. and the previous effects of revoluations under UK GAAP
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TAXATION 7] LED

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the exlent that it is regarded as probable that the temporary difference can be ullised against 1oxable protit In the
future. Current tax and deferred tax reloting to items recognised directly in equity, are olso recognised directly in equity. Deferred tax 1s based on the
tax lows and rates that have been substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and which are expected to apply when the relevant
deferred tax item is reclsed or setled. Current tax has been calculated ot the rate of 19% opplicable 1o accounting periods ending 31 March 2023
(2022: 19%}. Deferied tax ossets and licbilities reflect the 25% tax rate that will become effective from 1 Aprit 2023. Deferred tox assets and licbilites
are shown separately in the accounts.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS

The Group still participates in three defined benefit schemes, following MAG's exit from the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF} ¢s detailed n
note 30 at page 158, which are contracted aut of the state scheme, as well as one defined contribution scheme. The costs of the defined contribution
scheme are charged o the income statement in the year in which they are incurred. Defined benefil schemes are accounted for as an asset o liability on
the statement of financial position, with freatment detailed below. The amount reported in the income statement for employee benefit cosls includes past
service cosls, cuTren: service costs, interest coss and return on assets income. Past service costs are charged to the income statement immediately, and
curent service costs ore charged to the income stotement for the period to which they relate.

The el inletesl cost is calculated by applying the discounl rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the Iair value of plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of camprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The defined benefit asset or liability,
1agether with the current and past service costs, are calculated of the reporting date by on independent aciuary using the projected unit credit methad.

Under IFRIC 14 'IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requitements and their Interaction’, surpluses on pension schemes are

not recognised unless there is an uncanditional right to recover or realise them al some point during the life of the plan. If no such uncondinonal right exists

on asset celing is applied ond no osset suiplus is recognised in the accounts. An unconditonal right would not exist when the ovailobility of the refund
or the reduction in future contribution would be contingen! upon factors beyond the entity's control {lor example epproval by third parties such as plan
tustees. To the extent that a right 15 contingent no asset would be recogaised

in the event of a setfiement of a defined benefit pension scheme, the profit or loss on setilement is calculaled with relerence 1o the net scheme assets/
ligbiliies without the impact of the asset ceiling [i.e. the unrecognised surplus). This setilement profit or loss is recognised in the income statement. The
resultant reduction in asset ceiling as a result of the setlement is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

DIVIDENDS

A dividend 1o the Company’s sharehalders is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial statements during the period in which the right io receive
payment is established vio the declaration ol o dividend approved by the Company's Board of Directors. or, as the cose moy be. voling shareholders.

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (APMS)

The Group uses APMs, which ore not defined in IFRS, throughout the Annual Report and Accounts. The Group’s APMs ore defined internally, and
therefore moy not be comparable 1o simlar APMs ir other companies, but previde additional nformanion useful 1o both monogement and the investor
community to ossess the Group's perlormance and liquidity. The key APMs used by the Board to assess the Group's perlormonce are deratled below.

v Adjusted EBITDA;

*  Resulis from operations;

= Adjusted net cosh generated fram operations:
*  MNetdebt, ond

* Net cash and cosh equivalents

*  Net senior Debt/odjusted frozen GAAP
Adjusted Eongs betore Interest o, Depreciaton ircloding any impatment]| and umamsanon
Many of MAG's APMs are defined as ‘adjusted’ (such os adjusted EBITDA] signilying that they are calculated before transactions that are deemed te

be adjusted items. The definilion of MAG s cccounting policies is also detailed below. Other Informalion on page 173 provides a definiion of each of
all APMs; the purpose for which it 1s used; ond a reconciliation 1o the nearest IFRS equivalen!.
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ADJUSTED ITEMS

Applied consistenlly over lime, adjusted items {formerly Significant hems) are items of fncome and expense that, because of their size, unusual nature, or
frequency of the events giving rise 10 them, mer? separate preseniation, as these are incremental and to allow an understanding of the Group's underlying
financia! perdormance from its rading activiies, Such items include:

+ Impairment of assets
Impairment charges related to non-current assets ore non-cash ilems and fend to be significant in size. The presentation of these as olher items further
enhances the underslanding of the ongoing performance of the Group. Impairments of property, intangible assets and other tangible fixed assets are
included in adjusted items if related 1o a significant wiite off of paused or discontinued projects, a fundamental ransformation project or if infrequent
or significant in size. Other impairments are included in underlying results.

* Major reorganisation of busir and costs assaciated with acquisitions
Restructuring costs are classified as adjusted items if they relate 1o e fundemental change n the organisational siructure of the Group or a
tundamentat change in the operating model of o business within the Group, Costs may incdude redundancy, property closure costs and consultancy
costs, which are significant in size and will not be incurred under the ongeing structure or speraling model of the Gioup. All costs related 1o the
acquisition of businesses will be classified as adjusted.

* Costs associated with the modification of financial instruments, close out of previous financing arrangements upon
refinancing
Costs associated with the efinancing and changes lo debt facility agreements dusing the current and pricr year are included within adjusted flems
as they are significant in size, do not form part of the underlying trading activities

* Curtailment gain or loss
Curtadment gain or [oss are recorded in adjusted tems where they do not form part of the underlying trading activities of the Group o are infreguent
in occurrence in order o enhance lhe understanding of the underlying financial performance of the Group. Such exomples would include early
termination of a lease and the curailment gain dve to the elosure of the pension schemes and offsetting costs associated witk: this,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preporing these Consolidoted Financial Statements the Group has made estimates and judgements ond ossumptions thot impact the opplication
of the Group accounfing palicies and the reported omount of assets, liabiliies, income and expenses Actual results may. however, differ from the
estimates calculated.

A. Judgements

In epplying the Group's accanning polcies, the Group has made key udgements. Management beleves that the assessment of gang concern, the
regment of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes and the impact of recommencing the ransformation programmes on the Group's fixed asset
balances conlain the more significont judgements impacting these financial statements.

i. Going concern
The mpact of: the ability of the Group 1o refinence o £360m bond due to mature in Aprl 2024; and the impact upon activity levels of current macro-
econcmic considerations (including the cost of living cnisis and the Ukraine conflict) have been considered in the Basis of Preparation.

The ditectors have evoluated whether the ochorns alreedy underaker to secure o credit faclity and the mingating actions tha® the Group can uncerioke
against any reductions in achvity levels are sufficient ta ensure that MAG will continue as a going concern for p)uusib\e future rrodmg sCenarios.
Bosed upon this assessmen! outlined of page 109 the direcors have concluded ie regard MAG os o going concern for the purpose of these
financial statements.

As part of its IAS 19 assessment MAG has had to consider whether # has the right 1o the accounting surplus for the STAL ard EMA defined benefit
schemes and the “imirg cf o surplus under the exi* basis of the GMPF scheme which would permi the recogamon of the occounting surplus on thot
scheme in determining the se*lement loss,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS ( UNHinld

A. Judgrments: e

The Group's exit fram its deferred debt arrangement with GMPF an 2 September 2022 constituted a setilement of the defined benefit scheme. The exit
only occurred once the scheme wos no longer in deficit when calculated on a prudent ‘exit basis” Prior to setilement, the occounting basis of calculation,
under IAS 19, demonstiated o surplus. However, the asset ceiling requirements of IFRIC 14 resulted in this surplus not being shown in the accounts ¢s no
right tor rebund existed,

Under the requirements of |AS 19, the setflement loss is colculated based upen the occounting surplus at the time of seflement, without accounting for the
impact ot the assel celing, and presented in the income statement. The compensating reduction in asset celling impact is shown as o credit to resarves.

For the surpluses an the Group’s STAL and EMA defined benefil pension schemes, management has coneluded that there exists a right to a refund
of such o surplus and consequently, under IFRIC 14 there would be no asset celling impoct and an occounting surplus can be presented in the
financial slatements,

iit. Impact of transformation recommencement on fixed asset balances
As part of the recavery from Covid- 19, MAG has recommenced its ransformation programmes af both Manchester ond Stonsted airports. MAG hos
considered how the revised programmes going forward impact upon the fixed asset balances held relating to impacted assets.

The key considerations have relaled 1o
*  the decisior #o moth-ball Terminal 1 af Manchester following the Board approval o proceed with MAN-TP phase 2 in December 2022 vath the
resultant acceleraed depreciction and prowvision recogaition relating 1o the clesure ol Termino! 1; and

* the judgement on the likely route to be pursued for expanding the Terminal infrastucture ot Stensted and the impact on design costs already incurred.
Both of these items are commented upon n more detal o the property. plont ond equipment note ot poge 139

B. Assumptions and estimotion uncertainty

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to estimates are recognised in the period in which the esfimate 15
revised, The ditectars regord that the criical accounting estimates anse i the creas of valianon of invesiment propertes; voluatior. of the Group's net
pension liability; modification of shareholder loons; and the impairment of the Group’s non-financial assets. Information about assumptions and esfimation
uncertainty at the reporting date is detailed befow

i. Investment properties

Investment properties were valued of lair volue ot 31 March 2022 by JLL, for the Group's commercial property porticlic and Fisher German for the
Group's residenial porifolic. The valughons were prepared in accordance with IFRS and the appraisal and valuetion manuat issued by the Royal
Institution of Chorlered Surveyors. Yalvations were carmed out having regard 1o comparable market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties,
land valuations end discounted cash flow methods. The volue of the Group's Investment Properties has been included al the values advised by its
professional advisers. Further derails of the basis of estimation for the valuation of the Group's investment properties 1s detailed on note 15,

ii, Pensions

Certain assumptions have been adopted for factors tho: determine the valuation of the Group's liability los persion cbligotons of year end, luture returns
on pension scheme assets and chorges 1o the income starement. The factors hove been determined in consuliation with the Group's independent actuary
taking inte account marke! and economic conditions. Changes in assumptions can vary from year to yeor os o result of chenging conditions end other
determinants which may cause increases or decreases in the valuation of the Group's liability for pension obligations The objective of setting pension
scheme assumpticns for futuse years 15 1o reflec! the expected actual outcomes. The impact of the chonge in assumptions on the valuation of the net
firancia! position for pension schemes is reflected in the skalement of recognised gains and fosses. Further detoils are available in note 30.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

8. Assumptions and estimation uncertainty -0 o

iii. Madification of financial instruments

The carrying value of the Group's shareholder loan liabiliies are colculated by mancgement's estimate of the future coshflows [see finencial instruments
note 26). As a result of MAG s strategic finance response in 1o the pandemic, the payment of interest on the shareholder loans has been defered uniil
the Group is in compliance with its loan covenant requirements.

Consequently, monagement's estimate of the date that deferred interest will be repaid is an accounting estimate that will impact the quantification of the
shareholder loan kability. Any revisons in the coshflow estimates will result in @ modification gain or loss which s recognised in the income stolement at
the time thot the revision tokes place.

The repayment of shareholder loan deferred interest has now commenced on 31 March 2023 and 1s estimated to conclude in March 2030

iv. Impairment of non-financial assets
Estimates have been made in respect of the amounts of fulure operating cash flows 1o be generated by certain of the Group's cash-generating unils
{CGUs), in order io assess whether there has been any impairment of the amounts of the Group's assefs included in fhe statement of financial position.

The directors have viewed that the current macroeconamic position has acted as an impoirment rigger of its long-term assets and consequently hove
assessed the recoverable omounts of its CGUs. The assessment of recoverable amounts 15 based upon Volue in Use projechons of tuure operating
cashfiows of the businesses which are bused upon a range of assumptions of the 1ote of economic growth and the resuliant impact upon the Group's
trading levels

The Group has considered future traffic levels projections issued by other indusiry participants in arriving of its own projections which were used far both
the impairmert review and the Group’s going concern assessment. These projections considered the timing and rate of growth in the post-Covid- 19
environment considenng the curreni economic headwinds and the impact of climate chorge on longer-term growth.

For impairment purposes, long-term projections beyord the 5-yeor business plan fime honzon were based upan lorg-term growth rates. Downside
scenarios included low-growth assumptions in considering risks around recoverabllity of the assets carrying value ard the reduction in terminal value
growth rote /increase in discount rate that would be required in order 1o bring o CGU into impairment. Further details of these scenarios are detailed at
note 16
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2023 2022 2022
£m 2022 Lm £m 2022 £m
Total befare £m Total after Totel before €m Total after
adjusted Adjusted adjusted adjusted Adjusted adjusted

Note items items items items items items
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 1,029.0 - 1,029.0 46721 - 4621
Operating expenses (859.2) - (859.2) {575 3) - 1575.3)
S&’iﬁ;‘:‘::‘g::;"'/ {loss) before ! 169.8 - 169.8 M13.2) 1n13.2)
Adjusted items
Adjusted items 3 - (141.2) (141.2) - ran 171}
Operating profit/(loss} 169.8 (141.2) 28.6 1113 24 1171 {130.3}
Share of result of assoaate 17 0.1 ~ 0.1 0.4 - 04
Smotescheitan o geny - mem  ae - e
finance ncome 7 7.0 ~ 7.0 - -
Finance cosis 7 (201.1) 5.7) (206.8) {1901} 88 [181.3)
Loss before taxation {50.5) (146.9} (197.4) 280 3) {8.3) (288.0)
Taxation 9 1.9 31.3 33.2 [31.3) 0.3 131.0]
Loss after taxation {48.6) {115.5} {164.2} (3] &) {8.0¢ [31ea8)
Discontinued operations
Result from disconfinued operanon (ret of tax) i0 - 4.7 4.7 - {1.7] (1.7
Loss for the year {4B.6) (110.9) {159.5) 1311 8] .7} 1321 3)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Group (48.7) {110.9) (159.6) - - -
Naon-contolling interests .1 - 0.1 - . -
Earnings per share expressed
in pence per ordinary share’
Continuing operations 12 (15.7) {36.5) {52.2) - - 1100.9}
Disconhinued operations 12 - 1.5 1.5 - - 10 5)

The accompanying notes form an integral pert of the financial statements
! Earnings ottributable to C share holders can be tound in note 12 to the financial slatements.
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Year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Note £m £m
MNon-current assets
Goodwail 14 210.1 2077
Intangible assets 16 88.3 88.5
Property, plant ond equipment 13 3,107.2 31406
Right-of-use asses 14 437.0 4177
Llong term lease recevable 14 11.2 172
Investment properties 15 155.1 188Q
Investment in associate 17 71 18
Oither long term asset 10 - 4.3
Retirement benelit assets 30 90.7 283
4,106.7 406053
Current assets
Assets held for sale i8 - 21
Inventories 1¢ 4.1 40
Trade and other recevables 20 122.7 86 3
Cash and cash equivalents 21 172.8 488 6
299.6 5810
Current liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafts 23 {105.2) 1257}
liabiles directly associoted with assets he'd for sale 18 - (0.5
Trade and other payables 27 (254.4) [18G 4]
Delerred income 28 (35.7) (28 2)
Provisions 29 {20.0) [1& 8]
Current lease hablifes 3i (9.4) (@8]
Current tax habilines - 8.9
(424.7) 12/93)
Net current {liabilities) /assets {125.1} 301.7
Non-current licbilities
Borrowings 2226 {2,568.1} (29823 2)
Retirement benefit labilites 30 {4.1) 6 2)
Non-current lease habilnes 31 (448.8}) 14260}
Deferred tax labilites 32 (235.2} {238 3]
Provisions 29 {2.1} 121)
Other non-current habilities 33 (20.3) (20 3)
{3,278.6) [3.6761)
Net assets 703.0 746G
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 34 316.6 3
Skare premium 34 743.3 7433
Hedging resene - _
Foregn currency resere 4.4 |
Retained earnings 35 (362.4) [233 7]
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Group 701.9 7245
Non-canirelling fnieres! 1.1 -
Total equity 703.0 724%

The accompanying notes form anintegral par of the financial statemerts

The financiol statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 July 2023 ond signed on its betoll by:

Gtn € G

Charlie Cornish
Group Chief Executive
MAG
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022

Mate £m fm
Result for the year! {159.6) {321.3)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of refirement benefit habiliies 3C 177.4 a30
Deferred tox on remeasurement of retirement benefit liabilities (39.5} {14 .6}
Effect of change in 1ote of corporation tox on defered 1ax (7.0} (1.3}
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign exchange movement 6.0 13
Taxation on foreign exchange movement {0.3) @)
Other comprehensive income for the yeor 136.6 48 3
Total comprehensive loss for the year' (23.0) (273.0)

1 Anbutob € 10 1the owners of the porert
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 March 2023

Attributable to equity holders of the Group

Foreign Non-
Share Share  currency  Retained controlling Tokal
capital  premiuvm reserve’  earnings Total  interests! equity
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Balance at 1 Apil 2022 316.6 743.3 {1.3] (333.7} 7249 - 7249
Total comprehensive income for the year
Result for the year - - - {159.6) {159.6) 0.1 {159.5)
Acquisiion of non-controlling interests - - - - 1.0 1.0
Foreign exchunge movement, net of tax - - 57 - 5.7 - 5.7
Remeasurement of retirement benefit iakilities, net of tax Q 30 - - - 137.9 137.9 - 137.9
Effect of change in rate of corpoation 1ox - - - (7.0} (7.0) - (7.0}
- - 5.7 (28.7}) (23.0} 1.1 {21.9}
Balance at 31 March 2023 316.6 743.3 4.4 [362.4) 701.9 1.1 703.0
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2022
Atribytable 1o equity halders of the Group
Foreign
Share Share Hedging currency Retained
capital premium reserve’ reserve? earnings Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balunce ot 1 April 2021 36 7433 1.0 13 5} |59.5} G079
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Resultior the year - - - {321 3} (321 3)
Foreign exchange movement, net of 1ax - - - 1.2 - V2
Hedaing gon 2. 30 - {1.0) 10 - -
Remeasurement of retirement benefit liabilties, net of tax < - - - - 48.4 48 4
Effect of change in rate of corporation tax on deferred tax - - - {13} 3
- - (10} 2.2 1274.2] 27301
Boalance ot 31 March 2022 3ed 743.3 - 13 1333.7) 7240
CDuratre pered e Groop ocguired a0 mojor ty lefettin @ concest avn e icarge MADG Fos assessed Ihat i coreg s the congess oo n e itomne a0 o hos corsolnoted 100% of the

revenue, expensas, assets ond labilihes in the income siotement ang balance sheet The profitfor the yaor ond other reserve movements hove been split betwsen those olinbutatle to

MAG s equty nolders ar d those att busable o ~am-coniallng steests

trans-ate the income stagment and the spet iate 1o translate the statemant of fingraal paswan

The foreign currency reserve reflects exchange 1ate ditferences ar'sing when conveding the Group's US nperahons results 1nto the reparing presentanor corrency using the average e 1o

* The hedgirg reserve comprises the effestive partion of the cumulative net changs in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged transactians that have not yet occurred
Heaging aor anslered oo gn conenc v rererve followirg the comp etior b ke fnre gr curency nedge gu mg the veor snd dae “u hav g e ~oen posihions

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2023 2022 2022
£m 2023 £m £m 2022 £m
Before £m After Before £m Aher
adjusted Adjusted adjusted adjusted Adjusted odjusted
Note itlems items items lems items items
Cash lows from operating activities
Resuit from conlinuing operations {48.6} [115.6) {164.2}) {3116} 18.0) (310 4)
Toxatien G (1.9} (31.3) {33.2) 3.3 {03 310
Gains and losses on sale and valuotion of investment
properties 15 26.3 - 26.3 (22.6) - (22.6)
Hnance incame 7 {7.0) - {7.0) - - -
Finance costs 7 20011 5.7 206.8 190.1 |8 8} 181.3
Shore of loss in associate 17 {0.1} - {0.1) 10 4) - 10 4)
Depreciation, amorlisation and impairment 2 242.2 15.9 258.1 238.8 1.0 2498
Increase in tiode and other receivables and inventoies {21.1) - {21.%) 120.8]) - 120.8)
Increase/ {decrease] in rade and other payables 62.6 1.0 63.6 616 {6 6) 55.3
Increase/ (decraase) in refirement benefits provision! 1.5 197 121.2 0.2} 181 (8 3)
Cash generated from continving operations 455.0 (4.6) 450.4 166 5 (20 8) 145.7
Result before taxaton - discontinued operations 10 - - 5.8 - - (1.7)
Working copital - discontinued operations - - (5.8) 1.7
Inlerest paid - - (138.3) - - {83.7]
Inlerest received - - 7.0 - - -
Tax paid - - {32.1) - - (0.4
Net cash from operating Getivities - - 287.0 - - 6l.6
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment - - {174.4} . - {98.3}
Purchase of intangible fixed assets - - {8.2} - -
Distnbutions from/finvestiment in) associote 17 - - 4.8 - - (13}
Froceeds {net of selling costs] from sole of propeny, plant, - _ 1.3 N 08
equipment and investment propetties
Payment of contingent consideration on prior acquisiions 27 - - (7.8) - - {19.6}
Net _cus_h used in investing activities - _ _ (184.3} B ~ (118 4)
continving activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of bank loan borrowings 23 - - {484.0} - - -
Tromsaclion costs refated to loans and borrowings - - (4.3} - - {2.4)
Payment of principal on lease liabilties - - (9.7} - - {8.1)
Net cash used in financing activities - - (498.0) - - 110.5)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 38 - - {395.3} - - {673}
Net cosh and cash equivalents al beginning of the peried - - 462.9 - - 5302
Net cash ond cash equivalents at end of the penod 21 - - 67.6 - - 4629

The cccompanying noles form on infegral part of the finencial statements.

' Ths ncludes the serlllement of the Defenred Deot Arrargemert [DOA] {note 30)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Aviation income 355.9 1796
Commercial income

Retoil concessions 234.5 812

Car parking 325.1 1267

Property and property reloted income 20.2 211

Other 93.3 532

Tetal commercialincome 673.1 282 2

Total income 1,029.0 4621

Revenue from all income streams is recognised in line with IFRS 15.
Stondord payment terms for MAG's revenue streoms are typically 28 days.
Other ncome includes uilifies recovery £28 1m {2022- £19 3m) refuelling £11 2m (2022 £6.6m) and retal travel services income £14.2m (2022: £4.3m).

As af 31 March 2023 there wos no revenue recognised relating to performance obligations that were unsatisfied as at the year end. Any revenue where

pefformance obligations were not satisfied is held in deferred income.

The amount of accrued income at 31 March 2023 was £40.4m (2022 £26.1m] ard the amount of deferred income at 31 March 2023 was £357m
{2022: £28.2m}. Beth of these balances have increased significantly due to the return in passenger demand, and balances are expected to seftle within

the next 12 months

Significant movements in accrued and deferred income are discussed in notes 20 and 28 respectively.
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2. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

For monagement puiposes, the Group is arganised into lour main operating divisions. Manchester Airport, london Stansted Arport, Eost Midlonds
Airport ond CAVU.

The reportable segments are consistent with how information is presented to the Group Chief Executive Officer [Chief Operating Decision Maker)
1o report its primary information for the purpese of assessment of performance and ollocation of resources, with information primarity presented at o
segmental operating profit level.

With the exception of CAVU, the primary business of all of these Operating Divisions is the operation and gevelopment of airpart facilities in the UK.
CAYU's LS revenue is less than 10% of total Group revenue. Consequently, no geographical split of perlormance has been included

London East Group, Consclidated
Manchester Stansted Midlands consolidation - continuing  Discontinued
Airport Airport Airport cavy' and other? operations operations?

Yeor ended 31 March 2023 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Total Revenue 430.4 373.2 81.3 142.1 3.4 1,030.4 -
Inter-segment sales* (1.4) - - - - (1.4) -
External Revenue 429.0 373.2 81.3 142.1 3.4 1,029.0 -
Result
Segment opercating proflit/ {lcss)
before odjusted items 29.5 93.5 14.8 24.4 7.6 169.8 -
Adjusted items {134.2) {2.5) {1.4} {2.6) {0.5) {141.2) 5.8
Segment operating profit, {loss)
alter adjusted fems {104.7) 91.0 13.4 21.8 7.1 28.6 5.8
Share of result of associate - - - - - Q.1 -
Gains und losses on soles grd
valuation of invesiment properties - - - - - (26.3) -
Finonce ncome - - - - - 7.0 -
Finance costs - - - - - (201.1) -
Finance costs - adjosted - - - - - (5.7} -
Result before taxation (197.4) 5.8
Other information
Segment assefs® 2,069.3 1,666.2 2971 190.6 183.2 4,406.3 -
Segment liabilties® 1,377.7) {315.4} [15.1} (67.0) (1.828.1) {3,703.3) -
Capital expendnure (property. plant and
equipment] .9 45.7 9.5 6.1 10.5 193.7 -
Capital expendivre {inlangihle ossets) 0.8 - 0.3 3.0 4.1 8.2 -
Depreciatan 123.4 70.2 17.9 5.7 1.5 228.7 -
Depreciatior. adiusted 4.5 - - - - 4.5 -
fmpairmenl 6.4 2.4 1.2 1.4 - 1.4 -
Amcrhisation 4.4 0.8 0.1 5.1 3.1 13.5 -
Taxation 8.5 {15.2) 0.2 (6.9) 36.6 33.2 (n.n

Segment opetating profity {loss) before
adjusted tems 29.5 93.5 14.8 24.4 7.6 169.8 -
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Notes to the financial statements continued
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2. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS . /) Tif.0->

Group, Consolidated
Manchester tondon East Midlands consolidalion — conlinuing Discontinued
Airport  $tansted Airport Airport CAVL! and othec? sperations operations?

Yeor ended 31 March 2022 [restated) £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Revenue
Total Revenue 1920 1808 576 333 28 466 5 -
Imer-segment sales® 13 5% - - 10.9) - {A.4) -
External Revenue 188.5 1808 576 32.4 28 4621 -
Result
Segment operating profit/ (loss)
belore adjusted items {RO.6) tad1) 8.5 03 2.7 1132 -
Adjusted dems 161} 21 10.7) {1.8) 0 &} {171 1.7}
Segment operating praht/ {loss)
after adjusted items {96.7) {42 Q) 78 (1.5) 2.1 1130 3) .7}
Share of result of associate - - - - Q.4
Gans and losses an sales and
valuation of investmant properies - - 226 -
Finance incorne - - - - - -
finance costs - - 1100 1) -
Finance costs - adjusted - - - - - 88 -
Result before taxation {288.6) {17}
Other information
Segment assels’ 20311 15903 3073 121 7 65299 4.680.3 -
Segment habilines® {1.352.3) {2679 1o 7} [20.0) 12.1970) (3.955 4) -
Capital expenditue lproperty plant
and equipment & infangible ossets) 381 174 57 &7 138 b7 -
Deprecation 0.6 81.8 133 49 93 2199 -
Amorisation 6! 20 072 31 75 18¢ -
Taxafion 137.3) 1100} [RERD 117y 61 31 0) -
Segment operating profit/ {loss)
before adjusted items (80 &) {44 1) 8.5 03 27 1i13.2} -

Y Agreponed in the Arront Fepontinr fre vear erded 31 Marcr 2027 MAAG laached b enlire 2

bt oy
refso 1rg segr et et
crd trase se e ngthe L% ar o Eurnpear roriet

cnine crd ik o smessed ard P

-~

LA P00 O senniote DustEsy regTent Tre T

t ) 2022 CAVY Yoy comb ned
e cpeahr joraep

1RAAG s US Tes nesses w th the MAD
tnh e segrertals rnve tep aced be MAT UG

P year comparatves have been cestated o ome w i IFRS B Tha C AV smgment s 3011 betwesn 0m e Lusmesses sere ~gne hotth Apenzon mod et

# Group consaldenion and other includes, Group Heod OHice MAG Pruperty. and omer subsidiory compunies and balanges onising on consolidation which are not specific 1o the

other mo -

Bt o

cpemahng diisors Assels ine ae gowde lard iz Lolie ad uitmer s s sirg or Sansoldane e Lab s s ide Daros na: further detars of which canbe lou-d - note 22

# MAG s non-cote picpery hos been disclosed separciely as disconunued operouons wmich was ditposed of he Greup on 7 August 2020 The ongoing posi-sale discloswure eflects

choages mccratonal balsrces tent bove cranged wnce e date ot disposa

4 S0 es neteEen LegMEnts are at gom < lergtn

5 Reflecs the segtment’s assets and liobdibes which ore enternalioive Group
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2. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS < -t LD

Restatements

The business and geographicol segments at 31 March 2022 hove been restated n order 1o correct an error in relotion to the ollocation of certoin costs
and the group lax charge across the segmenis. This restatement has no impact on net assets, Ihe result for the year or cash flows.

Adjustments made to business and geographical segments note as at 31 March 2022

Manchester London Stansted  East Midlands Con.iri?:;‘n;
Airport Airport Airport CAVU Group operations
Income Stotement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Segment result rom operations before adjusted items N0.9) (12.0) (2.2} {02} 253
Adjusted items - opetatng cosls 0.9} {23} 1G.4) - 3.6
Segmen result rom operations after adjusted itlems 11 8} {14.3) {2 6) 0.2} 289 -
Other info
Segment ossets 110.8) {14] {11} - i33 -
Segment habdibes 7.4 (139) (303 0.2} N7 -
Taxalion [chawge} / credit 75 (131 1o - 6.6 -

Segment operating (loss! /profit before adjusted items (109) 112.0} 22 02 253
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the yeor ended 31 March 2023

3. ADJUSTED ITEMS

2023 2022
Em Em

Recorded in operating profit
Ad)usted Hems - operating costs 141.2 171
Total adjusted items recorded in operating profir’ 141.2 171
Adjusted lems ~ finance costs/income) [see note 7} 5.7 {8 8)
Total significont items recorded in finance costs 5.7 18.8}
Total adjusted charge recorded before taxation? 146.9 83
Recorded in result from discontinued operations
Adusted Hems recorded in discontinued operations {before tax) {see note 7) (5.8) i7
Total {credit)/charge recorded in profit before tax from discontinved operations?® {5.8}) 1.7
Total (charge)/credit before tax 1411 100

! Adusted temstecorded i opeoting proft The Group hasiecogmsed an ovatall costof £141 2m in adjusted sems lor the yeas ended 31 Mawch 2023 (2022 cost of £17 Im] This s meode
up of the tellovar g
- Anexpense of £119 7 hay been -scogniea fellowing the extinge shrent of the Gioup s asferrec debt agreement {DDA] for the ext fiom the GMPF pens o0 schemre
- Duning ther yeor management have undetlaken a raview o the bves of crrlain fixed and smiangible ossets in additon 1o the amual impairment ievigws in hne with IAS36, with revienw of
arrfield asset uselul economic fives and US contract assets. This exercise has sesulled in o 1otol expense of £15 9m being recognised. £11 dm in relohon 1o impairment of assels and £4 5m
accelerated deprec.ation reloting 1o the decition to methbal! Tl as a result ot the onrouncement ta lounca MARN-FP Phase 2 Allimparmers depreciatiar 610 wite oifs are ran-cosn
n noture
- Expenditure or other operatenal ransiormaton schemes of 4 17 has beer recugrised moefalion 15 indialives fo improve the airport envianment

legaiiees, that are 1n Lng vath our cocoarting palicy on adpstes tems, of £ 3m ond lorergn exchange Ailterences of £0 2m hove been iecaamsed inthe pernod

During the year ended 31 Marck 2022, managemen cairied out an impoirment review ol the fixed assels ard as a resull on imparrment of £2 2m was recognised, restructurning costs
compegted i the yeuar of £2 6m awnss the Gron p wis recoan-sed ond ocae.shar conts of £0 9m tar the parchase of the thies onf ne oggregator oad distspuhon busingsses oeg. red
w Y21 tecluded in 31 pAarch 2022 vioe o L1 Ao curtudment ga o due to the <'osee of GMPE STal god EMIA and o sett sment of habdbes o the GMPE offset by coste o’ €12 O
Additonal rasts ol £1 8en weie recogmsed -nrelaion 1o g lownge s o lioctin the Us whichs no longer opegted by the Giowp Legal costs of £1 O were revogre sed

Adusted items rom contining opetations  finance costs A charge of £5.7m (2022 £8 Bm incoma) relating to finance costs arose duning the per-ad due to the deferral of shareholder
loan interest cwed ncluding the impoci of the nse in UK nierest rates on the defesred interest balance and the corresponding madificatian lass which kas arisen in the repayment profile of
the delerred botonme {see note 7}

T Adpsted tems Tom dacort rued operohors los the year ended 3 March 2023 s income of £5 8m evciuteng lux (2027 coslsef £1 Zin}relobng fc o boteer spdate o ne escroer
provisioe o relation fo the sole of nor-core property

All gdsted iterrs are mode in line with our accounting policy which can be found on page 123
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4. RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE ADJUSTED ITEMS

2023 2022

£m £m

Turnover 1,029.0 4621
Wages and salaries {257.2) {156 6)
Social security costs (22.0) {14.7)
Pension costs (12.5) 111.6)
Caronavirs lob Retention Scheme - 18 2
Employee benefhit casls [291.7) [1o4 7)
Deprecation and amartisation (242.2) [238.8}
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 03
Other operating charges' (325.3) 11899)
Aurport end Ground Operations Support Scheme - 17.8
Result from continuing operations before adjusted items 169.8 {113.2)
Result from operations before adjusted items - total business 169.8 {113.2)

' Othet operanng charges ncludes mairlenance var able rent. rates ublity costs and ather operating experses
The increase in wages and salories is directly linked to an increose in headcount as traging levels start to return to pre-Covid levels. During FY23 the

Group has recewed £nil [2022: £18 2m) of govemmen support from the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme, and utilised £nil (2022 £17.8m) from the
Airpon and Ground Operations Support Scheme.

5. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

The overage number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Group during the yeor wos:

2023 20722
Number Number
of FTEs of FTEs

By location
Manchester Airpait 2,716 2148
london Stansted Arport 1,759 1,479
Eost Midlands Airpon 60 516
CAVL 533 153
5,609 4296

NMenchester Airport includes Head Office, lookingdParking and SkyParkSecure as well as operctional employees, based on where these employees
are geogrophically located Group employees are ollocoted proporionately across the three airpor's bosed on headcount. The colculation for the
averoge number of employees for bath 2023 and 2022 reflects full-time equivalent {FTEs} employees
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6. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Further detoils of ditectors” emcluments and ¢ description of the Group's remuneration policy are set out on pages 68 1o 71 in the Remuneration Report

2023 2022
£m £m

Directors’ emoluments
Number of directors {not in £m) 9.0 00
Aggregote emoluments 6.0 41

Consistent with the treatment in prior yeors the amounts above include STIP poyments during the vear of £1.4m paid relating 1o prior peniads
and LTIP amounts accrued of £2 &m. The LTIP amount accrued in the financial statements driven by the Group's FY21 — FY24 LTIP scheme, which
was introduced to closely clign pasticipants 1o key recovery merrics following Covid-19 over the period to FY24, and the infroduction of the
Groups FY23 - FY25 LTIP scheme.

2023 2022
£m £m

Key managemen! compensation
Number of key management {not in £m) 12.0 Q0
Aggregale emolyuments 11.5 Z4

Key management for the Group ore the Board of Ditectors and members of the Executive Committee who contral and direct the Group's operational
actvities and resources Consistent with the treatment in prior years the amounts above include STIP poyments during the yeor of £0.9m poid relating

to prior pericds. The LTIP amounts included in the current year are amounts accrued in the financial sialements driven by the Group’s F¥21 - FY24 LTIP
scheme which was infroduced to closely olign participents to key recovery metrics follewing Cowid- 19 aver the period 1o FY24 and the Group's FY23 -
FY25 scheme, omounting to £ 1.8m.

The key management compensation for the current vear comprised Short term employee benefits £7.2m (2022: £4.5m). Cther JOﬂgvlerm benefits
£4 3m (2022 £2.5m).

2023 2022
£m £m

Highest paid director
Aggregare emoluments 2.4 19

The £2.4m (2022: £1.9m) includes sclary, benefits, STIF payment of £0.2m during the yeer relating fo a prier period, and an accrued LTIP under the
Group's FY21 - FY24 LTIP scheme
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2023 2022
Note £m £m
Intesest receivable on deposits {5.6) -
Inlerest income on long-term lease receivable {1.4) -
Finance income {7.0) -
Inlerest payable on bonk loans ard overdrofis 10.9 76
Interest payable on bonds 56.8 568
Interest payable on ather borrowings 115.0 1032
Interest cost on defined benefit pension schemes 30 (0.5) (93
Interest expense on lease liabilities 31 23.8 221
Capilalisalion of botrowing costs 13 (4.9) [06)
Unwind of deferred consideration - 01
Total finance costs 2011 1901
Adjusted items 5.7 18.8)
Total finance costs after adjusted items 206.8 181.3

As part of MAG's sirategic financial response to the Covid- 19 pandemic, the Group agreed with its shorehelders to a deferral of interest charges in
relation to the shareholder loons. At the end of FY23, the Group recommenced the payment of sharehalder Ioan interest on 31 March 2023, ond. paid
£476m of regular SHL interest poyments os well s £2 5m of delerred interest payment

Under IFRS 9, the change in estimated cashflows of shareholder loans, as o result of the deferral of inlerest payments, gave rise to @ £5.3m modification
lass in FY23. The modification loss was calculated by the change in amorlised cost of the shareholder loans which discount the estimated cashflows at
the effective interest rate of the loans (between 10% and 12%). As the interest accruing on the deferred interest poyments is 3% over the bank deposit
rete. and the Bank of England base rate has increased aver the year, interest accrues at o higher rate than in the prior yeor and the carrying value of the
lighility has increcsed, giving rise to a modification loss

In FY23, the directors have calculated o madification loss of £5.3m af the reporting dale based upon the projecied repayment profile of the shareholder
loan interest in the FY24 business plan. This is not deemed a substanfial modification and as such, the change n fiming and amount is reflected in the
increased caryiag value of the loan in the period with the corresponding loss being recognised in the income statement. To remain consistent with the
reaimenl in FY22 and in line with accounting policy, management have presented the modification loss within adjusted items (note 3. The directors are
currently expecting the deferred inferest to be repaid between 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2030, The key inputs into the calculotion of the foss,/
{gain} are:
+ the timing of the payments of the loan - the payments vary depending upon the pericd of time that shareholder loan interest is accrued and
the period of time that the deferied shareholder loan inferest is repaid. Shareholder foan interes! can anly be paid when, and 1o the extent thal,
the Group are in compliance with its financial covenants. Accordingly, the liming of the payments are uliimotely dependent upon the trading
peiformance of the Group os it recovered frem the Covid- 19 pandemic. For the purpases of the estimation the Group has used the business
projeciions from its approved business plan which are consistent with those used for both going concern and impairment purposes.

»  the effective rate of interest of the loan, and:

« ihe interest rate chorgeoble on deferred interest payments.

if the rading performance of the Group improved cnd the Board decided o pay the deferred interest payments six months earlier, then the modification
loss would increase by £5.5m (2022 gain would decrease by £16.7m),

if the prevailing interest rate due on the deferred interest payments increased by 1%, then the modification loss would increase by £7.8m {2022: gain
would decrease by £5.4m).

MAG coprialises borrowing casts in accordance with 185 23. FY23 saw higher capitalisotion of borrowing costs of £4.9m {2022, £0 6m following the
retaunch of the Group Transformotion Programme af Manchester Arpor.

An expense of £0.4m {2022: £nil] wos charged to adjusted finance costs during the period due 1o reversal of capitalised interest on impaired capital
projects. ncluding the £5.3m modification loss during the year (2022: £8.8m modification gain}, the total odjusted finance costs in the year was a
charge of £5.7m {2022 a credit of £8.8m}.
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8. RESULT BEFORE TAXATION

2023 2023 2022 2022
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinyed
operaftions operations operations operalions
Note £m £m £m £m
Result before taxation has been arrived at after
charging/{crediting):
Depreciation and amortisalion:’
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 215.6 - 206.5
Depreciation of right-of-use ossets 14 13.3 - [ARY) -
Amortisation of intangible assets 16 13.5 - 18.9
Release on capiial grants (0.2) - 10.6) -
Depreciation and amortisation 242.2 - 238.8 -
mpairment of property, plant and equipment 13 10.0 - - -
tmpaiment of nght-of-use asscts 14 1.4 - - -
Depreciatior of propesty, plant and equipment - adusted 13 4.5 - - -
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment - adjusted 15.9 - -
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment 258.1 - 2388 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant ond equipment - - 0.3 -
Adjusted llems? 3 146.9 {5.8) 8.3 17
Gains and losses on sales and valuation of irvestment properties 2,15 26.3 - (22.6) -
Interest charged on lease liabilies 3 23.8 - 22.7 -
Interest income on long-term leose recevable (0.6} - 10 &} -
Employee benefit cosls 4 291.7 - 164.7 -
Auditor’s remuneration?
Audit of these financial siatements 0.8 - o7 -
Amounts recenvable by the Company's Auditor and its associates in respect of, -
Audit of subsidiaries’ financiol stclements 0.3 - 0.3 -
Total auditor’s remuneration 1.1 - 10

charge ot £246 7r mihe mcama statement cuete O Zmotieeass of coo'a giants being cifser aaans deoreciatior ' ne ye o

- Adissteditens tage beer senarately disclosed o e face ¢f e conso dated mcome satemert oot er detals af thece tem s are shower noroie 3 ac dsled demy

Tre oversli depreniat on charge relarr g to prepety nantord easpment, nght of-use assets undern IFFS 14 and itanghie assets s r cagregure $0 2m b gher tnar e otal deprecatior

S A gescrpron e wark oo bre Al Commilleg s set ot e U ninonate Coserore Bepost ard o dudes a1 esn smar e oF mew Al o obgech Sty ond indeperdend e s esleg o e

whes man a0at serviies are pras ded by the augice
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9, TAXATION

Analysis of (credit)/charge in the year

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2023 2022 2022
£m 2023 £m £m 2022 £m
Totol before £m Total after Total belere £m Tetal after
adjusted Adjusted adjusted adjusted Adjusted adjusted
ftams items itams items items items
Cyurrent taxation
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 219 {0.3) 21.6 3.0 10.3) 2.7
Adjustment in respect of pricr year (3.3) - (3.3) 3.4} - {3.4)
Total current taxation 18.6 {0.3) 18.3 10 4) [0.3} {07}
Deferred taxation
Temparary dilferences arising in the year (8.4) (22.7) (31.1) 16 4) {6 4}
Adjustment in respect of priar year {15.1} - {15.1) {17 4) - (17.4}
Eifect of change in rate of corporaiion fox 3.0 (7.2} {4.2) 55.5 - 555
Total ordinary deferred taxation (20.5) (29.9) (50.4}) 317 31.7
Total taxation {credit}/chorge {1.9) {30.2) {32.1) 313 {03} 310
The total tax credit of £32.1m 1s compnised of a credit fiom continuing operations of £33.2m, and o charge for disconiinued operations of £1.7m,
Taxation on items charged to equity
2023 2022
£m £m
Delerred taxation on remeasurement of retitement benefit liabilities 39.5 14 6
Effect of change in rate of corporation wax 7.0 1.3
Deterred 1ox on tareign exchange movement 0.3 0.1
Total taxation charge 46.8 160

Factors affecting the taxation (credit)/charge for the year

The total toxction charge for the yeor ended 31 Morch 2023 is higher (2022: higher) thon the standard tate of corparaion tax in the UK of 10% (2022

19%). The differences are explained below

2023 2023 2022 2022

£m 2023 £m £m 2022 £m

Total before £m Total after Total before £m Totel cfter

adjusted Adjusted adjusted adjusted Adjusted adjusted

itemns items items items items items

II:::::; before taxation [including discontinued (50.5) (141.%) (191.6) (280.23) (10.0) (290 3}
Result before taxation multiplied by the sionderd rote

of corporation fox in the UK of 19% {2022 19%) {9.6) {26.8) (36.4) 153.3) s} (55.2)

Effect of:

Nan-taxable items/ non-deductible items 233 3.8 26.9 498 16 Ml S

Adjusiments fo prior year laxation chorge {18.4) - (18.4) [20.8) - [20 8)

Effect of change in rate of corporation tax 3.0 (7.2) (4.2) 555 - 555

Total taxation {credit)/charge (1.9) {30.2) (32.1) 313 (0.3} 310
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Notes to the financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 March 2023

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The results of the discontinued operation, which have been included in the consolidated income statement, were as iollows

Year ended Yeor ended

31 March 3 March

2023 2022

£m Em

Adius,led items 5.8 1.7
Anrbulable tox expense {1.1) -
Result from discontinued operations (net of tax) 4.7 nA
Net profit atributable to discontinued operation {attribuiable to owners of the Company) 4.7 1.7}

The Group commenced a sales process {or ts nan-care proparty portfolio duting the year ended 31 Maich 2021 with the sole completng an 7 August
2020. Non-core property represented a major line of business for the Group, consequently the frading performance of the portfciio has been classified
as a disconfinued operation since 1 April 2019 Adjusted items of £5.8m for the year ended 31 March 2023 relules lo movements in the estimate relating
1o the post sale receivable. The recevable. net of discounting, 1s £10 1m {2022: £4.3m} In 2023 the balance 1s disclosed in ofher receivables, within

current assets as C]l; amounts fOH dUe Wiﬂ'ﬂﬂ ]2 mon’hﬁ (Wherecs in 2022 The bO!OﬂCeS were non-current ond d\SC‘OSEd as ’O!hef iDng lerm GSSG*’ n |he

statement of financial position}.

During the year, o tox charge of £1.1m was attributable to discontinued operations,

11. DIVIDENDS

MNe crdinery dividends were paid or proposed in either the current or prior year

12, EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is colevlated by dividing the earrings atinbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted averege rumber of ordinary shares in issue

during the year. The Group does not have any dilutive equity instruments in 1ssue, therebore diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per shate

2023 2022
Earnings Weighted Per share amount Earnings Weighted Per share omount
Dis- average Dis- Dis- average Dis-
Continuing  continved ber of Continuing  continved  Continving continved  numberof  Continuing  confinued
operations operations shares operations operations operations  operations shares  operotions  operations
£m £m m Pence Pence £m £m m Pence Pence
EPS atirburable to
ordinary sharehclders
- before odjusted
tems (49.8} - 316.6 15.7) - (311.6) 3166 {98.4)
EPS atnputable ro
ordinary shareholders
- after adsted items (165.4) 4.7 316.6 (52.2) 1.5 {310 6) {17 3146 11009 10.5)
£m £m # £m £m £m £m # £m £m
EPS anributanle to
C shareholders -
befare sdjusted tems 1.2 - 3 0.4 - - - 3 - -
EPS aftnbutable 10 C
shareholders - aler
adjusted tems 1.2 - 3 0.4 - - - 3 -
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Freehold Other Plant, Assets in the

land and land and Airport fixtures and course of

property buildings  infrastructure equipment  construction Total
2023 £m £m £m £m £m Em
Cost
At 1 April 2022 restated 178.3 1,022.5 2,733.9 1,040.0 137.8 512.5
Addiions - - - - 193.7 193.7
Reclassiication from assets in the course of construction - 6.5 28.4 411 (76.0) -
Reclassification to right-of-use assets {note 14} - - (3.7) - - (3.7)
Rectassification to/from invesiment properties {note 15) - 8.5 - - - 8.5
Reclassification 1o intongible assets [note 16} - - {1.7) (4.2) 0.9 {5.0)
imparment - - {7.6) - {2.4) (10.0}
Disposals - - [18.6) (4.8) - {23.4)}
At 31 March 2023 178.3 1,037.5 2,730.7 1,072,1 254.0 5,272.6
Depreciation
At 1 April 2022 restated 64.5 408.5 884.8 613.8 - 1,971.6
Charge for the period - 36.4 94.7 B9.0 - 2200
Reclassifications to intangible assets [note 16) - - (0.3) (0.4) - (0.7)
Reclassification to right-of-use assels {nate 14} - - {2.2) - - (2.2)
Depreciation on disposals - - (18.6) (4.8) - (23.4)
At 31 March 2023 64.5 4449 958.4 697.6 - 2,165.4
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023 113.8 592.6 1,772.3 374.5 254.0 3,107.2
A1 31 March 2022 138 &14 C 18431 G267 1378 3140¢
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 0ol oI D

Freehold Plant, Assets in the

land and  Long leasehold Airport Pxtures and course of

property property infrostructure equipment construction Total
2022 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Al Apil 2021 1785 6764 23860 8408 S00 5 4982 2
Restatement - 162 6 2056 1031 - 4713
At April 2021 - restated 178.5 83%.0 2,591.6 24309 Q00.5 5453.5
Addifions - - - - 8.7 687
Reclassification from assets in the course of conshuction - 1831 3301 3.8 1830 7) -
Reclossification 1o intangikle assets [note 16) - - @ 0) - 10.7) 7}
Disposals [0 2) 15.6) {178.8) {215 4) - {400.0)
At 31 March 2022 178 3 1,022.5 2,7339 10400 1378 5125
Depreciation
At 1 Apci 2021 64.5 2226 7553 643.3 - 16857
R - 162 6 205.0 T031 - 4713
A A TURD oo 4.5 3852 P609 746.4 21570
Charge for the period - 258 1017 8206 - 2095
Reclassifications to intangible assets {note 15) - - 03 {10 4} - {10 7}
Depreciation on disposals - {2.5) (1769} {204 8) - (384 2}
At 31 March 2022 64,5 408 5 884 8 613 8 - 19716
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 113.8 614.0 18491 426 2 i37.8 31409
At 31 March 2021 4.0 4538 1,630.7 197.5 Q0.5 3,296.5

The canying amount of lend not depreciated as at 31 Morch 2023 is £215.1m {2022 £215.6m).

During the year the Group's carrying value of property plant ond equipment increased by £0 9m as a resulr of fareign exchange rate changes upon

ranslaton of the Group’s US operations intc GBP. The impact of the foreign exchonge adjusiment is ncluded within the additans and depreciofion

categories. In additon during the year ceriain investment properties became occupied by the Group. these propestes were ansferred ino property,

plort ond equipment from invesiment properties {role 15) ond cerain property plant and equipment assets were maved into right of use ossets {nate 14)

Capitalised borrowing costs

Durirg the year ended 3t March 2023, berrowing costs of £4.9m were copitalised [2022: £0.6m), reloting 1o barowing costs incurred in FY23

Copitalised borrowing costs were coleulatea on o monthly basis by appiying the rare of interest lor the relevant month to experditure incarred In than
month. The average 1ate of interest oppliad in the yeor ending 31 Maich 2023 was 611% (2022 5 58%} Copitalised borrowing cos's of £0.4m (3

March 2022; £nil} were reversed during the year, refating 1o copralised interest on irpaired capital profects

Borrowing costs are capitalised on significant capitel projects, such as the Manchester Transformation Programme and large-scale implementotion of

tuture secunty requrements,

The value of borrowing costs capitalised dunng the yeor os increased substar-ially in companson to prier year due 1o ramp-up of the next phase of the

Manches'er Trenstormanan Progromme, and increases in underlying interest rates

The cumulative balonce of interest capitalised ot 37 March 2023 15 £719m (2022, £674m), which includes cdditions of £4 9m and o write-ff of

SO 4Am o5 wnchided in odiusted ttems innote 3 A 31 Morek 2023, the ret book volue of the copnalised merest is £64 1 {2022, £63 1}
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (201 U

Specific impairment review
During the yeor ended 31 March 2023, management have carried out an impairment review of the fixed assets, including the useful economic lives of
assels. A tolal charge of £14.5m has been recognised in the year within adjusted tems:

*  £10.0m within ‘impairment’ comprised of £2.4m of design costs copitalised in relation to the Stansted Transformation Programme, and £7.6m
relating to wrile-down of airfleld assets at Manchester Airport (£6.4m} and East Midlands Airport (£1.2m)

£4.5m within “charge for the periad’ compnsed of occelerated depreciation following the decision to mothbalt TT as o resull of the announcement
io launch MAN-TP phase 2.

The decision 1o mothball T1 and consequently revise the useful economic lives {UEL) of these assets has resulied in a change of accounting estimate to bring
the UEL in ne with the expected closure of T1. The impact of this change of estimate in future periods is expected 1o be additional depreciation of £29.3m.

Assets in the course of construction

Assets in the course of construction is £254 0m of 31 March 2023 (2022 £1378m). The increase in the year is primarily due to the movement into the
second phase of the Manchester Tianstormation Programme. Key capital projects held within this bolonce are capital expenditure in relotion to the
next phase of the Manchester Transformation Programeme (£ 103.5m), projecis relating 1o airfield expansicn, refurbishment and associcted planning
costs [£48.4m). implementation of fulure security reguiations (£28.5m), capitol expenditure in relation to Stansled Transformation Programme [£21.6m),
enhancement of 1T infrastructure {£16-5m), buildings refurbishment and renewals {£8.3m) and fit-out of lounges in the US operaled by MAG [£3.5m).

Assets pledged as security
The bonds and bank loans are secured by o fixed and floating charge over subsiantially all of the Group's property, plant ond eguipment.

Restatement of 1 April 2021 cost and accumulated depreciation

A restatement has been made 1o cost and accumuloted depreciation at 1 April 2021 1o correct an errar relating to foir value uplilts arising frem the
acquisiions of the Stansted ond East Midiands airpons. These fair velue uplits were inconectly recorded as a debit to occumulaled depieciotion af the
time of the occuisiions, The impact of this adjustment increases cost end accumulated depreciation by £471.3m. There is no impact on net assets, result
for the year or cash flows.

14. RIGHT-QOF-USE ASSETS

Plant,
tand and Airport fixtures and
buildings infrastructure equipment Tatal
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apni 2022 230.4 203.5 13.7 447.6
Reclassificalion from property, plant and equipment {nate 13} - - 3.7 3.7
Additions 6.5 - 0.7 7.2
Remeasurement 9.7 15.3 0.2 25.2
Modification’ (G.1) - - {0.1)
Disposols? (0.2) - - (0.2)
X 0.3 - 0.1 0.4
At 31 Morch 2023 246.6 218.8 18.4 483.8
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2022 16.6 9.4 3.9 29.9
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment {note 13} - - 2.2 2.2
Charge for the period 6.8 3.4 3.4 13.3
Impairment? - - 1.4 1.4
At 31 March 2023 23.4 12.8 10.6 46.8
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023 223.2 206.0 7.8 437.0

A 31 Maich 2022 213.8 194.1 9.8 417.7
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

14, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (""" ' [

Plant,
tend and Airport fixtures and
buildings infrasiructure equipment Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost ’

Al April 2021 2200 2008 1G7 438.4
Additions 18 - 3 49
Remeasurement [{eR]] 2.7 - 26
Modification! 21 - - 2
Disposals? {03 - {on 0.4}
At 31 March 2022 2304 2035 13.7 4476
Depreciation

At b Apnl 2021 109 6.2 1.8 189
Charge for the pericd 57 32 2.1 110
At 31 Moarch 2022 16.6 QP4 39 290
Carrying amount

At 31 March 2022 213.8 1641 @8 AN77
At 31 March 2021 2160 194 6 8G 418.5

i Modifications Relating o lounges leased and opetoted by MAG inthe US  see nole 31 for more detad

- Dusponals Disposal of 'eose osset due 1o lease terrminaton ol Maasnester by londiord at break dare

Y lmpormentrenew The canving vaoe cf the r ght of use assets 'or eoch cosh gererahrg unit [CGU wes assested by managemer os part of the yeo end imparment exer.ize As part of

this rowiew, leased plant fixtures and equipment was dertitied ti have no future value in use and therefore the remainmg net book value of £1 4m wos charged to adiusled dems - operating

cusls

2 Yranster rom PPE Dorng the pernou ceram assels wers rortenied ror property plont and saspmert intg nght of e asselr (note 134

Key lease arrangements

Key iease anangements are detailed in note 31,

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets
Dusing the yeorio 31 March 2023, the income gererated from sublecsing nghi-cl-use assers was £1 0m {2022: £1.3m), generated solely from sublets

of land ond bulldings

Long-term lease receivable

As a result of the sale of the non-care porfolio on 7 Avgust 2020, o rent revieve was ggered on an existng lease between MAG ard Monchester

Ci-y Council [MCC). The rent increcsed from Lnil o £0 &m per annum from this date, and the lease is in place urti 31 August 2288. Furher detalls ae

disclosed in note 30,

e £0.6m par onnum renta’ chorge 1s passed on 1o the purchasers of the non-core property portiolio under identical terms 10 the arrengement vath

MCC. This represents o sale of the right of use osser arsing from the sent teview Therefore monogement have cecsed ‘o recagnise the nght of use asset

and replaced it with g long-rerr lease eceivable. The present volue of omounts receivable as of 31 Maich 2023 15 £11 2m (2022 £11 2m]_ The closng
asset would be £6 5m if the discount rote were to increcse by 1% and £13.7m if the discourt -ate decreased by 1% The pass “hrough of rental income is
recognised as interest income on the long-term fecse receivable.
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The amounts receivable under this agreement are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Discounted

Undiscounted {relating fa
Cash Flows principal balances)
£m £m
Within 1 year 0.6 -
1to 2 years 0.6 -
2to 5 years 1.8 -
Over 5 years 156.4 11.2
Total 159.4 1.2
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment
properties
2023 £m
Valuation
At 1 Apnl 2022 188.9
Transter to propery plant and equipment {note 13} (8.5}
Transfer from assets held for sale 2.1
Disposals {0.7)
Revaluaton (26.7)
At 31 March 2023 155.1
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023 155.1
A 31 March 2022 188.9
fnvestment
properties
2022 €m
Valuation
Al Apid 2071 1669
Disposals [0.4)
Revaluation 22.4
At 31 March 2022 1889
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 1880

At 31 March 2021

1669
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES .

investment properties

The fair volue of the Group's commerciol and residential invesiment property ot 31 March 2023 has been aitverd at on the basis of o valuation corried
out at that date by JLL Ud. The valuers are independent and have appropriate recognised professionat qualifications, and recent experience in the
iocations and categories of the locations being valued. The voluations, which contorm to International Valuation Standards, were armved at by reference
1o market evidence of transaciion puces for similar properties, land valuations and analysis ot demand within the vicinity of the relevant properties During
the year cerloin investment properties became occupied by the Group. these properfies were rranslerred into property, plant and equipment (no'e

13), under IAS 40 a fair value method has been adopied to revalue inves'men: properties thal become occupied by the Group and are transterred 1o

property, plont and equipment,

The fair value measutement for all of MAG s invesimen: propemes has been categonsed as a Level 3 fair volue based upon the inputs 1o the valuation
technique used. The valuers have used the lollowing bases of valuanon.

Commercial Property

Sigrificont Unobservable (nputs Inter-relationship between key unobservable inputs ond
Volyotion Technique Investment property fair value mecsurements
s Investment propery - the investment properly volughons as having * Yields The estimoted fair volue would increase if

been carried cul using the comparative and nvesiment methods » Yields were lower
The valuation of the commercial property has been assessed

using analysis of appropriote comparable Nvesiment oed rental

* Enterprise rerlal vaines
» Enterprise rental values were higher

nonsactions, logether with evidence of demand within the wicinity ronogemen hove deemed enterpnse remial
of the property gnd taking info accouni size. location. terms and values and yields to be key inputs into the
other foctors. investment properry valuglion Sensifivity analysis

on these inputs has determined the following

» A 5% increose /decrease in enterprise rental
value gives rise lo an increase /decrense of
£5.3m and £3.2m respectively; and

Lard under development - residual valuohon appraoach estimatess
the Gross Developrert Volue (GDV) of the mioposed development
{usually the market value using the investment method ond moking
an appropriate deduction for development costs, finance and
developer's profit). * AQ25% ncrease/decrease in yield gives
nse to a decrease,/increase of £3.9m and
£4.2m respectively.

Other Development land - voluohon was based upor the net price
per acre in the curtent morket

Residential Property

Inter-relctionship between key unobservable inputs and

Valuation Technique Significant Unobservable Inputs fair value measurements
Valuatan is completed on o comparable basis of sirri'ar properties Where comparable evidence The estimated forr value would increase if the
-0 the nicinaty, is hand 1o obkam, adiusted PIOREY Wos.
information is used to reflect » loiger

differences w location, size

\ ¢ in o preferred iocation
aspect and conditon,

* In a better condition

The renal ircome earned by the Group frem i invesrent property omounted to £6 Sm (2022 £8 5m). of which Enil wos afinbutable o disconrinued
operations {2022 £nrill Direct operanag expenses ansng on the invesiment property i the year amouried to £1.5m {2022 £1 9m}, cll relating 1o

INCOME Generating investiment picperty.
Tre Group disposed of tve properties from the investrent property portolio n the year the combined value of whicn was £0.7m.
Gains ord losses on sale and valugtion of investrent properties reported n the consolidared income statement of £26 3m in the year {2022 £22.6m)

includes £26 7m of voluation losses on nves'men: propery (2022, £22.4m). £ril of valuaiion gains on assets held fer sale (2022: £0.1r) ond £0 4m of
gains on sale of propertes {2022- £O.1m).
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Cther
Software intangible
Goodwill costs assets Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
Al April 2022 207.7 74.8 74.6 3571
Additions i the year - 7.2 1.0 8.2
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment [note 13} - 5.0 - 5.0
foreign exchange 2.4 0.1 1.0 3.5
Disposals - (12.7) - (12.7)
At 31 March 2023 210.1 74.4 76.6 361.1
Amortisation
AT Apr| 2022 - 35.3 25.6 60.9
Reclassification friom property, plant and eguipment {note 13) - 0.7 - 0.7
Charge lor the yeor - 9.0 4.5 13.5
fForeign exchange - - 6.3 0.3
Depreciolion on disposals - (12.7) - {12.7)
At 31 March 2023 - 32.3 30.4 62.7
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2023 210.} 42. 46.2 298.4
Ar 31 March 2022 207.7 39.5 49.0 296.2
Other
Softwaore inlangible
Goodwill costs assets Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At Apnl 2021 206 2 500 779 3431
Addilions in the year - 80 - 8.0
Reclassification from/ [to) property, plant and equipment (note 13) - 13.5 {3.8 G
Foreign exchange i5 - 05 20
Disposo\s - (57] - 15.7)
At 31 March 2022 2047 748 74.6 3571
Amortisation
AT April 2021 - 16.5 205 370
Reclassification from property, plant and eguipment {note 13] 0.7 - 0.7
Charge for the year 138 51 [ReRe]
Amortisation on disposals - 157} - (57}
At 31 March 2022 - 35.3 256 609
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 2077 395 490 206 2
A3t March 2021 200 2 42.5 574 3006 1
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS !

Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to cash generaling units based on the benefits to the Group that arise from each business combination. For the purposes of
impanment testing goodwill 15 aliocated 16 the lowest cash generating unit at which management monitor goodwill. The lowest level of cash generating
unit is considered o be: Manchester Airport; London Stansted Airport; East Midlonds Airport; MAG US's legacy lounge and car parking business;
Looking4parking.com; SkyParkSecure ond each of the three US based online cor-parking eggregaror businesses.

Of the goodviill iotal of £210.1m that has been allocated o each of the Group’s CGUs, £166.3m is oltributable 10 the acquisition of {ondon Stonsted
Airport, £4.5m is aftributable 1o the acquisition of the UK distibution companies, with the remaining £3%.3m anrbuiable to goodwill from the acquisifions
of airportparkingreservations.com LLC, ParkSleepFly.com and its subsidiary shutilefinder.net. The goodwill relating to the acquisitions of the three US
based entities is denominoted in US dollars and os a consequence of the USD:GBP exchange rate at the year end, the goodwill ornbutable to these
enfities in the year end accounts has wareased fiom £368m 1o £39.3m,

Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assets with conrying value of £46 Zm are atiributable to Metrolink £30.5m, {discussed in more detail below), airspace redesign

£5 1m, the acquisition of the UK distribution compames £2.0m and the remaining £8.6m relates to the operator and frode names acquired in FY21 from
arportparkingreservations.com LLC (APR), ParkSleepfly.com (PSF) and shutdlefinder.net {SF).

Software tosts

£421m of capitalised compuler software costs relate 1o aperoting systems throughou the airports £21 2m, ERP systems £13 3m ard car parking booking
systems £76m During the yeas, assets with cost ond accumulared emortisation of £2.7m were disposed o, relating 1o legocy ERP systems assels no
longer in use.

Impairment
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= Maonchester Airport where the recoveroble amourt provided o £711.8m headroom aver the assets carrying volue of £1,827.6m;
*  lLonoon Stansted Arport where the tecoverable amount prowded £430.2m of headroom over the ossets corryirg value of £1.541.2m:
*  Eost Midlands internatioral Airpoit where the recaverable amount pravided £ 154 @m of headroom over the assets carrying value of £194.7m;

*  CAVU AMER. where each lounge and car pork constitutes @ CGU. the overall recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value of £18.8m by
L197m:

* MAGS UK Disrbution Companies (where the CGU's are the locking4Parking and SkyParkSecure businesses) where the recovercble amount for
eoch business is £42 Om in excess of the asset carrying valves [combined carrying value for both businesses {£10.5m)), and

*  The online US based car parking aggregator companies constitute o separate CGU The recoverable amount ossessment is based upon

the opproved budget from April 2022 but management hove also considered o downside scenario that excludes post-acquismion operating

improverments ond Imited growth in the operaor relationship base. The mpairment assessment for each CGU consisted of:

- Airportparkingreservotions.com - where the recoverable omaunt provided a £38.7m headroom over the asset corrying volue of £177m
(Downside scenanas analysed would not give nse o impairment],

~ Parksleepfly.com - where the recoveroble amount provided a £29 8m headioom over the asset carrying value of £16.1m {Downside scenanos
analysed would rot give nse ‘o impairment) and

- Shutilefinder.net - where the recoverable amount provided a £0.6m headroom over the asset carrying value of £0.4m {Downside scenarios
analysed weuld rot give rise 1o impairment}

The impoirment testing colculated the recoverable emount of the goodwnll, intangible ossers PPE and right-of-use csser in each cash generating unit by
comrparing the carrying volue 10 the calevioted value-in-use, Key assumptiors for these caiculators are those regarding discour rates, terminal value
growth roles, expected changes o passenger and reverue giowth rates, EBITDA margin ang the leve! of copital expenditure required 1o main‘ain the assets.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by the Boord in March 2023 covering five yeors.
Climate change considerations have been accounted for when arriving at the underlying costs in forecast cashflows. Management have alse considered
a downside scenano with FY 24 passenger levels at 88% of pre-Caovid- 19 levels, which is lower than the low end of indusry expectanons. The business
plan esimates UK possenger levels in £Y24 at 95% of pre-Covid- 19 levels No odditional impairments arose os o resub of considenng this downside
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16, INTANGIBLE ASSETS or 17 00D

These projections ond downside sensitivities for the fiming and rate of passenger volume recovenies are in ine with the projecrions used ior going
concern. for the purposes of the impairment assessment the business reflected the budget for the first five years and considered a terminal velue for

each CGU based upon a long-term growth reflecting estimated rates of inflation of 2%. The business hos used a period of five years as recommended
under IAS 36 but appreciates that an additional forecast period could be merited 1o reflect the business’s return to normal rading levels post Covid- 19
recovery. Il an addiional forecost period wos opplied in the impairment assessments this would give rise to an increase n the heodroom 1o those quoted.

The discount rates used in the cash flow forecasts have been estimoted based on pre-tax rates that reflect the market participant's gssessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit. In determining the discount rates, the Group has sought to arrive at a Weighted Average
Cost of Capital (WACC) using the capital osset pricing model for a marke! participant The discount and leng-term growth rates used in the forecast
discounted cash flows were calculated as:

- UK Airpornt CGUs: Posttax 8.85% {2022 7.36%), Long-teim growth rote: 2.00% {2022 2.00%).

- looking4Parking and SkyParkSecure: Post-tax: 13.02% (2022: 12.22%), tong-term growth rate 2 00% (2022: 2.00%];

- US legacy lounge & car parking business: Post-tax 13.00% {2022:13.00%), Long-term growth rote: N/A due fo contracts having a finite life {2022.
N/AL and

- US previously acquired online cor parking eggregator businesses: Post-tax: 13.00% (2022, 13 00%), long-term growth rate: 2.00% (2022 2.00%},

The discount rates applied still deliver o substantial headroom for each business segmenl, requiring a significant increase i the discount rate for the
headroom to be removed. The discount rates required 1o remove the headrooms are as follows: - UK Airpert CGU's: Manchester Airport {11.21%),
Stonsted Anport [10.6%). ond Fost Midlands Airport [12.65%); Llooking4Parking {60.86%); SkyParkSecure {38.21%), and - US legacy lounge & car
parking business: Airporiparkingreservetions.com [36.21%), and Parkslee pfly.com {33.33%).

Discount end long-term growth rates are not considered moterially sensifive.

Disposal of nil net book value assets no longer in use

During the year, o review of the intangible fixed asset records was carried out 1o identify fully depreciated assets no longer in use by MAG with material
historical cost. Therelore, the fixed asset balances disclosed above better reflect assets still actively operated by MAG. The results of Ihe review is o
dispesol of £12.7m of cost and £12.7m occumulated depracintion for assets na longer in use.

17. INVESTMENT IN AS50CIATE

2023
Em
Cost and carrying value
At 1 April 2022 11.8
Investmenl in associcte 04
Distnbutions from associate’ (4.9)
Gioup s share of assaciote’s regylt 0.1
At 31 Moarch 2023 7.1
! Follgwing comp'etion of o mawr censtiicnng - cnbact v the yec: the Avpad Cly joint vertue was paid 0 compieban nayment of £24 8m whi b was subsequently diste baled 1o the joint

senture poriners, with MAG rectw g £4 9 o 20% share of the proceeds

The investment in associote relates 1o the Group's 20% investment in Airpoit City. Included within the investment in ossociate balonce is an ameount of
£0.6m (31 March 2022 £6.7m) relating to MAG's own cos's incuried in the setting up of its share in Airport City These costs are released fo the
consolidoted income statement on o propertional bosis on the sale of plots within the Airpon City development,

Airport City, o partnership with three olher pariness lo develop part of the land around Manchester Airport for hatels, offices and logistics and advanced
manufactunng, was formally constituted on 8 Oclober 2014
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17. INVESTMENT 1N ASSOCIATE 10T tonlh

Airport City's year end date is colerminous with the Group's year end, and the financial information detailed below is consistent with the Airport City
financial statements prepared fo the same date Summarised financial information of the Group's investment in Airport City is as folfows.

2023 2022

£m £m
Current assets 43.2 old
Curient lichilies (10.5) & 2)
Net assets 32.7 552
Group’s share of assaciate’s net assets 6.5 o
Revenue 251 361
Result for the period 1.2 20
Share of result for the period 0.2 04
Amorhisation of set up costs {0.1} -

0.1 04

Group’s share of associate’s result for the period

As part of #s invesiment in Airport City, the Group has agreed to pay an equity contrbution up to a maximum of £12.0m if required, of which £3 dm was

drawen gown at 31 March 2023 (2022 £8 2m)

Airport City has no significant contingent liabilities o which the Group is exposed, ond there ore no resirictions that would prevent the ranster of funds 1o

the Group (2022 nonel.

18. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

2023 2022
£m £m
Assets held for sale
Current assets
Investment properties - 2.1
Total - 2.1
2023 2022
£m m
Assccioted liabilities
Current liabilities
Deterned tax linhilines - 10.5)
Total - 10 5}
No assets were held for sale at 31 Maich 2023 (2022: £0.5m)
19, INVENTORIES
2023 2022
£m £m
Consumables a.1 40
4.1 40

Amount of inventory charged to operating ¢osts in the year cmounted to £12°

m {2022- £2.0m).
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

€m £m

Trade receivables 53.8 47 5
Other receivables 13.3 3.8
Corparahon tox recoverable 53 -
Prepayments 9.9 8¢
Accived income 40.4 26
122.7 86.3

The average credit penod taken on sales is 19 days (2022, 38 days) Provisions for expected credit losses within rade recevables have been made,
totalling £6.0m (2022: £5.8m}. This includes reserves against specific debts estimated os irecoverable, ond an odditional provision of £O 5m (2022: £0.5m).

The significont increase in accrued income versus 2022 is atributoble 1o the significant increase in passenger volumes.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to fair value. Trade 1eceivables are non-nteres! beanng and

are generally on 30 doy terms. The level of past due debt over 90 days old based on due date:

149

2023 2022

£m £m

Debi due over 90 days 5.9 0.7

Total 59 0y
Movement in the provision for mpairment of tiade receivables is as follows:

£m

Balance at 1 Apnl 2022 5.8

Decrease in allowance for impaited recenvables (1.2)

Addiional provision during the year 1.4

Balance at 31 March 2023 6.0

The crearion and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been included in ‘operating expenses’ in the consolidated income stotement,

Amounts charged to the provision account are generally wiitten off when there is no expectation of recovery. The ageng of these receivables is as lollows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Less thon 60 days 1.7 Q.6
60 to Q0 days 0.3 03
Civer 90 days 4.0 40
Total 6.0 58

The Group has limited exposure fo foreign currency exchange risk with rade and other recevables including £16.6m held in US dollars by the MAG US

business. All other receivables omounts are denominated in pounds sterling There are no credil quality issues with receivabies that are not post their due

date Additional disclosure on finanaial risk is included in note 26.
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hoad 172.8 488 &
172.8 488 6

The directors consider that the carrying value of cash and cash equivolents approximates to their foir value, Balances above exclude overdialt bolances,
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows presents the moverrent in net cash, inclusive of overdralls Overdralt balances can be lound in note 23 1o

the financial stotements,

22. BORROWINGS

2023 2022
Note Em £m
Bark loans and overdiafts 23 105.2 257
Current borrowings 105.2 257
Bark loans and overdrafls 23 {3.7} 483 2
Bonds 24 1,439.8 14380
Other bortowangs Z5 1,132.0 0620
—_— Non-current borrowings 2,568.1 29832
Yotal borrowings 2.673.3 30089
Borrowings are repayable os follows:
2023 2022
Note £m £m
In one yeor or less, or on demand
Overdrafts 23 105.2 257
105.2 257
fn more than one year, but no more than two years
Bark loans - Sh
Bonds 24 359.0
359.0 LR
ln more than two years, but no mare than five years
Banx 'oans 23 3.7}
Boras 24 - o
Other borrowings 25 119.8
116.1 S e
In more than five years — due other than by instaiments
Bonds 24 1,080.8 e
Orther borawings 25 1,012.2 @l
2,093.0 R

MNon current barrowngs 2,568.1 R

Total borrewings 2,673.3 Lo
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22. BORROWINGS O 11 7D

The Group is pany to @ Common Terms Agreement [CTA} where bank and bond creditors benefit from the same suile of representations, warranties and
covenants. The CTA wos signed on 14 Februgry 2014

The CTA together with a Master Definitions Agreement covers, inter alic, The Amended and Restcled Initial Authorised Credit Facility Agreement [ACF),

The Amended and Restated Liquidity Facllity Agreement (LF), and the Group's issue of publicly lisled fixed rate secured bonds in February 2014 and April
2014 respectively

The Amended and Restoled LF Agreement hos totol lociliies of £90.0m and is sized to cover 12 months interest on secured debt. The LF Agreement is
a 364-day revolving facility with a five year term on each annual renewal. The LE, along with the RCF, were refinenced in May 2022 with the revised
maturity date of May 2027

The Group issued a £450.0m publicly listed fixed rate secured bond on 14 February 2014 with o scheduled and legal maturity of 20341

The Group issued @ £360.0m publicly listed fixed rale secured bond on 16 April 2014 with a scheduled and legal matunty of 2024. All proceeds from
the issue of the bands {net of certain issvance fees) were used to repay a large portion of the Secured Senior Term Foclity.!

The Group issued o £300.0m publicly listed fixed rate secured bond on 15 Nevember 2017 with o scheduled and legal maturity of 2039, All proceeds
trom the issue of the bonds (net of certain issuance lees) were used to repay the Revolving Credir Facility.!

The Group issued a £350.0m publicly listed fixed rofe secured bond on @ May 2019 with a scheduled and legal maturity of 31 March 2044. Al
proceeds from the issue of the bonds [net of certain issuance fees) were used to repay the Revolving Credil Facility 7

The Amended ond Restated LF Agreement has 1otal faciiiies of £90.0m and is sized to cover 12 manths interesi on secured debt. The LF Agreement is o
364-day revolving facility with o five year term on each annual renewal.

The Group's borrowings are all secured via 4 fixed and floaling charge over substantially all of the assets of the Group.

! lssie casts ansing n relanon to obteining finance are amortised over the durotion of the finonaing as part of the elfective misres ale

23. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

2023 2022

£m £m

Bank loans ond overdrofts 105.2 257
Bonk loans and overdrafts - current 105.2 257
Secured Revolving Credit Faciliry - 4840
less unamorhsed debt issue Costs? (3.7) {C 8]
Bank loans and overdrafts - non-current {3.7) 4832
Bank loans and overdrafts - total 101.5 5088

7 lssue costs ansing in relation fo oklaining finance are amertised over the duration of the fnancing as part ol the effective inferest 1ote.

A 31 Moich 2023 the Group hod £484.0m (2022: £nil} undrewn committed borrowing facilifies in respect of which all conditions preceders had been
met ot thet date, The yndrawn committed borrawing facilties consist of o £500.0m Secured Revolvng Credt Facility, less certoin carve-outs in respect of
ancilary faciliies of £16.0m The Group alse had access o £ 10.0m of overdraft focilites

Interest on the Secured Revolving Credit Facility is inked 16 SONIA plus o margin,

See note 26 tor further information on financial fiabilties, including maturity analysis.

All bonds are lissed on the London Stock Exchonge {LSE).
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24. BONDS
2023 2022
£m £m
Repayable other than by instalments
MAG bond 4125% £360.0m due 2024 360.0 3600
MAG bond 4 75% £450.0m due 2034 450.0 4500
MAG bond 2 875% £300.0m due 2039 300.0 3000
MAG bond 2.875% £350.0m due 2045 350.0 3500
less: discount on issue (9-3} @ 8)
less: unamortised debt issuve costs (10.9} 122
1,439.8 1,4380
See note 26 for further information on financial liabtlilies, including maturity analysis.
25. OTHER BORROWINGS
2023 2022
£m £m
Repayable ather than by instalments
rr———— Shareholders’ loan at an interest rote of 12% expiring en @ Febrruary 2055 324.9 3035
Sharehalders” logn of an mierest rate of 10% expining on 30 September 2056 221.3 2679
Sharehalders” loan at on interest rate of 107% expinng on 30 September 2057 2213 2078
Shareholdess’ loan at an interest rate of 10% expinng on 30 September 2058 3649 3431
less. unomortised debi issue costs (0.4) (4]
1,132.0 F0AZ20

The Shareholders” loans are unsecured. The table above includes the modificalion gain recognised in FY¥22 and modification ioss recognised in FY23
The principal values of the loans equate 1o £901.9m (2022: £901.9m|, with occwed intarest of £2774m os at 31 March 2023 (2022 £221.7m).

As pan of MAGs strategic finoncial tesponse 10 the Covid- 19 pandemic, the Group agreed with 1is shareholders 1o a defenal of interes chaiges in
relation io the sharehslder loans. Deferred interest incurs on nterest rote of 3% over the bank deposit rate and the directors currently estimaote that tne
deferred intarest will be repaid between 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2030. Under IFRS @, the change has resulted in o modification of the estimated
cashflows, however this is not deemed a substantial modification. As such, the change in fiming and amount of the estimaied fuiure cashflow has been
adjusted in the period of charge, with the corresponding charge being recognised in the income statement. The modification loss of £5.3m (2022 gain
of £8.8m]} has been teflected in the interest payable on othet borowings.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management
The Group's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks. The Group'’s tunding, liquidity and exposure 1o interest rate nsks are managed by the Group’s
reasury function,

Treasury operations are conduc'ed within o fromewark of policies which are approved and subsequenty monrored by the Boord. These include
guidelines on funding, interest rate risk monogement ond courterpony nsk monagerrent.

Interest rate risk
The Group actively manages its exposure to interest rate risk through deiermining the optimum profile and mix of funding between fixed and fioating rates
that is most appropriate to the Group's cashflows, up to a maximum of Q0% fixed.
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Liquidity risk

The principal sources of the Group's liquidily nisk are the ability to refinance debt facilities as they fall due, ensuring cash and cash equivalents are
aecessible as and when required and borrowing facilities are sufficient for the fulure needs of the Group. Although there can be no certainty thot
financing markels will remain open for issuance at all imes, debt maturifies are spread over a range of dales, thereby ensuring that the Group is not
exposed 1o excessive refinancing risk In any one year. the Group's key guideline in managing liguidity risk is to limit the amount of borrowings maturing
within 12 months 1o 35% of gross borrowings fess cash and cash equivalents. All cash and cash equivalents are held on short-term deposit within tem
limits set by the Board. Moreover, debit facilities are maintained at a level that is sufficient to provide a reosonable surplus beyond the fulure needs of
the Group.

At the year ended 31 March 2023, MAG had £2 845.9m |2022: £2,8459m} of committed facilties {excluding the Inihal LF Agreement] and a net deb
position of £2,500.5m {2022: £2,520.3m), each including deferred interest on sharehclder loars and related modification gains. MAG had financial
headicom of £561.6m (2022 £472 9m) of the year end, o level comfortably in excess of the internal compliance torget. Under existing facilities and

based on the Board approved business plan MAG is forecast 1o have finoncial headroom in excess of the minimum Treasury Policy target of £100m
thraughout 2023-24.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is not materially exposed 1o foreign exchange risk as ol material fransactions and financial instruments are in pounds stedling. As we look
to grow operations in the USA in the future, where the income and expenditure do not naturally offsei, we may consider the use ot currency hedges to
manage any exposure fo loreign exchange.

Capital management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to sateguard the Group's ability 1o continue os a geing concern in order o provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital shucture.

Credit risk

Credit risk orises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial insiruments and trade receivables. The Group has no significont concenteations of
credit sisk. The Group’s exposure to credit-related losses, in the event of non-performance by counterparties 1o financial instruments, is mitigated by limiting
exposure 1o any one pory of instument and ensuring only counterparties within defined credit risk parameters are used.

The Group maintains a prudent spht of cosh and cash equivalents across a range of morkel counterpariies in order o mingate counterporty credit risk.
Board-approved invesiment pelicies provide counterparty mvestment hmits, bosed on credil rotings. Investment actvity is reviewed on a regular basis and
no cash or cash equivalents are ploced with counterparties with shor-term credit rotings lower than the prescribed fimits. The Group menitors the credit
rating of market counterparties on a regulor basis,

The Group’s exposure to credit risk on frade receivables is miligated by kmiling exposure to any one counterparty. Risk reports and available oviation
and financial information vpdates used by the Group provide valugble information in relation to any changes in the credit risk profile of s customers,

or within the market, and allow the Group to take a flexible approach 1o the management of risk, Credit exposures in relation to ad hoc customers are
mitigoted, where necessary, using prepayments or the request of depasits

An onalysis of rade receivables, including the volue of those past their due dates and the provision for impairment, is included in note 20 Trade ond
Other Receivables,

Financial liabilities

{a] Interest rate profile of financial liabilities
The intetest rate profile of the Group's financial habilities as at 31 March 2023 was as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Fixed rate financial licbilities 2,571.8 Z2.5000
Floating rate financial abiliies 101.5 5089

2,673.3 30089
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The Revolving Credt Facility bears an interest rate based on Sterling Overnight Index Average {SONIA) ot the Group's discretion between one week
and six months, plus a credit margin. The overdrafts bear interest ot Bank of England Base Rate plus o credit margin.

The Group has prepored an analysis on the impact of potentiol, likely changes in interest rates.

The result of an increase i interest rales of 1% per annum would be to increase /{decrease] Income and equity for the year by the fallawing omounts:
P quily Y Y g

2023 2022 ‘
£m £m
Impact an income statement and equity 0.7 102)
0.7 02
[b) Fixed rate and non-interest bedring financial liabilities
2023 2022
£m £m
Weighted average annual interest 1ote 6.36% 6.20%
Weighted average period for which interest rate is fixed 20yr5m 21yr 5m

The weighted average period for non-interest bearing liabilities as of 31 March 2023 was one year (2022 one year)

{c} Maturity analysis of financial liabilities
The table below shows the gross undiscounted contraciual cash outflows in relation to the Group’s financiat habiliies as at 31 March 2023 1o the

confract malunty date

2023 2022
£m £m
In one year or less of or demard 155.1 6341
In more than one year bu! nol more than two years 505.3 1501
In more than two yeors bui not more than five years 610.9 9875 '
In more than five yeors 5,278.0 52575
6,549.3 702972
This maturity prafile tepresents the fair value of all financial liabilites, as dencted in table {d} on the next page
Undrawn committed borrowing facilities
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had an undrown committed berrowing faclity aval'able amounting to £484 0m (2022 £nil).
2023 2022 '
Fleafting rate Floating rate
£m £m
Expinng in more *han twao years 484.0

484.0
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{d] fair values versus carrying amounts of financial statements

The following table provides o comparison, by category, of the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group's financial instuments as at

31 Match 2023 and 2022, Fair volue is defined as the amount at which o financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm's length fransaction
between informed and willing porties, other thon in a torced or liquidation sale, and excludes accrued interest. Where availlable, market velues hove
been used to determine fait values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting expecied cash flows ot
prevailing interest rales.

2023 2022
Carrying 2023 Carrying 2022
amount Fair value amount Fair volue
Financial liabilities: Nole £m £m £m £m
Instruments held ot amortised cost
Bark loans and overdralts 23 {(101.5) {101.5) {508.9) {5089
Trade payables 27 {53.9) {53.9) 135.7} (35.7)
Contingert consideranon 27 - - 17.8) (7.8}
Bonds 24 (1,439.8) (1,237.1) (1.438.0] {1.458.7)
Cither borrowings (1,7132.0)  (1,014.6) 11,0620} 11 0014
2,727.2)  (2,407.1) (3.052.4) (3.017 )
Financial assets:
Instruments held at amortised cost
Cash at bank and in hand 21 172.8 172.8 488.6 4886
Trode 1ecevables 20 53.8 53.8 47.5 475
Other assets held at fair value
Assets held for sale 18 - - 2.1 2.1
Investment properties 15 155.1 155.1 1889 1889
Other long-term asset 20 10.1 10.1 4.3 43
391.8 391.8 7314 7314
Net financial liabifities (2,335.4) (2,015.3) [2321.00 [22800)

Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments carned ot foir volye ore required fo be measured by relerence 1o the following levels:
* level ¥ — quoted prices in octive markets lor identical assets or labilfies;

» level 2 - inpuis other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices| or
indicectly lie derived fom prices): and

* level 3 - inputs for the asset of hbility that are not based on observable morket doto {unobservable inpurs).

All inancial instruments coried ot fair value heve been measured by a level 2 valuation method.
tnvestment properties corried ot fair value have been measured by a level 3 valuation method.
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Summary of methods and assumptions used for determining fair values

Bonds The fair value of publicly listed bonds is based on market prices or if not ovallable, brokers’ quotes The corrying volue

is net of unamortised issue casts.

Bank loans The tair volue of the bank loans approximates to the carrying value given their flocting rate basis and interest setiing

frequency. The corrying value is net of unamortised issue costs

Qther borrowings The fair value of other borrowngs is bosed on o discounted cosh flow methodology that reflects movements in

underlying morket rotes

Cash at bank and in hand The fair value of cush atbenk and in hand approxmates 1o the carrying value as oft deposits hove same day occess

Trade receivables and payables The iair value of frade receivables and nade payables approximates 1o the carrying value gven their short-tem nature

Investment properties The fair values of mvestment properties are based on ar income copitalisation methodology

(e} Credit risk exposure

The carying amount of financial asseis represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk ot the reporting date was.

2023 2022

Carrying Canrying

amount omount

£m £m

Trade receivables 53.8 75

Cash al bank and in hand 172.8 488 &

Credit exposure 226.6 5361
Further analysis on the credit risk ageing and impairment of rade recerables can be found in note 20.

27.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022

£m £m

Trade payahbles 539 357

(Onher taxotion and social security 1.2 103

Other payables 4.6 20

Accruols 193.9 133.0

Contingent consideration - 78

Copital-based grarss 0.8 oa

254.4 189 4

The directors consider that the carrying volue of rade and other payables approxmotes to therr fair value.

Contingent considerstion in FY22 refated fo omounts payoble 1o the vendors of the acquired businesses AirportPorkingResernvanons, ParkSleeptly and

Shuttlefinder Under the share purchase agreements all three acquisitions haa contingen® consideration due in Apnl 2022. The contngent consideratior

poyment of £78m was mede on 20 April 2022, classified within ‘Payment of contingent consideration on prior acquisitions’ in the consclidated

statement of cash flows, reducing the contingent consideration balance to Enil in FY23.
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28. DEFERRED INCOME

2023 2022

£m £m

Deferred income 35.7 28.2
35.7 87

Total

Deterred income primarily relates to cash ieceipts for car pork bookings not yet consumed, and cash receipts on property income billed in odvance.

The significant increase in deferred income versus 2022 is alfributable to a large increase in car perk bookings, following a significant increase in

possenger volumes.

29, PROVISIONS

Post sale Other

commitments provisions Total

£m £m £m

1 April 2022 2. 16.8 18.9

Arising during the year - 5.1 5.1
Utilised - (1.9) (1.9}

31 March 2023 2.1 20.0 221

Current - 20.0 20,0

MNon-current 21 - 2.1

2. 20.0 220

31 March 2023

Post sale commitments
As part of the Group's disposal ol its non core property porfolio in August 2020, the Group entered inlo commitments to third parties as o result of the

sale, relating 1o pest campletion under the sole ond purchase agreement. Management has estmated the cost of providing these services to be £2.1m,
Management anncipate sthat the setistocton of the provision will be achieved within the next two to four years, as such the prowsion has been disclosed
as being non-current. The estimated cashflows have been discounted based upon initial esfimated cash outlay less future income stream discounted ot

10%, based on the Graup cost of capital.

Other provisions
The other provisions balance includes a provision in relotion to insurance claims fiabilities from incidents which have occurred ot either Manchester

Airpor, Stansted Alrpon or East Midlands International Airport and provisions relahng to potenial ligation across the Gioup including legal fees
Management anticipate that the safistaction of the provision will be achieved within the next 12 months, os such the provisian has been disclosed as being

current Management has estimated the cost of safisfying the provisions within this category to be £20.0m.

Nane of the pravisions are materially sensitive,
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The accounting position is calculoted by the directors and supported by independent actuaries, PwC. who incorporate deta taken fiom a number of
sources in calculating the closing position at the year-end across the defined benefit schemes. The net surplus included in the financial statements under
IAS 19 increased from £22.1m at 31 March 2022 10 £86 &m at 31 March 2023

Summary of changes in oggregote pension scheme deficit £m

MNet surplus as at 31 March 2022 221

Administration expenses (1.1}
Other financial incomes 0.5

Contrbuetions 7.4
Curtanlment gan -

Setttement loss (119.7)
Actuarial gain due 1o relecse of asset ceiling due (o setilemeni 16.7
Other actuarial goin 33.3
Impoct of change in assel ceiling 27.4
Net surplus as at 31 March 2023 86.6
Pensions

All of MAG's defined benefit pension schemes were closed to fulure accrual ofter a penad of consultation in year ended 31 March 2022. The Stansted
and Fast Midlands scheme surpluses increased from o combined £23.7m to £80.7m over the period The surplus has increased over the period due

lo large actuarial gains recagnised n the SOCI mainly due 1o the significant increase 1n the discount rate assumption partially offset by a small cost
recognised in the income stalement. Based on the Group's understanding of the scheme rules for the two schemes, it 1s the Group's view that MAG is
provided a right 1o a refund of any surplus in the schemes and consequently the surplus has been recognised in the financial statements.

During FY22 MAG aiso entered into o Delerred Debt Arrangement {[DDA) with the Greoter Manchester Pension Fund ['GMPF'} as part of the Group’s

exit from the scheme. This resulted in MAG continuing to fund its obligations in the GMPF without crystallising a significant exit debt ot that time. The DDA
provided that, should the GMPF develop a surplus on an extt basis of calculotion then the Group's obligahons under the DDA would cease. other than

the ongoing financing of any unfunded liabilities.

At 31 March 2022 the GMPF was in an IAS 19 accounting surplus of £25.0m. This included an allowance to reflect commitied cash contributions at

31 Maich 2022 of £1.6m. As this surplus did not comprise a surplus under the exit bosis, MAG did not have a right to & refund. Consequently, an assel
ceiling. as required by IFRIC 14, resulted in the accounting surplus not being recognised in the accounts, During the 12 months ended 31 March 2023,
changes in market conditions resulied in an increase in discount rates such that by 2 September 2022, the GMPF were able 1o confirm that there was no
longer a deficit in the GMPF in respect of MAG s obligations on the exit basis. Al that point in fime MAG's obligations 1o the GMPF ceased other than
the orgoing commitment of unfurded liabilmes of £3 Gm.

Whils: overall the GMPF ligbility in the occounts has increased by £2 3m 0 £3.9m o 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: £1.6m) 1AS 19 requires that
the toss on setilement in the iIrcome statement 1 calcolated wathout the impact of the accountng basis asser celling, with the asser celing movement

itself being taken through reserves. Consequently, MAG has recognised o settlement loss of £119.7m in the income statement, reflecting the difference
between the GMPF's assets and liabilties as ot 2 September 2022 This has been classified as an ad|usted item. The offsetting impact of removal of the
asset celling has been recogrised directly 1o reserves n accorgance with 185 19 This, olong with other actuarial adjusiments for the GMPF, amounts 1o o
£16.4m credit

The net surplus of £86.6m in the accaunts reflects @ net liability of £4.1m in the AVPS and GMPF and o net surplus of £90 7m in the EMIA and STAL
schemes. The total of £8G 6m shows the net position acrcss the Group, however the ret surplus in the EMIA and STAL schemes cannor be ofiser against
the net liability of the AVPS and GMPF schemes, so these are presented separately in the financial stalemerts.
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Selllenienl = Deflened Debl Ayreeenl vt GMPF

On 2 September 2022, MAG was discharged from its obligations and liobilities to the GMPF in line with the Deferred Debt Agreement [ DDA’} signed
on 22 March 2022. The impact of this has been recognised os a settlement. This hos resulted in a net seiflement loss of £ 119 7m. This 13 offsat by an OCY
credit equal 1o the volue of the surplus restriction as at 2 Septembes 2022 {£120 &m). The difference in the two rumbers (£0.9m] represents the value of
the future deficit contributions that were expecled of the point immediately priot to the setlement. MAG has retained an obligation to make payments in
respect of the unfunded liobilities related to the GMPF

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operales a defined confribution scheme for all qualifying employees. The assels of the scheme are held separalely from thase of the Group in
tunds under the control of trustees. Where there are employees who leave the scheme prior 1o vesting tully. the confributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the omount of forleited contnbutions

The total cast charged 1o the iIncome stotement of £12.5m [2022: £2.9m) represents cantributions payable fo the scheme by the Group ot rates in the
pension scheme’s contibution schedule. As ot 31 March 2023, there was £nil [2022: £nil) of conirbutions due in respect of the current reporting period
that hod not been paid over 1o the scheme.

Defined benefit schemes
During the year, the Group opercted four defined benefit pension schemes as follows:

»  The Greater Manchestier Pension Fund {GMPF)
+  M.A G [STAL} Persion Scheme [STAL}

* EMIA Pension Scheme [(EMIA).

*  Airport Ventures Pension Scheme [AVPS)

collectively the “Schemes’

Under the Schemes, the employees aie entitled to retirement benefits based on salary and length of service at the time of leaving the Schemes, payable

on altainment of refirement age [or earlier withdrawal or death). No other post-retirement benefits are provided. All Schemes are closed to new enfrants.

AVPS wos previously closed to fulure accrual of benefits, and the GMPF, STAL and EMIA were closed 1 futre acenal of benefits during the year to
31 March 2022.

The Group operates the Schemes under the UK regulatory framework. Benefis are paid 1o members from irustee-administered funds, and the tustees of
each scheme are responsible for ensuring that each respective scheme is sufficiently funded 1o meet current and future benefil payments. Scheme assets
are held In trusts separate to the Group. i invesiment experience is worse than expected, the Group's obligations are incrensed.

The noture of the relationship between the Group and the trustees of each scheme is also governed by UK regulation. The trustees must agree o funding
plon with the Group such that any funding shorttall is expected to be met by odditiona! contiibutions and invesiment performance. In order to assess the
level of contriburions requited. triennial valuarons are carried oul. with each scheme's obligations being measured using prudent assumptions (relotive to
those used lo measure accounting liabilines).

The rrustees’ other dufies include managing the investment of scheme ossets, administiation of scheme benefits and exercising of discrationary benefits.
The Group works closely with the trustees 1o manage eoach scheme.

Total regular employer's pension contnbunons for the Schemes across the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to £74m
(2022 £8.9m) and there were no one-off contributions during this period {2022: £6.3m|.

Total employees’ pensian canirbutians for the Schemes across the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to £nif {2022 £0 6m) ond
there were no one-off contributions during this period {2022: Enil}.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. included within remeasurements,
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The Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF)

During FY22 MAG clso entered into o deferred debt arrangement [DDA) with the GMPF as part of the Group's exit from the GMPF. This resuited in
MAG continuing 1o fund its obligations in the GMPF without crystallising a sigmificont exit debt af that time. The DDA provided that should the Group's
obligotion to the GMPF develop @ surplus on an ‘exit bosis” of calcuiotion then the Group's obligations under the DDA would cease, other than the
ongoing financing of any unfunded liabifities.

Duting the 12 months ended 31 March 2023, changes in martket conditions resulted in an increase in discourd rates such that by 2 September 2022 o
smoll surplus existed when measured on an exit basis At that point in fime MAG s obligations 1o the GMPF ceased other than the ongoing commitment o
unfunded liabilities of £3 @m.

M.A.G (STAL) Pension Scheme {STAL)

On 28 February 2013, the Group ocquired the entire share capital of Stansted Airport Limited. A condifion of the purchase was that a new defined
benefil pension scheme was sef up fo provide comparable benefits 1o those employees who had previously participated in the BAA pension scheme
oriof to the acquisition. Current employees transterred their accrued benefils to STAL, but no liobility for pensioners or deferred members was transterred.
STAL was closed 1o fulure accrual during FY22.

The last full actuarial valyation of STAL was carned out by the Scheme Actuary on 30 Seprember 2022 The aggregate morket value ot the assets was
updated by o full valuation and af the date of that actuerial valuation was £ 1979m [previous valuahion £198.8m}. which represented approximately
124% [previous valugiicn 89.3%) of the present volue of the liobilines. STAL was valued using the projected unit method. There are no expected future
confributions for the year-ending 31 March 2024

Other schemes
Full actuarial voluations were carried out on the other defined benefit schemes as follows:
* EMIA Pension Scheme {EMIA) 6 Apiil 2020, and

*  Ajrport Ventures Pension Scheme — 1 August 2019
The oggregate market value of the assets in EMIA at the date of the actuarial valuation wos £60.6m (previous valuation £59.8m). which represented
appioxmately 670% [previous valuation 74.0%) of the present value of the labuliies. EMIA was volued using the projected unit method. The expected
future contributions for the yeor-ended 31 March 2024 for EMIA is £3.0m.

The olher schemes are not significant to the Group and delails of ther valuation are included in the relevant entity’s financial statements.

The numerical disclosure pravided belaw for the Schemes is bosed on the mast recent actuonal voluations disclosed above, which have been upoated
by independent qualfied actuaries 1o take account of the requirements of IAS 19
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The key assumptions used are as follows:

MAG (STAL) ErdlA AVPS GMPF

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Discount rate 4.80% 2.60% 4.85% 2.60% 4.85% 2.65% 4.85% 2.65%
Future salary increases n/a* nfo® n/a** n/a* n/a n/a n/a** n/a®
RPl inflation 3.20% 3.30% 3.25% 3.45% 3.25% 3 50% 3.25% 3.50%
CPi inflatior 2.60% 2 60% 2.50% 275% 2.65% 265% 2.70% 300%
Increases to pensions
in payment
RPI {max 5%) 3.10% 3.20% 3.15% 3.30% n/a n/a n/a n/a
RPI {max 2.5%] 2.20% 2.20% 2.20% 2 25% n/a n/a n/a n/a
CPl n/a n/o n/a n/a n/a n/a 2.70% 3.00%
CPi {max 3%) 2.20% 220% 2.15% 2.25% 2.20% 2 35% nfa n/a
RPI 3.20% 330% n/a n/a 3.25% 350% n/a no

Life expectancy from 65

Llongevity ol age &5
for current pensioners

Males

Females

2A1.6years 21 6years 22.2years 220years 22.2years 22 0vyears 20.4years 201 years
23.7years 236vears 24.0years 237 years 24.6years 243 years 233 years 231 yeors

Longevity of age 45
for current members

Males

Females

23.0years 226vecrs 23.6years 23.0Cyears 23.5yeors 230years  21.5years 21 Oveors
25.2years 24 8vyears 25.4years 249years 26.0years 25 5vyears 249 years 24.4vears

The RPl inflalior assumplion is set by extrapolating the Bank of England impled inflation curve out to longer terms and using the same projected

cashflows to derive @ single equivalent RPI inflation assumption. CPl inflation is set by reference to RPl inflation as no CPl-iinked bonds exist.

Management have continued fo use the revised basis for the estimation of the inflafion assumptions following the Government's announcement in 2020
to align RPI end CPI-H from February 2030

*Schemes closed to fuure oecrue! dur g FY27

Risk and risk management

Through its defined benefit pension schemes the Group is exposed o a number of risks, the mast significant of which are detailed below,

Asset For the purpese of sefiing the contribution requirements, the colculation uses o discount rate set with reference to government bond

volatility yields, with allowance for additional return to be generated from the investment portfolio - whereas under 1AS 19, the defined benefit
obligation 15 caleulated vsing o discoun rate set with reference 1o corpoiote bond yields, Each of the Schemes' osses invested ina
range of asset classes, including government bonds and indirect lending.

Changes Alollin bond yields ncreases the value placed or the liabilities for reporting puiposes ond for setting the Group's contribution

ir: E;:"d requirements. However. in this scenario, the Schemes’ investment in government bonds is expected fo increase and therefore oltset some

yields ol the increase in the value ploced on the liabilites.

Inflation The majorily of the Schemes’ benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher oul-tum inflation will lead 1o a higher benefit obligation

risk lalthough in most cases caps on the fevel of inflafionary increases are in place 1o protect the plon against extreme inflation). The majonty
of the $chemes’ assets do not provide a direct hedge cgainst changes in inflation as they are either fixed-inlerest in nolure e.g. corporate
bonds and government bonds, or have an indirect link to inflation e.g. equities.

Life The majority of the Schemes” obliganons are to provide o pension for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will resultin

eXpectancy o ncrease in the Schemes' liabiliies. This is paricularly significant where the longer duration and inflation-linked nature of the payments

result in higher sensitivity 1o changes in lfe expectancy. The Schemes do not contoin o hedge ogaoins! increases in future lite expectancy.
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Details of the net pension liability by scheme are as follows:

Present volue

Present value

e oules e ke respes

contibiton

e 3nPeTes Dooce these schares Fove 0180 10 Taudl e farp ases cur only fe tecog

uus ozt efura

Foir value of defined {Defict)/ Foir value of defined (Deficitl/
of scheme benefi Surplus in of scheme benefit Surplus in
assels obligation the scheme assets obligation the scheme
£m £m £m £m £m £m
MAG (STALY) AVPS?
2023 214 {134.3) 79.8 2023 22 12.4) 10.2)
2022 2289 [200 6} 283 2022 27 2.7 -
2021 2175 {218.8) {1.3) 2021 3.5 3.5 -
2020 184.8 18273 2.7 2020 34 3 4)
2019 185.0 209.8 {24.8) 2019 3.7 13.7) -
2018 172.5 (1250 (22.5) 2018 3% (35 -
207 161.4 {189.2) [27.8) 2017 40 4.0 -
EMIA' GMPF?
2023 69.0 {58.1) 109 2023 - (39 39)
2022 73.3 (779} 4 6) 20272 4669 {468.5) 1.6}
—_— 2021 6%.7 (82.2) {12.5) 2021 4852 (526.3] 41.1)
2020 607 (772 {16.5) 2020 4089 (441.3) 132 4)
2019 619 {82.8} (209} 2019 4657 {5039) (38.2)
2018 61.3 801} {18.8} 2018 437.5 {483 5 {46.0)
2017 509 {82.5) (220} 2017 43572 {489 4] 154 2}
Total*?®
2023 2853 (198.7] 86.6
2022 7718 (749 7) 221
2020 7759 {830.8} (54 9)
2020 6578 (704.0) (462)
2019 7163 {800 2) {839
2018 6752 1762 5} 1873}
2017 660 5 1765.1) {104 6)
NOTES
CERAIA om0 STAL tne © unp s o §G0 FAmvdu bwsuia ne mine for ol reiunds The Geoups i S ghtic e sebeno o tucp e e den e IFRVD 1S seqnrements pasen o

AVPS has a deficii of £0 2m [2022 surplus of €0 5m). In prict yeors, @ surplus has not been recognised in fne wath IFRIC 14 as any surplus cannet be recovered by redusing future

' The figures os shown up 1o FY22 1epresent the propostion of GAMFF that s aitibulable to the Group FY23 shows the value of the habibites that are untunded £2 9m (2022- £5 Omi as this
hos remamed o5 an cbi-golon 1 MAG nrespe st o the GMPF e levang e cont vt or ot tne DDA or 2 Lectember 2002

S

are pfeseeteg sepainiely

© Trere have been no othe’ atutiments made s lne aatk FRIT 14

The total o £86 &m shows I e nel posfion ocrass the Group however the surprus in the MAG [STAL) and EMIA schemes cannot be offset ogainsi the defict of e other schemes, so these
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Plan assets
MAG {STAL) EmiA AVPS GMPF™ Tolal
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equites and ciher 70.6 137.6 22.9 414 - - - 3340 93.5 5136
growth assels
Corporate ond 1ns.9 728 35.5 168 21 31 - 730 156.5 1657
govemment bonds
Property - - - &.0 - - - 400 - 460
Oither 24.6 18.5 10.6 g1 0.1 01 - 459 35.3 736
Fair value of assels 214.1 2289 69.0 733 2.2 3.2 - 403.5 285.3 98 Q

* The assel values lar FY22 fas GMPF and AVPS do aotinciude the impact of the asset cedings of £26 6m and L0 5m respechvery

Both EMIA and GMPF {FY22) contoin level 3 assels where valuation is nat based upon observable market dota. The veluations, which conform to

Interrational Valuation Standards, were arrived at by reference to market evidence of fransaction prices for similar assets and discounted cash flow methads.

The voluation technigues applied to the Level 3 assets within the Group's pension schemes are:
*  GMPF pooled invesiment vehicles [FY22) - as determined by relevant fund managers including market prices; quotations; discounted coshflows,
comporable transaction pricing or industry multiples; or other pricing methodolegy;

*  GMPF invesiment propenies (FY22]- estimates of open markel volue reflecting assumptions on: rental growth; void rates; and discount rates;

*  EMIA Annutties (to discharge liability relating to specific scheme members) - valued ot the corresponding amount of the relevant scheme member’s

scheme obligation.

Movement in net defined benefit liakility - all schemes

Defined Foir value Net defined
benefit obligation of scheme assets benrefit liability
2022 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Opening position as at 1 April* {749.7) (830.8) 771.8 7759 22, 154.9)
Intluded in the income statement
Cutrent service cost of defined benefit scheme / administration expenses - {1 9) {V.1} {1.3] {1.1) (3.2
Past service cost - - - - - -
Curtoitment gain - 10.4 - - - 104
Setilements 368.9 20.5 {488.6) 1340} {119.7) 17.5)
Interest {cos) /income (12.5} {14 5} 13.3 136 0.8 09)
Net inferest on asset ceiling - - (0.3} - {0.3) -
356.4 205 {476.7) {21.7} (120.3) {112}
Amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income {SOCI)
Acluat return less expected return on pension scheme assets - - (28.1) 56.2 {28.1) 5672
Expenence loss arising on scheme habilities {29.5} 13.7) - - {29.5) 371
Remeasurement gain due to financial assumption changes 208.4 369 - - 208.4 369
Remeasurement [loss) /goin due to demographic ossumption changes {0.8}) 02 - - {0.8) Gz
Reclassfication - 0.5 - {0 5) - -
Impact of change in the asset ceiling - - 27.4 [26.6) 27.4 (26 6]
178.1 330 (0.7) 201 177.4 630
Cash flows
Contributions - {0 6&) 7.4 158 7.4 152
Benefits paid 16.5 273 {16.5) (273} -
Impoct of assel ceiling - - - - - -
Closing position as at 31 March {198.7) {742 7) 285.3 7718 86.6 221

T Tae FY22 openng position inchudes the mupoct of ire asset celing of £27 1m

The 1otal of 86 6m shows the net pasiion arioss the Group, however the surplus in MAG [STAL] end EMIA cannal be olfsel against the deficit of the ather schemes, so these are

pressmeé sepurcﬂely
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Movement in net defined benefit liability - MAG (STAL} scheme

Defined Fair value Net defined
benefii obligation of scheme assets benefit liability
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m Cm £m £m £m Em
Opening position as at 1 April (200.6} 1218.8) 228.9 2175 28.3 1.3
Included in the income statement
Current service cost of defined benefit schema - {1 O} {0.8) 10.8} (0.8) 11.8)
Curtardments - 59 - - - 5Q
Interest {cost} /income {5.2) (39 59 39 0.7 -
(5.2) 1.0 5. 31 (0.1} 41
Amount recognised in the stat t of comprehensive
income ($0CI)
Actual telumn less expected return on pension scheme assets - - (19.4) 8.2 {19.4} 82
Experience loss ansing on scheme liabilites {2.5} {1.1) - - {2.5) {1
Remeasurement gain due to financial assumption chonges 705 47 - - 70.5 47
Remecsurement {loss] /gain due to demographic assumption chonges {0.5) Ol - - (0.5} [oR]
67.5 13.7 (19.4) 8.2 48.1 219
Cash Aows
Contributions - 0.2} 3.5 38 3.5 36
- Benefits paid 4.0 37 (4.0) 37} - -
Closing position as at 31 March (¥34.3} (200 6) 214.1 2289 79.8 283
STAL liobiliies have o duraton of approximately 18 years (2022: 22 years).
Movement in net defined benefit liability - EMIA scheme
Defined Fair value Net defined
benefit chligation of scheme asseats benefit hability
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Opening position as at 1 April (77.9) 182.2) 73.3 697 (4.6) 112.5)
Included in the income statement
Current service cost of defined benefit scheme - {sRH] (0.3) 10.4) {0.3) 105}
Curtailments - 0.3} - - - 0 3)
Interest {cost} A income (2.0) {1 4} 1.9 12 (0.1} 02
(2.0 18 1.6 oe (0.4 oy
Amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income (SOCI}
Actyal return less expected re'urn on pension scheme ossels - - (5.7} 3.8 (5.7} 38
Excenence ioss ansing on scheme labilites (3.4) o8 - - (3.4) 10 8]
Remeasurement gain due 1o financial assumption changes 22.5 33 - - 22.5 33
Remeasurerent loss due to demographic ossumpfion changes (0.3) - - - (0.3) -
18.8 2.5 (5.7} 3.8 13.1 &3
Cash flows
Contribur ons - - 2.8 26 2.8 26
Benefits paid 3.0 16 (3.0) [2.6) - -
Closing position as at 31 March (58.1) [77G) 69.0 733 10,9 14 6}

EMIA fiobilities have a duration of approximately 14 yeors (202217 yeors).
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Movement in ner defined benefit liability - AVPS
Defined Fair value Net defined
benefit obligation of scheme assets benefi liability
2023 20322 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Opening unrestricted position as ot 1 April {2.7) 1304 3.2 35 0.5 0.5
Asset restriction - - {0.5) {0 5) {0.5]) [0.5)
Opening restricted position as ot 1 April (2.7) [3.0) 2.7 3.0 {0.0) e]el}
Included in the income statement
Current service cost of defined beneht scheme - - - [[eRE - 1)
Interest {cost) /income [0.1) - [P R ] (o8 - Gl
{0.1) - 0.1 - _
Amount recognised in the stat ¥ of prehensive
income (SOCI)
Actual return less expected return an pension scheme assets - - (1.0) o (1.0} on
Expenence loss arising on scheme licbilities (0.5) - - - (0.5) -
Remeasurement gain due to financial essumption changes 0.8 01 - - 0.8 Q1
Impact of change in the asset ceiling - - Q.5 - 0.5 -
0.3 01 (0.5) {0.1) {0.2) -
Cash flows
Benefits paid 0.1 0.2 (0.1} 10.2] - -
Closing position as at 31 March {2.4) 12.7) 2.2 27 {0.2)

The scheme ligbilities have a duration of approximately 12 years (2022, 16 yeors)

For FY22, the totai ossets omaunted to £3 2m; however after applying the asset celing. as the entity is not entiled to recognise the suiplus, total
ossets amount lo £2.7m, For FY22, the unrecognised suiplus omaounts 1o £0.5m
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS — (v Timln O

Movement in net defined benefit liability - GMPF

Defined Fair valve Net defined
benefit obligation of scheme ossets benefit liability
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Em £m £m £m £ £m
Opening position as at 1 April (a68.5) (526 3) 493.5 485 2 25.0 {411)
Asset restriction - - (26.6) - {26.6) -
Opening position as at 1 April {468.5}) 1526 3} 466.9 485 2 {1.6) 41y
Included in the income statement
Current service cosf of defined benefit scheme - {0 8) - - - 0.8)
Curntgiiment gain - 48 - - - 48
Settiements 368.9 265 (488.6) [34.0) {119.7) 7 5)
Inlerest {cost) /income (5.2) (@2} 5.4 84 0.2 [0 8)
Inerest on osser ceiting - - {0.3) - (0.3} -
363.7 21.3 (483.5) (25.6) {119,8) {4.3)
Amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income (SOCI)
Actuat retin less expected return on pension scheme assels - - (2.0) a4 3 (2.0) 44.3
Experience loss orising on scheme liabidines (23.1) (1.8) - - (23.1) {18}
Remeasurement gain due to financial assumption chonges 114.6 8.8 - - 114.6 188
Remeasurement gair due to demographic assumption chonges - o - - - 0l
Impact of change on asset cailing - - 26.9 [26.6) 269 (26 6)
?1.5 171 24.9 177 116.4 348
Cash Aows
Contributions - [0.4) 1.1 G4 1.1 Q0
Benefits paid 9.4 128 (9.4} {158} - -
Closing position as ot 31 March 3.9) 1468 5) - 4569 (3.9} {1.6)
GMPF habilities have a duration of approximately 13 yeors (2022 16 years)
History of experience gains and iosses
MAG (STAL] EMIA AVPS GMPF
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Em £m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
Difference between actial and expected retums on
assels (19.4) 82 [5.7) 38 {1.0} an {2.0) 44 3
% of scherme assets {9.11% 3I6% (B.3)% 52% {45.5)% 371% n/o* @ 5%
Experience loss on fiabililies amauet (2.5) {11) (3.4) 10.8) (0.5) - {23.1) {18)
% of scheme hablties (1.9)%  C.5%  (5.9)% 10%  (20.8)% - n/e* 0 4%
Tota! amount recognised 'n SOCI 48.1 219 139 63 {0.2) - 116.4 348
% of scheme licbilies {35.8)% Doow  {22.51% 8% 8.3% - nfa* {7 A%)

TRAG 13 crecsng not 1o present these nere ot the setlement mears thp these movements 61 FY23 wou o gve exogge-cled percenioge vaves
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Sensitivity analysis

GOVERNANCE

The sensitivies regarding the prncipal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAG
(5TAL) EMIA AVPS GMPF Totel
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
£m £m £m £m £m
(0 5% p.o. increase in reol discount rote {11.1) {3.4) {0.2) (0.2) {(14.9)
0 5% p.a decrease in reol discount sate 12.5 4.4 0.2 0.2 17.3
0.5% p.a. increase in RP! inflation * 10.7 29 0.2 0.2 14.0
0.5% p.a. decrease in RPl inflation* (10.0) {3.1) {0.2) {0.2) {13.5)
b yrincrecse in life expectancy 29 1.7 0.1 0.2 4.9
1 yr decreose in life expectaney (2.9) (1.7} [0.1) {0.2} (4.9)

* Including other inflation 'nked assumphions such as CPtinflaion and pension increases. Pleose note thet o 0 1% p o incracse in RPI may hove o lower impact due to rounding and the atfact

ol the caps and floors on pension increases

For the Schemes, tor the martaliry assumption for the future iImprovements 1o life expectoncy, the actuaries have used the CMI 2021 projections madel. o
1 25% p.a. long-term trend rare, an initial oddition parameter of O 25% and defoult smoothing. 2020 and 2021 weight parameters.

Moriality base tables have been set as follows: GMPF: Fund-specific Club Vita curves; STAL 104%/110% of the SAPS Series 3 tables [males/females);
EMIA: Q6% 106% of the SAPS Series 3 tables (males/females); AVPS: 100% / 100% of the SAPS Series 3 tables {males / females).

31. LEASE LIABILITIES

Plant,
iand and Airport fixtures and
buildings  infrastructure equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
A1 Apnl 2022 225.2 20019 8.7 435.8
Additions 6.5 - 0.4 6.9
Remeasurement 9.7 15.3 0.2 25.2
Medification (0.1} - - {0.1)
Disposals (0.2) - - (0.2)
FX 0.3 - - 0.3
Interest charge for the period 12.4 111 0.3 23.8
Payments of lab#ines 19.1) {11.8) (2.6) {33.5)
At 31 March 2023 234.7 216.5 7.0 458.2
Maturity analysis of principal balances on lease liabilities:
Plans,
Lond and Airport fixtures and
buildings  infrastructure eguipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Within one yeor 6.5 0.8 2.1 9.4
Wilhin two o five years 22.2 3.5 49 30.6
Abter five years 206.0 212.2 - 418.2
Total 234.7 216.5 7.0 458.2

167



168

FA A,

Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

31, LEASE LIABR(|LITIES “roral 070

Undiscounted maturity andlysis of lease liabilities:
The lable below shows the gross undiscounted contractual cash outflows in relation to the Group's lease liabilities at 31 March 2023 to the contract
maturity date

Plant,

Land and Airport  fixpures and
buildings  infrostructure eguipment Tolal
£m £m £Em £m
In one year or less, or on demord 19.0 M1.% 2.4 33.3
in mote than one year, but not more than two years 18.3 1.9 2.1 2.3
In more than two years but not more than five years 49.9 35.6 3.2 a8.7
In more than five yeors 731.0 636.6 - 1,367.6
Total 818.2 496.0 7.7 1.521.9

The expense refaling fo variable lease payments not included in the measurement of leose liabilites is £2 7m (2022- £0 7m) Expenses relating to both
shori-rerm leoses ond low-value leases s £nil (2022, £nil).

Key lease arrangements

Manchester City Council (held within land and buildings):

The Group hos @ commiment 10 respect of o land legse with Manchesier City Council [MCC), a related porty as described 1n noe 36. Ground rent
leases are @ bose fee of £2.8m, and this element of the leose contributed £52 2Zm 1o the clasing lease liobility in land end huildings

Further minimum amounts are payable under the main lease agreement with MCC one element variable bosed on turnover, ond one element bosed on
renial value of o number of properies at Manchester Airpert The minmum amounts due on the furover element are based on a percentage of the prior
rent paid. Management have concluded that these minimum percentage payments qualify as an in-subsiance fixed lease payment, contributing £52 Om
1o the closing lease fiability. These paymenis are vancble depending on an index or rate and contribute £86.1m to the closing lease liability. The discount
role implict mihe lease s 5 29%.

In 2021 the sale of the non-core property portfalio represen‘ed o trigger event on additonal supplementary lease to the moin agreements. As at the yeor
end this contiibutes £ 11.2m (2022 £11.2m) 1o the ciosing leose liability.

In toiol, alt crrongements with MCC contribules 2201 5m of the closing lease labiity in land and buldings, ond no element of the onnuo! rent is
excluded from the measurement of the lease hability.

UK Power Networks (held within airport infrastructure}:

A significant portion of the airport infiastructure lease liability relates to an eleciricity distribution agreement with UK Power Netwaorks, Included in the
measurement of the lease ]iobﬂny are minimum amounis payable under the agreement, relating to a base fee of £9 3m ond £2 ém lor capral invesiment
in the netwerk, contibuing £216 5m 1o the closing leose iigbilty Remoiring omounis of £0.6m are due. reloting 10 o volume and ‘echarge element
These are vanable 1 noture with o minmum cammiment ond therelore excluded 1n mecsurement of the lease liabiity.

Aberdeen Standard (held within land and buildings}):
The Group has a commitment in relahon to a lease of office property at Manchester Arpornt with Aberdeen Standard. Included in the measurement of the
lease liability is fixed rent due under the lease, currently £1.1m and reviewed five-yearly to reflect prevailing market rates The obligations under this lease

have contnbuted £14 3m o the closing lease lability.

MAG US Lounges theld within land end buildings):

Dunng the yeor, the Group wos eligible for rent relef on o number of iounges leased and opersied by MAG in the US. under the American Rescue Plan
Act. The impact of these changes was accounied for as o lease modification in the year and the lease liobility was decreased by £0.1m as a result of the
change We hove not opplied the practical expedient in FY22 ond FY23
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The following are the major deferred tox labiliies and assets recognised by the Group and movements in relation to them during the current ond privi years,

Accelerated Retirement fair volue Short term
capital investment benefit acquisition timing
allowances properties obligations Tax losses adjustment differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At Apnl 2022 168.3 47.1 5.3 (35.5) 40.7 12.4 238.3
Charge/[credit) 1o income {40.0} (6.8) (30.1) 289 (4.7) 1.7 (50.4)
Charge to equily - - 46.5 - 0.3 - 46.8
et e ooty o sl - 0.5 - - - - 0.5
Ciher reclassifications 2.2 [2.2) - - - - -
At 31 March 2023 130.5 38.6 21.7 {6.6) 36.9 141 235.2
At 1 Aprit 2021 132.8 32.0 (10.6) {8.7) 35.8 9.3 190.6
Charge /{credit) to income 35.5 15.% - {26.8) 4.8 341 31.7
Charge 10 equity - - 15.9 - 0.4 - 16.0
At 31 March 2022 168.3 471 5.3 {35.5) 40.7 12.4 238.3
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the disclosure abave. The foliowing is the analysis of the deferred tox balence for financial
reporling purposes:;
2023 2022
£m £m
Deferred lox liabifties (246.7) 1273 8)
Deferred tax assets 11.5 35.5
{235.2) [238.3)
33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
2023 2022
£m £m
Accruals and deferred income 3.4 39
Capitol-based grants 16.9 16.4
20.3 203

Capial bosed grants relate 1o funding provided towards airport infrastructure and airspace research at Manchester and Stansted Airports. Amortisation

of these grants begins when the underlying asset they relote to is brought into use, with the ameriisation peried aligning o the usefu! Iife of the asset. At 31

March 2023, the remaining amortisation peried for the amartising capilal based granis. os o weighted average, is opproximately 25 years.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary shores of £1 each

Number of Share Share
shares! capitol premium Total
m Em £ £m
Issued, called vp and fully paid
At 31 March 2023 316.6 316.6 743.3 1,059.9
Al 31 March 2022 Jt6é6 316.6 743.3 10509
U The srares have o npringl valie of §1
Details of closses of shares in issue and their particulors can be found in note 7 1o the MAHL Company accounts.
35. RESERVES
Foreign
currency Retained
reserve’ earnings Tetal?
£m £m £m
As 1 Aprl 2022 (1.3) {333.7) {335.0})
Result for the year - {159.6) (159.5)
Foreign exchange movement net of 1ax 5.7 - 5.7
Remeasurement of retirament benefit ligbilities, nel of 1ax - 137.¢ 137.9
Effect of change in rate of corporation 1ox - {7.0) {7.0)
As at 21 March 2023 4.4 {362.4) {357.9)
20123 2022
£m £m
Recorciliaior of mavements in shoreholders' funds
Opening sharehoiders” lunds 7249 oR7Y
Total recognised incorne for the year {28.6) [2729)
Forelgn exchange maovement net of 1ax 5.7 1.2
Effect of change in rate of corparation fox on deferred 1oy - 3t
Equity shareholders fungs as ot 31 tMarch 702.0 7249
The foreign cuntenc ; resern e refiects exchonge ote dffarences ansng when covenng the Group US sperations resulls imio the reporting presentotion cuirency using the avelage 1ak o keeslare

“he ncome statement and the spot rale to iranslale the satement ol fingncial pesmon.

Totg eserves winn too'e 1o equity Pe'ges of the Groor
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2023 2022
£m £m
Capital expenditure that has been contracied for but has not been provided for in the financiol statemenis 129.3 218

The Group has pedormance bonds and other items arising in the normal course of business omounting 1o £3.0m at 31 March 2023 {2022: £2 9m).
As parl of its investiment in Airport City the Group hos agreed to pay a further equity contribution up to @ maximum of £ 12m if required.

Addttionally, us puit of the Croup's not zere 2038 cammitment, the Group has committed to provide £ 10m of funding for o sustainable transport fund

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ullimate parent enfity is Manchester Airports Holdings Limited, a compony registered in England and Wales. The ulfimate controlling entisy is
Manchester Airports Holdings Limited.

Transactions invelving The Council of the City of Manchester and the other council shareholders
The Council of the City of Manchester {{ MCC '} is o related porty to Manchester Airports Holdings limited as MCC owns 35.5% of the shore copital of
the Company.

As ot 31 March 2023 the omounl of loans outstonding owed to MCC by the Group wos £3139m (2022: £313.9m] Manchester Airpert Finance
Holdings Llimited made loan repayments of £nil {2022: €nil} to MCC during the yeor and paid interest of £17.4m {2022: Enil).

As al 31 Maich 2023 the omount of loans outstonding owed o the other nine councils {each of which is a reloted perty 1o Manchester Airports Holdings
Limited by virue ot its shareholding) by the Group wos £2679m (2022; £2679m|. Manchester Airport Finance Heldings Limited made loon repayments
ot £ril (2022- £nil} to the other nine councils during the yvear ond paid interest of £ 14.9m {2022: £nil).

Interest during the year hos been accrued on the shareholder loons 1o the volue of £19.3m {2022 £34.6m) for MCC and £16.7m (2022, £29 7m) for
the other nine councits. The cumulatve interest acerual on the shareholder loans is £96 1m as at 31 March 2023 {2022: £76 8m) for MCC and £82 9m
{2022 £66.2m) for the other nine councils.

incluged in external chorges ore charges for rent and rates amounting to £37.3m (2022, £36.5m) and other sundry charges of £0.1m [2022: £1.0m).
The year-end balance for these values is £0.3m [2022: £0.4m). The majority of these amounts are due to MCC. The remainder are collecled by MCC
and distiibuted to other local authorites.

Transactions invelving IFM
Industry Funds Maragement (IFM], through its subsidiary. is a related party to Manchester Airports Holdings Limited as IFM owns 35 5% of the share
copilal of the Company. During the year, the Group was party 1o the following transactions with IFi.

As ot 31 March 2023 the amount of loans outstonding owed 1o IFM by the Group was £320.1m (2022: £320 1], Manchester Airport Finonce
Holdings Limited made loan repayments of £nil {2022 Tnil) 1o IFM during *he year and paid interest of £178m (2022 Lnil)

Interest during the year has been occrued on the shareholder loans 1o the value of £19.7m (2022 £35.4m} The cumulative mterest occruol on the foan
os at 31 March 2023 15 £98 4m (2022: £78.7m].

Transactions invelving associate {airport city limited partnership)
As at 31 March 2023 the amounts owing were £nil [2022: £nil} and amounis owed were £l {2022 nil).

During the year, ransactions amounting 1o £6.7m [2022: £1.3m) were made with MAG's associate. As part ol its investment in Airport City, the Group
hos ogreed 1o pay an equity contribution up 1o @ maximum of £12.0m i required, of which £3.4m wos drawn down at 31 March 2023 {2022, £8 2m}.

Transactions involving other parties
As ot 31 March 2023 the amounts owing to Mot MacDonald were Enil {2022: £0.4m), omounts owed were £nil {2022 £nil} and ransactions during
the year amounted to £4.5m [2022: £0.2m).
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37. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS -0 o- M

As at 31 March 2023 the amounts owing to Manchester Cental Canvention Complex Ud were £nil {2022: £nill, omounts owed by were S {2022
£qil] and transactions during the year amounied 1o £ 1.0m {2022: £nil).

38. RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

Other non-cash

2022 Cosh fow movements 2023
£m £m £m £m
Cash ot bank and in hand 488.6 315 8) - 172.8
Cash ond cash equivalents disclosed on ihe siatement of financial position A8 6 1315.8) . 172.8
Overdrafis {25.7) (79.5) - (105.2)
Total cosh and cash equivalents {including overdrafts) 4629 1395 3) - 67.6
Non-current debt {2.283.2) 5972 (1821} (2,568.1)
et debt 12.520.3) 2019 f182.1 {2,500.5)
IFRS 16
Current debt <8l 335 {331) {9.4)
Non-current debt |426.0) - (22.8) (448.8)
435.8) 333 (559 (458.2)

39. POSTBALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 12 Moy 2023 MAG secured a brdge fo bond focilisy that provides the Group with assurance that il will be able to refinance its bond for £360.0m
by providing the facifity to drowdown £360.0m up 1o 12 May 2024 with options 1o extend 1o 12 May 2025.

On 31 May 2023, MAG acquired 100% of the share copital of ParkCloud Holdings Limited. rading es PorkVio, o Manchester based ecammerce
airport parking aggregator in the UK and EU market. Initial cash ¢onsideration of £8.4m was paid, subject to finalisation of the completion accounts, with
further conlingent consideration payable depending on financial perdarmarnce in the first year following acquisiion. As the completion accounts are yet
io be finalised, no informafion hos been disclosed at this ime on the fair value of assets and licbilihes acquired, and goodwill arising.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Overview

The Annuol Report conlains cestain altermative performance measures { APMs'} that are not required under International Financial Reporting Stondards
(IFRS] which represents the GAAP under which MAG presents its Group Finoncicl Statements. The Group believes that these APMs, which are not
consdered to be o substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stokeholders with additional helptul information and enable an olternative
comparison of performance over tme. APMs may not be considered comparable 1o other similady tiled measures used by other companies.

These APMs are primarily used to:
+ Piovide management with @ basis of planning and assessing Group performance,

*  Setlevels of management performance based remunerotion;
»  Calevlote covenant compliance; and

*  Exploin Group perlormance with MAGs investor base.

Adjusted items
Many of the Group's APMs are measures prior to the impoct of ad|usted items.

Applied consistently over ime, adjusted items cre ilems of income and expense that, because of their size unusual nature, of frequency of the events
giving rise 1o them, mert separale presentation, as these are incremental and to allow an understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance
from its ttoding activities. Such tems include:

Impairment of assets

Impairment charges releted to non-cuirent assets are non-cash items and tend to be signficant in size. The preseniation of these as adjusted items further
enhances the understanding of the ongoing performance of the Group. Impairments of properly, intangible assels and other tongible fixed assels are
included in adjusted ilems if related to o fundamental ransformalion project or if significant in size. Other iImpoirments are included in underlying results.

Major reorganisation of businesses and costs associated with acquisitions

Reslucturing costs are classified as adjusted ilems if they relate to a fundamental change in the organisational siructuie of the Group or @ fundamenial
change in the operating model of a business wethin the Group. Costs may include redundancy, property closure costs and consutancy cos's, which are
significant in size and will nol be incurred under the ongoing slucture or operating model of the Group. All costs related to the acquisition of businesses
will be classfied as adjusted.

Costs associated with the modification of financial instruments, close out of previous financing arrangements upen
refinancing

Costs associated wilh the refinancing ond chonges to debt facilty agreements during the current and prior year are included within odjusted items os
they are significant in size, do not form part of lhe underlying frading activilies.

Cther specific items
Cther specific items are recorded in adjusted ilems where they do not form part of the underlying trading activities of the Group in crder 1o enhance the
understanding of the financiol performance of the Group.
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Table of definitions for Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) used by MAG
An explonation of the relevance of each APM, and their limitatians, is presented in the table below,

income statement measures

Closest Equivalent Purpose Definition
Statutory Measure

Adijusted EBITDA

Adiusted EBITDA en o
frozen GAAP bosis

Adjusted Operating profit

Operafing profit

Result from operations

Operating profit

The Group's adjusied EBITDA
measure is consistent with the way
that Executive Management and the
Board ossess the Group's financiol
performance,

Additionally, it is o key metric

used by the investor community to
assess performance of the Group's
cperafions,

Adiusted EBITDA on a frozen GAAP
bosis is 0 core component of the
Group's leverage and interest cover
banking covenants

Adjusted result lom operotions is o
measure of the GAAP metric whilst
odjusting for adjusted items.

Earnings before interes), 1ax, depreciation
ond amorlisation prior to the impact of
adiusted items

Reconciled to GAAP trom operating profit
meosured in accordance with IFRS excluding:
* Depreciation ond amertisation [note 4},

ond;

¢ The impact of adjusted fems {note 3).

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciorion,
omomisaiion ond impoitment prior 1o the
impact of adjusted items ond the adoption of
IFRS 16,

Reconciled to GAAP fiom Result hom

operations measured in accordance with IFRS

excluding:

* Depreciation and amorfisation {note 41;

» The impact of adjusted items (note 3),
and;

*  Add back lease charges excluded from
operofing expenses as o result of the
odoption of IFRS 16 {note 39)

Operating profit measured in accordance
with IFRS excluding the impact of adjusted
items (note 3).

Adjusted cash generated
krom operations

Other moasures
Net Debt

Net cash from
operaling acfivities

Borrowings

This is o measure of the Group’s
cash generation from operation
and working copital efficiency after
adjusting for the impact of adjusted
nems.

Net debt is a prominent metric

used by credi roling agencies and
investors to assess the strength of a
company’s balance sheet,

Net cash from operating activities before the
cosh impact of adjusted items

Borowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The measure excludes financial lease liabilities
calculated under IFRS 16

Where the Annual Report references ‘MNet
Debt (including fFRS 16] this aggregates the
Net Debt amount and the carrying value of
lease liabilities
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Closest Equivalent Purpose
Statutory Measure

Net Finance Charges finance costs
on Net Senior Debt

Net Senior Debt Borrowings

MNet finance charges on net senior
debt is o core component of the
Group's inferest cover covenant.

Net Senior Debt is used in the
caiculation of the Group's feveroge

Net finance costs from the Group's bonds and
RCF less any finonce income from cash and
cash equivalents.

Reconciled to GAAP measure Finance costs
by excluding: interest on shareholder ioans;
pension interest; IFRS 16 interest (see note 30)

Comprising the Group’s Secured funding
arrangements {Bonds and drawn down RCF}
less cash and cash equivalents.

Reconciled to GAAP measure Borrowings {by
excluding the carrying volue of shareholder
loans} less cash and cash equivalents.

The foliowing analysis provides o reconciliation of each APM 1o therr neorest equivalent statutory measure.

Reconciliation of APMs to statutory measures

2023 2022
Naote £m £m
Adjusted operating profit 169.8 (1132}
Adjusted items deducted to orrive ot APM,
Extinguishment of the defenad debt agreement 119.7)
Impaimment of assets asset wiite-downs and depreciation {15.8) 2.2)
Majer recrganisation of businesses and ransformation (4.1) (3.5}
legal and other items (1.6} 4.4}
Adjusted items charged to operating profit {141.2) 1171}
Operating profit/{loss) 4 28.6 (130 3
Adjusied operating profit 169.8 (113.2}
Add bock: Depreciation ond amertisation 4 242.2 2388
Adjusted EBITDA* 412.0 1256

* See next poge torrecancihantor by segment
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OTHER INFORMATION ¢ on. 7 il
2023 2022
Note £m £m
Cash generated from continuving operations 450.4 145 7
Total adjusted items in results for continued operations before tax 146.9 83
146.9 8.3
Add back of non-cash adjusted items.
finonce costs - odjusted items [see note 7} (5.7} 88
Imparment of oropery, plant and eguinment (159 [thxel!
Working capiial movements. relating to adjusted irems {1.0) 6.6
Curtailment gain - 104
Non-cash pension selement losses {119.7) 12.3)
Non-cash adjusted items {142.3) 125
Cash impact of adjusted items to be added back 4.6 208
Adjusted cash generated from operations 455.0 166.5
Total cash and cash equivalents [including overdrahs) 67.6 44629
tNon-current debt 22 (2,568.1) (2983 2)
Net Debt {excluding IFRS 16} 2,500.5 12520 3)
Cash ot bank and ir hand 23 172.8 488.6
Owerdraft 22 (105.2) {257}
Net Cash &67.6 4629
Lendon Group, Consclidated
Monchester S d East Midlond c lidation - inuing
Airport Airport Airport CAVU and other operations
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Operating profit/{loss) (104.7} 91.0 13.4 21.8 7.1 28.6
Adjusted items deducted to arrive at APM
Extinguiskment of the deferred debt agreemert 19.7 - - - - ne.z
Impairment of assels, asse! write-downs and depreciaiion 10.9 2.4 1.2 1.4 - 15.9
*Maijor recrgonisation of businesses and fransformation 3.6 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 4.1
Llegal and other items - - - 1.1 0.4 1.5
Total odjusted items 134.2 2.5 1.4 2.6 0.5 141.2
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 29.5 93.5 14.8 24.4 7.6 169.8
Add back. depreciahons ond amormsation 127.8 71.0 18.0 10.8 14.6 242.2

Adjusted EBITDA 157.3 164.5 32.8 35.2 22.2 412.0
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Nate 2023 2022
Finance costs betore odjusted items {201.1) (190.1}
Add back,
Interest on shareholder foans 7 115.0 103 2
IFRS 16 interest 7 23.8 227
Pansion interes! 7 {0.5) 09
Net finance charges on net senior debt (62.8) {63 3)

Note 2023 2022
Borrowings (2,568.1) (2983.2]
Add back
Carrying volue of sharehoider loans 25 1,132.0 10620
Net cash 67.6 4629
Net senior debt {1,368.5) {1,458 3)

Net senior debt £1.368.5m (2022, £1,458 3) os a multiple of fiozen adjusted EBITDA £378 5m, as reconciled below {2022: £74.8m} is one of our
KPI's, colculated os 3.6 for the year ended 2023 (2022: 15.4). Further information con be found en page 22.

IMPACT OF IFRS 16 UPON PRIMARY STATEMENTS (FROZEN GAAP)

Consolidated income statement as at 31 March 2023

The purpose of these pages is 1o provide a reconciliation from the financial results in the accounts, 1o the primary statements with the previous (AS17
policies adopted by the Group [including key APMs such as Adjusted EBITDA]. Whilst IFRS 16 comparatives are now available, management still
produce the reconciliohons below to give the reader greater insight into the impact of IFRS 16 on the reponing of Group results {Frozen GAAP).

Continuing

Continuing

operations operations

2023 Rent & 2023

as reported  finance costs  Depreciation  Frozen GAAP

Conlinying operofions £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1,029.0 1,029.0
Operating charges excluding depreciation (617.0} (33.5) - (650.5)

Adjusted EBITDA 412.0 (33.5) - 378.5
Depreciation {242.2} - 11.8 {230.4)

Result from aperations before adjusted items 169.8 {33.5) 11.8 148.1

Adjusted items

Adjusted items {(141.2) 1.5 {139.7)

Result from operations 28.6 (33.5) 13.3 8.4

Share of result of associate 0.1 - - 0.1
Goins and Josses on soles and voluation of investment properties {26.3) - - [26.3)
Nel finance costs abter adjusted ilems (199.8) 23.8 (176.0)
Result before taxation {197.4) (9.7} 13.3 {193.8)
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OTHER INFORMATION .7 0 =12

Consolidated statement of financial position as ot 31 March 2023

Continuing Rent, Additions, Reclassification Cantinuing
operations finance disposals &  from property, operations
2023 costs & Opening remeasure- plantand  Deferred tax 2023
as reported  depreciation balance offset ment equipment on IFRS 16 Frozren GAAP
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Non-current assets
Goodwil 210.1 - - - - - 2104
Intangible assets 88.3 - - - - - 88.3
Property, plant and equipment 3,107.2 - - - 1.5 - 3,108.7
Right-of-use assets 437.0 14.7 (8417.7) (32.5) (1.5) - -
tong term lease receivable 11.2 - (11.2) - - - -
Investment properties 155.1 - - - - - 155.1
Investment in associate 7.1 - - - - - 7.1
Retiremenit benefit cssets 90.7 - - - - - Q0.7
4,106.7 14.7 (428.9) {32.5) - - 3,660.0
Current assets
_ Inventories 4.1 - - - - - 4.1
Trade urd other receivables 122.7 - - - - - 122.7
Cash and cash equivalents 172.8 - - - - - 172.8
29%.6 E - - - - 299.6
Current liabilities
Bonk loons and overdrafts 1105.2) - - - - - {105.2)
Trade ard other payables {254.4) - - - - - {254.4)
Deferred income (35.7) - - - - - {35.7)
Provisiors {20.0) - - - - - {20.0)
Current lease hobilmes (9.4) - 9.4 - - - -
(a24.7) - 9.4 - - - {415.3)
NET CURRENT LIABHITIES {125.1) - 9.4 - - - {(115.7)
Non-current liabilities
Borncwings (2,568.1) - - - - - (2,568.1)
Retirement bensfit liabiliies i4.3) - - - - - 3.1
MNen-current lease Eabilinas (448.8) (9.7) 426.4 320 - - -
Deterred tox liobilities (235.2) - - - - 2.5 (232.7)
Prowisions {2.1) - - - - - {2.1)
Other nan-currert labilties {20.3}) - - - - - [20.3}
(3,278.6) {9.7) 426.4 32. - 2.5 (2,827.3)

NET ASSETS 703.0 5.0 6.9 10.4) - 2.5 FAXA:)
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Continuing Payment Continuing

operations recognised operotions

2023 as operating interest Lease 2023

as reported charge charge repoyment  Frazen GAAP

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash generated from continuing operations 450.4 {33.5) - - 416.9

Result before taxation - discontinued operations 5.8 - - - 5.8
Woaorking capilal - discontinued operctions (5.8) - - - (5.8)
Interest poid (138.3] - 238 - (114.5)
Interest income 7.0 - - - 7.0
Tax paid {32.1) - - - (32.1)

Net cash from operating octivities 287.0 {33.5) 23.8 - 277.3
Net cash from investing activities (184.3) - - - (184.3)
Net cash from f{used in) financing activities (498.0) - - 9.7 (488.3)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (395.3) (33.5) 23.8 9.7 (395.3)
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Accounting policies

Manchester Airports Holdings Limited (the 'Compaony’] is a company limted by shares and incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales in the UK.
The address of the registered office is Olympic House, Manchester Airport, Manchester, MSO 1QIX.

These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking ond not about its Group
These financial stalements were prepared in accordance with financial Reporting Stardard 102 The Financiol Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
ond Republic of Irelond (FRS 102} os issued in August 2014, The amendmenis to FRS 102 issued in 2018 and eflective immediately have been opplied

The presentation currency of these financiol statements is sierling. Al amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest £million.

In these financict statemnents, the Company is considered lo be a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, and has opplied the exemptions available
under this FRS in respect of the following disclosures:

*  Total adjusted tems recorded in result from operations
+ statement of cash flows and related notes,

* key management personnel compensation-
Totol adjusted ftems recorded in result are hom con'inuing operctions

Furthermore, as the consolidated financial statemerts of Manchester Airports Holdings Limited include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has alse
taken the exemptions under FRS 102 avallable in respect of the lollowing disclosures:

*  The disclosures required by FRS 10211 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financia! Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments
not folling within the fair value cccounting rules of Paragraph 36{4) of Schedule 1.

The accounting policies sel oul, unless otherwise stated, have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.
MEASUREMENT CONVENTION

The financial slatements are prepared on the historical cost basis.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The Company's furclional and presentotion currency 1s the pound sterling

INVESTMENTS N SUBSIDIARIES

These are separate financial statements of the Company. Investments in subsidiaries ore corried of cost less impairment.

AMOUNTS OWED TO SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Intercomporny balances are siated af historic cos

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash ard cosh equivalents comprise cash in hand bask deposits ane shor-terr deposits net of bank overdralts which have on eriginal maturiry of three
p ¥ 2] Y

months ar .ess.

INTEREST PAYABLE

imerest payable is recognised in the income statemen' as 1t accrues using the effective interest mehod
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Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2023

2023 2022

B Ninte £m L

Non-current assets

Investments 2,352.7 23527

T-ade and other receivables 495.5 2456
7 2,848.2 25983

Current assets

Trade and other recevables 5 - 2470

Cush und cash equivilenls - E
7 - 2470
Liabilities

Curient habilities & {260.8) [252.0)
:Net current liabilities /assets (260.8) [5.0]

Total assets less current liabilities 2,587.4 2.593.3

Met assets 2,587.4 25033

Capital and reserves

Share capnal 316.6 3166

Share premium 743.3 743 3

Retoined earnings 8 1,527.5 1,533.4

Total equity 2,587.4 2,593.3

The accempanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

The financiol sialements were approved by the Board of Directors on 4 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Guten € Comd.

Charlie Cornish, Group Chief Executive, MAG
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Share Profit and loss
capital premium account Total
£m £m £m £m
Balance ot 1 April 2022 316.6 743.3 1,533.4 2,593.3
Result for the year - - (5.9) (5.9}
Balance at 31 March 2023 316.6 743.3 1,527.5 2,587.4
Share Share Profit and loss
capitol premiom account Total
£m £m £m £m
Balonce at 1 April 2021 366 743.3 1.5358 25957
Total comprehensive income for the year
Result for the yeor . (2.4} (2 4;
Balance at 31 March 2022 3160.6 7433 1,533 4 25923

The accompanying notes form an \'mcgrcﬂ part of the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

Amounts recevable by the Company's uuditor and the auditor's associales n respect of services o the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, have
not been disclosed as the infaimation has been disclosed on o consclidated basis es noled on page 138. The Direclors of Manchester Arports Holding
Limited during the year and their aggregale remuneialion is disclosed on a consalidated basis in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, on
page 136. The highest poid director disclosed within this nole is the highest paid directar of the Company

2. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION OF THE COMPANY

As permitied by Section 408 of the Companies Acl, the Company is exempt from the requirement 1o present ils own profit and loss account. As shown
in the staterment of changes in equity, the result attnbutable to the Company is @ loss of £5.9m [2022: £2.4m} which s mainlv due 1o inlerest pavable
[MNote 3], offset with o lax credit of £3.6m

The average number of employees employed by the Company in the year was £nil {2022: Enil)

3. FINANCE COSTS

2023 2022

£m Em

Intercompany inferest payable 2.5 32
9.5 32

Total finance costs

Interest payable on irtercompany loans was £2.5m [2022: £3 2m}, with the increase tiom the piior year being as a result of an increase in the base rote

4. INVESTMENTS

Subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost and net book value

At 1 April 2022 2,352.7
At 31 March 2023 2,352.7

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
£m £m
Amaunts due from subsidianes — non-current 495.5 245 6
Amounts due ham subsidiaries - cunent - 2470
495.5 A4G2 .6

Setlement terms on all amounts due to subsidiaries are ot g dole mutuo“y cgrecd by bath parhes o the balance. Based on the exercise per[ormed
by the Board of Duectors in the price year, and as at the date of signing alt balances are classified as non-current since receip! 15 not probob\e within

12 manths

The: directors consider that the canying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to their fair value.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2023

6. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022

£m £m

Amounts owed fo subsichary undenakings 260.8 2520
260.8 2520

Amounis owed lo subsidicry undertokings include an interest-bearing loan of £260 8m ar 31 March 2023 (2022: £252.0m), with interest charged ot

an onnual rate ot 1.5% {2022, 1 5%) above the Bank of England base rate, all other remaining balances are interest free. All balances are repayable
an demand.

7. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Share Share

shares capital premium Total
m £m £m £m

Issued, called up and fully paid
At 31 March 2023 316.6 316.6 743.3 1,05%9.9
At 31 March 2022 6.6 3166 743.3 1,0599

Details of shares are given below.
Total

nominal value Premium
Share type £ £
204,280,000 Crdinary Non-Voting Shares, 1ssued a: £ nominal value 204,280,000 -
112,354,000 Ordinary Non-Vonng Shares issued at premium 112,354,000 687,157,064
1G % 'A' shores, issued at £ nominal value 10 -
10 % "B shares, ssubed at £1 nominal value 10 -
30 x T shares, 1ssued at premum 30 56,099.870C

Particulars of each class of share:

Vating - each holder of A shares shall be entitled 10 receive nolice of 1o attend, speak al and vote of general meetings of the Compony. All other
classes of shares do not carry voting nghts.

Capital - on o winding up or other return of capital the available assets of the Campany sholl be applied in the tollowing order of priority
{A] first, 1n poying to each halder of A shares. B shares. ond non-votng ordinary shares the nominol amount of the aggregate of such shares keld by each
such holder pre-rota to their ho\dmgs ol shores and

{B] second, in paymng the belance to the holders of non-votng Ordmory shares pro-rate 1o their ho\dings of non-voting ordimcry shares.

Income - C sharsholders and ordincry sharehelders shall be entled to dvidends, which shall be payable to the holders pra-rato o their holdings of C
shares /ordinary shares respectively.
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8. RESERVES
Retoined
earnings
€m
AT Aprl 2022 1,533.4
Results for the year (5.9)
Impairment "
At 31 Morch 2023 1,527.5
2023 2022
£m £m
Reconciliation of movement in shareholders funds
Opening shareholders’ funds 2,593.3 2.5Q57
Results for the year (5.9) 12 4]
Dradend in kind - -
Equity shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2,587.4 25933
9. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Name of undertaking Dascription of shores held Group Compeny Principal activity
Agency ot the North limiied? Ordinary 1 shares 100% Holding company
Airponparkingreservatians.com®* N/A 100% Trading company
Airport Advertising Limited? 7 Ordingry £1 shates 100% MNon hading
Arrport City {Assel Manager] Limited '? Ordingry £1 shares 20% Property holding company
Airport City {General Paninen] Limited'2 Ordinary £1 shares 20% Property halding company
Airport City Limited Partnership'? Ordinary £1 shares 20% Propetty halding company
. PrOperTy
Airpont City Management Compary : o
1Scuth) Dimited 7 Ordinary £1 shares 100% monfzgemem
company
Airport City {Manchester) Limited'? Ordinary £1 shares 100% Property holding corrpany
Airport City [Manchestar) Invesiments Limited'? COrdinary £1 shares 100% Property holding company
Airport Petraleun Limited?? Ordinary £1 shares 100% MNon frading
Airport Services International Limited? Crdinary €1 shares 100% Holding company
Boinsdown {imited? Ordinary £1 shares 100% Propeny holding company
CAvU Disribution [AMER) [LC8* - ‘
fformedy Parksleepfly.com LLC) N/A 100% Trading company
CAVU ECommerce [EMEA] Limited? . o .
(formerly Lookingdparking L) Ordinary £1 shares 100% Trading company
CAVU eCommerce [AMER) LLCE ™ : < :
3 M +
{formerly MAG US Parking Manogement LLC) M/A 160 on hading
CAVL Experiences [AMER) LLCe * 5 .
(formerly MAG US lounge Management iLC) N/A 100% Mon trading
CAVU Expernences (EMEA] Limited [formerly : o -
Skypatksecure Limited)? Ordinary £1 shares 100% Trading carmoany
CAVU Holdings [AMER) Inct* . o .
Formerly MAG US Holdings Inc} Ordinary $0 01 shores 100% Invesiment holding company
CAVU Group Limited” Ordirary £1 shares 100% Trading company
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9. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS (.21 .T !, £l

L

Name of undertaking Description of shores held Group Company Principal activity
532!':‘;1\2?[01165 Airport Core Property investments Ordinory £1 shares \00% Men rading
Eost Midlands Aicpor NMotingham Derby Leicester inermediate holding company
s voeen P wingea v ieiceste Ordinery £ shares 100% of East Midlands Internanonal
Limited A L
arpart Limited
P ¢ d

gcgr Mgd\cnds Airpott Property Invesimerits (Hotels) Ordinary €1 shores 100% Non liading

Limited?
Ecs} Mgd\cnds Airport Property Investments {Industrigl) Ordinary &1 shores 100% Mon tiading

Limited
Em§l Mld\ands Airport Properly Invesiments (Offices) Oldmory £ shores 100% MNon rading

Lirnitedt”

’ . 9% comulonve redeemoble
: Pl
East Midlands International Arpert limted preference shares 100% Arrport aperator
FrIA Pens.on Trustee Limited? Ordinary £1 shores 100% 100Q% Pension trustee
hMonchestel Airpoit Aviation Services Limied®” Ordinory £1 shares 100% nvesiment holding
’ company
Manchester Aiiport Finance Holdings Limited? Ordinary £ shares 100% 100% vestment holding
company
1
hManchester Airport Group Hnance Limited® Oddinary £1 shares 100 nvestment holding
company
Manchester Arrport Gr Funding Plc* Ordingry £7 sh YOO% tnvesiment holding
anchester Arport Group Funding Ple rdinary £1 shares % compony
PManchester Airport Group Investments Limited? Ordinery £1 shares 100% Investment holding
company
Mqr1ch;esler Aurport Group Property Developments Oredinory £1 shares 002 Property development
Limited ; company
Manchester Airport Group Property Services Limited? Ordinary £1 shares 100% Non froding
RMAG Airpont Limied? Ordinary £1 shares 100% Trading company
Manchester Axport Car Pork |1} mited? N A 100% Trading company
tanchester Aiipont Group US Holdings inc® Qrdirary 5001 shares 100% Invesiment holding
company
Manchester Anport Plc? Ordirory £1 shaies 1G0% Alpoit operator
Monchf_srer Airport Property Investments {Holels) Ordincry &1 shares 100% \rwesml'wem property
Limited holding company
c =1 Ay v : ! ! stment

J‘Aom.h’e:ﬁcr Arport Property Investments (Industnal} Ordinary £1 shores 1008, nvestment property
bmited? holding company
Mgnchz(is!er Airport Property Investments {Offices) O idinary £1 shores 100 investment property
Limited hold.ng corpany
Imerrediate holding company
tiarchester Arport Vertures Limited? ™ Cudingry £1 shores 100% far Aurport Advertising Limited
and Ai-port Petroleum Limited
PMAG Invesments US Limired? Crdirory £1 shares i00% Investment holding corpany
MAG COverseos Investments limited? Ordinory £1 shases 100% 100% Naoe rading
MAG US Terminal Managemert LLC® * N A 1C0% Nor rad ng
MAG DC Pension Trustee Limied? Ordinary £1 shares 100% 100% Pension truslee
MAG Pension Trusiee Limited” Ord.nary £ shores 100% 100% Persion trustee
MAG US [Apclio] Lmied® Ondinary £1 shores 100% Holding company
FAG US [Apollo] Inct ™ NAA 100% Nen freding
Ringway Developments tid*” Ordinary £1 shares 100% Nen trading
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9. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS . ConIT:h U
Name of undertoking Description of shares held Group Company Principal activity
Ringwaoy Handling Limited®” Ordinary £} shares 100% Nen trading
Ringway Handling Services Limited? Ordinary £1 shares 100% MNen trading
Shutilefinder.net LLC® * N/A 100% Trading company
Simmerdown Limted? Ordinary £1 shores 100% Holding compony
Stansted Airport Limited® Ordinary £1 shares 100% Airpon operator
The Escape Lounge FIT 1128 N/ 75% Trading company
Travel Porking Group Limited? Crdinary £1 shares 100% Halding company
Worknorth limited’” 7% cumu|c11ivfe redeen;obl% 100% MNon frading
preference shares
Crdinary £1 shares 100%
7% cumulative
Worknorth li Limited?” 100% Mon tfrading
redeemable prefercrnce shares
Ordinary £1 shares 100%

These reflect the Group’s 20% investment in Airport City shown within the Group financial statements as un invesimant in ossociale

The regisiered olfice oddresses {or each ol the above Lompomas we listed below
Olympic House, Manchester Aiport Manchester MP0 1GX

PC Box 532, Towen Hol! Albert Square Monchester M&D 21A
Bullding 34 Eost Midiands Anpert Costle Deringtor, Derby DEZ4 25A

IS

Enterprse House Bossingbourn Roaa, Stansted Auport, Essex ChAZ4 101W

ES

251 stle Folis Drve, Wilmingtan, Deloware 19808, Unied Siates of Amerco

" Doimani and exempl fiom prepanng and filing mdidual accounts by virtue of 5394A of the Companres Act 2006

Dunr g the pencd the Croup acgured or majcnty inderest mi g concessen na lounge MAG has assessed tabitcanhols the concessioe in the lourge and has consolidaled 100% of the

revonuve, cxpenses, assels and liabilies in the Income sialement and balunce sheet The proft kor the year and othel reserve movements have been splil botween those atinbulable to

MAG's equity holde«s and those atinbulable to nan-contrcing nlerests

All the gbove companies operate in therr country of incorporation or registration, which is Englond and Wales except where indicated [*) 1s United

States of Amenca.
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10. PARENT GUARANTEE

The subsidiary undertakings listed below ore exempt from the Componies Act 2006 reguirements relaring to the oudil of their individual occounts by vitue
of Section 479A of the Act as this company has guaranteed the subsidiary company under Section 479C of the Act.

Registered company

Name of undertaking number
Agency of the Narth 07781704
Airporl Advertising Limited 02688267
Airpan City {Manchester) Investments Limited 08721435
Airport City (Manchester] Limited 08385545
Aupon Perrcleum Limited Q2714R31
Airport Services Irternational Limited 11415904
Bainsdown Limited 01633068
East Midlands Airport Investments (Hotels) Limited 07088376
East Mudionds Arpon Propeny Invesiments {indusiial) Limied 07088412
East Midlands Airport Property Investments {Offices) limiled 07088415
MAG Overseas Investments Limited 09434983
tMoaonchester Airpart Aviation Sedvices Limited 04160059
Manchester Aiiport Gioup Poperty Developments Limited 07088164
Maonchester Airport Group Property Services Limited 07088135
Manchester Airport Ventures limiled 04168075
Ringway Handling Services limited 02638238
Tigvel Parking Group 07235770
Worknorth Il Limited 0352115
Worknorth Limited 01793483

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Cautionary Statement. The Annual Report and Aceourts contains certan forward-locking stotements with tespect 1o the operalions, pertormonce and
financial condition of the Group. By their nature, these siatements invalve uncertainty since future events ond circumstances can cause resulis and
developments 1o differ materially from those anticipated. The torward-looking statements reflect knowledge and informaticn available of the date of
oreparaton of this Annual Report and the Company undertakes no obligation to update these forward-‘ooking statements. Nothing in this Annual Report
should be construed as a profit forecast. Unless expressly stated otherwise, the ‘Group’ "MAG' *Manchesler Airports Group, "MAHL’ or 'the Company’
means Monchester Airpoits Holdmgs Limited and its subsichary undertakings.
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